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Evoruk UK Holdings Limited
Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Business review and prnincipal actvitres
Evonik UK Holdings Lirmuicd operates as a holding company and as a shared services provider to other entitics in the Evontk Industries group of
companies

On 15t July 2015 the company changed s name to Evoruk UK Holdings Limuted

The Company continues to previde company secretanal accounuiag and tax services for whuch it charges fees The pnncipat activities of the Company are
concened with denving tncome from investments 1n subsidiary undertakungs and the provision of these shared services The Directors do not foresee any
change to the curreat activities 1n the near furre

Duning the year the company transitioned from UK GAAP 1o FRS101 and has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions under
this standard The Company s parent undertaking Evonik Industries AG, was notified of and did not obyect to the use of the IFRS
disclosure exemptions

The results for the Company show a loss on ordinary actvines before taxation of £41,518 707 for the year (2014 loss on ordinary acuvities before taxation
and before transition £24,037 948 [after transition £24 181,948]) Net assets at the end of the year were £585 622 270 (2014 £699 607 588 [after
transttion £698,224,738])

Key performance indicators (“KPI's™)
Given the fact that the Company acts predomemanily as a service provider to other group undertakings the Directors do not use KPI s to manage the
bustness and do not consider them necessary for an understanding of the development performance or pesition of the business

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal nsks and uncertanuies of the Company relate to potential fluctuations 1n the interest rate as descnbed in the financial nsk management note n
the Directors Report

By order of the Board

(G Com—

G A Stapleton
Company Secretary
25 November 2016
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Evomk UK Holdings Limted
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 Decernber 2015

The Durectors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of Evonk UK Holdings Limited (Company number 02695034) for the year
ended 3| December 2015

Future outlook
The Duectors have implemented a restructunng project that will review all UK legal entities with a view 10 iquidating these compares that are no longer
required

The Directors consider the future outlook for the Company to remain unchanged for the foreseeable future

Provisions

Provisions for warranties and habilihes are reviewed on a quanerly basis by the Derectors using formanon provided by thurd-party advasers Provisions of
£7 507 339 (2014 £9,443,230) relate to inter aba thurd-party clams warranbes and indemmties and environmental provistons details of whach are
descnbed n note 13 of the financial statements

B Lammert Charman (restgned 22 05 2015)

T Mueller Chairman (apponted 23 05 2015)

U Papst Errector (resigned 25 03 2014)

H Van Impe Managng Director (resigned 02 07 2014)

A Luu Managng Director

K Tibbles Managing Director (cessation of office due to death 31 12 2015)
A Ludwng Director (appownted 25 03 2014)

G Stapleton Company Secretary

Research and development
There were no research and development costs dunng the year (2014 £mi)

Financial nsk management
Due to the nature of the Company, it has exposure to a Iimited number of financial nsks

Cash management

As a member of the Evonik Industnes AG cash pool arrangement the Company s cash management 1s effectively controlled by 1ts ultimate German parent
orgamsation The Evomk Indusines AG Treasury function conducts an annual risk assessment exercise This nformation 1s used o provide a nsk-adjusted
interest rate which 1s applied between the Company and 1ts German parent 1n respect of any loans receivable or payable, on an arm s-length basis

Interest rate and cash flow risk
The Company has an interest-beaning asset consisting of a loan to its Germnan parent Evonik Industnes AG The nterest rate 1s calculated on an arm's-
length basis and 1s vanable 1n nature based on one month Eunbor

The Directors have not dhisclosed the Company s financial management obyjectives and policies nor the Company's exposure 1o price risk, credit nsk and
hiquadity risk as such information 15 not matenal for the assessment of the Company s assets hablinies, financial position and loss for the year
Pasi-balance sheet events

There were no post balance sheet events (2014 none)

Directors’ indemmty provisions

There were no qualifying third-party indemmnity provisions in force for the benefit of one or more of the Durectors at any time during the financial year
{2014 none}
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Evonuk UK Holdings Limited
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
Directors' responsihibiies statement

The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report, Directors Report and the financial statements in accordance with
Licable law and repul

P

Company law requures the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Drrectors have
prepared the financial statements 1 accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom
Accountng Standards and applicable law)

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied thar they give a urue znd fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepaning these financial
statements, the Drectors are requtred to

+ select suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements,

« notfy the company s shareholders in wntirg about the use of disclosure exemptions, if any, of FRS 101 used 1n the preparation
of financial statements and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s mappropnate to presume that the company wll conttnue
1n bustness

The Dhrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financtal posttion of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assers of the Company
and, hence, for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other uregulanties

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
In accordance withk Section 418 each person who ts a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

* 30 far as the Director 15 aware there 15 ne relevant audit information of wiich the Company's audttors are unaware and

= he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Dhrector i order 1o make humself aware of any relevant avdit
wformation and to estabhish that the Company's auditors are aware of that informaton

By order of the Board

(= O

G A Stapleton
Company Secretary
25 November 2016
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Evomk UK Holdings Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Evoruk UK Holdings Lumited
Report on the financtal statements

Our qualified oprmon
In our opriruon except for the fulure to produce consolidated financial statements 2s desenbed in the Basis for our quabfied
opinion paragraph below, Evonik UK Holdings Limuted s financial statements (the  financtal statements )
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company s affarrs as at 31 December 2015 and of s loss for the vear then
ended
+ have been properly prepared tm accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and
* have been prepared tn accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Basis for cur qualified opimon

As explaned 1n note | to the financial statements the company 1s not enttled to the exemptien from the requirement to produce
consohidated financial statements under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 as 11 has not met all of the necessary conditions
Consequently the company should have produced consolidated financial statements for the parent company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings

What we have audited
Evomk UK Holdings Limted's financizl statements comprise
+ the Balance Sheet as ar 31 December 2015,
+ the Profit and Loss Account the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended,
* the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
* the notes to the financial statements whach include o summary of sigmficant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied tn the preparaton of the financial statements 1s Uneted Kingdom Accouniing Standards,
compnsing FRS 101 Reduced Dhsclosure Framework |, and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applying the finzncial reporung framework, the directors have made a number of subjecuve judgements for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events

Opimon on other matters preseribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opiion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors” Repont for the financial year for whuch the finaneial
staternents are prepared 15 consistent with the financtal statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1f in our opimon
+ we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit or
*» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recetved from branches
not visited by us, or
¢ the financaal statéments are 1ol in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions 10 report ansing from thus responsibuity
Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are requered to report to you if, in our opimon, certain disclosures of directors remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from thes responsibility
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Evonik UK Holdings Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Evenik UK Holdingy Limited (continued)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our respeasibilitres and those of the directors
As explained more fully m the Directors’ Responsibalities Statement set out on page 5 the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being sansfied that they give a rue and far view

Qur responsibality 13 10 audit and express an opien on the financial statements tn accordance with applicable law and Internatonal
Standards on Audinng (UK & Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Pracuces
Board s Ethical Standards for Auduors

Thus report, including the opuuons, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body 1 accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not 1 pving these opuupns, accept or asscme
responsility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom thus report 1s shown or into whose hands it comes save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in wrnung

What an audit of financal statements involves

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) An sudut involves obraining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures 1 the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financal statements are free of matenal
musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of
* whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company s circumstances and have been conmstently apphied and
adequately disclosed
* the reasonableness of siguficant accounting ¢stmates made by the directors and
* the overall presentation of the financal statements

We pnmanly focus our work 10 these areas by assessing the directors” judgements against available evidence formmang our own
Judgements and evaluating the disclosures in the financial stawements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auduting techriques, to the extent we consider nccessary (o provide a
rcasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtan audit evidence through testng the effectiveness of controls, substanuve
procedures or a combinaton of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial mformation 1n the Annual Report and Financial Statements to identify matenial
ne with the audited fi 1 and to 1dentify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on,
or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performung the audit If we become aware of any
epparent matenal musstatements or inconsistencies we consider the umplications for our report.

Mike Robinson (Semor Siatutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Milion Keynes

November 2016
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Evomk UK Holdungs Limuted
Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2015

Conunung operntions

Admunistrative expenses
Other operaung income
Operating loss

Income from shares in group undernakings
Interest recervable and similar income

Profit on disposal of tangible assets

Amounts wntten off investments

Interest payable and similar charges

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activitics

Loss for the linancial year

Note

[

L= (R B Y

2018 2014
£ £
(1,407.905) (3,462,399)
1,542,617 1260434
134,712 (1,201 965)
67,243,698 -
12,134,259 368 624
69,050 683 683
(121,100,000) (24,032 290)
(426) -
(41,518,707 (24 181 948)
(5,309,567} 326802
(46,828,274} (23 855 146)

There are no matenal differences between the profit on erdinary activities before taxation and the profit for the

financial years stated above and their histoncal cost equivalents
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Esomk UK Holdings Limated

Statemnent of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Loss for the financoial year
Other comprehensive income/{expenses)

Items that will not be recy cled to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit habiligy/asset
Current tax relanng o pension schemes

Deferred tax relating to pension schemes

Ttems that may be recycled to profit or loss
Loss on available for sale financial assets
Others

Qther comprehensive expense for the year net of tax

Total comprehensive expense for the year
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Note

21

2015 2014

£ £
(46,828,274) (23,855 146)
{961,000) (709 000)
155,415 151 600
(118.641) (10 800)
(924,226) {568 200)
(38,513) 46,430)
287,262 (34,000)
(675 477) {698 650)
{47 503 751} (24 553 796}




Evomk UK Holdings Limuted

Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
[nvestments

Current assets

Debtors (of which £380.359 are
due after more than one year)
Cash at bank and 1n hand

Creditors

amounts falling due wathin one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current habilities

Creditors

amounts faling due after more than one year

Provisions for habihtes

Net assets excluding pensions
Pension Labihty

Net assets including pensions
Capstal and reserves

Called up share capual

Profit and loss account

Total shareholders’ funds

10

12
13

21

2015

4

521,916,549
521,916,553

67,873,404
6,506,835
74,380,239

(654,767}

73,725,472

595,642,025

(3992311
(7,507,339)

587,735,375

(2,113,086)

585,622&89

1,000
585,621,289

385,622,289

67 720 624
225334
67 945 958

(857,153)

The financial statements on pages 7 16 32 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 November 2016 and were signed on

11s behalf by

A Luu
Managmg Director
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2014

462 507
643 055 299
643 517 806

67 088 805
710 606 611
(443 643)
(9 443 230)
700,719,738
(2 495 D00)

698 224 738

1000
698 223 738

698 224 738



Evomuk UK Holdings Limited

Statement of Changes in Equuty
for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015

Balance at 1 January 2014

Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for the financal year

Other comprehensive expense
Remeasurement of post-cmployment

benefit plans, net of tax

Loss on available for sale financial assets
Other

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014
Total comprehensive expense for the year

Loss for the financial year
Dividends Paud

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive expense
Remeasurement of post-employment
benefit plans net of tax

Loss on available for sale financial assets
Total comprehensive expense for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

Called up Share  Profit and loss

Capital account
£ £
1000 722777534

- {23 855 146)

Total
Shareholders’
Fund
£

722 718.534

(23,855,146)

. (568,200} (568,200}
. (46,450} (46,450}
(84,000} (84,000

X (24.553,796) (24,553,796)
1000 698 223 138 698 724 7138
- (46 828 274) (46,828,274)

(65 098 698) (65,098,608)

287 262 287,262

- (924,226) (924 226)

- (38 513) (38 513)

- (112,602,449) (112 602 449)
1000 585 621 289 585 622 289
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Evomk UK Holdings Lumited
Notes to the [inanctal statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

1 Principal accounting policies
The following accounung pohicies kave been applied consistently in dealing wath items which are considered matenal in relation to the Company s financial
SIAtEMEnts

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basts and under the hustoncal cost convennion as modified by the farr valuation of financial
instruments and 1n accordance with the Companies Act 2006 They were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporung Standard 101 Reduced
Dusclosure Framework ( FRS 105 %)

In prepanng these financial staternents the Company applies the recogmuion, measurement and drsclosure requorements of Internatonal Financial Reportung
Standards as adopted by the EU ( *Adopted IFRSs™) but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply wath the Companes Act 2006 and has set
out below where advantage of FRS 101 disclosure exempuons has been taken

In these financial statements, the Company has adopted FRS 101 for the first ime

In the transinon to FRS 101, the Company has apphed IFRS | whilst ensunng that its assets and Latnlities are measured 1n compliance with FRS 101 An
explanation of how the transition to FRS 101 has affected the reported financial position 1s provided 1n note 22

The Company s ulumate parent undertaking Evomik Indusines AG includes the Company in its consolidated financral statements The consohdated financial
statements of Evonik Industnes AG are prepared in accordance with International Financtal Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be
obtained from Rellinghauser Strasse 1-11 45128 Essen Germany

The Company 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Evomik International Holding B V' and 15 included tn the consolidated

financial statements of Evonik Industnes AG which are publicly available Under seetion 400 of the companes act 2006
ennues are entitled to take advantage of an exemption from prepanng consohdated financial statements This exemplon cannot
be taken by the Company because one of the conditions being that the company'’s financial statements are filed at Companies
House by its statutory filing deadline of 30 September 2316 has not been met  Consequently the Company shou!d have
prepared consolidated financial statements for the company and 1s subsidiary undertakangs

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemprions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures
» A Cash Flow Statement and related notes
+ Comparative penod reconcihations for share capital tangible fixed assets intangible assets,
» Dusclosures in respect of transactions with wholly-owned subsedianies of Evonck Industries AG,
* Dusclosures in respect of capatal management
* The effects of new but not yet effecive [FRSs,
» An addinonal balance sheet for the beginmung of the earliest comparative penod following the retrospecuve change in
accounung policy and
+ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Managemeni Personnel

As the consolidated financial statements of Evomk Industries AG clude the egtvalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS
101 avalable tn respect of the certain disclosures required by [FRS 13 Faxr Valve Mcasurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial

Instrument Ensclosures

The accounung policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated been applied consistently to all penods presented in these financial statements and tn
prepanng an opemng FRS 101 balance sheet at 1 January 2014 For the purposes of the transiton to FRS 101

Judgements made by the Directors, 1n the application of these accounuing pelicies that have significant effect on the financaal statements and estimates wath
a significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 20
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Evomk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
1 Principal accounting policies (continued )

Going concern
The Company s business acuvities together with the factors ltkely to affect its future development and position, are set out tn the Bustness Review section
of the Carectors Repont on pages 3 w0 4

The Company 15 expected to continue to generate positive cash flows on its own account for the foreseeable future The Company participates in the
group s centrahised treasury amangements and so shares banking arrzngements wath its pareni and fellow subsidianes

The Durectors having assessed the responses of the directors of the Company s parent Evonik Indusines AG (o therr enquines have no reason to believe
that a matenal uncertatnty exists that may cast sigrficant doubt about the ability of the Evonik Industnes AG group to conunue as a going concem or its
ability to continue wath the current banking arrangements.

On the basis of their assessment of the company s financial posinon and of the enquiries made of the directors of Evomk Industries AG the Company s
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Caompany wall be able to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to
adopt the gowng concern basis of accounting in prepanng the annual financial statements

Sepmificant accounting policies
A summary of the sigmificant accounting pelicies is set out below The accounting policies have been applied consistenily throughout the year

Investments tn shares in group undertakings
investments in shares 1n group undertakings are stated at cost less any impurment for diminunon in value Imparrment reviews are performed by the
Darectors when there has been an indication of potenual impanment

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangble fixed assets are stated at hustonc purchase cost less accumulated depreciation Cost tneludes the onginal purchase pnee of the asset and the costs
attrtbutable 1o bringing the asset to 1ts working condition for intended use Thus includes directly attnbutable financing costs incurred in the acquisition or
construction of quahfying assets

Depreciation 15 provided by the Company to wnite off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal instalments over thewr
esumated useful economuc lives as follows

- office equipment - maxunum of four years
- freehold buildings - twenty five years

Fareign currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling ar the date of the ransaction Monetary assets and hatalines denomnated
1n foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gams or losses on translation are included in the profit
and loss account
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Evomk UK Holdirgs Limited
Notes to the flinanceal statements for Lthe year ended 31 December 2015 (conunued)
1 Principal accountng policies (continued)

Pensions
The Company ts the pnncipal employer of five UK penston schemes Pension arvangements for staff are operated through a defined benefit scheme and a
stakeholder scheme which 1s defined contnbution Al schemes are accounted for m accordance with TAS 19, Employee Benefits

A defined contmbution plan 1s a post-employment benefir plan under which the Company pays fixed contnbutions 1nto a separate enuty and will have no
legal or constnictive obligation 1o pay further amounts Obligations for contnbutions to defined contnbution pension plans are recogmsed as an expense tn
the profit and loss account in the peneds dunng which seriices are rendered by employees

A defined benefit plan 15 a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined conribunion plan The Company s net obhigation i respect of defined benefic
pensicn plans ts calculated separatety for each plan by esumanng the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed n return for thewr service i the
current and prior pertods, that benefit 1s discounzed to determane tts present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid pnice) are deducted The
Company deternunes the net interest on the net defined benefit abiliy/(asset) for the penod by applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual penod to the net defined benefit abliy/(asset)

The discount rate 15 the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit ranng of at least AA that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Company's obligations and that are denomtnated th the currency i which the benefits are expected 1o be paid

Remeasurements ansing from defined benefit plans comprise actuartal gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding tnterest) and the effect of the
asset cethng (if any, excluding interest) The Company recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to
defined benefit plans 1n employee benefit expenses in profit or loss

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations 1s performed by a qualfied actuary using the projected urt credit method When the calculauon results in
a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limuted to the present vatue of benefits available i the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reducnons n future contnbutiens, and takes into account the adverse effect of any mimmum funding requirements

The Company 15 the spensonng employer of five defined benefit pension plans (see note 21} As there 15 no contractual agreement or stated group policy
for charging the net defined benefit cost of the plan 1o participating entiies  the net defined benefit cost of the pension plan 1s recogmsed fully by the
sponsonng employer which s the Company

Taxatien
Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised tn the profit and loss account except to the extent that 11 relates
to items recognised directly tn equity or other comprefiensive income, in whuch case 1t 1s recognised directly n equity or other comprehensive mcome

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year using tax rates enacted of substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 2nd Liabiities for financial reporung purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments compnse cash and cash equvalents, investments in debt secunties loans and borrowings and trade and other debtors and creditors

Trade and other debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised imnally at faw value  Subsequent 16 1nitial recogmition they are measured al 2amortssed cost using the effective
mterest method, less any impairment losses

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised imutally at fawr value  Subsequent to muual recogmition they are measured at amortused cost using the effective
nterest method
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Evonik UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the financia) statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 {continued)
1 Pninapal accounting polictes (continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings
Imerest-beanng borrowangs are recogmsed minally at fair value less atinbutable transaction costs Subsequent 1o imtial recogninon, interest-beanng
borrowangs are stated at amorused cost using the effective interest method, less any impatrment losses

[nvestment 1n debt secunties

Investment 1n gilts are classified as avalable for sale financial assets and are recogmsed at fair value with movernents (other than impairments} recogmsed
through other comprehensive tncome When these investments are derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recogmised derectly in equuty 1s
recogrused tn profit or loss Interest on such investments 1s calculated using the effective interest method and recognused in profit o Joss

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors)

A financial asset not carrred at fair value through profit or loss 15 assessed at each reporing date 10 deteriune whether there 1s ohjective evidence that it 1s
impared A financial asset 15 impaired 1f ohjective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the miuial recogmiion of the asset and that the loss
event had a neganve effect on the esumated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated relably

Impamrment

An imparrment loss 1n respect of a financial asset measured at amertised cost 1s calculated as the dafference between its carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s ongnal effectve interest rate For financial instruments measured at cost less umpaurment,
an umpairment 1s calculated as the difference between 1ts carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset
if 1t were 1o be sold at the reporting date Interest on the impaired asset contunuves to be recogmised through the unwinding of the discount When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to dectease, the decrease 1n imparrment loss 1s reversed through profit or loss

Non-financial assets (other than stocks and deferred tax assets)
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determune
whether there 13 any indication of inparrment If any such indicanon exists, then the asset s recoverable amount 1s estimated

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating umit 13 the greater of its value th use and its fair value less costs to sell In assessing value 0 use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific o the asset For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together mnto the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 1ndependent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the cash-generating umt”)

Provisions
Provisions are recogrused when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 1t 15 probable that an cutflow of
economic benefits wall be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of that obligation can be made

Where the effect of the time valee of money 1s matenal the provision 1s discounted to the present value of the expense expected to be required to settle the
obligation Where zppropnate the discount rate has been adjusted for the nsk associated with the babihity The unwinding of the discount on those

provisions 1s ncladed wathin other finance costs

Dividends
Dividend income 15 recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the entity s night to receive payments 15 established
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Evomk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
2 Operating loss

The operauing loss 15 stated after charging/{crediting)

Services provided by the Company's auditors
Fees payable for the audit
Fees payable for other services - tax

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets - owned assets
Exchange losses

Exchange gatns

Release of provisions for liabslines (note 13)
Addinional provisions for babihties {note 13)

In both 2014 and 2015, Evonuk UK Holdings Lamted has borne the audit fees for all of the UK group companies

2015
£

54,447
23,264

26,463
(2,024)
(1,549,945)

2014

56,146
§7 546

566

19,981
©,161)
(1,649,948)
1 185 000

Operating loss imcludes £845,617 (2014 £2,260,434) of other operating tncome which mainly consists of recharge income received from other group

undertakengs for whom Evomk UK Holdings Limted has borne the onginal costs
3 Staff numbers and costs

Average monthly number of employees (including directors)

Sales and admumstration

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons was as follows

Wages and salaries (including directors remuneration)

Social security costs

Contributions to defined contnbutien plans
Expenses related to defined benefit plans (note 21)
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2015 2014
Number Number
4 3

2015 2014

£ £
416,646 362273
70,086 61912
3916 547
(1,000) 2235 000
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Evontk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (conunued)

4 Remuneration of directors

2015 2014
£ £
Darectors emoluments (including pension contnbutions) 104,781 131 777

The haghest paud Dhrector's emoluments were £104,781 (2014 £131 777) One Director (2014 one) 1s accruing benefits under a defined benefit pension
scheme Included in emoluments were Company contnbunons of £18 026 (2014 £15,143) 1n respect of defined bencfit pension schemes Of these £18 026

(2014 £15 143) related to the tughest pad Director

5 Income from shares in group undertakings

The Company received m 2015, intenm dividend payments of £2 145 000 from its subsidiary Evomk Amalgamation Limited (2014 £mil £nil fromts

subsidiary Laporte Industnes Limuted (2014 £q1]) and £65 098 698 from us subsidiary Evonik Speciality Orgamics Limmited (2014 £ml)

6 Interest and other income and charges

2018 2014
£ £

Iaterest recervable and similar income
Interest from group undertakengs 144,654 129 154
Other interest receivable 11 989,605 239470
12,134,259 368 624

Interest payable and similar charges

Other nterest payable (426) -
(426) -

Other interest receivable of £11 590 696 (2014 mil) relates to a repayment of restitution interest and £137 827 (2014 £38 446)
relates to the interest eamed on Gilts
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Evontk UK Holdings Limited

Notes to the financal statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

7 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Recogtused in the profit and loss account
Current tax

UK corporation tax on mcome loss for the year
Adjustments in respect of pnor years

Tatal current tax

Deferred tax

Onginanon and reversal of temporary differences
Reducuon 1n tax rate

Total deferred tax

Tax on {less)/profit on ordinary activities

Recogmsed 10 other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit hability/asset

2015 2014

£ £
5,255,878 (445 998)
53,689 119 196
5,309,567 (326 802)
5,309,567 {326 802)
(118,641) 10 800
(118 641) 10 800

The tax assessed for the year 1s tugher (2014 higher) than the s1andard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20 25% (2014 21 50%) The differences are

explained below

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate in the UK 20 25% (2014 21 50%)

Effects of

Additronal tax payable of restitutional interest
Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Other temporary differences not recognised for deferred Tax
Losses not utibsed (Not recogmsed for deferred Tax)

Adjustments 1n respect of prior years
Impact of rate change

Impact of rate change between deferred and current tax

Total tax for the year

The Company has surrendered the benefit of tax losses to another group company for a consideration of £105,321 (2014 £597 598)

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

2015 2014
£ £
(41,518.707) (24,181,948)
(8,407,538) (5,199,119)

2,865 950 -
(13,900,800) {922 232)
24,472,357 5,179 298
20,901 67 151)
212,648 578 654
53,689 119 196
- 2612

(7.640) -
5.309.567 {326,802)

Reductions i the UK corporation tax rate from 23% (o 21% (effective from 1 April 2014) and 20% {effective from 1 Apnl 2015) were substantively
enacted on 2 July 2013  Further reductions to 19% (effecuve from 1 Apnil 2017) and to 18% (effective 1 Apni 2020) were substanuvely enacted on 26
October 2015 Ttus will reduce the company s future current tax charge accordingly The deferred tax asset at 31 December 2015 has been calculated based

on these rates
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Evomk UK Holdings Limrted

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (conunued}

8 Investments

Cost or valuation

At 1 january 2015
Change in farr value
Addiuons

Al 31 December 2015

Impairments

At 1 January 2015

Impairments charged in the year
At 31 December 2015

Net book amount
At 31 December 2015
At 31 December 2014

GCalts Shares tn group Total
undertakings

£ £ £

1,647,400 1245909 703 1,247,557,103

(38,750) - {38,750}

1.608.650 1,245.909,703 1,247.518.353

- (604 501,804) (604 501 804

- (121 100000 (121 100 00O0)

- (725,601 B0 (725,601,804}

1,608,650 520,307.899 521,916,549

1647400 641 407 899 643 055,299

Following an imparrment review performed by management i 2015 the investment tn Evoruk Amalgamation Limuted was written down by £1,100,000
The investment 1n Evomk Speciality Organics Limuted was wnitten down by £120 000 000

During 2015 there were no impawment reversals

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by therr underlying net assets
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Evork UK Holdings Lurmited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
8 Investments (continued)

The index-linked gilis are listed on the London Stock Exchange and act as secunty against an unapproved unfunded pension obliganon  They are held as
avalable for sale financial assets and are valued according to thewr hsted market value

Detals of the Company s subsidiary and assoctated undertakings are as follows

Country of
registration,
tncorporation Class of shares

Name of company and operation Holding % held Naure of business Durect / Indirect
Subsidiary undertakings
Evomk Amalgamation Lirmted England 100 Ordinary Holding company Direct
Evonik Speciahity Organics Provision of nter-
Limited England 100 Ordinary Group services Direct
Laporte Chemical Linuted England 100 Ordinary Dormant Indirect

Toll manufacturer
for Consumer
England 100 Ordinary Speciahnes global Direct
bustness urue

Evenik Goldschmidt UK Lumted

Membrane systems
Evonik Membrane Extraction ¥

England 100 Ordinary for chemucal Indirect
Technology Limuted production
EGL Limited England 100 Ordinary Dormant Indrect
Laporte Industres Linuted England 100 Ordinary Non-trading Indirect
Joint Venture
Evomk Headwaters LLP England 50 Ordinary Dormant Indirect
Trustees held by the Company
Evonik Pension Scheme Trustee Pension scheme
Limited England 100 Ordwnary Trustee Dhrect
Evonik Trustee Limtted England 100 Orduary Pension scheme Direct

Trustee

The subsidiary undertakings and participating mterests of the Company at 31 December 2015 are listed under their countnies of mcorporanon which are
also the countnes of activity unless otherwise stated
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Evouk UK Holdings Lurmnted
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continned)

9 Tangible assets

Freeheld land Office Total
and building quip "
£ £ £
Cost
At | January 2015 462,507 85 641 548 148
Ihsposals {462 503) - (262 503)
At 31 December 2015 4 85,641 85.645
Accumulated depreciation
At | January 2015 - (85.641) (85 641)
Charge for the year - - -
Disposals - - -
At 1 December 2015 - (85.641} (85.641)
Net book amount
At 3 Decernber 2015 4 4
At 31 December 2014 462 507 - 462 507
Dunng 2015 assets of £462 503 sold dunng the year resulting n a profit on disposal of £69,050 (2014 £683,683)
The gross book value of land and bunldings includes £l (2014 £nil) of depreciable assets There are no matenal differences between the book value and
the market value
10 Deblors
2015 2014
£ £
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by other group undertakings 67,304,121 57,021 333
Trade debtors 80,078 37976
Other debtors 92261 2,487
Prepaymenis and accrued incomse 99,585 159 828
67,493,045 67,221,624
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax (see note 14) 380,359 499 000
Total debtors 67,873 404 67 720 624

The Company has an wnterest beanng asset consisting of a loan to 1ts German parent Evoruk [ndustnes AG The interest rate 1s calculated on an arm s-length
basis and 1s vanable i nature At 31 December 2015, the interest rate was 0 4% (2014 0 35%) There are no fixed repayment terms but the loan could be

recalled at any ime

In addition since 2013 the Company has an mnterest bearng asset consisng of funds totalling £34,038,393 (2014 £34,038,393) whuch have been
deposited into four Trusts (the 'Evonik Trusts) one in respect of each of the four defined benefit Pension Schemes, and each held by Evonik Trustes
Lamuted the trustee of the Evonuk Trusts and a subsidiary of the Company The interest rate 1s calculated on an arm s-length basis and 15 vanable in nature
At 31 December 2015 the tterest rate was 0 67% (2014 0 64%) Repayment terms are stiputated in the Trust Deed and Rules and the Supplemental Deed,

both dated 20 March 2013
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Evonik UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

11 Creditors amounis faling due within one year

2015 2014
£ £
Amounts owed to group undenalings 25,084 124 533
Trade creditors 133,040 55 226
{ther creditors 56,001 337 350
Taxauon and social security - -
Accruals and deferred income 440 642 340 044
654 767 857 153
The smounts owed by other group underalings are non-mterest bearing and repayable wattun twelve months
12 Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year
2015 2014
£ £
Other creditors 399311 443 643
13 Provisions lor habilities
Past-transaction
liabilities Other Total
£ £ £
At January 2015 8949 284 493,946 9,443,230
Release (1,549 945) - (1,549,945)
Utilised 1n the year (353,396) (32 5500 {385 946)
At 31 December 2015 7,045,943 461,396 7,507,339

Provisions totalling £7,045,943 (2014 £8,949,284) relate to post-transaction linbilities and associated claims or litigation as a result of indemmities given
on divestments Some of these provisions are i1 respect of environmental matters totatling £1 522 857 (2014 £3 427 198) In estabhishing the post-
transaction bability related provisions the Directors have considered a range of possible scenanos and have exercised a judgement as to what a probable

outcome mught be

The provision 1s based on the Directors  best esumate of the most likely outcome of the clams and related legal costs however, they acknowledge that due
to the wherent nature and complexny of these claims and the associated htgation nisk, provisions may have to be modified over ume The Directors have
also given due consideration to the durauon of each of these batalines and are of the opinion that the majoniy of the aggregate value of the hatilines wall

crystallise withan the next rwo years and hence the ume value of money is not considered matenal

Provisions which are environmental 1n nature largely relate te contanunation of land Third-party advisers have considered vanous scenanos and possible

costs of cleap up The Directors have based their esumate on the information provided by specialist advisers

One element of the total provision s categonsed under the label Other Provisions  this totals £461 396 (2014 £493,946) These provisions relaie
babehinies such as umnsured ¢lements of Employers’ Liability claims and restructuning costs With the exceptron of the Employers Liability costs, the
Directors have given due consideration to the likely timng for the crystatlsation of these liabiliies and are of the view that the Company's exposure to
these matters will be elinunated within the next two years and hence the time value of money 1s not constdered matenal
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Evonitk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (contmued)

14 Deferred tax

2015 2014

£ £

Deferred tax asset refating to pensions (note 21) 380,359 459 000
Total deferred tax asset 380,359 499 000
2015 2014

£ £

At 1 January 2015 499.000 509 800
Deferred tax credited to the profit and loss account (note 7) - -
Deferted tax credited to the statement of comprehensive income (118 641) (19 800)
At 31 December 2015 380,359 499 000

The Company has tosses camed forward of £66,663,433 (2014 £68 524 787) and short term umung differences of £2,013,378 (2014 £2,092,872) No

deferred tax assets have been recogmsed wm relation to these items as their future use ts currently uncertain

15 Called up share capital

2015
£

Allotied and fully pad
1 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2014 1,000 ordinary shares of £1 each) 1.000

2014
£

1 000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recetve drvidends as declared from tume to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the

Company
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Evermnk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

16 Subsequent events

On the 23rd March 2016 the tax authontuies repaud an amount of £11,590 636 constiuung a repayment of resutuuonal mnterest from tax
payment from pnior years The interest payment was reduced by a 45% withholding tax - An appeal was filed with the tmbunal on the

4 Apml 2016 agamnst the deduction of the wathholding Tax

17 Contingent assets

On 13 November 2012 the European Court of Jusuce published its second judgement in the Franked Investment Income Group Laugation Order (FTI
GLO) i which Evonik UK Heldings Linuted and a number of other substdhanes are participants The ruling estabhished for the part of the claim in relation
to ACT chargeable on Foreign Income Dividends (FID s) that it was ualawful 1o charge ACT on these FID s

As a result, the Company challenged two assessments which were raised in 2005 on s subsidiary Laporte Orparusation Limuted (in bgmdauon)
Management belicved that these assessments should be withdrawn resulting 1n a repayment from the tax authonuies of approximately £4 8m.

Dunng 2014, the tax zuthonties repaid an amount of £6 338 878 consututing the repaymem of £4,804,235 previous overpayment
and £1 535,643 of accrued nterest

Further Court yudgements regarding the wider FIT GLO have been made since November 2012, which generally indicate that the Company's clasm to
recover Advanced Corporation Tax, corporation tax levied under Schedule D case ¥V ICTA 1998 in respect of EU dividends and wnterest on FID s
previously pad could result in future recovenes At the date of signing these financial statements, there 15 wsufficient information or certainty to be able to
esumate the financial effect of these recovenes and therefore no contimgent asset 15 recogmsed

18 Relnted Parties
The company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing refated party transactions wath fellow group members under FRS 8 on the grounds that
the grouwp 1s wholly owned by Evonik [ndustnes AG whose consolidated financial statements are publicly available

19 Ultemate holding company and controiling party
The Company's immediate holding company ts Evonsk Internationat Holding B ¥V a company registered and incorporated 1w the Netherlands

The ulumate parent company of Evoruk UK Heldings Limuted 1s Evonik Industnes AG a company regrstered and ncorporated in Germany The
consolidated financial statements of Evonik Industnes AG bewng the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements czn be obtained
from Rellinghauser Strasse 1-11 45128 Essen Germany

20 Accounting Estunates and Judgements

Provisions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future in calculating certamn prowvisions The Company recognises provisions for
future environmemal claims based on the assessments carmed out by external therd party experts Provisions are reviewed against the latest
avalable informateon and are adjusted accordingly

Where the effect of the ume valie of money 1s material the provision 1s discounted to the present value of the expense expected [o be requured Lo settle the
obltgation Where appropnate the discount rate has been adjusted for the nsk associated wath the liability The unwinding of the discount on those
provisions 15 1acluded wathun other firance costs

Taxation

The Company 15 subject to 1ncome taxes The Company recogmises iabibities for anticipated tax exposures based on estumates
of whether additional taxes will be due ‘Where the final tax eutcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were
mitialty recorded such difference impacts the current and deferred mcome tax assets and habiliies in the pened n whech such
determunation 1s made

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed without discounting 1n respect of all umung differences between the treaiment of certain items for taxauon and accounting
purposes which have ansen but not reversed by the batance sheet date

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
The Company has an obligation to pay penston benefits 10 some employees The cost of the benefits and present value of the
obligauons depend on a number of facters including Lfe expectancy salary icreases, asset valuations and inflation

Fixed Assets

Tangble assets are stated at cost less accumulared deprecianon and aceurnulated unpurment losses Deprecianon is calculated ustng the straight kine
mezthod, to aflocate the cost to the residual values over the estimated useful lives as follows

-offtce equipment -maxsmum for four years

-freeho!d bunldings -twenty five years
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Evoruk UK Haldings Lunited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

21 Penston fund

The Company 1s the pnincipal employer and sponsor of the following defined benefit schemes

Evonik Pension Scheme

The Company operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The assets of the scheme are held separately from thase of the
Company being ivested wath an inswrance company The scheme 15 funded by means of contnbutions paid by members and the Company m order to

ensure thal the scheme can meer 1ts expected benefit obligations

Laporte Group Pension Trust

The Laporte Group Pension Trust 1s divided into a number of sections defined benefit hybnd arrangements and a defined contnbution scheme The Trust s

schemes are funded within a separately adnumstered fund

The schemes are closed to new members and all active members were transferred 10 the Evoruk Pension Scheme on 1 Apnl 2009

Synthetic Chemicals Limited Pension Scheme and Degussa-Huls Employees’ Penston Scheme
The Synthetic Chermucals Limited Pension Scheme and The Degussa-Huls Employees' Pension Scheme provide benefits based on final pensionable pay The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Company being tnvested wath an insurance company

Roehm Linuted Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme

The scheme 15 closed to new members and all active members were transferred to the Evonik Pension Scheme on | Apnl 2009

As at 31 December 2015

Present value of the obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Surplus before considerauon of the asset ceiing

Amounts not recogmsed due to the effect of the asset celling

Retirement benefit obligation recognised tn the balance sheet

As at 31 December 2014

Present value of the obliganons
Fair value of plan assets
Surplus /before consideration of the asset celling

Amounts not recogmsed due to the effect of the asset cetling

Retrement benefit obligation recogmsed in the balance sheet

2015
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
(31,841,000) (381 903 036) (413,744,086)
38219102 455 548 000 493 767 102
6,378,102 73644914 80023016
(6,378,102) (75 758 000) (82 136 102)
- (2,113,086} (2,113,086)
2014
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
(32,378,000) (397 005 000) {429,383,000)
33,085,102 477 398 000 515 483 102
5,707,102 80 393 000 86,100,102
(5 707 102) (82 888 000) (88 595 102)
- (2.495,000) {2 495 000}

The latest full actuanal valuation of the schemes were obtained as at 4th March 2016 and have been updated by the actuary on an IAS 19 “Employee

Benefits basis at 31 December 2015
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Evonk UK Holdings Lumited

Notes to the Financial statemeni for the year ending 31 December 2015 (continued)

21 Pension Fund (conunued)

Statement of Comprehensive income
Profit and loss
Amounts recogmised m profit and loss were as follows

Current service cost
Past service cost

Total rek to defined benefit plan

¥ e

Net interest cost

Current service cost
Effect of asset ceiling restriction
Past service cost

Total expenses relating to defined benefit plan

Net interest cost

Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts recogmsed in other comprehensive income were as follows

Actuanal loss on defined benefit obligations

Ansing from expenence

Ansing from changes 1n financtal assumplions

Ansing from changes in demographic assumptions

Total actuanal loss before consideratton of asset celing

Return on plan assets excluding iterest ncome

(Loss) fgain resulung from changes in amounts not recognised due 1o effect of asset
cething excluding amounts recogrused In net interest cost

Total actuaral loss recogrised in other comprehensive income

Actuana) loss on defined benefit obligatons

Ansing from cxpenience

Ansing from changes in financial assumptions

Ansing from changes in demographsc assumpuions

‘Tota) actuarial gain before connideration of asset ceiling

Return on plan assets excluding tnterest income

Loss resutting from changes 1n amounts not recogmsed due to effect of asset cetling
excluding amounts recogrused in net interest cost
Total actuanal loss recogmsed in other comprehensive income

2015
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
{612 000) - (612 000}
611000 - 611000
(1 000) (95,000) (1,0600)
{13,000) 95,000 82,000
2014
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
693 000 - 693 000
- 1 484 000 1 484 000
58 000 - 58 000
751 000 1 484 000 2.235 000
(17,000} 101,000 £4,000
2015
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
106 000 (774 000) (668 000)
884 000 7007 000 7 891 000
106 000 1 274 000 1 380000
1096 000 7.507 000 8 603 000
{1 184 000) (17 962 000 (19 146 000)
{450 000) 10 032 000 9.582 000
{538.000) (423.000) {961,000)
—
014
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
£ £ £
1 767,000 9,046 000 10,813,000
(3,723,000) (29,873,000) (33.596 000)
{1,956,000) (20 827,000) (22 783 000
3 729,000 49,783 000 53,512 000
(1,773.000) (29,665 000 (31 438 000)
- (709.000) (709 000
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Evom¥ UK Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

21 Pension fund (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit scheme assets obhigations and munmmum funding requirement i the current year were as follows

EPS

Al 1 January 2015

Current service st

Interest income/cost

Past service cost

Actuznal losses

Employer contnbutions

Conmbutions from scheme partictpants
Benefits pud from plan assets

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2014

Current service cost

Interest income/cost

Past service cost

Actuanal {losses)/gains

Employer contnbutions

Contnbutions from scheme participants
Benefits paid from plan assets

At 31 December 2014

For the other schemes

At | January 2015

Current service cost

Enterest income/cost

Past service cost

Actuanal {losses)/gains
Employer contnbutions
Contnibutions from scheme
participants

Benefits paid from plan assets
At 31 December 2015

2ms
Effect of asset
ceibng and
mimmom Net defined benefit
Assets furding habihity Liabiities habihty
£ £ £ £
38085 102 (5 707,102) (32 378 000) -
- - (612 000) (612 000)
1 335 000 (221 000} (1 105 000) 13 900
- - 611 000 611,000
(1 184 000) (450 000} 1 096 000 (538,000)
526 000 - - 526,000
96 000 . (96 000) -
(643 000) - 643 000 -
38.219.102 _16.378.102) (31 .8415000] -
2014
Effect of asset
celing and
minmum Net defined benefit
Assets funding hability Liabihties habulity
£ £ £ £
32,582,102 (3,772,102) (28,810,000) -
- - (693,000 (693,000
1,410,000 (162,000) (1,231,000) 17,000
- - (58,000 (58,000)
3,729,000 (1773,000) (1,956,000) -
734,000 - - 734,000
134,000 - (134,000) -
{504 000 - 504 000 -
38,085,102 (5,707.102) (32,378,000) -
2015
Effect of asset
celing and
mimmum Net defined benefit
Assets funding iabihity Liabiities habulity
£ £ £ £
477,398,000 (82 B85,000) (397,005,000) (2,495,000)
16,329,000 (2,902,000) (13,522,000 (95,000)
(17,962,000) 10,032,000 7,506,914 (423,086)
751,000 - - 751,000
(20 968 000) - 21 117 000 149 000
455,548,000 (75,758,000) (381,903.086) (2,113.086)
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Evonik UK Holdings Limited

Notes to the finanaial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

21 Pension fund (contitued)

For the other schemes

At 1 January 2014

Current service cost

Interest income/cost

Past service cost

Actuanal gans/{losses)
Employer contnbutions
Coninbutiens from scheme
parucipants

Benefits pard from plan assets
At 31 December 2014

2014
Effect of asset
celing and
mipmum Net defined benefit
Assets funding ltabality Liabihittes Lrability
£ £ £ £
430,731,000 (51 029,000) (382 251 00O {2.549 000y
18,033,000 (2 194,000) (15 940 000) (101 000)
49,783,000 (29 665 000) {20 827 000) {709.000)
685,000 - - 685 000
(21 834 000} - 22 013 000 179 000
477,398,000 (82,888 000) (397,005,000) (2 495,000)

Scheme assets do not include any of Evonik UK Holdings Lumited's own financial mstruments or any property occupied by Evonik UK Holdings Lamied

Plan asset information

Allocation percentage
Equity secunties
Government bonds
Pensioner annuities

Faur value of plan assets

Plan asset information

Allocation percentage
Equity secuntics
Government bonds
Pensioner annuities

Fair value of plan assets

2015
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
33 80% 14 40% 48 20%
53 0% 84 60% 138.30%
12 50% 100% 13.50%
38,219.102 455,548 000 493,767,102
2014
EPS scheme Other schemes Total
23 40% 817% 5%
5990% 89 46% 149.36%
16 70% 2371% 1907%
38 085,102 477,398,000 515,483,102

All equity secunties and government bonds have guoted prices i active markets All government bonds are 1ssued by European governments and are AAA-
or AA-rated Al other plan assets are not quoted 1n an active market

2015 2014
Otber Other

EPS scheme schemes EF5 Scheme schemes
Assumptions and dates used at disclosare
Dnscount rate 3162% 3 47%-3 90% 3 50% 3150%4 10%
Retal pnce inflaion 317% 3 17%-3 30% 320% 320%-3 40%
Consumer price inflation 217% 217% 220% 220%
Rate of salary increase 417% - 4 20% 3 00%4 20%
Penston increases for m-payment benefits 217% 297%4 17% 220% 3 009+ 20%
Pension increases for deferred benefits 217% 2 17%-2 30% 220% 2 20%-2 0%
Plan Parucipant Census date 31-Oct1-15 31-Mar-15 31-Oct-14 31-Oct-14

The assumplions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions which. due to the ume scale covered may
not necessanly borme oul 1n practice
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Evomk UK Holdings Limited
Notes to the finanaal statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 {continued)

21 Pension fund (continued)

The mortality assumptions were as follows 2015 2014
Other Other
EPS scheme schemes EPS Scheme schemes
years years
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners
- Men 237 215-225 236 214225
- Women 25 236-24 8 249 234-247

Longevity at age 65 for funure pensioners
-Men 238 227-237 239 227237
- Women 264 250265 263 248263

The calculation of the defined benefit ohligation 1s sensitive to the assumptions set out above The followang table summanses how the tmpact
on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reperting penod would have increased (decreased) as a result of a change in the respective
assumptions by one percent

2015 014
Other Other
EPS scheme schemes EPS Scheme schemes
Discount rate 362% 362% 3 30% 3 50%
Retait pnce inflation 317% 317 00% 320% 3 20%
Consumer price inflation 317% 217% 3 20% 2 20%
Rate of salary increase 417% - 4 20% -
Penston increases for in-payment benefits 217% 2974 17% 220% 20-4 20%

Stakehclder Pension Plan
The Company also operates a defined contnbution stakeholder pension plan which 1s open to new employees The cost recognised 1n the year for the
Company s contributions amounted to £3 926 (2014 £547) Ouwstanding contributions at the balance sheet date amounted to £ml (204 £mi}
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22 Explanation of transitton to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP

Reconcihation of equuty
1 January 2014
Effect of transition
Note UK GAAP to FRS 101 FRS 1¢1
£ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 401 757 - 491,757
Investments a 666 474 438 659 600 667 134 038

666966 195 659 600 667,625,795
Current assels
Debiors (of which £380 750 due
after more than one year) b 70372878 509 800 70882 678
Cash at bank and in hand 1 030 815 - 1030 815

71403 693 509 800 71,913,493

Creduwors amounts falling due wathin one year {2288 683) - (2,288,683)
Net current assets/liabilities 69115 010 509 800 69 624 810
Crediors amounts falling due after more than one year . - -
Provisions for habihties (11923 071) - (11,923,071)
Net assets/(liabilities) excluding pension 724 158 134 £,169 300 725,327,534
Pension assets cg 3017 682 (3,017,682) -
Pension habilities b {2039 200) (509,800) (2,549 000)
Net assets/(lhabilities) including pension 725136 616 (2 358 082) 722778 534
Capital and reserve
Called up share capital 1 000 - 1,000
Profit and loss account a6, 725135 616 {2358 082) 122,717,534
Total Shareholders' funds 725 136 616 (2358 082 722778 534
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22 Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP (continued)

31 Becember 2014

Effect of transition

Note UK GAAP to FRS 101 FRS 101
£ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 462,507 - 462,507
Investments a 642 442 149 613 150 643,055,299
642,904,656 513,150 643 517 806

Current assets

b 57,221,624 499,000 67,720,524
Debrors (of which £499,000 due after more than one year)
Cash a1 bank and w hand 225,334 - 225,334
Creditors ameounss falling due within one year (857,153) - (857,153)
Net current assetshabilities 66,589,805 499 000 67,088 805
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year (443,643) - (443 643)
Provisions for liablines (9,443,230) - (9 443,230)
Net assets/(labilities) excluding pension 699,607,588 1,112,150 700,719 738
Penston assets cg 4 565,682 {4,565,682) -
Penston liabilines b {1 996 000) (499,000} (2,495,000)
Net assets/(Liabilities) including pension 702,177,270 (3 952 532) 698 224 738
Capital and reserve
Called up share capital 1000 - 1000
Profit and loss account acfg 702,176,270 (3,952 532) 658 223 738
Total Shareholders' funds 702 177 270 (3 952 532) 598 224 738
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22 Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP (continued)

Reconcithation of profit/less for 31 December 2014

Note
Admimstrative expenses h
Other operating income
Operating loss
Income from shares in group undertakings d
Interest receivable and similar income efh
Profit on disposal of tangible assets
Ameunts written off 1nvestments d
Interest payable and simular charges
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities eg
(Loss}profit for the financal year
Other comprehensive mcome
frems that wiil not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit hability/asset efh
Current tax relanng to pension schemes
Deferred tax relating to pension schemes eg
Items that may be reclassified 1o profis or loss
Gain / (loss) on available for sale financial assets a

Tax thereon

Tonal other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

2014

Effect of transition

UK GAAP to FRS 101 FRS 101

£ £ £
(4 946 359) 1 484 000 (3 462,399)
2260434 - 2260434
(2 685 965) 1 484 000 (1,201 965)
3603432 (3 603 432) -
1 996 624 (1712000} 284 624
683 683 - 681 683
(27 635 722) 3603432 (24 032 290)
(24 037 948) (228 000) (24 265,948)
280 202 46 600 326,802
(23,757 746} (181,400 (23939 146)
998,000 (1,707 000) (709 000)
151,600 - 151,600
(351 200) 340 400 (10 800)
798,400 (1,366 600) (568,200)
- (46 450) (46 450)
. (46 450) (46 450)
798,400 (1413 050) {614 650)
(22.959,346) (1.594,450) (24,553,796)
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22 Explanation of transitton te FRS 101 from old UK GAAP (continued)

Notes

a) Under FRS 101 1nvestments in glts are classified as avalable for sale financial assets and are held at fair value  Under previous UK GAAP they were
recogmsed at cost  The mvestments 1n gulls were restated to their farr value of £1,600,950 as at 1 January 2014 and £1 647 400 as at 31 December 2014
A corresponding increase i the profit and loss reserve 1s recogmsed as at | January 2014 and 31 December 2014 Movement in che fair value of £46 450
dunng 214 1s presented within other comprehensive ncome

b) Deferred tax of £499,000 (2013 £509,000) ansing from the defined benefit obligation 1s reclassified and presented wathin debtors due after more than
one year This balance was netted off the related defined benefit pension liability under previous UK GAAP

¢) The defined benefit surplus of £5,707,102 (2013 £3,772,102) that was recogmsed relating to the EPS pension scheme under previous UK GAAP 15
derecogmsed under TAS 19(R} due to the umpact of asset ceiling recognition requirements A corresponding decrease is recognised 1n the profit and loss
reserve

d} Under FRS 101, the Company recognises investments in subsidianes at cost  ‘Where no consideration 15 pmd, the Company inually records the
mvestment at fasr value  Dunng 2014, investments 10 subsidtanes that were received via a dividend 1n specie had been recogmsed at thewr previous book
value under previous UK GAAP The investments are recognised at fair value of mil under FRS 101 As a result, dividend 1n specie of £3 603 432 that had
been recogmised under previous UK GAAP s de-recogmised alongside the related impairment charge

¢) Under IAS 19(R), the net unterest recerved on the defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated wath reference to the discount rate  As a result for the year
ended 31 December 2014 a reclassification of £644,000 1s required between the tnterest receivable (profit and loss} and remeasurements of defined benefit
hability/asset (other comprehensive income) Thus reduces profit for the year but has no effect on the profit and loss reserve  An associated tax
reclassification from profit and loss to other comprehensive income of £138,460 15 required for the year ended 3t December 2014

g) Followng the derecogmition of the EPS pension scheme surplus (see note ¢), a corresponding deferred tax hablity of £1 141,420 (2013 £754 420) was
derecogmsed Under UK GAAP this had been presented within the pension asset  Of the deferred tax movement of £387 000 dunng 2014 £354 782 was
derecogmsed from other comprehensive income and £32,218 from profit and loss

h) Under previous UK GAAP, the effect of the asset ceshing restnenion was recogmsed within operaung income (£1,484 000} and other comprehensive

come (£30,375,000) Under FRS 101, the effect of the asset celing on these schemes 15 instead reflected as a reduction to the interest expense of
£2 194 000 and a reduction of other comprehensive income of £29 665,000
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Rating

in the finanaial communty, a rating 1s an assessment of the
creditworthiness of a debtor Ratings are generally awarded
by speaialized rating agencies The probability of default 1s
calculated on the basis of specific criteria and debtors are
assigned to rating classes that are indicated by rating codes
Ratings are also awarded for corporate and government
bonds A rating indirectly affects the debtor’s business
actmty Normally a better rating enables a debtor to obtain
favorable terms for borrowing

ROCE

The return on capital employed 15 3 measure of the profit-
ability of capital employed Itis calculated by dividing
adusted EBIT by the average capital employed wn the
reporting period

Stakeholders

In a corporate context, the term stakeholders refers to all
natural or legal persons with an interest in the development
of an enterpnse Stakeholders range from owners and
employees through customers and suppliers to the state and
general public

Swaps (currency swaps, interest rate swaps)

Derivative finanoial instruments used to hedge currency or
interest rate nisks by swapping cash flows Currency swaps
entail swapping payments in different currencies, while
interest rate swaps Comprise swapping fixed interest rates
are variable rates

Venture capital

Venture capital 1s nisk capital that 1s made available to fund
innovative concepts and ideas, generally at high-growth
small and rid-sized enterprises Through Evenik Venture
Capital GmbH, Evonik aims to invest up to €100 million i
promising start-ups and leading specialized venture capital
in the mid term

Volatibty

Volatility 1s a measure of the fluctuation in the price of
traded goods, e g shares, currencies, interest rates, ina
gwen penod |t expresses the standard deviation of relative
changes in prices over a given period (e g a year) The
term 15 often used to denote the fluctuation in prices or
nterest rates on entire markets
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Financial and economic terms

Adjusted EBIT

Earnings before financial result and taxes, after adjustments
Earnings parameter showing Evonik’s operating earnings
performance irrespective of the structure of its assets

Adjusted EBITDA

Earnings before financial result, taxes, depreciation and
amornzation, after adjustments Earnings parameter showing
Evonik’s operating earmings performance irrespective of
the structure of 1ts assets and its investment profile This s

a cash flow-related parameter which 1s used in partrcular

in the adjusted EBITDA margin to show the relatonship to
sales as a basis for companson with compelitors

Adjustments

Evonik adjusts its operating earnings to take account of non-
operating income and expense items that are one-off or by
nature rare Consequently, these items do not form part of
adjusted EBIT and adjusted EBTIDA The adjustments mainly
comprise income and expenses relating to the acquisiton
and divestment of business operations, impairment losses/
reversals of impairment losses and restructuring expenses

Compliance

Compliance refers to all actmvities to ensure that the conduct
of the company, its governance bodies and 1ts employees
respect all apphcable mandatory standards such as legat
provisions, statutory provisions and prohibitions, in-house
directives and voluntary undertakings entered into by Evonik

Corporate governance

Corporate governance compnises all principles underlying the
management and oversight of a company As an expression
of good and responsible management of the company, it1s
therefore a central element in a company’s management
philosophy The principles of corporate governance relate
mainly to collaboration within the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board and between these two boards and the
shareholders, especially at Shareholders’ Meetings They
also relate to the company’s relationship with other people
and orgamzations with which it has business dealings

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Glossary

CTA

Abbreviation for contractual trust arrangement Thisis a
model used by Evonik to transfer sorne of its pension obh-
gations to a trust established especially for this purpose
Evonik Pensionstreuhand e V, Essen (Germany) The assets
transferred to this trust secure employees’ pensions

EVA®

Abbrewviation for economic value added Indicator used for
value-oriented management of the Evonik Group EVA® 15
calculated from the difference between adjusted EBIT and
the cost of capital employed If EVA® s positive, value s
created

Hedge accounting

Thus refers to accounting for hedging transactions and the
associated hedged items as a single valuation unit The pur-
pose of hedge accounting 1s to synchromze the otherwise
different periods in which the hedged item and hedge
impact on earnings

Hedging

Hedging is the strategy used to offset the exposure of busi-
ness transactions to risks such as changes in exchange rates,
interest rates and raw matenal prices The company enters
into an additional transaction whose profile s exactly oppo-
site to the profile of the hedge transaction Derwative finan-
cial instruments such as forward contracts, swaps and
options are used as hedging instruments

IFRS

Abbreviation for International Finangial Reporting Standards
Since 2005 companies listed on stock exchanges in the
European Union have been required to prepare conselidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS
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Silicas

Evonik manufactures both precipitated silicas vsing a

wet route and fumed silicas which are produced by a flame
process Silicas are also known as silicon dioxide These
ultra-fine particles are used in 3 wide range of applications,
including the life sciences (pharmaceuticals and cosmetics),
construction, adhesives and sealants, paints and coatings,
furmture manufacture and electronics applications such as
polishing computer chips and the production of toners for
digital pnnting They also play a key role in energy-saving
tires wath low rolling resistance {“green” tires)

Silica-silane system

Silicas are used in combination with silanes to reinforce
the tread of modern tires The silica-silane system greatly
reduces rolling resistance, resulting in fuel savings of up to
8 percent compared with conventional auto tires It also
improves grip on wet and wintry roads

Structural foams

Structural foams are popular for ightweight construction
because they are hight and stable ROHACELL® 15 the brand
name for Evenik’s polymethacrylimide (PMI) structural
foams, which have been used for many years in planes
and helicopters Now they are increasingly being used in
sandwich structures in the automotive wndustry

Superabsorbents

Crosslinked polymers that are insoluble in water and can
absorb and store large quantities of aqueous hquid through
a mechamsm that causes them to swell and form hydro gels
The higuid 1s not released even under pressure Consequently,
these polymers are mainly used 10 diapers Special forms

of superabsorbents are used tn agriculture to regulate the
masture in soil They can absorbe large quantities of water,
and release it to the plants during dry periods

Sustainability

Sustatnabihity 1s based on the need to balance the economic,
ecological and social dimensions Sustainable development
1s a commitment to the perspectives for the lives of future
generations, as expressed in the Vision 2050 pubhished by
the World Business Councit for Sustainable Development
{WBCSD) and the United Nations’ 17 goals for sustainable
development At the same time, sustainable development s
an opportumity to establish a successful long-term corporate
strateqy that combines business success with soctal and
societal responsibibity and protection of the environment

UN Global Compact

The United Nations Globa!l Compact 1s the biggest and most
important global imtiative for responstble business manage-
ment Signatories are committed to align their business
operations and strategres to ten universally recognized
principles relating to human rights, labor, environmental
protection and fighting corruption

VISIOMER® specialty methacrylates

Evontk markets the VISIOMER® brand of specialty meth-
acrylates as important precursors for adhesive formulations
and sealing compounds Applications include automotive
engineering and boat building as well as pressure-sensitive
and anaerobic adhesives which allow application-specific
optimization of bonding properties

Vision 2050

For the Vision 2050 project 29 corporate members of the
World Business CouncH for Sustainable Development
{WBCS5D) developed a common agenda for a world geared
to sustainability by 2050 and pathways to achieve this
vision Evonik was ravolved in this project and 1s committed
to the Vision 2050 which 1s expressed as “9 billion people
Ilnving well wathin the hmats of the planet”

World-scale facility

A large-scale production facihity World-scale facilities are
often more economical because fixed costs per metric ton
decline as output increases
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Monomers
Monomers are low-molecular-wetght, reactive molecules
that can build polymers

Oil additives

As a leading global supplier of oil additives, Evontk develops
innovative technologies that improve the operational effi-
aency of engines, gears and hydraulic systems Specific and
custormized iImprovements (n the flow properties of lubn-
cants over a wide temperature range play an impartant role
Depending on the application, Evonik markets these tech-
nologtes as DRIVON™, NUFLUX™ and DYNAVIS®

PEEK

Polyetherether ketones (PEEK) are partially crystalline
high-performance polymers with outstanding mechanical
properties and very good temperature resistance In view
of their exceptionally high mechamical, thermal and chemical
properties, they are mainly used in functional compo-
nents and assemblies 1n automotive engineening, aviation,
electronics and medical products

Plasticizers

Plasticizers are chemical compounds that make PVC plastics
flexible Alongside conventional products, Evomik markets
phthalate-free plasticizers

Plastic glazing

Glazing made of PLEXIGLAS® 15 up to 50 percent lighter
than glass That makes 1t attractive for automotive engi-
neering PLEXIGLAS® also has excellent transparency, very
good resistance to weathering, pleasant acoustic properties
and outstanding moldability, which opens up completely
new design options compared with conventional glazing

PMMA

Abbreviation for polymethylmethacrylate Thisisa
colorless polymer (acryhe giass) that can be colored i
arange of shades Properties high light transmittance,
good moldability, exceptionally high weather resistance
Applications automotive and aviation engineering,
architecture, hghting, design, electronics and commurnca-
tions technology Best-known brand PLEXIGLAS®, which
15 marketed as ACRYLITE® in the Amencas Form suppled
thermoplastic molding compounds, cast or extruded semi-
finished goods (sheet, film, tubes, rods)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Polyimides

Polyimide fibers are mainly used in filter media to remove
particulates from hot flue gases in coal-fired power plants,
waste incinerators and cement plants

Polymers

Long-chan, short-chain or crosslhinked molecules
(macromolecules) produced by linking smaller molecules
(monomers)

Polyurethane (PUR)

Polymers with excellent thermal and sound insulating
properties and a very broad spectrum of applications
Flexible, foamed PUR 1s used for cushions, mattresses and
interior trtms Applications for ngid PUR include automotive
engineenng, construction and refrigerators

REACH
REACH (Reglstratlon, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restric-
tion of Chemicals) 1s the European chemicals regulation

Responsible Care

Responsible Care s a global imtiative of the chemical
Industry Its goals are a continuous improvement in health,
safety and environmental performance It therefore makes
an important contribution to sustatnability

Silanes

Silanes are & group of chemical compounds, comprising

sihcon and hydrogen Evonik produces three types of silanes

~ Organofunctional silanes have at least ane functional
hydrocarbon group They are used to produce high-perfor-
mance additives that improve the properties of inorganic
particles, resins and polymers For example, they enhance
the bonding properties of adhesives, make plastics heat-
resistant, and add flame-retardant properties to cables

- Sulfur-functional silanes have revolutionized the pro-
duction of tires, where they are used with precipitated
silicas to improve key properttes such as rolling resistance
and wet grip

- Chlorosilanes are important precursors, for example for
the semiconductor and optical fiber sectors
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Cosmetic ingredtents for hair care products

Evonik produces a wide range of cosmetic ingredients such
as condiioning agents, surfactants and thickening agents
for shampoos and conditioners, and active ingredients to
repair damaged hair Surfactants provide cleansing proper-
nes, while thickeners give the producis the right wiscosity
and rheology The conditioning additives improve the
smoothness and structure of hatr, making 1t easier to comb
They can also provide additronal protection against heat,
UV irradiatron and static charge

Daversity

We define divarsity not simply as the best possible balance
between male and female employees, but also between
different educational backgrounds, experence of working
in different orgamzational units and functional areas,

a broad age range and a vanety of nattonalives, in other
waords, diversity in all its facets

Greenhouse Gas Protocel (GHG Protocol)

The Greenhouse Gas Protocol 15 regarded as the most
widespread voluntary international standard for calculating
and compiling data on greenhouse gas emissions from
industry It was developed by the World Business Counail
for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World
Resource Institute (WRI)

High performance polymers

Evanik is a specialist for high performance polymers These
have particularly hugh strength, making them a welcome
alternative to metals 1n many fields, for example in light-
weight structures, medical implants and tndustrial apphca-
tons Depending on where they are used, such matenals
have to withstand high temperatures, aggressive chemicals
and significant mechanucal strain

Hydrogen peroxide

Hydrogen is one of the cleanest and most versatile chermscals
Because of its positive properties 1t 1s used in a wide range
of applications Tradiionally, hydrogen peroxide has been
used as an environmentally benign bleaching agent in the
pulp and textite industnes 111s also used for antisepuic
packaging, to clean silicon wafers in the manufacture of
printed circuit boards and as an active ingredient in pharma-
ceuticals Thanks to the innovative Hydrogen Peroxide

to Propylene Oxide (HPPO) process developed by Evonik
and ThyssenKrupp Industrial Solutions, this environment-
friendly oxidation agent 1s also used in the direct chemical
synthesis of propylene oxide, which 1s an important starting
product for polyurethanes

Incident frequency (plant safety indicator)

This indicator s based on the process safety performance
indicator defined by the European Chemical Industry Counalt
{Cefic) Analogously to the accident frequency indicator for
occupational safety, it covers inadents involving the release
of substances, fire or explosion, even if there 1s little or no
damage tt1s calculated from the number of incidents per

1 million working hours in the segments’ production faciliies

Integrated technology platferms

Integrated technology platforms allow efficient use

of product streams and thus high added value by utilizing
by-products from one production process as starting
products for others That saves resources, reduces CO,
emissions and leverages cost-efficiency Examples of
integrated technology platforms in the Evonik Group are
1isophorone and silicon

Isophaorone/isophorone diamine fisophorone dusocyanate
lsaphorone ts used as a solvent, for example wn the pants and
coatings industry It 1s afso used to produce the dervatives
1sophorone diamine and 1sophorone dusocyanate Isophorone
diamine 15 an important curing agent for epoxy resin sys-
temns, for example to strengthen rotor blades Isophorone
dusocyanate is used to produce ight- and weather-resistant
polyurethanes, for example, for coating instrument panels
and other plastic components
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Glossary

Technical terms

Accident frequency {occupational safety indicator)
Number of accidents involving Evonik employees and
contractors’ employees under Evomik’s direct supervision
per 1 million working hours

Active packaging

Active packaging improves the storage conditions for food
For example, oxygen absorbers remove oxygen from the
atmosphere, thereby increasing the shelf-life of packaged
food through reduced oxidation and maintaining its quahty
(e g color, taste) Evonik 1s developing VISPARENT®, a
portfolio of oxygen absorbers for a2 wide range of end-uses,
including transparent packaging

Amino acids

Amino acids are building blocks for proteins that are used

in ammal nutriton They are used to ensure that the amino
acid content of animal feed 1s optimally aligned to require-
ments As a result, livestock needs less feed That also
reduces excretion of nitrogen and undigested nutrients, which
improves the carbon footpnint of livestock farming and
reduces overfertilization of the soil Evonik markets all four
major essential amino aads for animal nutrnition, e DL-
methionine (MetAMINO®), L-lysine (Biolys®), L-threomne
(ThreAMINO®) and L-tryptophan (TrypAMINO®) Evonik
also produces amino aads and their derivatives in pharma-
ceutical quahty for use in infusion selutions for parenteral
nutrition, as starting products for ammal cell cultures, and in
the manufacture of active ingredients

Anti-fouling

Special paints protect ships from fouling algae, mussels
and barnacles that adhere to the vessel and greatly increase
drag as they sail Ant~fouling coatings therefore bring sub-
stantial fuel-savings Evonik's specialty ingredients prowide
particularly long-lasting protection

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Brodiese!

Biodiesel 1s mamnly produced from renewable raw materials
In many countries, it1s already mandatory to add a proportion
of biodiesel to mineral diesel fuel Higher percentages are
expected to improve climate protection and reduce depen-
dence onmports Evonik produces alkoxides which are used
as catalysts for efficient high-yield production of biodiesel
Using Evonik’s catalysts, biodiesel can be manufactured in a
water-free process As a result, fewer unwanted by-products
are generated, leading to less contamination, so separation
and processing are faclitated

Butadiene

Butadiene 1s mainly used in synthetic rubber, for example for
the manufacture of tires It also has a wide range of apphca-
tions In elastomers and plastics For example, 1t enhances
tha resistance of rubber gloves and 1s an iImportant precursor
for the production of latex mattresses

Glossary

C, chermstry

C.crack s a by-product of crude ol refining It 1s produced
in a steam cracker when naphtha s sphtinto ethylene and
propylene After 1solation, Evonik processes the C, hydro-
carbons and places them on the market, for example as
butadiene for tires and butene-1 for the plastics industry
Isobutene 1s processed into methyl tertiary butylether
{MTBE). which 15 used as an anti-knock agentin fue! In
further processing steps, 1t manufactures high-chain alco-
hols and plasticizers for flexible PVC Evomik’s integrated
C. technology platform ensures excellent product yields
All hydrocarbons contained 1n C, crack are processed
cost-effectively

Composites

Composites are composed of at least two different materials,
for example a matrix matenal reinforced with fibers By
combining the properties of the materials carefully, 1it1s
possible to produce components that are very hght yet
extremely tough
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Market positions 2015°

Product Application

Global Capaaty in
ranking®  methe tons p a

Performance Materrals

Butene-1 Co-monomer for polyalefins 1€ 235,000
DINP High-molecular plasticizers for use 1n flexible PVC 220,000
Isononanol Intermediate for hugh-molecular plastioizers 2 400,000
Cyanuric chloride Industrial applications and specialues (e g crosstinkers and optical brighteners),

crop protection {espeaially Chinese producers) 3 31,000
Alcoholates Catalysts for biodsesel, pharmaceuticals, agrochermcals and other apphications 1 »200,000
Methacrylate monomers Dispersions, coatings, plastics, additives, adhesives, optical lenses 1-2 4
Methacrylate polymers Construction mater:als for the automotive and electrical felectronics industries,
(PMMA molding compounds and specialty medical technology, architecture, design and commumcstion applications

PMMA, sems-finished products)

1-2 400,000

* Evork’s assessment based on various indmidual market reports finformation and in house market research
¥ Chloresilanes freely traded vol Overall 2 market potition differs depending an application
¢ Freely traded volumes

4 No data avallable
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Global Capaaty in

Product Application ranking" metnctonspa
Nutritron & Care
Amphotenic surfactants Shampoos, shower gels 1 ¢
Ceramides, phytosphingosines Cosmetics 1 ¢
Fat chemistry, quaternary derivatves  Fabric softeners 1 ¢
Organically modified siicones Additwves for polyurethane foams, cosmetics, radiation-cured separation coatings 1-2 d
Superabsorbents Drapers, feminine hygiene products, incontinence products, techmcal applications 1-2 570,000
Amino acids and amino acid derivatives  Pharmaceutical intermediates and infusion solutions 3 d
Exclusive synthests intermediates and active substances for pharmaceuticals and specialty applications 3 4
Pharmaceutcal polymers Orug delivery systems (e g tablet coatings) and medical products

(e g bioresorbable inplants) 2 ¢
DL-methionine Ammal nutnition 1 580,000
Resource Efficiency
Hydrogen peroxide Bleaching of pulp and textiles, oxidation agent for the chemical industry,

starting product for polyurethane 2 >9Q0,000
Activated mickel catalysts Life sciences and fine chemicals, industrial chemicals 3 d
Precious metal powder catalysts Life saiences and fine chemicals, industrial chemicals 1 4
01l and fat hydrogenation catalysts Life sciences and fine chemicals, industrial chermicals 3 4
Amorphous polyaiphaolefing Thermoplastic hot melt adhesives 1 4
Polybutadienes Automotive manufacturing (adhesives and sealants) 2 4
Polyester resins Can- and coil coating, reactive hot melt adhesives 1 d
Thermoplastic and Binders for paints and coatings
reactive methacrylate resins 1-2 4
Organically modified silicones Binders for paints and printing inks 2 d
Isophorone chemistry Environment-friendly coating systems,

high-performance composites (crosshnkers) 1 4
PEEK Special apphications in the oul and gas, automotive and avation industries,

electronics/semiconductors, specialty medical technology (e g implants) 3 4
Polyarmide 12 High-performance specialty polymer applications

{e g automouwe, medical, sport, gas and offshore ail pipelines) 1 4
Onl additives Viscosity index improvers 1 d
Organosilanes, chlorosifanes Rubber, silicone rubber, paints and coatings, adhesives and sealants,

building protection matertals, pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, optical fibers 1° 4
Fumed silicas, fumed metal oxides, Silicone rubber, paints 2nd coatings, adhesives, sealants and plastics,
precipitated sificas, matung agents pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, high-temperature insulation, electronics,

reinforcement of rubber, consumer products, additives for the coatings

and printing inks industry 1 600,000

nry

1
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Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG

Dr. Klaus Engel, Milheim an der Ruhr
Charman of the Executive Board

a) NATIONAL-BANK AG

b) Borussia Dortmund Geschaftsfuhrungs-GmbH

Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann, Dasseldorf
(since July 1, 2015)
Responsibie for the Nutnion & Care,
Resource Efficiency and Performance Matenals segments
a} Evonik Nutrition & Care GmbH
(since July 1, Juls 2015 *, Chair since September 14, 2015)
Evonik Resource Efficiency GmbH
(since July 1, 2015*, Chair since September 3, 2015)
Evonik Performance Materials GmbH
{since July 1, 2015 *, Chair since October 16, 2015)

Christian Kullmann, Hamminkeln

Chief Strateqic Officer

a) Borussia Dortmund GmbH & Co KGaA
Evonik Performance Materials GmbH
{since July 1, 2015 %)

a} Membership of statutory supervisory boards

Thomas Wessel, Herten

Chief Human Resources Officer

Responsible for Technology & Infrastructure

a) Evonik Nutrition & Care GmbH (since July 1, 2015*)
Evonik Resource Efficiency GmbH (since July 1, 2015*)
Evonik Performance Materials GmbH
{since July 1, 2015%)
Evonik Technology & Infrastructuie GmbH
(since July 1, 2015 *, Chair since September 3, 2015)
Pensionskasse Degussa VVaG
Vivawest GmbH
Vivawest Wohnen GmbH

b) Gesellschaft zur Sicherung von
Bergmannswohnungen mbH

Ute Wolf, Diisseldorf

Chref Financial Officer

a) Deutsche AWM Investment GmbH (since July 1, 2015)
Evonik Nutrition & Care GmbH (since July 1, 2015 %)
Evonik Resource Efficiency GmbH (since July 1, 2015%)
Evonik Performance Matenals GmbH (since July 1, 2015 %)
Pensionskasse Degussa VVaG

b) Advanced Metallurgical Group N V, Amsterdam
{Netherlands) (until May 7, 2015)

The following gentleman
left the Executive Board in 2015

Patnk Wohlhauser, Kelkheim

(unal June 30, 2015)

Responsible for the Nutrition &r Care,

Resource Efficiency and Performance Matenals segments
b) Jungbunzlauer Holding AG, Basel (Switzerland)

b) Membership of comparable German and forexgn supervisory bodies of busmess enterprises pursuant to Section 125 Paragraph 1 Sentence 5

of the German Stock Corporation Act {AktG)

* Untl August 0, 2015 defined as a comparable supennsory body pursuant to Section 125 Paragraph 1 Sentence 5 of the

German Stock Corporation Act (AkiG)
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Steven Koltes, St Montz {Switzerland)

Co-Chairman CVC Capital Partners Group

b) Frontiers Media $ A (Switzerland)
Kaltroco Limited (Jersey)

Frank Lillgen, Cologne

Regional Director North Rhine of the Mining,
Chemical and Energy industrial Union {IG BCE)
a) Bayer AG (since November 3, 2015)

b) Abbott Management GmbH

Dr. Siegfried Luther, Gutersioh
Former CFO of Bertelsmann AG
a) Schaeffler AG

Sparkasse Gitersloh

Norbert Pohimann, Essen
Chairman of the Works Council
for the Goldschmidtstralle facihties
a) BKK Nowitas

Dr Wilfried Robers, Gescher

Chairman of the Group Executive Staff Counail
of Evonik Industries AG

a) Pensionskasse Degussa VVaG

Muichael Ridiger, Utting am Ammersee
Chairman of DekaBank Deutsche Girozentrale
a) Deka Immobilien GmbH
Deka Investment GmbH (Chair)
Landesbank Berlin Investment GmbH (Chair)
Liquiditats-Konsortialbank GrabH {Charr)
b) DekaBank Deutsche Girozentrale
Luxembourg S A (Luxembourg) (until March 20, 2015)

3} Membership of other statutory supervisory boards

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Further information on
corporate officers

Ulrich Terbrack, Reinheim
Deputy Chairman of the Group Works Counal
of Evonuk Industnes AG

Dr Volker Trautz, Murich
Former Chairman of the Management Board
of LyondellBasell Industries
a) Cingroup Global Markets Deutschland AG
Solar Tower Technologres AG {untl July 31, 2015)
b) CERONA Companha de Energia Renovivel,
S$30 Paulo {Brazil)
OSF Merchant Banking, 5o Paulo (Brazil)
Perstorp Holding AB, Malmo {Sweden)

Dr Chnstian Wildmaser, Surpierre (Switzerland)
Managing Director of CVC Capital Partners
Switzerland GmbH

b) Sigma Group Holdings S a rl (Luxembourg)

The following gentlemen left the
Supervisory Board in 20115

Giinter Adam, Freigericht

(untl December 10, 2015)

Deputy Chairman of the Group Works Counail
of Evoruk Industries AG

Chairman of the Works Counail

for the Hanau facihities

Jirgen N&ding, Duisburg
(until September 30, 2015)
Chairman of the Werks Counal
for the Essen Campus facilities

b) Membership of comparable German and foresgn supervisory bodies of business enterprises pursuant to Section 125 Paragraph 1 Sentence 5

of the German Stock Corporation Act {AktG)

ns
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Further information on corporate officers

Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG

Dr Werner Miiller, Miilheim an der Ruhr
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Charman of the Executive Board of RAG-Stiftung
a) Borussia Dortmund GmbH & Co KGaA

RAG Aktiengesellschaft (Chair)

RAG Deutsche Steinkohle AG (Chair)
b) Contiha GmbH

Stadler Rail AG, Bussnang (Switzerland)

Michael Vassiliadis, Hanover
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Mining, Chermical
and Energy Industrial Union (IG BCE)
a) BASF SE
K+5 AG
RAG Aktiengesellschaft
RAG Deutsche Steinkohle AG
STEAG GmbH
b) RAG-Suftung

Martin Albers, Dorsten

(since October 1, 2015)

Deputy Charman of the Works Counal
for the Essen Campus facilitres

a) Pensionskasse Degussa VVaG

b) PEAG Holding GmbH

Prof Barbara Albert, Darmstadt

Professor of Solid State Chermstry at the Eduard-
Zintl Institute of Inerganic and Physical Chemistry
at Darmstadt Technical University

Karin Erhard, Hanover
Board Secretary to the Pay-Scale/Finances
Division of the Mining, Chemical and
Energy Industrial Umion (IG BCE)
a) INEOS Deutschland GmbH

INEOS Koln GmbH

Carmen Fuchs, Alzenau

(since December 10, 2015)

Deputy Chairperson of the

Works Council for the Hanau facilities
a) Pensionskasse Degussa VVaG

Stephan Gemkow, Overath

Chairman of the Management Board

of Franz Hamel & Cie GmbH

a) TAKKT AG {Charr)

b) JetBlue Arways Corporation, New York (USA)

Prof Barbara Grunewald, Bonn
Chair for Ciwil Law and Commercial Law
at the University of Cologne

Ralf Hermann, Herten

Chairman of the Group Works Council
of Evonik Industries AG

b) RAG-Stiftung

Prof. Wolfgang A Herrmann, Freising
President of Munich Technical University
b) Bayerische Forschungsathanz GmbH (Chair)

Dieter Kleren, Wesseling
Chairman of the Works Council
for the Wesseling faaliues
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Report on the Group Management Report

We have audited the accompanying management report for
the Evorik Group, which 1s combined with the management
report of the company, Evonik Industries AG, Essen, for the
business year from January 1 to December 31, 2015 The
Executive Board of Evomk Industries AG, Essen, 1s responsible
for the preparation of the combined management report in
accordance with the requirements of German commercral law
applicable pursuant to § 315a Abs 1 HGB We conducted our
audit in accordance with § 317 Abs 2 HGB and German
generally accepted standards for the audit of the combined
management report promuigated by the Institut der Wirt-
schaftsprufer {Institute of Public Auditors in Germany) (IDW)

Accordingly, we are required to plan and perform the audit of
the combined management report to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the combined management report
15 consistent with the consolidated financial statements and
the audit findings, as a whole provides a suitable view of the
Group's position and suttably presents the opportunities and
nsks of future development

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

® SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Independent Auditor’s Report

According to § 322 Abs 3 Satz 1 HGB we state that our
audit of the combined management report has not led to any
reservations

In our opinion based on the findings of our audst of the
consolidated finanaal statements and combined management
report, the combined management report 1s consistent with
the consolidated financal statements, as a whole provides
2 suitable view of the Group's position and suitably presents
the opportunities and risks of future development

Dusseldorf, February 22, 2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Lutz Granderath
(German Public Auditor)

Antje Schlotter
(German Public Auditor)

2132
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To Evonik Industries AG, Essen

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolhidated financial
statements of Evonik Industries AG, Essen, and its subsid-
1anes, which comprise the income statement, the statement
of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes
to the consohdated financial statements for the business year
from fanuary 1 to December 31, 2015

Executive Board's Responsibility

for the Consclidated Financial Statements

The Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG, Essen, is respon-
sible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements This responsibihity includes ensuring that these
consohdated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted
by the EU, and the addittonal requirements of German com-
mercial law pursuant to § {Articte) 315a Abs (paragraph) 1
HGB {"Handelsgesetzbuch® German Commercial Code)
and that these consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results
of operations of the group 1n accordance with these require-
ments The Executive Board 15 also responsible for the
internal controls which the Executive Board determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
staterments that are free from matenal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolt-
dated financial statements based on our audit We conducted
our audit i accordance with § 317 HGB and German generally
accepted standards for the audit of financial statements pro-
mulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer (Institute of
Public Auditors in Germany} (IDW) and additionally observed
the International Standards on Auditing {ISA) Accosdingly,

we are required to comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financizl statements are free from
material misstatement
An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consoli-
dated financial statements The selection of audit procedures
depends on the auditor’s professional judgment This includes
the assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error In assessing those risks, the auditor considers the
internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view The aim of this 1s to plan and perform audit procedures
that are appropriate In the given arcumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of
the group's internal control system An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Executive Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consclidated financtal statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our audit
opinion

Audit Opinion
According to § 322 Abs (paragraph) 3 Satz (sentence) 1HGB,
we: state that our audit of the consclidated financral statements
has not led to any reservations

in our opinion based on the findings of our audu, the con-
solidated financial statements comply, in all matenal respects,
with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional require-
ments of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a Abs 1
HGB and give a true and fair view of the net assets and finan-
13l position of the Group as at December 31, 2015 as well as
the results of operations for the business year then ended,
In accordance with these requirements
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11.5 Responsibility statement

To the best of our knowledge, and i1n accordance with the
applicable reporting principles, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Group 1n accor-
dance with German accepted accounting principles, and the
management report for the Group, which 15 combined with
the management report for Evonik Industries AG, mdudes
a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group, together with a
description of the matenal opporturities and risks associated
with the expected development of the Group

Essen, February 19, 2016

Evonik Industries AG
The Executive Board

Dr Engel Dr Kaufmann Kullmann

Wessel Wolf
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Disclosures in comphiance with Garman legisiation

Wages and salaries also include expenses refated to restruc
turing

The net interest expense for pension provisions 1s shown
in the financial result, see Note 6 6

The table shows the annual average headcount for the
continuing operations

Headcount {(annual average)

No of employees 2015 2014
Nutrition & Care 6,984 6,960
Resource Efficiency 8,240 7,951
Performance Materiats 4,322 4,387
Services 12,852 12,844
Corporate, other operations 861 960

33,259 33,102

Prior year figures restated

11.3 Remuneration of the Executive Board
and Supervisory Board pursuant to
Section 314 Paragraph 1 No. 6 of the
German Commercial Code (HGB)

The total remuneration paid to the members of the Executive
Board of Evonik Industries for their work in 2015, including
remuneration of the former Executive Board member
Mr Wohlhauser, was €15,608 thousand (2014 €10,677 thou-
sand) In 2015 provisions of €332 thousand for bonus pay-
ments for 2014 were reversed

Further details, including an individual breakdown of
remuneration, can be found in the remuneration report in the
combined management report

Total remuneration of former members of the Executive
Board and their surviving dependents was €2,72% thousand
in 2015 (2014 €1,374 thousand)

As of the balance sheet date, the present value of penston
obligations (defined benefit obligations) for former members
of the Executive Board and therr surviving dependents
amounted to €50,951 thousand (2014 €43,816 thousand)

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board for 2015
totaled €2,818 thousand {2074 €2,816 thousand)

11.4 Auditor’s fees pursuant to Section 314 Paragraph 1No. 9
of the German Commercial Code (HGB)

The auditor for the consolidated financial statements of the
Evonik Group was PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesell-
schaft Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft (PwC}), Dusseldorf
(Germany) The fees for services prowided by the PwC Group
were as follows

Auditor’s fees

Germany Other countries Total fees
in € million 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Auditing of annual financial statements 41 36 47 3g 88 74
Other audit-related services 13 17 06 06 19 23
Tax consultation services - 14 02 03 02 17
Other services 04 a7 - - 04 07
58 74 55 47 M3 121

The fees for auditing annual financial statements included
expenses for the audit of the consolidated financial state-
ments and of the separate annual financial statements of
Evonik Industries AG and its German and foreign subsidiaries

Other audit-related services compnised services apart from
the auditing of annual financial statements, especially the
review of interim financial statements, and other assurance
services 1n connection with projects and other business-
related 1ssues

09
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10.4 Contingent liabilities,
contingent receivables and other
financial commitments

Contingent habilities mainly comprnise guarantee and war-
ranty obligations totaling €70 milhon (2014 €56 million)
They include a guarantee of €44 million in favor of a joint
venture, see Note 10 3, and indemnity obligations of €10 mil-
lion 1n connection with divestments, which expire 1n the
period up to December 31, 2017

Furthermore, following completion of admimstrative
proceedings in foreign junsdictions, 1tis not improbable that
indimidual customers could file ctaims for compensation
Since the probabihty 15 considered law, Evonik is of the
opimion that the nsk 15 in the low double-digrt-euro range

There were no contingent recewables as of Decem-
ber 31, 2015

Other financial commitments are outlined below

As a lessee, Evomik 1s mainly party to operating leases for
land and buildings, plant and machinery, and office furniture
and equipment

The table shows the nominal value of obligations from
future minimum lease payments for leased assets with the
following payment terms

Maturity structure of future minimum lease payments
(lessee; operating leases)

in €mithon 2015 2014
Due within 1 year 92 78
Due in more than 1 and up to 5 years 246 1
Cue in more than 5 years 8 179

' 556 448

Total payments of €99 milion (2014 €108 million) were
recognized as expense for operating feases in the repbrting
period Asin the previous year, the entire amount related to
miurmum lease payments No contingent rental payments
were made

10.5 Other agreements between
managers and third parties

In connection with the acquisition of 25 01 percent of the
shares in Evonik Industries AG by Gabriel Acquisitions in
2008, selected managers at Evonik were granted a night to
participate indirectly in Evonik’s success To this end, the
managers purchased, at market price, Itmited partnership
shares i the partnership Angel MEP GmbH & Co KG,
Frankfurt am Main (Germany), which held 4 24 percent of
the shares tn Evonik Industries AG at year-end 2015 (2014
17 93 percent) jointly with Gabriel Holding through three
intermediate companies (Gabriet Investments, Gabriel Acqui-
sitions, and The Gabriel Finance Limited Partnership)

The purpose of this program is to provide an incentive to
managers to contribute to the future growth and sustained
performance of the Group

On the reporting date, the managers participating In
this program held an indirect stake of 0 06 percent (2014
0 31 percent} in Evonik Industries AG The cash contnibution
for this was equivalent to the market value of the partnership
shares and was determined by a surtable enterpnise valuation
method Since the managers paid the fair value of the
shares when they acquired them, the fair value of the equity
instruments allocated In return was zero For this reason,
no expense would have to be recogmzed at any time, either
in the event of an exit or if a manager were to leave the
company

Evoruk will not at any time be required to make payments
to the eligtble managers under this program

10.6 Events after the reporting date

There were no material events after the reporting date

1. Disclosures in comphance with
German legislation

11.1 Information on shareholdings pursuant
to Section 313 Paragraph 2 of the
German Commercial Code (HGB)

The Group’s shareholdings are listed in Note 51 The list
ndicates which compamies have made use of the provisions
in Secttons 264 Paragraph 3 and 264b of the German Com-
mercial Code (HGB) on exemption from disclosure of annual
financial statements and the preparation of notes to their
finanaial statements and a management report

11.2 Personnel expense and number of
employees pursuant to Section 314
Paragraph 1 No. 4 of the German
Commercial Code {HGB)

Personnel expense

n € million 2075 20n4
Wages and salanes 2,520 2,200
Social secunty contributions 370 341
Pension expenses 209 192
Other parsonnel expense 22 16

3n 2,149

Prior-year figures restated
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Qther disclosures

The dividend for fiscal 2014 was paid following the adoption
of the resolution by the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on
May 19, 2015 RAG-Stftung, Essen (Germany) recewed
€316 million, Gabne! Acquistions GmbM, Gadebusch (Ger-
many) received €24 million, and The Gabriel Finance Limited
Partnership, St Helier (Jersey), received €20 million

In 2015, Evonik received diadends of €18 million (2014
€44 million), mainly from associates

The other income from fellow subsidiaries comprised the
divestment of the 10 3 percent shareholding in Vivawest to
RAG Aktiengesellschaft, see Note 5 2

The contingent hiabilites recognized as of December 31,
2015 comprise €44 million relating to 2 joint venture and
result manly from a guarantee of €39 million granted to
secure a loan for the joint venture Saudi Acrylic Polymers
Company, Ltd , Jubail (Saudi Arabia} In addition, two guar-
antees totaling €5 milllon were provided as collateral for
a facility for hedging transactions at the joint venture CyPlus
Idesa, S APl de CV, Mexico City (Mexico)

Remuneration paid to related parties (individual persons)

The Federal Republic of Germany and the federal states of
North Rhune-Westphahia and the Saarland are also classified
as related parties as they are able to exercise a significant
nfluence an RAG-Stftung through their membership of the
Board of Trustees of RAG-Suftung

Transactions effected between Evonik and these federal
and state governments and their subsidianies or joint ventures
in the reporting period comprised generally available govern-
ment grants and subsidies, and investments in their securities
Further, customary business relationships were maintained
with the Deutsche Bahn Group, and the Duisport Group

Individuals defined as related parties also include mem-
bers of the management who are directly or indirectly
responsible for corporate planming, management and over-
sight, and members of their families At Evonik, these parties
compnse the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of
Evonik Industries AG, the Executive Board and Board of
Trustees of RAG-Suftung, and other management members
who hold key positions in the Group

Executive Board

Supervisory Board Other management

of Evoruk Industries AG of Evonik industries AG members
in€'000 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Short-term remuneration 10,701 7472 2,818 2,816 12,982 4,317
Share-based payments 4,753 B350 - - 2,322 12
Current service cost for pension
and other post-employment benefits 2,261 1,526 - - 933 493
Termination benefits 2,380 - - - - -

Short-term remuneration compnises both amounts not related
to performance and short-term performance-related payments

As of December 31, 2015, there were provisions of
€6,688 thousand (2014 €3,676 thousand) for short-term
performance-related remuneration of members of the Exec-
utive Board and €9,160 thousand (2014 €1,677 thousand)
for other management members

At year-end 2075, provisions for share-based payment
amounted to €6,624 thousand (2014 €2,291 thousand) for the
Executive Board and €2,408 thousand (2014 €942 thou-
sand) for other management members

Further, as of December 31, 2015 there were provisions
for termination benefits for the Executive Board totaling
€878 thousand

The information on share-based payment relates to ex-
penses for fiscal 2015 for the LTI tranches 2010 through 2015
for the Executive Board and LTI tranches 2012 through 2015
for other management members

The present value of pension obligations (defined benefit
oblhigations) was €25,799 thousand (2014 €29,773 thou-
sand} for the Executive Board, and €17,631 thousand (2014
€10,672 thousand) for other members of the management

Further, the employee representatives elected to the Super-
visory Board of Evonik Industries AG continued to receive the
regular salary agreed in theirr employment contract The level
of their salary provided appropriate remuneration for the
exercise of their functions and tasks in the company

In 2075, business relations with the Evomk Group
amounting t0 €4 million (2014 €2 million) were maintained
by one member of the Board of Trustees of RAG-Stiftung
through companies attnbutable to this person This amount
prnapally comprised goods and services supplied The habil-
ities were less than €1 million on the reporting date

Apart from the relationships stated above, Evonik did
not have any other sigmificant business relationships with
related parties
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Recewvables from cross-currency interest rate swaps compnise
transactions with negative net cash flows resulting from
positive inflows in euros and negative outflows 1n foreign
currencies In each matunty bracket, the foreign currency
outflows translated into euros exceeded the actual euro
inflows To calculate the present value, the foreign currency
side of these swaps 15 discounted using a yield curve for the
foreign currency while the euro side 1s discounted using a
euro yield curve Stnce interest rates in the foreign currencies
are higher, discounting results tn a positive fair valve and thus
a positive overall carrying amount for the instruments despite
the negative net cash flows This phenomenon 1s encoun-
tered in particular with the Chinese renminbr yuan (CNH)
and the Brazihan real (BRL)

(c} Rusk of default
Credit nsk management divides default nsks into three
categories, which are analyzed separately on the basis of
therr specific features The three categories are debtor and
creditor nsk, country risk, and the nisk of default by financial
counterparties

The debtor and creditor default nsks are analyzed and
monitored continuously with the aid of an internal limit
system Pohtical risk (country risk) 1s also taken into account
for export orders so that the overall risk assessment takes
account of both pohitical and economic risk factors On the

10.3 Related parties

In addition to the subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group mantains relationships
with related parties, 1 @ companies, the government and indi-
viduals

As of December 31, 2015, related parties with which
the Group maintatns business relationships included RAG-
Suftung, Essen (Germany), due to 1ts controlling interest,

Business relations with related parties (companies)

basis of this analysis, a maximum nisk exposure limit 15 set
for the contracting party The credit standing of contracting
parties 1s updated constantly via ratings or scoring processes

In addimion, a specific himit 15 set for financial counter-
parties for each type of nsk {money market, capital market and
dervatives) Maximum himits for each contracting party are
set on the basis of the creditworthiness analyses These are
predeminantly based on the ratings 1ssued by international
rating agencies and our own internal credit analysis In addi-
tion, the development of the price of credit default swaps and
equity prices (where available) 1s analyzed Country limits
are set for the money and capital markets to ensure diverstfi-
cation of country risks

Credit management alsa covers derwvative financial instru-
ments, where the nisk of default 1s equivalent to the posrave
farr value This nisk 1s mimimized by setting high standards for
the creditworthiness of counterparties Only common instru-
ments found on the market with sufficient iquidity are used
Consequently, no matenal risk of default 1s expected in this
field As for non-derivative financial instruments, there is also
3 default nisk amounting to the positwe fair value This can be
mrimized by regular creditworthiness reviews We do not
anticipate any matenal risk of default here either

Owing to the diversity of business and the large number
of customers, there were no significant cluster nsks

and Gabriel Acquisiions GmbH {Gabriel Acquisitions),
Gadebusch (Germany), as it can sull exercise a sigrificant
influence through the appointment of representatives to the
Supervisory Board of Evonik industries AG Further related
parties comprise fellow subsidiaries of Evanik owned by
RAG-Stiftung and associates and joint ventures of Evonik,
which are recogrized at equity

RAG-Stiftung Fellow subsidiaries Juint ventures Associates

in € million 2015 2014 01s 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Goods and services supphied - - 2 2 25 32 1 2
Goods and services receved - - -57 -56 -1 - =2 :
Other income - - 143 - 4 - - 3
Recevables as of December 31 - - 1 - 3 - 1
Liabilies as of December 31 - - - - - - -1 -
Contingent habilitres

as of December 31 - - - - -44 -33 -1 -2
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The breakdown of the sum of interest and redemption pay-
ments by maturity tn the following table relates to dervative
financial instruments with positive and negative far values
The table shows the net value of cash inflows and outflows

Remaining maturity of derivative financial instruments 2015

MANAGEMENT REPORT
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Since netting was not agreed for forward exchange contracts,
currency swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps, they
are presented as gross amounts

Dec 31,
Payments due m 2015
more than 1

andup to more than

in € mitlion up te 1 year 3 years 3 years
Recerwvables from dervatives 50 4 - 54
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 13 4 - 17
Cash inflows 123 41 9 173
Cash outflows =110 -37 -9 -156
Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps 37 - - 37
Cash inflows 2,118 137 - 2,255
Cash outflows -2,081 -137 - -2,218
Commaodity denvatives - - - -
Liabilities from dervatives -122 ~43 ~57 -222
Cross-currency interest rate swaps =12 =27 -53 -92
Cash inflows 23 57 314 394
Cash outflows =35 -84 -367 -436
Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps =102 -7 - =109
Cash inflows 2,690 202 1 2,893
Cash outflows -2,792 =209 =1 -3,002
Commodity derwvatives -8 -9 -4 -

Remaining maturity of derivative financial instruments 2014
Dec 37,
Payments duen 2014
more than 1

and up to more than

n € mallian upto} year 3 years 3 years
Receivables frem derivatives 3 -4 - 19
Cross-currency interest rate swaps -5 -5 - =10
Cash inflows 26 63 - 8%
Cash outflows -3 -68 - -59
Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps 28 1 - 29
Cash inflows 1,141 28 - 1,169
Cash outflows -1,113 =27 - -1,140
Commodity derivatives - - - -
Liabilrties from derrvatives -198 -36 -33 -267
Cross-currency interest rate swaps -7 -24 -33 -64
Cash inflows 19 28 262 309
Cash outflows ~26 =52 =295 =373
Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps -188 -1 - -199
Cash inflows 2,832 286 1 3119
Cash outflows -3,020 -297 =1 -3318
Commodity dervatives -3 =1 - -4
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Alongside cash and cash equivalents of €2,368 milhon and
investments of €262 milhon In current secunties, the Group’s
central source of hquidity 15 a €175 billton revolving credit
facility from a syndicate of 27 national and international
banks This credit facility 1s divided into two tranches of
€875 millhion each The second and last option to extend
their term by one year was exercised in 2015 and they now
run until September 2018 and 2020 respectively This credit
facihty does not contain any covenants requinng Evonik to

meet specific financial ratios and was not drawn at any time
in fiscal 2015

Further, as of December 31, 2015, various unused credit
hines totaling €368 million were available to meet tocal
requirements, especially in the Asia-Pacific region The table
shows the remaining matunity of the non-dernivative financial
wnstruments based on the agreed dates for interest and
redemption payments

Remaining maturity of non-derivative financial instruments 2015

Dec 31,
Payments due in 2015
morethan 1 more than 3
and up to and up to more than
in€ milhon up to 1 year 3years 5 years 5 years
Fmanaal lrabiities 21 89 F1:1] 796 © 1,677
Bonds 3 34 534 772 1,343
Liabilities to banks 179 52 47 24 302
Loans from non-banks 14 - - - 14
Other financial habdities 15 3 - - 18
Trade accounts payable 1,086 4 - - 1,090
Remaining maturity of non-derivative financial instruments 2014
Dec 31,
Payments due in 2014
more than 1 mare than 3
andup to and upto more than
in€milion up to 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years
Finanaal {iabilities 320 94 45 559 1,018
Bonds 9 19 39 509 556
Liabriives to banks 294 72 24 48 435
Loans from non-banks 7 - - - 7
Other financial habihities 13 3 2 2 20
Trade accounts payabla 1,126 - - - 1,126

The Group met all payment terms agreed for 1ts financial
habilties
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The results of these scenanos were as follows

USD sensitivity analysis
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Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
in € millon tNCome equity Income equity
+5% -1 -64 3 ~51
-5% 1 64 -3 51
+10% -1 =127 5 -103
=-10% 1 127 -5 103
CNY /CNH sensitivity analysis
Dec 21,2015 Dec 31,2014
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
in € million ncome equity 1ncome equity
+5% - -1 -1 -9
-5% - 1 1 9
+10% - -23 -1 =17
-10% - 23 1 17

Several scenarios were also simulated for interest rates
These analyzed shifts of 50, 100 and 150 basis points in the
euro interest rate curve to simulate the possible loss of value
of derwative and non-derivative financial instruments The
scenanos are summarized in the table

EUR interest rate sensitivity analysis

Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014

Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
n € million tncome equity mcome equity
+ 50 basis points 1 - 2 -
=50 basis points =1 - -2 -
+ 100 basis points 1 - 4 1
=100 basis points -1 - -4 -1
+150 basis points 2 - 6 1
=150 basis points -2 - -7 -1

Commodity risks result from changes in the market prices for
the purchase and sale of raw matenials Raw matenals were
purchased principally to meet in-house demand Other factors
of importance for Evonik’s risk positton are the availability
and price of raw matenals, starting products and intermedi-
ates In particular, raw material prices of signtficance to the
Evonik Group are dependent on exchange rates and the
price of crude oil Commodity management, which 1s the
responsibility of the segments, involves identifying procure-
ment risks and defining effective measures to mimmize them
For example, price escalation clauses and swaps are used to
reduce price volatlity Pricing and procurement nsks are
reduced through werldwide procurement and optimized
processes to ensure immediate sourcing of additional raw
material requirements Further, use of alternative raw mate-
nals s examined for vanous produchion processes and Evanik
1s working on the development of alternative production
technologies

Financial derivatives were also used on a small scale
to hedge procurement price nsks If the price of natural gas
had been 10 percent higher or lower, the impact of the
fluctuation 1n the value of the commodity dervatives on the
hedge reserve would have been +€2 million or —€2 million
at year-end 2015 (as in 2074) If the price of naphtha-based
petrochemical feedstocks had been 10 percent higher or
lower, the impact of the fluctuation in the value of the com-
modity derivatives on the hedge reserve would have been
+€7 million or - €7 million at year-end 2015 In both cases,
the impact on income would have been neghgible Similarly,
there was no impact on income in the previous year

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s managed through business planning to ensure
that the funds required to finance the current operating
business and current and future investments in all Group
compames are avaiable at the nght ume and in the nght
currency at optimum cost Liquidity requirements for busi-
ness operations, investments and other financial activities
are derived from a financing status and hquidity planning,
which form part of iquidity nsk management Liquidity 1s
pooled in a central cash management pool where this makes
economic sense and 15 legally permissible Central hquidity
risk management facilitates low-cost borrowing and advanta-
geous offsetting of finanaal requirements

203

|
Glossary ! Supplementzry snformation




202

"—"T

FINANCIAL REPORT 2015 EVONIK INDUSTRIES

Net currency result

in € mullion 2015 2014
From opersting currency exposure and assoaated hedging instruments
Gross income from currency translation 189 135
Gross expenses for currency translation -154 -96
Net result from currency translation of operating monetary and Lt 35 9
Gross Income from currency hedging 180 122
Gross expenses for currency hedging =251 =166
Net result from operational currency hedging -7 ~44
From financing-related currency exposura and associated hedging instruments
Gross income from currency translation 266 13
Gross expenses for currency translation -288 -152
et result from currency transianon of finsnang-related Aary ts and habil -22 -39
Gross mcome from currency hedging 192 118
Gross expenses for curtency hedging -176 -95
Net result from financing-related currency hedgqing 16 23
Net currency result {oparstional and financing-related) -42 -

The net currency result i1s determined printipally by the swap
premiums at the start of hedging, and the time lag between
the hedges and changes in the hedged foreign currency items
recognized on the balance sheet during the hedging period
Since hedge accounting 15 apphied for micro-hedging of
foreign currency balance sheet exposure {for example,
financing-related currency hedging of non-current loans
through cross-currency interest rate swaps} and for hedging
of planned or firmly agreed cash flows in foreign currencies
{for example, hedging of planned sales revenues), ther
hedge results are only reflected in the net currency result
with the corresponding ineffective portion or any forward
components that are excluded from the hedge accounting
relationship By contrasy, the effective results of these hedges
are recognized 1n accumulated other comprehensive income
untif the hedged transaction 1s realized Subsequently, they
are recognized in sales if they were used as a sales hedge,
inventories or the cost of sales If they were used to hedge
cost risks relating to procurement, or In the first-time recog-
nition of property, plant and equipment if the purpose was to
hedge the foreign currency nisk relating to the procurement
of assets of this type In the case of currency hedges for loans
for which cash flow hedge accounting 1s applied, the effec-
tive portion of the hedge 1s derecogmzed from accumulated
other comprehensive income to offset the income or
expenses from currency translation of monetary assets and
liabilitres triggered by the hedged stem See Mote 77 (g)

The aim of interest rate management 15 10 protect net
income from the negatve effects of fluctuations in market
interest rates Interest rate nsk 1s managed by using derivative
and non-denvative financral instruments The aim 15 to
achieve an appropriate ratio of fixed rates {with interest
rates fixed for more than one year) and vanable rates (terms
of less than one year), taking costs and risks into account
At year-end 2015, 94 percent (2014 85 percent) of non-
derivative financial instruments were hedged by fixed-
interest contracts

Several scenario analyses were carried out to measure
exchange rate and interest rate nsk as of December 31, 2015

The most mmportant currencies for Evonik are the US
dollar (USD) and the Chinese renminb yuan {CNY /CNH)
CNH 1s the technical market designation for renminbi that
are tradable and delerable outside the territory of China
A sensitivity analysis was performed for these currencies
by modeling a change of 5 percent and 10 percent in the
exchange rate relative to all other currencies to simulate
the possible loss of value of derivative and non-dervative
financial instruments in the event of the appreciation or
depreciation of these currenaes The percentage standard
deviations of changes in exchange rates versus the euro in
2015 was 0 7 percent for the USD (2014 2 6 percent), and
0 7 percent for the CNY/CNH (2014 2 7 percent)
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As of year-end 2015, commodity swaps with a negative farr
value of €21 million (2014 negative fair value of €4 million)
were used to hedge forecast purchases of raw materals
aganst price fluctuations up to 2019 For these swaps, a nega-
tive fair value of €20 million was recognized in the hedge
reserve in 2015 (2014 negative far value of €4 million)

The effectiveness of the hedge relations was determined
using the dollar offset method, critrcal term match, the hypo-
thenical denivatives method, regression analysis and sensitivity
analyses When hedging the currency risk of highly probable
forecast transactions, in general only the spot components of
forward exchange contracts used to hedge currency nsks are
designated as hedges In 2075, the valuation of cash flow
hedges did not contain any ineffective portion (2014 income
of €1 mulhon)

(b) Hedge of a net investment
Since March 2010 the investment in UK subsidianes has been
hedged against foreign currency nisks on a roling basis The
hedging contracts normally have terms of a few months As
of December 31, 2015, the notional value of the hedges was
£65 million, as in the previous year At year-end 2075, the
outstanding hedging contracts had a positive fair value of
€2 million (2014 negative fair value of €1 million) Between
the start of hedging in March 2010 and year-end 2015, total
expenses of €19 million {2014 €12 million) were assigned to
the hedge reserve

In July 2015, the investment in a subsidiary in Switzerland
was hedged against foreign currency nisks The hedging
contracts have a notional value of CHF 69 million and a term
of nine months The fair value of the outstanding hedging
contracts was €2 milhon Between the start of this hedging
transaction and the reporting date, income of €2 million was
aliocated to the hedge reserve

Notes on financal risk management

As an international company, Evonik 1s exposed to financial
nsks in the norma! course of business A major objective of
corporate policy s to minimize the impact of market, iquidity
and default risks on both the value of the company and
profitability in order to check adverse fluctuations in cash
flows and earnings without forgoing the opportunity to
benefit from positive market trends For this purpose a
systemmatic financial and risk management system has been
established Interest rate and exchange rate risks are managed
centrally by the Finance Division of Evonik Industries AG,
while commodity rnisks are managed by the segments in
accordance with established corporate policies

The financial dervatives contracts used by Evonik are entered
nto exclusively in connection with a corresponding under-
lying transaction (hedged 1tem) relating to nosrmal operating
business, which provides a nisk profile directly opposite to that
of the hedge The instruments used are customary products
found on the market For the management of interest rates
and exchange rates, they comprise currency swaps, forward
exchange contracts, cross-currency mnterest rate swaps and
interest rate swaps Commodity swaps are used to hedge the
risk of fluctuations in the price of coal, natural gas, electricity
and petrochemical feedstocks The procurement of emission
allowances to meet obligations pursuant to Section 6 of the
German Emissions Trading Act {TEHG) can be optimized
through use of EUA-CER swaps and EUA or CER futures

(a) Market risk
Market risk can basically be subdivided into exchange rate,
interest rate and commodity risks The management of these
risks 1s explained below

Exchange rate risks relate to both the sourcing of raw
materials and the sale of end-products 1a currencies other
than the functional currency of the company concerned One
aim of currency risk management Is to protect the company’s
operating business from fluctuations in earnings and cash
flows resulting from changes in exchange rates Any opposite
effects anising from procurement and sales activities are taken
tnto account Another objective of currency management 15 to
ehminate the currency risk relabing to financing transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective Group companies

For currency hedging of risk positions on the balance
sheet, Evontk uses a portfolio approach the nisk positions
resulting from foreign currency recevables and habilities
are generally netted and bundled wia intragroup hedqing, the
resulting net positions are then hedged wia market deriva-
tives Currency management 1s carried out separately for
operational nisk positions (manly trade accounts recevable
and payable in foreign currencies) and risk positions ansing
from financing activiies Currency translation and hedging
results are disclosed in the income statement in line with
this distinction The net presentation of the results reflects
both their economic substance and the nisk management
undertaken by Evonik

am

r-
Glossary I Supplemenzary mformmon]




00

FINANCIAL REPORT 2015 EVONIK INDUSTRIES

Fair value of financial instruments

recognized at amortized cost

The farr value of bonds 1s their directly observable stock market
price on the reporting date For loans, other finanaial assets,
liabibties to banks, loans from non-banks, and other financial
liabilties the fair value 1s determined as the present value of
the expected future cash inflows or outflows and 1s therefore
allotated to Level 2 Bhiscounting is based on the interest rate
for the respective matunty on the reporting date, taking the
creditworthiness of the counterparues into account Since the
majority of other financial receivables and liabilities, and
trade accounts recewable and payable are current, their fair
values—like the fair value of cash and cash equivalents—
correspond to therr carrying amounts

Notional value of derivative financial nstruments

The other investments that are recagnized on the balance
sheet at amortized cost comprise investments in equity
instruments for which there i1s no quoted price 1n an active
market and whose fair values cannot be determined reliably
in accordance with one of the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy There is no intention of selling these investments

Notional value of denvatives

The notional value of interest rate swaps 1s the principal on
which the swap agreement is based, while the notional value
of the cross-currency interest rate swaps, forward exchange
contracts and currency swaps Is the hedged foreign exchange
armount converted into euras The notional value of the com-
modity derivatives is the hedged procurement cost translated
nto euros

Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014
thereof thereof theraof theresf
in € mullion Total current  non-current Tota! current  non-current
Cross-cursrency interest rate swaps 678 110 568 390 31 359
Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps 5190 4,842 348 4,462 4135 327
Commodity denvatves 111 15 96 25 15 11
5979 4,967 1,012 4,878 4,181 697

Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting was applied for the following major trans-
actions in 2015

(a) Cash flow hedges -
As of the balance sheet date, forward exchange contracts
and currency swaps were used to hedge forecast foreign
currency sales amounting to arcund €1,950 mithon (2014
around €1,600 million) up to March 2017 against exchange
rate movements These hedging instruments had a nega-
tive faw value of €56 mullion (2014 negatve faw value of
€96 million) At year-end 2015, losses of €56 milhon (2014
losses of 96 million) were recognized in the hedge reserve
Evonik hedges the currency nisk arising from intragroup
foreign currency loans agatnst the funchional currency of the
relevant Group company through cross-currency interest rate
swaps, forward exchange contracts and currency swaps The
notional value of these cash flow hedges on the reporting
date was €1,413 million (2014 €1,065 million) The desig-

nated hedges had a positive fair value of €17 milion (2014
negative fair value of €52 million) The hedge reserve s
€18 million (2014 €11 million)

Between December 2011 and December 2012 Evomk
successively purchased a total of ten forward starting payer
swaps with a notional value of €50 million each to hedge the
interest rate risk of a highly probable refinancing transaction
totaling €500 millien forecast for 2013 In this way, a 5-year
swap rate of 1 6 percent was locked in for a period of five
years starting from June 2013 The expected refinancing took
place in spring 2013 through the 1ssue of a3 new bond by
Evonik tndustries AG The hedge was terminated when the
financing terms were fixed The reahized hedging expense of
€15 millhon will be released to net interest expense over the
original hedged financing penod using the effactive interest
method At year-end 2015, a negative fair value of €8 million
was recognized 1n the hedge reserve for this transaction
(2014 negative fair value of €11 milkon)
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Financial instruments recogmzed at far value

The fair value determination 1s based on the three-level
hierarchy stipulated by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement,
which 1s outlined 1n section 37 The following table shows
the financial instruments that are measured at far value on a
recurring basis after initizl recognition on the balance sheet

Financial instruments recognized at fair value as of December 31, 2015

Dec 31,
Fair value based on 2015
BEirectly

Publicly abservable Indnadual

quoted market- valustion

market prices  related prices parameters

n € million (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other investments 55 - - 55
Secuniies and similar claims 265 - - 265
Recewables from dervatives - B4 - 84
Liabihuies from denvatives -y, -1 - =15

Financial instruments recognized at fair value as of December 31, 2014
Dec 31,
Fair value based on 2014
Directly

Publicly observable indmdual

quoted market- valuation

market prices  related prices parameters

n € millvon (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Other investments 53 - - 53
Secunties and similar claims 3192 - - 392
Recemvables from denvatives - 35 - 35
Liabilities from dervatives - -206 - -206

The financral instruments allocated to Level 1 are recognized
at their present stock market price They compnse all secun-
ties and one equity investment As of the present reporting
date, all dervatives are allocated to Level 2 They compnise
currency, nterest rate and commodity denvatives whose fair
value was determined with the aid of a discounted cash flow

method on the basis of the exchange rates at the European
Central Bank, observed interest rate structure curves,
observed commodity prices, and observed credit default
premiums

No derivatives were reclassified to other levels mn the fair
value hierarchy n fiscal 2015
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Carrying amounts and fair values of financial habilities as of December 31, 2015

Carrying ameunt by valuation categary Dec 31,2015
bLiabihtres  Liabwhities at Not
held for amortized  allocated to Carrying

in € milhon wrading €ost  any category amaynt Fair value
Financial habihties 19 1,554 133 1,706 1,719
Bonds - 1,241 - 1.241 1,258
Liabilities to banks - 282 - 282 278
toans from non-banks - 14 - 14 14
Liabihties from denvatives 19 - 132 151 151
Cther financal habilities - 17 1 18 18
Trade accounts payable - 1,090 - 1,090 1,090
9 2,644 133 2,796 2,809

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial habilities as of December 31, 2014

Carrying amount by valuaton category Dec 31,2014
Liabiities  Liabilities at Not
held for amortized  allocated to Carrying

in € milhon trading cost  any category amount Fair value
Financial Liabilitres 36 %28 m 1,135 1N
Bonds - 496 - 496 529
Liabihitres to banks - 406 - 406 409
Loans from non-banks - 7 - 7 7
Liabilities from denvatives 36 - 170 206 206
Qther financial habies - 19 1 20 20
Trade accounts payable - 1126 - 1,126 1126
s 2,054 17 2,261 2,297

That part of dervative finanaial instruments for which hedge
accounting 1s applied 1s not allocated to any of the valuation
categortes
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Carrying amounts by valuation category
and fair values of finanoal instruments

Financial instruments that fall within the scope of IFRS 7
Financial Instruments Disclosures are to be disclosed by
classes that take into account the characteristics of the
financial instruments At Evonik, the classification is based on

® CONSQLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Notes
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the presentation on the balance sheet The following tables
present the carrying amounts of each class broken down
to the IAS 39 valuation categories Assets and habilities not
allocated to any category are shown In a separate column
The total carrying amount per class or balance sheet item 15

then compared to the fair value

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets as of December 31, 2015

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Carrying amount by valuation category Dec 31,2015
Not
Avaitable-for- Loans and Assets held  allocated to Carrying

in € millien sale assets recevables fortrading  any category amount Farr value
Financial assets 339 58 24 60 481 462
Other investments " 74 - - - 74 55
Loans - 9 - - 29 29
Securties and similar claims 265 - - - 265 265
Receivables from derivatives - - 24 60 84 84
Other financial assets - 29 - - 29 29
Trade accounts recervable - 1,813 - - 1,813 1,813
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,368 - - 2,368 2,368
kL) 4,239 24 60 4,662 4,643

* The difference between the carrying amount and fair value results from v

{€19 million)

d 4t cost of

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets as of December 31, 2014

for which no fair vatue could be determined reliably

Carrying amount by valuation category Dec 37,2014
Not
Available-for- Loansand  Assetsheld  allocated to Carrying

w & million sale assets receivables fortrading  any category amount Fair value
Financial assets 456 £l 19 16 532 sn
Other investments’ 64 - - - 64 53
Loans - 12 - - 12 12
Securittes and similar claims 392 - - - 392 392
Recewvables from derivatives - - 19 16 is 15
Other financial assets - 29 - - 29 29
Trade accounts recaivable - 1,720 - - 1,720 1,720
Cazh and cash equivalents - 921 - - 1 9
456 2,682 19 16 3173 3,162

* The difference between the carrying amount and fair value results from investments measured at cost of acquisition for which no fair value could be determined reluably

(€11 mithen)
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The amounts disclosed for trade accounts recevable and pay-
able result from credit notes granted and receved that were
set off agamnst existing recevables or hiabiiwes relating to the
sgme counterparty There are no master netuing arrange-
ments for trade accounts The master agreements concluded
by Evonik with counterparties for derivatives transactions
prowide for hmited offsetting arrangements, espeaally »f one
of the contractual parties should become insolvent

Net result by valuation category 2015

A corresponding disclosure has become established as
best practice since the relevant provisions of IFRS 7 came
into effect The prior-year figures are therefore restated
accordingly

Results of financial instruments by valuation category
The income and expenses, gains and losses from financia)
instruments reflected in the income statement are allocated
to the following valuation categories

Net result by valuation category 2015
Finanaal

nstruments  Liabilities at

Available-for- Loans and held far amortized

n € millign sale assets receivables trading cost
Proceeds from disposals -3 - - - -3
tncome from denvatives - - -55 - =55
Impairment losses/reversals of impairment losses =16 -2 - - -18
Net interest expense 1 3 -22 -52 =70
Income from other mvestments 3 - - - 1
-17 1 -77 ~52 ~145

Net result by valuation category 2014
Ner result by valuation category 2014
Financal

instruments  Liabilities at

Available-for- Loans and held for amortized

in € mithon sale assats receivables trading cost
Proceeds from disposals - - - - -
Income from derivatives - - -21 - ~21
Impairment losses /reversals of impairment losses -2 -14 - - =16
Net interest expense 1 4 -13 -85 -93
Income from ather tnvestments - - - - -
-1 -10 -34 -85 =130

Income from dernvatives does not include ncome from
denvative financial instruments for which hedge accounting
1s apphed

As1n 2014, net interest expense did not include any interest
income on the impaired portion of financial assets or trade
accounts receivable
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Netting of financial assets

Affected by enforceable
master netting arrangements
of armilar arrangements

Gross Recervables
amount of Amounts. that do
transactions Amounts recogmzed not fully Amounts
affected by set off in for the meet the related to
netting accordance relevant offseting financal
wn € enallion srrangements  withIAS 32 transactions cntena collateral | Net amount
December 31, 2015
Receivables from dervatives B3 - B3 53 - 30
Other financial assets 10 8 2 - - 2
Trade accounts recervable 716 5 665 - - 665
809 59 750 53 - 697
December 31, 2014 s
Recevables from dervatives 34 - 34 kil - 3
Other financral assets - - - - - -
Trade accounts recewable 313 30 28 - - 281
345 0 s n - 284
Offsetting rights for financial liabilities
Affected by enforceable
master netling arrangements
Netting of financial habilities of sinilar arrangements
Gross Liabilties
amount of Amounts that do
transactions Amounts recogmized not fully Amounts
affected by set off in for the meet the refated to
netting accordance relevant offsetting finanaal
o € miltion arrangements  wath IAS 32 transactions cntesia collateral | Net amount
Decamber 31, 2015
Liabihittes from dervatives 144 - 144 53 - "
Qther financial habilities [ [ - - - -
Trade accounts payable 384 85 3M - - 301
536 " 445 53 - 392
December 31, 2014
Liabilities from dervatives 201 - 201 3 - 170
Cther financial habihities - - - - - -
Trade accounts payable 222 91 13 - - 1
423 L] 332 1n - 3

5
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LTI Plan for Executive Board members—Tranches 2013, 2014 and 2015

2015 tranche 2014 tranche 2013 wanche
Grant date Date { Apr 29,2015 | Apr 14,2014 | Aug 14,2013
Viriual shares granted No 175,787 140,145 153,123
Virtuat shares forfeited No - - 51,760
Virtual shares as of December 31, 2015 No 175,787 140,145 101,363
Performance period from=t0 | Jan 1,2015~ Jan 1, 2074 - Jan 1, 2013~
Dec 31,2018 | Dec 31,2017 | Dec 31,2016
Expense (+}fincome (-} for the period n €°000 1,825 1,661 1,373
Carrying amount of provision n€'000 1,825 2,355 2,351
LTI Plan for executives—Tranches 2013, 2014 and 2015
2015 tranche 2014 tranche 2013 tranche
Grant date Date | May18, 2015 | Apr 11,2014 | Aug 27 2013
Virtual shares granted No 535195 420,598 395,422
Virtual shares forfeited No - 8,137 10,870
Virtual shares as of December 31, 2005 No 535,195 412,461 384,552
Performance pencd fram - to Jan 1, 2075~ fan 1,2014-] jan 1,2013-
Dec 31,2018 | Dec 31,2017 | Dec 31, 2016
Expense (+)/income {~) for the period n €000 3,844 3,779 6,800
Carrying amount of provision n€°000 3,844 5,826 12,138

As of December 31, 2015, total provisions for share-based
payment amounted to €28 4 million (2014 €10 8 million)
In 2015, total expense including expense for share-based
payment, including the 2012 tranche, was €257 milion
(2014 €21 million)

10.2 Additional information on financial instrurnents

Rights of set-off for financial assets

and financial habilites

To enhance the comparability of financia) statements as
regards the different netung rules for financial instruments
under IFRS and US GAAP and inform users of the financial
statements of the potentia! effect of netting arrangements on
the company's finantial posihon, IFRS 7 requires disclosure of

the gross and net amounts of recogmzed finanoal instru-
ments that are set off in the balance sheet Amounts subject
to 2 legally enforceable master netting arrangernent or similar
agreement but which are not set off in the balance sheet also
have to be disclosed These include financial instruments that
do not fully meet the stringent netting requirements of
1AS 32 42 and amounts relating to finanaal collateral
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Qther disclosures

{b) Evonik LTI PLan for executives—2012 tranche
The reference base for this long-term remuneration compo-
nent s also a sustained nise in the value of the company The
plan rewards achieving or exceeding the operating earnings
targets set in the mid-term planning (75 percent) and eco-
nomic value added (EVA) (25 percent) Each tranche runs for
three years from May 1 of the year in which it 1s granted

Entitlements are based on indwidually agreed target
amounts provided that earnings targets are met (lower
threshold) LTI payments are calculated in the year following
the end of the performance penod, when the necessary
indicators are avallable Payments are capped at double the
target amount, and can be zero if the defined lower threshald
15 not reached

To determine the value of the company as a basis for
ascertaining target attainment, the share price at the end of
the performance period ts used For this purpose, the average
price of shares in Evonik in the three months prior to the
end of the performance penod 15 calculated In addition,
dnadends paid and any capital increases or decreases during
the performance period are taken into account The cumula-
tive discrepancy between planned and actual target attainment
in the performance period and the dividends paid in the last
year of the performance peniod are taken into account in the
calculation If there 1s no share price, the value of equity 1s
determined on the basis of the last share transaction in the
iast twelve months of the performance period If there was
no share transactron n the last twelve months, a fictitious
equity value 1s used Thisis denved by applying a fixed EBITDA
muluple to the company's business performance in the last
full fiscal year The actual EVA values in the performance
period are used to measure attainment of the EVA target

In keeping with the terms of the plan, regular exercise of
the 2012 tranche took place in 2015 (€7 6 million) Conse-
quently, no provision was necessary as of December 31, 2015
(2014 €11 million})

LTI Plan for executives—2012 tranche

20712 tranche
Grant date Date | Dec 19,2012
Performance period from=-to | May1,2012 -
Apr 30,2015

Expense (+) fincome {-)
for the penod n €000 6,508
Carrytng amount of provision € 000 0

{c) Evonik LTI Plan for Executive Board members and

other executives—Tranches 2013 through 2015
In view of the stock exchange listing of Evonuk Industnes AG,
the Supervisary Board redesigned the LTI Plan for the period
from 2013 so 1t differs from the tranches 2010 through 2012
Performance 1s measured by the absolute performance of
Evonik’s share price and its performance relative to the MSCI
World Chermicals IndexsM

Based on the contractually agreed target amount, which is
defined n euros, a number of wvirtual shares 1s calculated
using the share price at the start of the performance period
This 1s based on the price in the last 60 trading days before
the start of the performance penod The performance penod
starts on January 1 of the grant year and runs for four years
Since there was no share price at the start of the performance
period, as an exception, the wirtual shares for the 2013
tranche were calculated from the share price in the first
60 trading days following admission to the stock exchange
(Apri! 25, 2013) At the end of the performance period, the
starting price of Evonik shares 1s viewed against the average
share price at the end of the performance period This 1s
compared with the performance of the benchmark index
(total shareholder return)

If the relative performance is below 70 percentage points,
the relative performance factor 1s deemed to be zero If the
relative performance 1s above 130 percentage points, the
relative performance factor s set at 130

The payment s calculated by multplying the relative
performance by the number of virtual shares allocated and
the average price of Evonik shares at the end of the perfor-
mance perod

At the end of the performance period, there is an option
to extend 1t once for a further year Partial exercise at the end
of the oniginal performance period 1s not perrmitted The
upper limit for these payments 15 set at 300 percent of the
indwidual target amount

Since the previous performance penods for the LTI Plan
for executives, including the 2012 tranche, were three years,
the 2013 tranche for executives was set to allow the first half
of the 2013 tranche to be exercised after three years and the
second half after four years As a further incentive for the
transition, the payments for this tranche are multiplied by 12
As from 2014, a four-year performance penod 15 applied for
executives As of December 31, 2015, there was & prowision of
€28 3million (2074 €9 1 mithion) for the LTI Plans for 2013,
2014 and 2015
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10. Other disclosures
10.1 Performance-related remuneration

Evonik’s remuneration system comprises 3 basic salary, annuat
shart-term incentive payments and, as 2 long-term compo-
nent, the Long-Term Incentive (LTt} Plans for members of the
Executive Board and other executives of the Evonik Group
Since Evonik did not have a quoted share price, for both
members of the Executive Board and other executives the
targets for the annual tranches of these LT! Pians 1ssued up
10 and wncluding 2012 were based on the development of
vniformly defined business indicators However, the target
amounts and performance periods of the plans differed
Followtng the stock exchange listing, the performance of
Evonik shares became the central element in the LTI Plan for
the first time in 2013 The redesigned LTI Plan was mtroduced
for both Executive Board members and other executives
Following the stock exchange listing of Evonik Industnes AG,
the performance of shares in the company also became rele-
vant for the valuation of the pre-2013 LTI Plans

Al LTI Plans are share-based payments with cash settle-
ment They are valued on the reporung date using a Monte
Carlo simulation, which models exercise patterns The LTI
Plans result in personnel expense which s distnbuted over
the term of each tranche

(a) Evoruk LTI Plan for members of the Executive
Board—Tranches 2010 through 2012

The reference base for this long-term remuneration compo-
nent 15 a sustained rise in the value of the company The plan
rewards achieving or exceeding the operating earmings
targets set in the mid-term planning and their impact on the
value of the company Each of these tranches runs for five
years from January 1 of the year in which it was granted

Enttlements are based on individually agreed target amounts
provided that earnings targets are met (lower threshold) LTI
payments are calculated in the year following the end of the
performance period, when the necessary indicators are avail-
able Payments are capped at three times the target amount,
and can be zero if the defined lower thresheld 1s not reached

To determine the value of the company as a basis for
ascertaining target attainment, the share price at the end of
the performance penod 1s used For this purpose, the average
price of shares in Evonik in the three months prior to the
end of the performance period 15 calculated In addition,
dwidends paid and any capital increases or decreases during
the performance period are taken into account The cumula-
tive discrepancy between planned and actual target attain-
ment in the performance period and the dividends paid in the
last year of the performance penod are taken into account In
the calculation If there 15 no share price, the value of equity
1s determined on the basis of the last share transaction in the
last twelve months of the performance period If there was
no share transaction in the last twelve months, a fictitious
equity value 1s used This 1s derived by applying a fixed
EBITDA multiple to the company’s business performance in
the fast full fiscal year

As of December 31, 2015, there was a provision of
€01 milhon for the tranches for members of the Executive
Board for the years 2011 and 2012 (2014 €0 6 million includ-
ing the 2010 tranche) In keeping with the terms of the plan,
regular exercise of the 2010 tranche took place in 2015
(€0 4 milhon)

The 2011 tranche of the Evonik LTI Plan for Executive
Board members was vested as of December 31, 2015 but had
no intrinsic value as of this date

LT1 Plan for Executive Board members—Tranches 2010 through 2012

2012 tranche 2011 tranche 2010 tranche

Grant date

Date | Dec 18, 2012 Sep 30,2011 | Aug 31,2010

Performance period

from—-to Jan 1,202~ Jan 1, 2011 - Jan 1,2070-
Dec 31,2016 | Dec 31,2015 { Dec 31,2014

Expense (+)/income {-) for the peniod

n €000 20 -128 2

Carrying amount of provision

n€'000 94 V] [
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Reconciliation from adjusted EBITDA of the reporting segments

to income before income taxes, continuing operations

in € million 2015 2014
Adjusted EBITDA, reporting segments 2,802 2,159
Adjusted EBITDA, other operations -81 -54
Adjusted EBITDA, Corporate -269 -202
Conschdation 4 -13
Less discontinued operations :; -8
Adjusted EBITDA, Corporate, other operations, consolidation -338 =277
Adjustad EBITDA 2,465 1,882
Depreciation -700 -606
Impairment losses freversals of impairment losses -80 -63
Depreciation, amortization, impairment losses/reversal of impairment losses icluded in adjustments 67 43
Depreciation and amortization =713 -626
Adjusted EBIT 1,752 1,256
Adjustments® -88 =179
Financial result =223 =235
Income before income taxes, continuing operations 1,441 842

# See management report, section 2 4 Business performance

The adjusted EBITDA margin 1s the ratio of adjusted EBITDA
to external sales

Adjusted EBIT comprises earmings before finanaial result
and income taxes, after adjustments tis used to calculate the
internal management parameter return on capital employed
{ROCE)

Capital employed comprises the net assets required by the
reporting segments for thewr operations It 1s calculated by
determining the total of intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, Investments, inventories, trade accounts
recevable, and other non-interest-bearing assets The sum of
interest-free provistons, trade accounts payable, and other
interest-free hiabihities 1s then deducted from this

ROCE 15 another major internal management parameter
used by the Group It s calculated from the ratto of adjusted
EBIT to capital employed To smooth the closing date effect,
the calculation uses average capital employed in the reporting
perted

Deprecaation and amortization relate to the depletion in
the value of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
over thetr estirnated useful Life

Capital expenditures comprise additions to intangible
assets {excluding goodwill from capital consolidation), prop-
erty, plant and equipment Additions resulting from changes
in the scope of consolidation are not taken into account
Capital expenditures by region are based on the location of
the subsidiaries

Additions to investments recogmized at equity, other invest-
ments, non-current loans and non-current secunties and
similar claims made in the reporting period are recognized as
financial investments The acquisition of subsidiaries 1s shown
as an addition to financial investments n the year of acqui-
siuon (including goodwall from capitat consohidation)

The headcount 15 taken on the reporting date It shows
the number of employees Part-ime employees are included
as absolute figures The headcount by region s based on the
location of the subsidianies

Goodwill and other intangible assets, and property, plant
and equipment are segmented by the location of the subsid-
1aries Together, these assets comprise the non-current assets in
accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments (cf IFRS 8 33b)

Breakdown of non-current assets by country

Pec 31, Dec 31,
in € mlion 2015 2014
Germany 4,373 4,319
USA 1.321 1,065
China 871 878
Singapore 613 622
Belgum | 546 535
Other countries 1,252 1,196
Non-current assets 8,976 8,615

i
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{PEEK) and polyimides to meet high-tech mechanical,
thermal and chemical requirements Thanks to its innovative
capability, the Resource Efficiency segment has gained access
to new growth markets for hydrogen peroxide

(c) Performance Materials
The heart of the Performance Materials segment s the
production of polymer matenals and intermediates, mainly
for the rubber, plastics and agricuttural sectors

Success factors for this segment are advanced chemical
processes, which Evonik has developed systemaucally over
decades, including its integrated technology platforms for
methyimethacrylate (MMA) and C, chemstry it also produces
alcoholates, which are used as catalysts in the production
of biodiesel

(d) Services
The Services segment provides site management, uhlities,
and waste management, technical, process technology, engi-
neering, and logistics services for the chemicals segments
and external customers at Evonik’s sites

This segment also supports the chemicals businesses and
the management holding company by providing standardized
Group-wide adrministrative and business-support services, for
example, in the areas of T, human resources, accounting and
legal services

(e) Other operations, Corporate and consohdation
Other operations contains the Group’s busmess activities that
ate not assigned to any of the reporung segments

The column headed “Corporate, consolidation” includes
the management holding company, strategic research, hidden
reserves and habilties and goodwill relating to former
acquisitions of shares in Evonik Degussa and intersegment
consohdation effects

9.2 Reporting based on regions

For this purpose, countries and country groups are aggregated
into reqrons Details of the reporting based an regions s out-
lined in more detail in Note 9 3

9.3 Notes to the segment data

External sales reflect the segments’ sales with parties outside
the Group Sales generated between the segments are interna)
sales and are cross-charged at market prices or using the
cost-plus method

Reconciliation from the sales
of all reporting segments to Group sales

in € midlion 2015 2014
Sales, reporung segments 15,573 14,980
Sales, other aperations 138 175
Corporate, consolidation,

less discontinued operations -2,204 -2,238
Sales, corporate, other operations,

consolidation -2,066 -2,063
External sales of the Evonik Group 13,507 12,9M7

External sales by country (location of customer)

n € miflion 205 2074
USA 2,458 2128
Germany 2,436 2,814
China 1,087 882
Switzerland 750 816
Netherlands 499 505
UK 453 463
France 400 396
Brazil 398 327
Japan 351 318
italy 137 in
Other countries 4,338 3.897
External sales of the Evonik Group 13,507 12.N7

The result from investments recognized at equity corresponds
to the result for these investments as reported in the income
statement, see Note 65

The Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG uses ad-
Justed EBITDA as the main parameter to measure operating
performance Adjusted EBITDA 1s the main earnings param-
eter that can be influenced by the segment management
It comprises earmings before financial result, iIncome taxes,
depreciation, amortization and impairment losses/reversal of
imparrment losses, after adjustments
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Notes on the segment report

8.3 Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents of €2,368 million (2014
€921 million) comprise the cash and cash equivalents shown
tn the balance sheet

9. Notes on the segment report

9.1 Reporting based on
operating segments

The Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG decides on the
allocation of resources and evaluates the earnings power
of the Group's operations on the basis of the following
reporting segments, which reflect the core operating busi-
ness (subsequently referred to as segments)

+ Nutntion & Care (2014 Consumer, Health & Nutntion)
» Resource Efficiency

« Performance Materials (2014 Specialty Matenals)

- Services

The reporting based on operating segments therefore reflects
the internal reporting and management structure of the
Evonik Group {management approach)

The same accounting standards are applied as for external

financial reporting, see Notes34to 37
In connection with the new management and portfolio

structure, see Note 3 4, with effect from january 1, 2015

some segments were renamed, some activibes were reallo-

cated among the segments, and the definition of the main
management parameter adjusted EBITDA was modified

To ensure that adjusted EBITDA better reflects respon-
sibilines, income and expenses relating to financing and
liquidity management have been transferred from adjusted

EBITDA to the financial result These mainly comprise the

results from currency translaton of loans and the related

hedging This change also affects adjusted EBIT
Further, the following activittes have been reallocated
among the segments

« The Active Oxygens and High Performance Polymers
activities are now part of the Resource Efficiency segment
(2014 part of the Specialty Materials segment)

- CyPlus Technologies i1s now part of the Performance
Matenals segment (2014 part of the Consumer, Health &
Nutriion segment) and

- some service functions have been transferred from Corpo-
rate to the Services segment

The prior-year figures have been restated where applicable

The remaining hthium-ion activities, which were divested in
the second quarter of 2015 and were classified as discontinued
operations unti! then, see Notes 5 2 and 5 3, are shown in the
segment report in the column *Other operations” Since the
column “Total Group” no longer contains any discontinued
operations, an adjustment 1s made for these activities in the
column “Corporate, consolidation”

Evonk’s segments are outlined below

(a) Nutrition & Care
The Nutrition & Care segment produces specialty chemcals,
principally for use in consumer goods for daily needs, and 1n
animal nutrition and healthcare products

Ingredients, additives and system soluttons for high-
quality consumer goods and specific industnial applications
are focal areas of this segment It has outstanding knowledge
of interfacial chemistry Its products are based on an exten-
sive range of oleachemical derivatives, organically modified
sibicones, and acuve ingredients produced by biotechnology
Key success factors are high innovative capability, integrated
technology platforms and strategic partnerships with import-
ant consumer goods manufacturers The Nutnition & Care
segment also produces and markets essential amino acids
for ammal nutrition One factor in its success 1s years of
experience of chemnical synthesis and biotechnology, which
Evonik regards as major growth drivers Other sigmificant
compettive advantages for this segment are 1ts global distri-
bution network and extensive and differentiated service
offering The Nutnition & Care segment 1s also a strategic
partner for the healthcare industry

(b) Resource Efficiency
The Resource Efficiency segment supplies high-performance
matenals for environment-friendly and energy-efficient sys-
tem solutions for the autormnotive, paints, coatings, adhesives
and construction industries and many other sectors

A central feature of the segment 15 1ts integrated siicon
technology platform Key customers include the tire, elec-
tronics, construction and fiber optics tndustries This seg-
ment’s core competency Is the production, design and struc-
tuning of the speaific surface properties of inorganic particles
Its offering s complemented by fumed specialty oxides,
chlorosilanes and organofunctional sifanes It also develops
and manufactures 3 broad spectrum of catalysts in close
collaboration with customers It supphes high-quality additives
to the paints, coatings, adhesives and sealants industry
Further, it produces high-performance ol additives and
additives for hydraulic fluids In addition, this segment
manufactures materials based on polyetherether ketone
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No deferred tax assets were recogrized on temporary differ-
ences of €273 mullion (2014 €229 million) because it 15 not
probable that there will be sufficient future taxable income to
enable them to be realized

The total taxable temporary differences relating to shares
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, for which no
deferred taxes were recognized, were €514 milhon €434 mil-
hion of this armount 15 only subject to a tax rate of around
15 percent, based on Section 8b of the German Corporation

Tax loss carryforwards by expiration date

Tax Act (KStG) Evonik 1s1n a position 1o manage the uming
of the reversal of temporary differences

Deferred tax assets of €15 million (2014 €19 million)
were recognized for companies that made a loss Utihzation
will be ensured by suitable measures

In addition to tax loss carryforwards for which deferred
taxes were recognized, there were tax loss carryforwards
that were not utihizable and for which no deferred taxes were
recegnized

Corporation taxes Local taxes Tax credits
{German and foreign) (German and forergn) (foreign)
€ million 2015 2004 2015 2014 2015 2014
Upto 1 year 42 - - - - -
More than 1 and up to 5 years 168 123 - - - -
More than 5 and up to 10 years 4 1 - - - -
Unhmited 270 265 158 126 6 29
484 3189 158 126 3 29

8. Notes to the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group in the reporting perniod The cash
flows are classified by operating, investing and financing
activities

The net cash flow from discontinued operations that 1s
attributable to third parties is shown separately

The impact of ¢changes n the scope of consolidation has
been eliminated

Interest paid and interest and dividends recerved are
included n operating activittes, while dividends paid are
assigned to financing activities

8.1 Cash flow from operating activities

The cash flow from operating activities 1s calculated using the
indirect method Income before the financiat result and income
taxes, continuing operations, 1s adjusted for the effects of
non-cash income and expenses and items that are allocated
to investing or financing activities Certain other changes in
amounts shown on the balance sheet are calculated and
added to the result

8.2 Cash flow from investing activities

The cash inflows from divestments and outflows for invest-
ments in shareholdings include the following

The gross purchase prices for the acquisition of shares in
subsidiaries consolidated for the first time amounted to
€54 million (2014 €38 million) As in the previous year, the
entire purchase prices led to a cash outflow In the course of
these acquisitions, cash and cash equivalents of €1 milhon
were acquired in each year

The selling prices for the divestment of business activities
totaled €14 million (2014 €41 million) As in the previous
year the full amount was settled in cash and cash equivalents
The dwestments included outflows of cash and cash equiv-
alents totaling €7 million (2014 €38 million)

The purchase price of €428 million for the sale of the
remaiming 10 3 percent shareholding in Vivawest was settled
1 full

Further, cash outflows of €9 million (2014 €15 mehion)
were recorded in connection with the divestment of former
business areas This amount was booked as an expense in
previous years
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Trade accounts payable, other payables

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2074
thereof thereof
n € milhon Total non-current Total non-current
Trade accounts payable 1,090 - 1,126 -
Advance payments recewved 3 - 17 -
Muscellaneous other payables 295 45 277 60
Deferred income :k4 61 30 n
1,508 106 1,444 n
7.12 Deferred taxes, other income taxes
Deferred taxes and other income taxes reported on the balance sheet
Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014
thereof thereof
in € million Tatal  non-current Total  non-current
Deferred tax assets 1110 926 1127 978
Current income tax assets 122 11 222 n
Deferred tax hiabihties 479 425 449 401
Other income tax habilives 359 150 304 199
In accordance with 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial State-
ments, the current elements of deferred taxes are reported
on the balance sheet under non-current assets and liabihties
Deferred taxes by balance sheet item
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilites
Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,
€ milbion 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Intangible assets 3 3 125 127
Property, plant and equipment, investment property 43 41 409 404
Finanaial assets 559 602 97 115
Inventories 72 a2 - 1
Recewables and other assets E{o}! 152 18 18
Liabikties
Provisions 1,086 1,104 856 692
Payables 76 93 30 3
Special tax atlowance reserves {based on local law} - - 13 12
Loss carryforwards 40 39 - -
Tax credits 1 1 - -
Other 3 1 5 -
Deferred taxes (gross) 2,184 2,078 1,553 1,400
Netting -1,074 -951 =1,074 =951
Defarred tanes (net}) 1,110 1,127 479 449

Prior year figures restated

17
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Provisions for other obligations comprise provisions for a
variety of obligations that cannot be allocated to the above
categories These include provisions for legal disputes,
adrministrative proceedings or fines, liability risks and guaran-
tee clayms relating to divestments This item also includes
provisions for legal and consultancy expenses, audit fees, and

7.10 Financial habilities

Financial liabilities

changes in public law regulations, for example, in connection
with the levy on renewable energy sources and Eurcpean
emissions trading The prowisions for matenal legal nisks
included in this category amount to €115 million (2014
€87 milion) The non-current portion of provisions for other
obligations will mainly be utihzed by year-end 2020

Dec 31,2015 Deac 31,2014

thereof thereof

n € mitlion Total non current Total  non-current
Bonds 1,241 1,241 496 496
Liabilities to banks 282 118 406 136
Loans from non-banks 14 - 7 -
Liabilities from denvatives 151 53 206 27
Other financal habiliues 18 3 20 7
1,706 1,415 1,138 666

{a) Bonds
In 2015, Evonik Industries AG 1ssued a bond with a nominal
value of €750 million and an annual coupon of 1 000 percent
which matures in [anuary 2023 The issue price was 99 337 per-
cent Further, this item comprises a bond issued by Evonik
Industries AG in 2013 with a nomtnal value of €500 mitlion
and an annual coupon of 1875 percent which matures in
Apnl 2020 The issue price was 99 185 percent The discount
15 credited over the matunity of each bond using the effective
nterest rate method

Fixed-interest bonds are exposed to a risk of pnce fluctu-
ations while variable-rate liabihities are exposed to a nisk
of changes in interest rates These nisks may affect their
fair value or future cash flows The bond 1ssued by Evonik
Industries AG 1n 2013 was quoted on the stock market at
104 940 percent on the reporung date (2014 105 855 per-
cent), giving 3 market value of €525 milhon (2014 €529 mul-
hon} The bond issued 1n January 2015 was quoted at
97 810 percent on the reporting date, giving a market value
of €734 milhon

(b) Loans from non-banks

The accrual of €14 million (2014 €7 million) for payment of
the coupen on the bonds is recognized in current loans from
non-banks

(<) Liabiliies from dervatives

Liabilities from derivatives

Dec 31, Dec 31,
n € million 2015 2014
Liabihties from cross-currency
nterest rate swaps 34 18
Liabilives from forward exchange
contracts and currency swaps 96 1584
Liabihities fram commodity dervatives Fd 4
151 206
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Overall, the other provisions were €171 million higher than
in 2014, principally due to the change in personnel-related
provisicns and provisions for sales and procurement It 1s
expected that shghtly more than half of total pravisions wall
be utihized in 2016

Provisians relating to material fegat risks amounted to
€231 million (20714 €204 million) and are allocated to the
various categories of provisions on the basis of their type
The prinaipal legal risks for which provisions have been set
up relate to three ongoing appraisal proceedings in connection

Change in other provisions

with the settlement paid to former shareholders, iIndemnities
In respect of the Walsum 10 coal-fired power plant in con-
nection with the divestment of the former Energy Business
Area, and a claim from the purchaser of the former carbon
black bustness for indemmification from environmental guar-
antees A provision has been recognized for the expected
costs of a legal dispute involving proceedings to fine Evonik
in connection with deliveries of methicnine to Brazil The
background to these cases is outlined 1n detail in section 7 4
of the Management Report

Recultvation, Cther taxes,
Personnel- envircnmental Sales, nterest  Dismantling Cther

in € midlion related protection Restructunng  procurement on taxes obligations oblgations Total
As of January 1, 2015 808 304 an 76 59 7 285 1,860
Additions 514 22 66 109 37 1 112 861
Utlhzatl’;n -433 =16 -22 -44 -3 - -50 -568
Reversal -12 -3 -45 -1 -30 - -45 -147
Addition of accrued interest/

interest rate adjustments 16 2 - - - - 20
Other 7 4 1 - 1 -9 5
As of December 31, 2015 200 313 322 131 63 9 293 2,011

Personnel-related provisions are established for many differ-
ent reasons They include provisions for bonuses and vanable
remuneration, statutory and other early retirement arrange-
ments, hfetime working arrangements and anniversary
bonuses About one quarter of non-current personnel-related
provisions will result in payments after the end of 2020

Provisions are established for recultivation and environ-
mental protection on the basis of laws, contracts and requla-
tory requirements They cover soil reclamation obligations,
water protection, the reculuvation of landfills and site
decontamination obligations Shghtly more than half of the
non-current provisions will result in payments after the end
of 2020

Provisions for restructuning are based on defined restruc-
turing measures Such measures comprise programs which are
planned and controlled by the company and will matenally
alter one of the company’s areas of business actvity or the
way in which a business activity is carned out Restructuring
provisions may only be established for costs that are directly
attributable to the restructuring program These nclude
severance packages, redundancy and early retirement arrange-

ments, expenses for the termenation of contracts, dismantling
and soil reclamation expenses, rents for unused facilities
and all other shutdown and wind-up expenses At year-end
2015 they included provisions for a program introaduced to
strengthen our competitive positicn and optimize the quality
of admimistrative processes, and provisions relating to the
divestment of the former Energy Business Area in 2011
Most of the non-current portron of all restructuring prow-
sions will be utilized by the end of 2020

The provistans for sales and procurement relate principally
to gquarantee obhgations, outstanding commission payments,
price discounts and rebates, and impending losses Almost all
of these provisions will be uulized within one year

Provisions for other taxes and interest on taxes mainly
comprise property tax, value-added tax and interest obligations
relating to all types of taxes The non-current portion will be
utihzed by the end of 2020

Prowistons for dismantling obligations relate to dismantling
that 1s not part of a restructuring program Most of the non-
current portion will be utlized after the end of 2020

185
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1n 2015, as 1n 2074, none of the other assets were used by the
company

Change in the asset celling

in € million 2015 2014
Asset ceihing as of January 1 114 67
intefest expense on the
unrecogmized portion of plan assets 4 3
Changes i asset celling, excluding interest
expense (remeasurement component) -16 38
Changes at the companies - 6
Currency translation 7 -
Asset ceiling as of December 31 109 114
Change in pension provisions

Dec 31, Dec 31,
in € sibtlion 2015 2014
P pro recog d
on the balance sheet as of January 1 3,953 3,31
Current service cost " 172
Past service cost 1 1
Gain/floss from settlement -1 1
Net mierest cost 96 120
Employee contributions 3s 33
Other admimistrative expense 5 3
Changes recognized i QCIL
{remeasurement) -361 44
Benefits paid -248 =241
Employer contribytioas -364 -344
Changes at the companies 15 5
Currency transfation 27 28
Pansion provisions recognized
on the balance theet as of Dacember 31 3,349 3,953

7.9 Other provisions

Other provisions

The pension pravisions recognized on the balance sheet
included healthcare benefit entitlements, mainly of retirees of
US subsidiaries

Expected change in benefit payments

Reparting
1 € million period Prior year
2015 242
2016 2435 249
20017 255 255
2018 254 254
2019 258 258
2020 261

Employer contnibutions of €168 million are expected to be
incurred for 2015 (2014 €155 milhion)

The net interest expense Is included in the financial
result, see Note 6 6 The other amounts are allocated to the
functional areas as personnel expense {personnel expenses)
A breakdown of overall personnel expense 15 given in
Note 11 2

Fareign subsidiaries paid a total of €18 miilion (2014
€18 million) inta defined contribution plans, which are akso
inctuded in personnel expense (pension expenses)

Further, €138 milhon (2014 €126 milhon) were paid nto
deftned-contnbution state plans (statutory penston insurance)
in Germany and abroad This 1s also reported in personnel
expense {expenses for social security contributions)

Dec. 31, 2015 Dec 31,2014

thereof thereof

n € mithon Total  non-current Total  non current
Personnel-related 200 358 808 336
Recultivation and environmental protection 313 262 304 266
Restructuring 322 95 n 209
Sales and procurement 11 4 76 6
Other taxes and interest on taxes 63 3s 59 20
Dismanthng obligations 9 8 7 7
Other obligations 293 92 285 59
203 8s4 1,860 903
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Breakdown of the present value of the

defined benefit obligation

In 2015, the employer contributions mainly comprised cash
contributions of €200 millon (2014 €200 million}, and
payments to Evonik Pensionstreuhand e V of €19 million
(2014 €9 mitlhion) in settlement of tax payments from the

n € million 2015 2014

Unfunded plans 357 385 previous year
Partiafly or fully funded plans 10,057 10,142

Healthcare benefit obligations 128 123

Present value of the defined

benefit obligation as of December 31 10,542 10,650

Change in the fair value of plan assets

i€ millign 2015 2014
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 6,811 5,778
Interest income from plan assets 189 224
Employer contributions 364 344
Employee contributions 11 12
Income from assets excluding interest income from plan assets (remeasurement component) -26 526
Other administrative expense =5 -3
Benefits paid R -185 =163
Payments for settlement of plans -3 -4
Changes at the companies 55 4
Currency transtaton 91 93
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 7.302 6,811
Breakdown of the fair value of plan assets
Dec 31,2015 Dec 31, 2014
tn € rullion n% n€ milhon n %
Cash /balances with banks 108 15 138 20
Shares—active market 705 97 490 72
Shares—no active market - - - -
Government bonds—active market 1,128 155 1,662 24 4
Government bands—no active market 58 08 61 0%
Corporate bonds—active market 2,187 299 1,696 249
Corporate bonds—no active market 36 0s 24 05
Other bonds—active market 454 62 266 39
Other bonds—no active market 681 913 715 105
Real estate, direct and indirect investments—active market 14 02 14 02
Real estate, direct and indirect investments—no active market 1,244 170 1,090 160
Other investment funds—active market 1 - 450 66
Other investment funds—no active market - - - -
Alternative investments (infrastructure/hedge funds/commodities}—active market 524 72 16 17
Alternative investments (infrastructure /hedge funds/commodities)—no active market 114 16 54 08
Other—active market 38 05 27 04
Other—no active market 10 01 - -
7.302 1000 6,81 100 0
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The main pension plans for employees in the USA

In the USA there are unfunded, fully funded and partially
funded pension plans and post-employment benefits under
healthcare plans The majority of the obligations relate
to funded plans The defined benefit pension plans in the
USA are not open to new employees Benefits are based on a
range of pararmneters such as final salary, average salary during
career, individual pension accounts, and fixed benefits Most
plans include a lump-sum option with a corresponding risk to
the company that this will be utiized Mimimum funding
levels have to be observed To avoid volatihity this is supported
by an asset-liability matching strategy This is implemented
pnmanly through US government bonds and corporate
tonds denominated in US dollars The assets are managed by
a3 pension trust

The main penston plans for employees in the UK

in the UK, plans are organized through external trusts and
the majority of the assets are invested in funds The majonity
of the obligations relate to vested benefits for former
employees and retirees Only one plan 15 still open to new
employees Almost all plans are final salary plans The plan
assets are subject to the asset ceilling They are required to
meet mimmum funding requirements that are agreed with the
trustees Similarly, surplus assets cannct be returned to the
companies without the approval of the trustees The invest-
ment strategy for plan assets 1s an asset-liability matching
strategy which 1s implemented principally through inflation-
linked British government bonds and British corporate bonds

The table shows the weighted average assumptions used
for the actuanal valuation of the abhigations

Assumptions used in the actuarial valuation
of pension obligations

Group Germany
n% a201s 2014 205 2074
Discount rate as
of December 31 2N 265 275 250
Future salary
increases 255 258 250 250
Future pension
increases 170 172 175 175
Healthcare
cost trend 700 725 - -

The discount rate for Germany and the euro-zone countries
15 extrapolated from a yield structure curve derived from
AA-rated corporate bonds denominated in euros and, where
there are no longer any market data, a yield curve for
zero-coupon German government bonds, taking into account
a nsk premiurn for euro-denominated AA-rated corporate
bonds The data on AA-rated euro-denominated corporate
bonds is based on bonds with an AA rating from at least one
of the major rating agencies The yield structure curve
derved from AA-rated euro-dencminated corporate bonds s
used to determine the present value of the cash flows from
company pension obligations The discount rate comprises
the rounded constant interest rate that results in the same
present value when applied to the cash flow

Analogous methods are used in the UK and the USA
As of December 31, 2015, the rounded discount rate was
4 41 percent for the USA (2014 4 06 percent) and 3 62 per-
cent for the UK (2014 3 50 percent)

Change in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation

n € mithon 2015 2014

Present value of the defined

bencefit obhigation as of January 1 10,650 9,042

Current service cost 191 172

Interest cost 281 N

Employee contributions 46 45

Actuanal gains (-} and losses (+)

{remeasurement component) =37 1,332
of which based on financial assumptions -423 1,298
of which based on
demographic assumptions 16 14
of which changes in the past fiscal year 36 20

Benefits paid -433 -404

Past service cost i 1

Changes at the companies 70 9

Gainfloss from settlement -1 1

Payments for settlement of plans -3 -4

Currency translation ARk 115

Prasent valus of the defined

benefit obligation a3 of December 31 10,542 10,450

The weighted term of the obligations 15 16 1 years (2074
16 S years)
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The main pension plans for employees in Germany are as
follows

Pension fund (Pensionskasse) There are a number of
closed pension plans Income-related contnibutions are con-
verted into defined benefits and invested with the company-
owned Degussa Pension Fund The structure of the taniffs,
including investment of the assets, 1s subject to oversight
by the supervisory authonty for the insurance sector The
pension fund 15 a multi-employer fund 1tis funded on a pro-
jected benefit basis The level of plan assets required to cover
the projected benefits 15 derived from a technical business
plan approved by the supervisory authority, and from statutory
requirements Funding must be sufficient at all imes to cover
benefits, which have to be upheld even if the employer's
contributions are terminated The company contribution to
Tariff DuPK 15 calculated to ensure that, together with the
employee contributions, funding of the resulting entitlements
in ine with the technical business plan 1s assured The
company contribution to the Marl and Troisdorf tanffs Is
proposed by the responsible actuary and 1s based on the
funds required to cover the benefits As the sponsoring
company of this pension fund, Evonik Degussa GmbH has a
contractual obligation to cover benefits under the Marl and
Troisdorf tariffs if sufficient funding 1s not avallable This
obligation 1s not hmited to the company where the insurees
are employed The obhgation was assumed on the basis of
a requirement stipulated by the supervisory authonity when
these tariffs were established At that time, only company
employees were insured in the plan At present, it 1s not
possible to estimate whether this obhigation could be of
relevance as a supplement to the tools set out in the pension
fund regulation, such as increasing company contributions or
cutting benefits in the event of a loss

Support fund (Unterstutzungskasse). This is the plan
that 1s open to new employees It also allows for deferred
compensation arrangements [ncome-related contributions
are converted into defined benefits and invested with the
company-owned Degussa Pension Fund The structure of the
taniffs, including investment of the assets, 1s subject to over-
sight by the superwisory authonty for the insurance sector
Pension increases of 1 percent pa are a firm commitment
The support fund meets the cniteria for classification as a
multi-employer plan It 15 funded through reinsurance with
the Degussa Pension Fund, which maintains sufficient fund-
ing for this in compliance with the German tnsurance Super-
vision Act and the ordinances 1ssued by the supervisory
authortty Funding must be sufficient at all tmes to cover
benefits, which have to be upheld even if the employer's
contributions are terminated The level of benefits Is based
on the contributions paid into the fund The support fund
does not have any arrangements under which the Group 15
hable for the obhigations of companies outside the Evonik
Group in the event of inadequate funding

Direct pension commitments These comprise various
defined benefit plans where the pension benefit 1s generally
directly or indirectly hinked to the final salary Mast of these
plans grant higher benefits for iIncome components above the
celling for contributions to the state pension insurance plan
or are intended exclusively to cover such income components
All final salary plans are closed and in most cases they now
only operate through the protectton of the accrued benefits
for insurees who are currently stll working

Direct commitments of this type are now only used for
semor executives and voluntary deferred compensation
arrangements In such cases, a defined benefit 1s calculated
on the basis of an income-retated contribution or an amount
credited by the employee Insurees can choose between
various forms of payment, for example, as a lump sum, an
annuity or instaliment payments The benefits include a fixed
pension increase of 1 percent a year

Plan assets for large Group companies, which account for
the vast majority of obligations under direct commitments,
are managed by Evonik Pensionstreuhand e V This fund
1s not subject to regulatory oversight or mimmum funding
requirements It uses an asset-lability matching strategy,
whereby changes 1n obligations are offset through changes
in the plan assets In this strategy, the interest rate and credrt
sensitivities of the habihities are partially replicated in the
plan assets

Description of the potential risks anising from pension plans

Most German pension plans grant hfelong pension bene-
fits A specific nsk here 1s that nsing Iife expectancy could
increase the benefit obligation |n most cases, increases in the
benefits paid by these funds are inked to the consumer price
mdex This entatls an additional inflation risk In the case of
plans where employees can choose between a lump-sum
payment or an annuity, there 1s a risk that the option could be
selected on the basis of individual assessments of health and
Iife expectancy

For final salary plans, the benefit nsk relates to future
salary trends for employees covered by collective agreements
and exempt employees and, in some cases, changes in the
celling for contnbutions to statutory pension insurance

Where assets are invested externally by the pension fund,
support fund and Evonik Pensionstreuhand e V, plans are
exposed to a capital market nsk Depending on the com-
position of the investment portfolio, this compnises a nsk of
changes in value and income nisks which could mean that the
assurned performance or return 1s not generated over the
term of the investment Under German legislation on occupa-
tional pensions, the employer 1s liable to cover firm benefit
commitments and guaranteed returns

Rl

p
Glossaty I Supplemnentary mforrnanon]




180

FEINANCIAL REPORT 2015 EVONIK INDUSTRIES

In 2015, an overall hedging result of — €202 milhon {2014
€45 milhion) was reclassified from the reserve for gains/
losses on hedging instruments tg the incame statement as
follows

Reclassification of hedging results from accumulated
other comprehensive income to the income statement

n€millron 2015 2014
Sales =182 17
Cost of sales —4 -
Cther operating income /expenses 1 =59
Net interest expense -3 -3
Other financial income ~14 -

~202 -45

(h) Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests amounting to €83 milhon {2014
€95 milhon) compnise shares In the 1ssued capital and reserves
of consolidated subsidianes that are not attnibutable to the
shareholders of Evonik Industries AG

There were no changes in subsidianes without loss of
control 1n 2015 or 2014

Change in accumulated other comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling interests

Currency
translation
in €miflion adjustment Total
As of January 1, 2004 ~4 -4
Other comprohensiva income as in the
statement of comprehensive income
Currency translation adjustment
As of Dacember 31, 2014
Other comprehensive mcome as in the
statement of comprehensive Income 1 1
Currency translation adjustment 1 1
As of Decembaer 31, 2015 3 3

7.8 Provisions for pensions and
other post-employment benefits

Prowvisions for pensions are established to cover benefit plans
for retirement, disability and surviving dependents’ pensions
The benefit obligations vary depending on the legal, tax and
economic circumstances in the various countries in which
the compames operate The level of the benefit obhgations
generally depends on length of service and remuneration

At the German companies, occupational pension plans are
predominantly defined benefit plans They are primanily
funded by provisions, pension fund assets and a contractual
trust arrangement {CTA)

The pension plans at foreign companies may be either
defined contribution or defined benefit plans

The present vatue of the defined benefit abligatens and
the fair value of the plan assets as of December 31, 2015
mainly relate to the following countnies

Breakdown of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets 2015

2015

Defined

benefit
In € mithion obligation Plan assets
Evonik total 10,542 7,302
thereof Germany 2,099 6,066

thereof pension fund freinsured

support fund 3,933 3,102
thereof funded through CTA 4,845 2,964
thereof USA 720 451
thereof UK 564 670

Breakdown of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets 2014

014

Defined

benefit
In € mithon obligation Plan assets
Evonik total 10,650 6,811
thereof Germany 9,334 5,670

thereof pension fund /

remnsured support fund 3,892 3,025
therecf funded through CTA 5,092 2,645
thereof USA 675 433
thereof UK 551 6562
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A proposal will be submitted to the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting that the net profit of Evonik industries AG of
€605,000,000 00 for 2015 should be used to pay a dmidend
of €535,900,000 00 and the remaining €6%,100,000 00
should be allocated to revenue reserves That corresponds to
a dwidend of €115 per no-par share

(g) Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accumnulated other comprehensive income contains gains and
losses that are not included in the iIncome statement The
reserve for gains and losses on available-for-sale securities
contains remeasurement amounts resulting from changes in

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

the value of financial instryments that are expected to be
temporary and thus not charged to income The reserve for
gains and losses on hedqing instruments comprises changes
in the fair value of the effective portion of hedging instru-
ments that are accounted for as cash flow hedges or net
investment hedges The reserve for revaluation surplus for
acquisitions made 1n stages contains the change i the farr
value of shares previously held in subsidianes that were con-
solidated for the first ume on or before December 31, 2009
The reserve for currency translation adjustment comprises
differences arising from the translatton of foreign financial
statements

Change In accumulated other comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of Evonik Industries AG

Revaluation
Gains flosses on Gans flosses surplus for Currency
avallable-for-sale on hedging acquisitions translation
in € mallign secunties nstruments 10 stages adjustment Total
As of January 1, 2074 1 20 1?7 -458 -420
Other comprehensive income as in the
stat t of compreh ¢ INCome -10 -103 - 292 179
Recognized gains and losses -1 -186 - - -197
Amounts reclassified to the income statement - 45 - - 45
Amounts reclassified to assets and habilines - -1 - - -1
Currency translation adjustment - - - 289 289
Attributable to the equity method {after income taxes) - -3 - 3 -
Deferred taxes 1 42 - - 43
Other changes - - -3 - -3
As of December 31, 2014 -9 -83 14 =166 -244
Other comprehensive income as in the
statement of comprehensive income 15 24 - 247 286
Recognized gawns and losses 12 =17 - - -159
Amounts reclassified to the income statement % 202 - - 21
Amounts reclassified to assets and iabilives - 1 - - 1
Currency transiation adjustment - - - 244 244
Attributable to the equity method (after income taxes} - 3 - 3 6
Deferred taxes -4 -11 - - -17
Other changes - - -2 - -2
As of Dacember 31, 2015 & -59 12 8 40

179
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The proportionate amount of the capital stock attnbutable
to the shares for which subscription rights are excluded,
together with the proportionate amount of the capital stock
attributable to treasury stock or to conversion and fer war-
rant rights or obligations anising from debt instruments,
which are sold or 1ssued after May 20, 2014 under exclusion
of subscription nights, may not exceed 20 percent of the
capital stock If the sale or 1ssue takes place in applicanon—
analogously or mutatis mutandis—of Section 186 Paragraph
3 Sentence 4 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AKG),
thus shall also be deemed to constitute exclusion of subscrp-
tion nghts

The Executive Board 1s authonzed, subject to the approval
of the Supervisory Board, to define further detalls of capital
increases out of the Authorized Capital 2014

The authonzed capital has not yet been utilized

{c) Conditional capatal
Under a further resolution adopted by the Annual Share-
hotders’ Meeung of May 20, 2014, the capnal stock 15 con-
dinonally increased by up to €37,280,000, dvided into up to
37,280,000 registered shares with no par value (Conditional
Capital 2014} This conditional capital increase relates to
a resolution of the above Shareholder’s Meeting granting
authorization to 1ssue convertible and /or warrant bonds

The conditional capital increase will only be conducted
insofar as holders or creditors of warrant or conversion rights
or obhigors of warrant or conversion obligations arising
from warrant bonds and/or convertible bands issued or
guaranteed on the basis of the authorization resolved at the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of May 20, 2014, exercise
their warrants or conversion fights or, insofar as they have an
obligation to exerase the warrants or converswon obligations,
meet the obligation to exercise the warrant or conversion
obhgations and other forms of settlement are not used
In principle, the shareholders have a statutory night to sub-
scription rights to the convertible and /or warrant bonds, the
authorization sets out specific cases where the Executive
Board may exclude subscription rights to convertible and/or
warrant bonds, subject to the approval of the Supervisory
Board The new shares shall be issued at the warrant or
conversion price set in accordance with the above provisions
of the resolution

The new shares are entitled to a dividend from the start of
the fiscal year in which they are 1ssued

The Executive Board 1s authorized, subject to the approval
of the Supervisory Board, to define further details of capital
increases out of the conditional capital

The conditional capital has not yet been utihzed

(d) Treasury shares
On March &, 2015, Evonik Industries AG announced that
would be uthizing the authorization granted by the Annual
Shareholders” Meeting on March 11, 2013 to purchase shares
in the company totaling up to €13 4 million by April 23, 2075
at the latest The purpose of purchasing the shares was
to grant shares to employees of Evonik Industries AG and
certain subordinated companies in the Evonik Group as part
of an employee share program

Through this share buyback program, by Apni 20, 2015
Evonik Industries AG purchased a total of 415,533 shares n
the company (corresponding to 01 percent or €415,533 of
the capital stock) A total of €13 9 million was spent on the
shares, corresponding to an average price of €33 43 per
share The purchases were made from March 10, 2015 at an
average daly volume of around 15,400 shares on each Xetra
trading day through a bank acting on the instructions of
Evonik Industries AG The consideration for each share
repurchased (excluding anoiflary costs) could not exceed or
fall short of the opening price as set In the opening auction
for the trading day for shares in Evonik Industries AG in Xetra
trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange by more than 5 per-
cent At the end of Apal, 374,627 ordwinary shares (including
95,748 bonus shares) were transferred to parucipating
employees on the basis of the share price and the exchange
rate for the US dollar prevailing on April 23, 2015 The
rernaiming 40,906 ordinary shares were sold to third parties
by Apnl 27, 2015 As of December 31, 2015, Evonik Industries
AG therefore no longer held any treasury shares

(e) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly contains other payments recewved
from shareholders pursuant to Section 272 Paragraph 2 No 4
of the German Commercial Code (HGB)

(F) Accumulated income

The accumulated income of €5,821 miflion (2014 €5,040 mil-
iton) comprises both Group earnings from 2015 and previous
years, and other comprehensive income from the remeasure-
ment of the net benehit habihty for defined benefit pension
plans lncome after taxes corresponds to the net income
attnbutable to shareholders of Evonik Industrnies AG, as stated
in the income statement for fiscal 2015 However, under Ger-
man stock corporation law, only revenue reserves from the
separate financial statements drawn up by Evontk Industries AG
which are not subject to any restrictions are available for dis-
tribution As of December 31, 2015, the profit reserves of
Evoruk tndustries AG totaled €4,235 million (2014 €3,635 mil-
hen) €47 million of this compnised the statutory reserve that
15 not available for distnbution
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7.6 Trade accounts receivable, other receivables

Trade accounts receivable, other receivables

Dec 31,2005 Dec 31,2014

thereof thereof
tn € mdlion Total non-current Total non-current
Trade accounts recervable 1,813 - 1,720 -
Advance payments made 26 1 37 2
Muscellaneous other receivables pZ 3| 47 281 48
Deferred expenses 52 6 43 8
2,132 54 2,03 58

Risk 2nd maturity structure of (b) Authonized captal

trade accounts receivable

Dec 31, Dec 31,

in € milion 2015 2014
Impaired recewvables 4 3
Norminal value 16 15
Impairment losses =12 =12
Non-impaired recervables 1,809 1,717
Not yet due 1,540 1,479
Overdue 269 238

up to 3 months 235 212
more than 3 and up to 6 months 7 15
more than & and up to 9 months 13 1
more than 9 and up to 12 months -] 1
more than 1 year 8 9
1,813 1,720

At year end, trade accounts recervable totaling €497 million
(2014 €498 million) were covered by credit insurance,
and €10 million {2014 €3 million) were covered by other
collateral No terms were renagotiated for trade accounts
recewvable not yet due In the prior year, the terms for receiv-
ables with a carrying amount of €2 million were renegotiated
and would otherwise have been tmpaired or overdue

7.7 Equity

(a) Issued capital

As in the previous year, the company’s fully paid-up capitat
was €466,000,000 on the reporting date It s divided into
466,000,000 no-par registered shares

Under a resolution adopted by the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting on May 20, 2014 on authonzed capital, the Executive
Board is authonized until May 1, 2019, subject to the approval
of the Supervisory Board, to increase the company’s capital
stock by up to €116,500,000 by 1ssuing new registered shares
with no par value {Authorized Capital 2014)

This authorization may be exercised through one or more
1ssuances

The new shares may be issued against cash and /or contnbu-

tions in kind The Executive Board is authonzed, subject to the

approval of the Supervisory Board, to exclude shareholders’

statutory subscription nghts when 1ssuing new shares in the

following cases

= capital increases against contnbutions in kind

« 1f the capital increase is against cash and the proportionate
share of the capnal stock attributable to the new shares
does not exceed 10 percent of the capital stock, and the
issue price of the new shares is not significantly below the
stock market price of shares already listed on the stock
exchange

- to exclude fractional amounts arising from the subscrip-
tion ratio

- insofar as 1s necessary to grant holders and /or creditors of
warrants or conversion rights or obligors of warrant and/
or conversion obligations subscription rights to new
shares to the extent that they would be entitled to them
after exercise of their warrants and/or conversion rights
or fulfillment of thewr warrant or conversion obhgations

« to grant shares to employees (employee stock), provided
that the new shares for which subscription nights are
excluded do notin aggregate account for a proportionate
share of the capital stock 1n excess of 1 percent

+ for the execution of a scrip dividend
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(b} Loans
Loans are recognrized at amortized cost They are exposed to
an wnterest rate risk, which can affect thetr faie value or future
cash flows

Risk and matunty structure of loans

Dec 31, Dec 31,

In € milfion 2015 2014
Impaired loans 3 -
Nominal value 3 2
impairment losses - -1
Non-imparred losns 26 12
Mot yet due 26 12
Overdue - -
2% 12

As n the previous year, Evonik did not renegotiate the terms
and conditions of any non-current loans in 2015

{c) Securities and similar claims
Secunities and similar claims mainly compnise bonds and
money market paper purchased to invest iquid funds They
are exposed 10 an interest rate nsk, which can affect their
fair value or future cash flows All securities are classified
as available-for-sale and are measured at market price
Securities listed on a stock exchange are exposed to a risk of
changes in their market price

As in the previous year, this itern contains various securities
and similar claims totaling approximately €250 million which
are bundled n a fully consolidated segregated investment
fund, see Note 51 The umits in an investment fund totaling
€127 million included in the previous year were sold in 2015

{(d) Recewvables from dervatives

Receivables from derivatives

Dec 31, Dec 31,
in € mulhon WS 2014
Recewables from cross-currency
wterest fate sweps i3 4

Recewvables from forward exchange
contracts and currency swaps 51 n

84 as

{e) Other financial assets

Other finanoial assets compnse time deposits at banks,
recewvables from profit-and-loss transfer agreements with
investments that are not fully consolhidated, and claims
relating to the terminauon of contracts

Risk and maturity structure of other financial assets

Dec 31, Dec 31,
in € mullion 2015 2014
Impaired other financial sssets 3 -
Normunal value 190 -
Impairment losses -7 -
MNon-impaired other financial assets 26 29
Not yet due 26 29
Overdue - -
29 29

(f) Secunity pledged

Financial assets pledged as secunty for Group habilities
amounted to €1 million {2014 €2 million) They compnised
current secunties provided as secunity for commitments to
employees under the partial retirement program in Germany

7.5 Inventories

Inventories
Dec 31, Dec 11,
0 € million 2015 2014
Raw matenals and supplies 438 414
Work in progress 63 78
Finished goods and merchandise 1,260 1,286
1,763 1,778

Impairment losses on raw materials, supplies and merchan-
dise totaling €37 million were recognized 1n 2015 (2014
€47 million), while reversals of impairment losses amounted
to€25 million (2074 €21 million) Reversals of impairment
losses were mainly due to higher selling prices and improved
market condirrons
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7.3 Investments recognized at equity

This item comprises associates and joint ventures recogmized
using the equity method, see Note 51

Investments recognized at equity

The condensed financial data for the investments recognized
at equity which are classified individually as non-matenial for
Evoruk, based on Evonik’s interest, are as follows

Condensed financial data for individually
nen-material investments recognized at equity

Dec 31, Dec 31,

in € milhon 2015 2014

Carrying amount of matenzl associates - 300
Carrying amount of indnadually

non-matenal associates 7 2
Carrying amount of individually

non-material joint ventures 46 55

53 357

In the previous year, Vivawest was classified as matenal
for the Evonik Group The shares in Vivawest, which were
recogmzed at equity, were divested 1n the second quarter
of 2015, see Note 52 Income from investments recognized
at equity of €1 million (2014 €10 milhon) is recognized In
connection with Vivawest

7.4 Financial assets

Financial assets

Assoaates Joint ventures.
in € million 2015 2074 2015 2014
Carrying
amount as of
December 31 7 2 46 55
Income after
1axes, continuing
aperations 9 7 =25 -3
Total compre-
hensive income 9 7 ~25 -3

For information on contingent habilities to associates and
joint ventures see Note 10 3

Dec 31, 2075 Dec 31,2014

thereof B thereof

0 € million Total nen-current Total  non-current
Other investments 74 74 64 64
Loans 29 24 12 8
Securities and stmilar claims. 265 3 392 5
Receivables from dervatives 84 11 35 3
Other financial assets 29 4 2% 3
481 116 532 83

(a) Other investments

Other investments include shares in Borussia Dortmund GmbH
& Co KGaA, Dortmund (Germany} totaling €55 million
{2014 €53 million), which are recogmized at their stock
market value as of the reporting date This investment 1s
therefore exposed to a market price nsk and 1s allocated to
the category available-for-sale

Further, other investments contains unlisted equity instruments
that are recogrized at the cost of acquisition since therr fair
value cannot be determined reliably
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7.2 Property, plant and equipment

Change in property, plant and equipment

Advance
Other plant, payments and
Land, land nghts Plant and office furmture coastruction
in € mithon and buildings machinery and equipment n progress Total
Cost of acquisition/production
As of January 1, 2014 2,765 10,753 979 1,740 15,637
Currency transtation 85 33s 12 EX| 463
Additions from bustness combinattons 3 9 1 - 15
Other additions 13 334 41 598 1,104
Drsposal -65 =330 -30 -35 ~460
Reclassificaion 235 685 22 -936 6
As of December 31, 2014 3156 11,786 1,025 798 16,765
Currency translation 69 265 7 -8 333
Additions from business combinations 22 13 - 1 36
Other additons 52 7 44 485 852
Disposal -26 -185 -44 -2 ~-257
Reclassification 101 546 15 -643 -1
As of Dacemnber 31, 2015 3,374 12,696 1,047 611 12,728
Deprecation and imparment losses
As of January 1, 2014 1,525 8,486 778 16 10,805
Currency translation 31 212 B - 251
Adduans from business combinatians 1 2 - - 3
Depreciation 60 425 64 - 549
Impairment losses 2 ‘8 - 36 EY]
Reversals of impairment losses - =2 - - -2
Dhsposal -56 ~292 -29 -25 -402
Reclassification - 1 -1 - -
As of December 31, 2014 1,563 8,840 820 27 11,250
Currency translation 28 1748 5 - 209
Additons from business cornbinations - - - - -
Depreciation 77 516 68 - 661
Impairment losses 1 33 - 19 53
Reversals of impawrment losses - -6 - - -6
Disposal . -20 -187 —a2 | - -249
Reclassification -9 24 -10 -3 2
As of December 31, 2015 1,640 9.396 841 43 11,920
Carrying amounts a5 of December 31, 2014 1,593 2,946 205 m 5,515
Carrying amounts as of December 31, 2015 1,734 3,300 206 568 5808

Prior-year figures restated

The Group had commitments of €159 million (2014 €105 mil-
lion) te purchase property, plant and equipment

As a lessor, Evonik mainly leases out land under operating
leases The nominal values of future minimum lease pay-
ments for these assets over the non-cancelable term of the
lease are due as follows

Maturity structure of future minimum lease payments

(lessor; operating leases)

1n € milian 2015 2014

Due wathua 1 year 9 9

Due i more than 1

and up to 5 years 23 20

Due in more than 5 years 152 120
184 149
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Franchises, Caputalized Other
trad ks, develop intangible
wn € mithon Goodwill and hicenses costs assets Tatal
Cost of acquisition/production
As of January 1, 2014 2,730 1,647 169 488 5,034
Currency translation 56 10 - 3 69
Additions from business combinations 12 13 - 14 39
Other additions - 12 - 7 19
Disposal -6 -9 -2 -1 -18
Reclassification - 20 -2 -14 4
As of December 31, 2014 2,792 1,693 165 497 5,147
Currency translation 64 7 - 2 73
Additions from business combinations 5 1 - 16 22
Other additions - 10 - 15 25
Disposal - =54 - - ~54
Reclassification - 9 - -3 6
As of December 31, 2015 2,861 1,666 165 527 5,219
Amortization and impairment losses
As of January 1, 2014 102 1,311 148 435 1,996
Currancy translation - 7 - 1 8
Addwions from business combinations - - - - -
Amortization - 48 2 7 57
Impairment losses - 2 - - 2
Reversals of impairment losses - - - - -
Disposal -5 -9 -2 - -16
Reclassification - -1 1 10 -
As of Decembaer 31, 2014 97 1,348 149 453 2,047
Currency translation - 5 - 1 6
Addwions from business combinations - - - - -
Amortization - 33 1 5 39
Impairment losses - 2 12 - 14
Reversals of impairment losses - -3 - - =1
Drsposal - =53 - -1 -54
Reclassification - -4 - 4 -
As of December 31, 2015 97 1,330 162 462 2,051
Carrying amounts 23 of December 31, 2014 2,695 345 16 44 3,100
Carrying amounts 33 of Dacember 31, 2015 2,764 336 3 65 3,168

Franchises, trademarks and licenses include trademarks with
an indefinite useful life totaling €203 mithon (2014

€202 million)

As 1n the previous year, on the reporting date there were
no intangible assets to which title was restnicted and no
commitments to purchase mtangible assets
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6.7 Income taxes

income taxes shown in the income statement

n € millicn 2015 2014
Other incomae taxes 508 225
thereof relating to other periods 2 -18
Deferred taxes -86 27
therecf relaung 1o other penods -24 12
thereof relating to temporary differences -85 1
422 252

The tax reconailiation shows the development of expected
income taxes relative to the effective income taxes stated in
the income statement As in the previous year, the expected
income taxes are based on an overall tax rate of 30 percent,
compnsing German corporation tax of 15 percent, a sohdanty
surcharge of 55 percent and an average trade tax rate of
around 14 percent The effective income taxes include other
income taxes and deferred taxes

Tax reconcifiation

in€million 2015 2014
Income before income taxes,
contunuing operations 1441 842
Expected income taxes 432 253
Vanances due to differences in
the assessment base for trade tax 5 2
Dewiation from the expected tax rate 17 21
Changes i the valuation
of deferred taxes -9 5
Losses not affecting deferred taxes
and the use of loss carryforwards 24 -6
Changes in tax rates and tax legislation 1 -
Non-deductible expenses 35 19
Interest cabing - i
Tax-free income -88 -28
Result from investments
recogruzed at equity 4 ~5
Other 1 -10
Effective income taxes (current
income taxes and deferred taxes) 422 252
Effective income tax rate ;m % %3 299

The impairment losses on deferred taxes previously recog-
nized totals €3 million {including €2 million from loss
carryfowards) Thisis countered by reversals of €15 mithion,
mainly tn connection with foss carryforwards “Other” con-
tains other income taxes and deferred taxes relating to
different periods

6.8 Earnings per share

Earnings per share as shown in the income statement are
calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares i1ssued, 1 e 466,000,000 shares Net income
compnises the total earnings for the year less non-controlling
interests, including the earmngs'of discontinued operations
Earmings per share could be diluted by potential ordinary
shares Since there were no potential ordinary shares in either
2015 or 2014, diluted earnings per share are identical to basic
earnings per share

Earnings per share

in € mlion 2015 2014
Income after taxes, continuing operations 1,019 590
Income after taxes, discontinued operatians ~-17 -9
Less income after taxes atinbutable to

non-controling interests -1 -13

Income after taxas attributable to
shareholders of Evonik Industries AG
(net mcome} 991 568

Earmngs per share in € (basic and diluted}

from continuing operations 219 127
from discontinued operations -004 =002
less earmings per share attnibutable to
non-tomtrolling mterests -002 =003
Ezrnings per share in €
(basic and diluted) attnbutable to
shareholders of Evomk Industries AG +213 +122
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The determination of the value in use of the production plant
in the Performance Materials segment did not generate
a positive value, the discount rate used was the weighted cost
of capital of the segment, see Note 37 The recoverable
value of the other assets was not determined as the assets
were not considered to have any further benefit

The adjustments recognized 1n other operating expenses
relate to the following functional areas

Adjustments included in other operating expenses

n €rmedhon 2015 2014
Production-related 129 83
Sales-related 12 -
RE&D-related 7 -
Admunistration-related 67 60
Other 75 61

90 209

6.5 Result from investments
recognized at equity

Result from investments recognized at equity

in€ million 2015 2014
Income from measurement at equity n 18
Expenses for measurement a equity -26 -4

-15 14

The expenses for measurement at equity 1n 2015 include an
impairment loss of €14 million on an equity investment in the
Nutntion & Care segment, which 1s contained i adjustments
in the prior year, income from measurement at equity
included income of €10 million in connection with the
10 3 percent shareholding in Vivawest, which was sofd in the
second quarter of 2015 and was previously recognized at
equity, see Note 52

6.6 Financial result

Financial result

n € million 2015 2014

Income from secusities and foans 4 S

Interest and similar incoma

from denvatives 8 6

Other interest-type income 34 60
Interest income 486 n

Interest expense on financial habilites -47 -50

Interest and similar expenses

for dervatives -29 -19

Interest expense on accrued interest

on other provisions -23 -60

Net interest expense for pensions -96 -120

Other interest-type expense -50 ~-40
Interest expense -245 -189

Result from currency transfation of

financing-related assets and liabiliies -22 -39

Income from financing-related

currency hedging 16 23

Mascellaneous financial income

and expenses =18 =1
Other financial mcome -24 -17

-223 -235

Borrowing costs of €5 miflion (2014 €35 million) are capital-
1ized The average underlying cost of finanang was 3 1 percent
(2014 55 percent)

An explanation of the economic effect of the result from
currency translation of financing-related assets and habilities
1s provided in Note 10 2

The muscellaneous finanaal expenses of €18 million
mainly relate to impairment losses on an equity nvestment
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Evonik defines non-operating income and expenses that are
by nature one-off or rare as adjustments These adjustments
are included 1n other operating income and expenses in
the income statement The adjustments recognized in other
operating income relate to the following functional areas

Adjustments included in other operating income

In € rilhon 2015 2014
Productron-refated 1 1
Admimistration-related 35 -
Other 170 29

216 30

6.4 Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses

An explanation of the economic effect of the net expenses
for operational currency hedging is provided 1n Note 10 2

Losses from the disposal of assets comprise €9 million
(2014 €16 million) from the divestment of property, plant
and equipment and, 1n the prior year, losses of €3 million
from the sale of investments and business operations

The mcrease in other expense s mainly due to provisions
for risks ansing from an agreement with a raw material
suppher, and to expenses for the reorgamization and simplifi-
cation of corporate structures (n Europe This item also
tncludes expenses for outsourcing, M&A projects, non-core
operations, commussion payments, other taxes, and legal and
consultancy fees

Other operating expenses contains impairment lossas
totaling €75 million (2014 €66 million) The impairment
losses on financral instruments, which are calculated 1n accor-
dance with 1AS 39 Financial tnstruments Recogmition and
Measurement, totaled €12 million {2014 €19 million) and
relate to trade accounts recewvable

Impairment losses on assets classified until now as held for

€ mibhon s e sale recogmized 1n accordance with IFRS 5 totaled €3 milhion
Expenses for restructuring measures 108 97 (2014 €2 m|||gon)
thereof impairment losses 6 2 Impairment losses determined in accordance with {1AS 36
Net expenses for operational Impairment of Assets in response to indications of a possible
currency hedging 7 44 impairment were dwvided among the segments as shown in
Impairment losses 69 64 the table below
Expenses for recultvation
and environmental protection 10 Impairment losses by segment
Losses on the disposal of assets 9 19
in € million 2015 2014
Expenses relating to the
REACH Regulation 8 6 Performance Materals 43 38
Other expense 328 2157 Resource Efficiency 11 3
603 493 Nutntion & Care 5 2
thereof adjustments 290 209 Services 1 2
60 45

The expenses for restructuring measures mainly contain
expenses for optimization of the product portfolio 1n the
Performance Matenals segment and in connection with the
new Group structure This itern also includes expenses that
by nature would otherwise be allocated to other hne items in
other operating expenses

The impasrment losses relate principally to capitalized costs
for a project in the Resource Efficiency and Performance
Materials segments that was terminated following a routine
review of investment projects, and a production plant and
intangible assets in the Performance Matenals segment
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6. Notes to the income statement
6.1 Sales

The sales of €13,507 million (2014 €12,977 million) principatly
compnse revenues from the sale of goods and services

6.2 Function costs

Function costs are derived from cost accounting data IFRS
accounting policies are the central recognition prinaples used
at Evonik Therefore, implhiait costs may not be allocated to
the functional areas Function costs are determined after
internal cross-charging to ensure that they take account of
transactions between the functional areas

Evomik divides function costs into the cost of sales, selling
expenses, research and development expenses and general
admimistrative expenses

Operating expenses that cannot be allocated to the func-
tional areas are recognized as other operating expenses

6.3 Other operating income

Other operating income

in € mallon 2015 2014
Income from the disposal of assets 153 20
Income from non-core operations 55 55
Income from the reversal of provisions 44 30
Income from restructurnng measures 43 1

thereof income from
the disposal of assets - 3

thereof income from
the reversal of provisrons 37 [

thereof income from
the reversal of impairment losses 5 -

Net tncome from currency translation of

operating monetary assets and hatalities 35 39

Income from the reversal of

impairment losses 12 ]

Other income 103 89
445 250

thereof adjustments 216 30

The income from non-core operations contains income from
occasional, unplanned business activities that are not intended
to be permanent operations

The income from restructuring measures mainly comprises
income in connection with the planned optimization of admin-
istrative and service structures and workflows, and income
relating to the exit from the photovoltaic business This item
also includes income that by nature would otherwise be
allocated to other line items in other operating income

An explanation of the economic effect of the net income
from currency transiation of operating monetary assets and
habilities 1s provided in Note 10 2

Other income includes insurance refunds, research sub-
sidtes, commassion income, income from the sale of scrap and
income relating to other periods

Other operating income includes a total of €7 million
(2014 €10 million) from the divestment of property, plant
and equipment, and €146 million (2014 €13 million) from
the sale of investments and business operations In 2015
the income from the sale of investments mainly came from
the sale of the 10 3 percent shareholding in Vivawest, see
Note52

Further, other operating income contains 2 total of €17 mil-
lion (2074 €6 mullion) from the reversal of impairment losses
This comprnises €10 million (2014 €4 million) in accordance
with |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Mea-
surement relating to trade accounts receivable

The income from reversals of impairment losses in accor-
dance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets totaling €7 million
(2014 €2 million) relates to the following segments

Income from the reversal
of impairment losses by segment

wn€milhen 2015 2014
Resource Efficency [ 1
Performance Matenals - 1
Other operations 1 -

7 2
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Impact of the discontinued operations on the income statement

Operating income

Divestment gains flosses

Income after taxes,

afters taxes after taxes discontinued operations
in € mulhon 2015 214 2% 2014 2015 2014
Lithium-10n business -8 n -7 -1 ~15 20
Former Energy Business Area - -30 -2 1 -2 -29
-8B -9 -9 - -17 -9
No tax was incurred 1n connectton with the divestment
proceeds
Operating income, discontinued operations
in € rmllion 2015 2014
Lithwem-100 business 10 %0
Former Energy Business Area - 145
Income 10 235
Lithwem-1on business -18 -62
Former Energy Business Area - =175
Expenses -18 -237
Lithwm-1an bustness -8 28
Former Enerqy Business Area - =30
Operating mncome bafore income taxes, discontmued operations -8 -2
Lithwm-100 business - -7
Former Energy Business Area - -
Income taxes - -7
Lithwm-1an business -8 21
Former Energy Business Area - -30
Operating income after taxes, discontinued operations ~8 -9

The operating income before inconre taxes from the iithium-
1on business included impairment losses of €7 million n
fiscal 2015

As of December 31, 2015, there were no assets or habilities
classified as held for sale on the balance sheet

Cash flow from discontinued operations

On the cash flow statement, the cash flows from the ope-
rating, investing and financing activities of the discontinued
operations only compnise cash flows generated through
transactions with third parties The net cash flows reflect the
change n cash and cash equivalents and intragroup cash
pooling activities

n € milhon 2015 2014
Lithium-ron business 3 7
Former Energy Business Area - 24

Cash flow from operating actrnties 3 3
Lithium-ton business - -1
Faormer Energy Business Area - -

Cash flow from mvesting activities - -1
Lithtum-ton business 3 6
Former Energy Business Area - 24

Change in cash snd cash equrvalents, d nued operations 3 30
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Both acquisitans have been ntegrated into the Resource
Efficency segment Their aggregate impact on the balance
sheet as of the date of first-ime consolidation was as follows

Impact of the acquisitions on the balance sheet

Fair value

wn € million recognized
Non-current assets 54
Current assets n
thereof recervables 11
thereof cash and cash equivalents 1
Non-current iabiities -14
Current liabilivies -12
MNet assots 49
Goodwall 5
Cost of acquisrtion {purchase price) 54

The purchase prices were settled out of cash and cash
equivalents Transaction costs of €1 million relating to these
acquisitions are included in other operating expenses The
goodwill s not tax-deductible and manly comprises the
expected future benefits of assets that were not individually
dentifiable or for which recognition s not permitted, for
example, anticipated synerqies and the workforce

Both since the date of acquisition and on a pro forma basis
since January 1, 2015, the aggregate sales generated by the
acquisitions were less than €45 million and the aggregate
earnings after taxes were under €5 million Sales and earnings
were not matenal relative to the Resource Efficiency segment
as a whole

Divestments of subsidiaries
Under an agreement dated Apnl 29, 2015, Evonik sold its
100 percent stake 1 Evonik Litarion GmbH, Kamenz (Ger-
many) to Electrovaya GmbH, Dusseldorf (Germany) It was
agreed not to disclose the purchase price This divestment
was closed on the date on which the agreement was signed

Under an agreement dated September 30, 2015, Evanik
sold its 52 percent stake 1n Qingdao Evomk Chemical Co, Ltd,
Jiaozhou (China) to Orion Engineered Carbons international
GmbH, Frankfurt (Germany) It was agreed not ta disclose the
purchase price The stake was deconsolidated on Qctober 27,
2015 and was classified as held for sale untl that date

Until completton of these transactions, the shares were
included in the segment report in other operations

The aggregate impact of the divestments on the balance sheet
at the time of deconsolidation or divestment was as follows

Impact of divestments on the balance sheet

Carrying

amounts

in € mllion divested
Non-current assets 8
Current assets 35
thereof cash and cash equivalents 7
Non-current habibities -5
Current habilities -9

The deconsolidation of subsidiaries resulted in a loss of
€4 million (2014 gain of €5 million}, which 1s recogmized n
other operating expenses and In income after taxes, dis-
continued operations

Divestment of investments recognized at equity
Under an agreement dated June 23, 2015, Evonik sold
10 3 percent of the shares in Vivawest GmbH (Vivawest),
Essen (Germany), to RAG Aktiengesellschaft, Herne (Ger-
many), for a purchase price of €428 million The transaction
was closed on June 29, 2015 The proceeds from this trans-
action amounted to €143 million In the segment report,
these shares were previously included in other operations

5.3 Assets held for sale
and discontinued operations

Assets held for sale and the associated liabilities have to
be stated separately from other assets and habilities on the
balance sheet The amounts recognized for these assets and
habilities tn the previous year do not have to be restated

Businesses whose assets and liabiities have been classified
as held for sale may also meet the cniteria for classification as
discontinued operations, especially if a separate, significant
business area 1s to be disposed of The income and expenses
of such discontinued operations have to be stated separately
from those of continuing operations in the income statement
The cash flows also have to be stated separately The prior-
period figures have to be restated in the income statement
and the cash flow statement

The 100 percent stake in Evonik Litarion GmbH, com-
prising the remaining ithium-1on business, was classtfied as a
discontinued operation until the divestment was completed
on Apnl 29, 2015
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Companies recognized at amortized cost

Shareholding
Name of company Regstered office In %
Non-c hdated subsidiaries
Germany
PKU Pulverkautschuk Unton GmbH (in iquidation) Marl 10¢ 00
Studrengesellschaft Kohle mbH Mitheim 8418
Other countries
EGL Ltd Milton Keynes (UK} 100 00
Evonik Guatemala, S A Guatemala City {Guatemala) 100 00
Evontk International Costa Rica, $ A Santa Ana (Costa Rica) 100 00
Laporte Chemicals Ltd Milton Keynes (LK) 100 00
LLC “Evonik Ukraine* Kiev (Ukraine) 100 00
Joint ventures
Germany
dev log GmbH (in formation) Niederkassel 5000
Faserwerke Hils Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung Marl 5000
StaHaas Management GmbH Mact 5000
Other countries
Idevo Servicios, S A deC V Mexico City (Mexico) 50 00
RSC Evonik Sweeteners Co, Ltd Bangkok (Thailand} 5000
Associates
Germany
ARG Verwaltungs GmbH Duisburg 20 00
Industriepark Minchsminster GmbH & Co KG Minchsminster 3000
Industriepark Minchsmiinster Verwaltungsgesellschaft
mit beschrinkter Haftung Minchsminster 38 00
Umschlag Termenal Mar! GmbH & Co KG Marl 50 00
Umschlag Terminal Marl Verwaltungs-GmbH Marl 50 00
Vivawest GmbH Essen » 25 00

! Based on the nature of the plan assets, these thares were measyred in accordance wath LAS 19

Evonik holds more than 5 percent of the voting rights n
the following company, which 15 defined as a large stock
corporation in accordance with Section 267 Paragraph 3 of
the German Commercial Code (HGB} (disclosure pursuant to
Section 313 Paragraph 2 No 4 Sentence 2 German Commer-
oal Code (HGB))

Borussia Doctnund GmbH & Co KGaA, Dortmund (Ger-
many) {shareholding 14 78 percent, fiscal year 2014/2015
income after taxes €2 4 million, equity €324 million)

5.2 Acquisitions and divestments

This secuan provides 3 mare detaled overview of the pnn-
ctpal changes in the scope of consalidation in the reporting
period, divided into acquisihons and divestments

Acquisitions
Evonik acquired all shares in Monarch Catalyst Pvt Ltd
{Monarch), Dombwi {Ind1a) on June 5, 2015 Monarch’s
global activities in the field of oil and fat hydrogenation
catalysts extend Evonrk’s portfolio of catalysts In addition, this
acquisition strengthens Evontk’s market position in activated
base and precious metal catalysts in lndia and an the Asian
market The company has been renamed Evomk Catalysts
India Pvt Ltd

On October 30, 2015, Evontk acquired all shares in
PeroxyChem Netherlands B V', Amsterdam (Netherlands) from
PeroxyChem Codperatief U A, Amsterdam (Netherlands)
The production facilities in Delfzyl (Netherlands) complernent
Evonuk’s European praduction netwark far bydragen peraxide,
compnising three European sites in Antwerp (Belgium), Rhen-
felden (Germany) and Weissenstain {Austna) The company
has been renamed Evonik Peroxide Netherlands B V
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Shareholding
Name of company Registered office n%
Joint operations
Germany
Neolyse Ibbenbdren GmbH Ibbenbiren 50 00
StoHaas Marl GmbH Mark 5000
StoHaas Monomer GmbH Er Co KG Marl 5000
COther countries
ROH Delaware LLC Deer Park (Texas, USA) 5000
ROH Delaware LP Deer Park (Texas, USA) 5000

At the joint operations there 1s no difference between the  The purpose of StoHaas Monomer GmbH & Co KG ang
shareholding and proportion of the voting nghts

The purpose of Neolyse [bbenburen GmbH 1s the joint  Delaware LLC and ROH Delaware LP 15 joint production of
production of potassium hydroxide solution and chlorine  acrylic acrd (CAAY} for use by Evonik and its partner Dow
for use by Evonik and its partner Akzo Nobel Industrial ~ Chermicals inc (formerly ROHM AND HAAS TEXAS, INC)

Chemicals GmbH

Companies recognized at equity

its wholly owned subsidianies StoHaas Marl GmbH, ROH

Glossary | Supplementary mfatmmon]

Shareholding
Name of company Registered office n%
Jomnt ventures
Othar countries
CyPlus Idesa, SAP| de CV Mexico City {Mexico) 5000
Daicel-Evonik Ltd Tokyo (Japan) 5000
Evonik Headwaters LLP Milton Keynes (UK} 50 00
Evonik Lanxing (Rizhao) Chemical Industnial Co , Ltd Rizhao (China) 5000
Evonik Treibacher GmbH Treibach/Althofen {Austna) 5000
LiteCon GmbH Honigsberg/Miirzzusehlag (Austna) 4900
Rusferm Limited Nicosia {Cyprus) 4900
Saudi Acrylic Polymers Company, Lid Jubail (Saudi Arabra) 2500
Assoaates
Garmany
ARG mbH & Ce KG Duisburg ' 1993
TUV NORD InfraChem GmbH & Co KG Marl 4900
TUV NORD InfraChem Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH Marl 49 00

* Evonik is able to exercise a matensl influence under contractual agreements
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Consolidated subsidiaries

Shareholding
Name of company Registered office in%
Evomk Tianda (Liaoyang) Chemical Additive Co, Ltd Liaoyang (China) 9704
Evonik Ticaret Ltd Sirkets TuzlafIstanbul (Turkey) 100 00
Evonik Trustee Lrmited Milton Keynes (UK) 100 00
Evomk UK Holdings Ltd Milon Keynes {UK) 100 00
Evonik Umited Silica Industnal Ltd Taoyvan Hsien {Tarwan) 100 00
Evonik United Silica {S1am) Ltd Rayong {Thailand) 70 0O
Evonik Vietnam Limited Liability Company Ho-Chi-Minh City (Vietnam) 100 00
Evonik Wellink Sifica {(Nanping) Co , Ltd Nanping {China) 60 00
Insilco Ltd Gajraula {India) 7311
{IDA Evonik High Performance Polymers {Changchun) Co, Ltd Changchun {China) 84 04
Laporte Industres Ltd Milton Keynes (UK) 100 00
Laporte Nederland (Holding) B V Amsterdam (Netherlands) 100 00
Nilok Chemicals Inc (in iquidation) Parsippany (New Jersey, USA) 100 00
Nrippon Aerosil Co, Ltd Tokyo (Japan) 80 CO
Q00 DESTEK Podolsk (Russian Federation) 6225
000 Evomk Chimia Moscow (Russian Federation) 10000
PT Evonik Indonesia Cikarang Bekas: (Indonesia) 100 00
PT Evonik Sumi Asih Bekas! Ttmur (Indonesia) 7500
RohaBV Tuburg (Netherlands) 10000
RUTGERS Organics Corporation State College (Pennsylvania, USA) 100 00
SKC Evontk Peroxide Korea Co , Lid Ulsan (South Korea) 5500
Silbond Corporation Weston (Michigan, USA) 100 00
Stockhausen Nederfand B V Amsterdam {Netherlands) 10060

* Utilizes the exemptons permitted under Sections 264 Paragraph 3 and 264b of the German Commercial Code (HGB}
b Fully consolidated structured entity In sccordance with IFRS 10 BB i conunction with B19 (b)

DeAM-Fonds Treasury 115 a special purpose segregated
alternative investment fund (AIF) with fixed investment terms
pursuant to Section 284 of the German Capital Investment
Act [KAGB) It was established by Evonik at Deutsche Asset
& Wealth Manageraent Investment GmbH {DeAWM), Frank-
furt am Main (Germany) Evorik does not hold any shares in
this company but 1t 1s the sole investor and owns all the
mvestrnent certificates Evonik 1s therefore fully exposed to

the opportunities and risks of this special purpose entity
Evonik plays a role 1n setting the investment strategy by
defining the basic focus of the fund in the investment Com-
mittee and through general and special contractual terms
Contractually, Evonik 1s the principal and DeAWM s the
agent The fund therefore constitutes a structured entity,
which has to be fully consolidated as Evonik exercises control
No financial or other assistance has been granted or pledged
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Shareholding
MName of company Registered office n%
Evonik Hong Kong Ltd Hong Keng (Hong Kong) 100 00
Evonik India Pvt Ltd Mumbai (India) 100 00
Evonik Industnes de Mexico, S A de CV Mexico City (Mexico) 100 00
Evonuk International Holding B V Amsterdam (Netherlands) 100 00
Evonik Iran AG Teheran (lran) 100 00
Evonik Itaba 5 p A Pandino (laly) 100 00
Evonik japan Co, Ltd Tokyo (Japan) 100 00
Evonik Jayhawk Fine Chemicals Corporation Carson City (Nevada, USA) 100 00
Evonik Korea ttd Seou! (South Korea} 100 00
Evonik Lirmited Egypt Cairo (Egypt) 100 00
Evonik Malaysia Sdn Bhd Kuala Lumpur (Malaysia) 100 00
Evonik MedAvox S p A (in liquidation) Milan (ltaly) 100 00
Evon'k Membrane Extraction Technology Limited Multon Keynes (UK) 100 00
Evonik Methiomine SEA Pte Ltd Singapore (Singapore) 10000
Evonik Metlatos S A Rosario (Argentina) 100 00
Evonik Mexico, S A de CV Mexico City (Mexico) 100 00
Evontk Oil Addiuves Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore {Singapore) 100 00
Evonik Oil Addiwves Canada Inc Mornisburg {Canada) 100 00
Eventk Oil Addiwves S A S Lauterbourg (France) 100 00
Evoruk Orl Additives USA, Inc Horsham (Pennsylvama, USA) 100 00
Evomk Oxeno Antwerpen N V Antwerp (Belgium} 100 00
Evomik Para-Chermie GmbH Gramatneusied! {Austria} 99 00
Evonik Pension Scheme Trustee Limited Milton Keynes (UK} 100 00
Evonik Peroxid GmbH Weissenstein (Austna) 100 00
Evonik Peroxide Africa (Pty) Ltd Umbogiatwini (South Africa) 100 00
Evonik Peroxide Holding B V Amsterdam {Netherlands) 100 00
Evomk Peroxide Ltd Mornnswille {(New Zealand} 10000
Evonik Peroxide Netherlands B V Amsterdam {Netherlands) 10000
Evonik Re § A Luxembourg (Luxembourg) 100 00
Evonik Rexim (Nanming) Pharmaceutical Co , Ltd Nanning (China) 100 00
Evonik Rexim S A § Ham (France} 100 00
Evonik {SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore (Singapore) 100 00
Evonik Servicios, S A de CV Mexico City (Mexico) 10000
Evonik (Shanghar) Investment Management Co , Ltd Shanghai (China) 100 00
Evonik Sifquimica, S A U Zubullaga-Lantaron {Spain) 100 00
Evonik Speciality Organics Ltd Milton Keynes (UK) 100 00
Evonik Speaalty Chemicals {ilin) Co , Ltd Jilo {China) 100 00
Evonik Speaalty Chemicals {Shanghai) Co, Ltd Shanghai (China) 100 00
Evontk Taiwan Ltd Taspes (Tarwan) 100 00
Evonik Tasnee Marketing LLC Riyadh (Saudi Arabia} 7500
Evonik Thai Aerostl Co , Ltd Bangkok {Thatland} 100 00
Evomk {(Thailand) Ltd Bangkok {Thatland)} 100 00
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Consolidated subsidiaries

Shareholding

Name of company Registered office In%
REV Verwaltungs-GmbH Essen 100 00
RCIV Vermdgensverwaltungs-GmbH Essen 100 00
RUTGERS Dienstleistungs-GmbH Essen 100 0o
RUTGERS GmbH Essen 100 60
Stockhausen Unterstiitzungseinrichtung GmbH Krefeld 100 00
Wiestgas GmbH Marl 100 G0
Other countries

Degussa International tnc Wilmington (Delaware, USA) 100 00
DSL Japan Co, Ltd Tokya (Japan) 5100
Egesil Kimya Sanayi ve Ticaret A § Istanbul {Turkey) 5100
Evonik Acrylics Africa (Pty) Ltd Johannesburg (South Africa} 5100
Evomtk Aeroail France S AR L Salaise-sur-Sanne (France) 10000
Evonk Africa (Pty) Ltd Midrand (South Afnica) 100 00
Evomk Agroferm Zrt Kaba (Hungary} 100 00
Evontk Amalgamation Ltd Multon Keynes (UK} 100 00
Evonik Australia Pty Ltd Mount Waverley (Australia) 100 00
Evomk Canada Inc Calgary (Canada) 100 00
Evonik Catalysts India Pvt Ltd Dombvli (India) 100 00
Evonik CB LLC Wilmington {Delaware, USA) 100 00
Evomk Colombia S A S Medellin (Colomba) 100 00
Evonik Corporation Parsippany (New Jersey, USA) 100 00
Evonik Cyro Canada Inc Etobicoke (Canada) 100 00
Evonik Cyro LLC Wilmington (Delaware, USA) 100 00
Evonik Degussa Africa (Pty) Ltd Midrand (South Africa) 100 00
Evanik Degussa Antwerpen NV Antwerp (Belgium) 100 00
Evonik Degussa Argentina § A Buenos Aires (Argentina) 100 00
Evontk Degussa Brasil Ltda Sdo Paulo (Brazi) 100 00
Evonik Degussa Carbons, In¢ Wilmington {Delaware, USA) 100 00
Evonik Degussa Chile S A Sannago (Chtle) 9999
Evorik Degussa (China) Co, Ltd Beying (China) 100 00
Evonik Degussa International AG Zunich (Switzerland) 100 00
Evanik Dutch Holding B V Amsterdam (Netherlands) 100 00
Evomk Espaia y Portugal, S A U Granollers (Spain} 100 00
Evorik Fermass ro Sloveasks Uupéa {Slovakia) 100 00
Evonik Fibres GmbH Scharfling (Austria) 100 00
Evonik Finance B V Amsterdam (Netherlands) 100 00
Evonik Foams lne Wilmington (Delaware, USA) 100 00
Evomk Forhouse Optical Polymers Corporation Taichung (Tamvan) 5100
Evontk France S A S Ham {France} 100 00
Evontk Goldschmidt UK Lid Mition Keynes {UK) 100 00
Evonik Guif FZE Bubal (United Arab Emirates) 100 00
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Further information on acquisitions and divestments in 2015
can be found in Note 5 2

The following hist shows Evonik’s shareholdings in accor-
dance with Section 313 Paragraph 2 of the German Commer-
aal Code (HGB)

The shareholdings have been calculated in accordance
with Section 16 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
Accordingly, the calculation includes shares held by the

Consolidated subsidianies

parent company, a subsidiary inctuded in the consolidated
financial statements or a person acting on behalf of these
companies

German subsidiaries that make use of the provistons of
Sections 264 Paragraph 3 and 264b of the German Commer-
cial Code (HGB) on exempuian from disclosure of annual
financial statements and the preparation of notes to their
financial statements and a rmanagement report are indicated

Shareholding

Name of company Registered office n%
Consolidated subsidiaries

Germany

ACura GmbH Hanau a 100 00
BK-Wolfgang-Warme GmbH Hanay 100 00
CyPlus GmbH Hanau 100 00
DeAM Treasury 1 Spenalfonds der Evonik tndustnes AG Essen b 000
Evonik Beteligungs-GmbH Frankfurt arn Main a 100 00
Evonik Catening Services GmbH Marl . 100 00
Evonsk Creawis GmbH Essen a 100 00
Evonik Dahlenburg GmbH Dahlenburg : 100 00
Evonik Degussa GmbH Essen 10000
Evonik Goldschmidt Rews GmbH Essen 100 00
Evonik Gorapur GmbH Wittenburg : 10000
Evonik Gorapur Verwaltungs-GmbH Wittenburg 100 00
Evorsk Hanse GmbH Geesthacht 2 100 00
Evomik IP GmbH Eschborn . 100 00
Evomk Nutriton & Care GmbH Essen 3 100 00
Evonik Ol Additives GmbH Essen 10000
Evonik Performance Materials GmbH Essen 2 100 00
Evormik Peroxygens Holding GmbH Essen 100 00
Evonik Proyekt-Betelhgungs-GmbH & Co KG Essen 99 00
Evonik Projekt-Betelligung Verwaltungs-GmbH Essen 100 00
Evonik Real Estate GmbH & Co KG Marl a 100 00
Evonik Real Estate Verwaltungs-GmbH Marl 100 00
Evonik Resource Efficiency GmbH Essen . 100 00
Evonik Risk and Insurance Senvices GmbH Essen : 10000
Evomk Rohm GmbH Essen 10000
Evonik Technocheme GmbH Essen . 10000
Evorik Technology & Infrastructure GmbH Essen ? 100 00
Evonik Venture Capinal GmbH Hanau » 100 00
Goldschrmidt ETB GmbH Berlin a 100 00
HD Ceracat GmbH Frankfurt am Main 10000
ILa5 Integrierte Logistik £r Service GmbH Marl * 100 00
KMV Vermdgensverwaltungs-GmbH Marl 10000
Manch-Kunststofftechnik GmbH Bad Konig 2 100 00
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A reduction of 1 percentage point in the assumed Group-
wide pension increase, assuming other parameters remain
unchanged, would reduce the defined benefit obligation by
€841 mulion (2014 €857 mullion) Conversely, assuming
other parameters remain unchanged, a rise of 1 percentage
pont in the assumed Group-wide pension nses would
ncrease the defined benefit obhgaton by €999 mithon
(2014 €1,025 milion)

Assurming all other parameters remain unchanged, a reduc-
tion of 20 percent in mortality in the retirement phase would
increase the defined benefit obligation by €762 million
{2014 €768 million)

If the trend in healthcare costs were to increase by 1 per-
centage point, the accumulated healthcare benefit obligation
would increase by €16 million (2014 €14 million) Con-
versely, a reduction of 1 percentage point in the cost trend
would reduce the accumulated healthcare obligation by
€14 milhion {2014 €12 muthion)

5. Changes in the Group

(f) Valuation of other provisions

Other prowvisions, especially provisions for recultivation and
environmental protection, in connection with legal nsks and
for restructuring are naturally expased to significant fore-
casting uncertamnties regacding the level and tming of the
obligation The company has to make assumptions about the
probabihity of occurrence of an obligation or future trends,
such as value of the costs, on the basis of expenence
Nan-current provisions in particular are exposed to fore-
casting uncertainties tn addition, the level of non-current
provisions depends to a large extent on the selection and
development of the market-oriented discount rate The
Group uses different interest rates for different currencies
and terms to matunty

5.1 Scope of consolidation and list of shareholdings

Changes in the scope of consolidation

Other
No of comnpanies Germany countries Total
Evomik Industries AG and ¢ lidated subsichartes
As of December 31, 2014 42 98 140
Acquisitions - 2 2
Other companies consolidated for the first ime - 1 1
Divestments =1 -1 -2
Intragroup mergers -2 - -2
Qther companies deconsohidated - -1 =1
As of December 31, 2015 39 99 138
Joint operations
As of December 31, 2014 2 2 4
Other companies consolidated for the first time 1 - 1
As of December 31,2015 3 2 s
Investments racognized at equity
As of Decomber 31, 2014 5 - 14
Divestments -1 - -1
Cther companies deconsohdated -1 -1 -2
As of Decamber 31, 2015 3 8 "
45 109 154
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Discussion of 2ssumptions and estimation uncertainties

(2) Impairment testing of goodwill
Testing goodwill for impairment also involves assumptions
and estimates regarding, for example, future cash flows,
expected terminal growth rates and discount rates The rele-
vant assumptions may change, teading to impairment losses
in future periods

In the impairment test on goodwill in the Performance
Materials segment, the recoverable amount exceeded the
carrying amount of the segment by €119 mullion The reduc
tion 1n this amount compared with the previous year was
mainly due to the new management and portfolio structure
introduced on January 1, 2015 In this context, the segment
was defined essentially as a product-oriented, energy and
raw matenal intensive supplier that will in future concentrate
on securing and extending its good market positions This
included resllocation of operations between the segments,
see Note 9 1, which had a negative impact on the difference
between the recoverable amount and carrying amount of the
Performance Materials segment The recoverable amount
would correspond to the carrying amount of the segment If
the weighted average cost of capital after taxes increased by
0 4 percentage points, or if there was a reduction of 50 per-
cent in the net cash flow or of 0 5 percentage points in the
terminal growth rate

tn the Nutrition & Care, Resource Efficiency and Services
segments, a relative increase in the weighted average cost of
caputal after taxes of 10 percent or a reduction of 10 percent
in the net cash flow or terminal growth rate would not result
in an impairment loss

(b) Impairment testing of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets may only be recognized if it 15 probable
that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future
Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax
rates applicable on the date when temporary differences are
likely to be reversed If these expectations are not met, an
imparrment loss must be recognized in income for the
deferred tax assets

(€) Uncertain income tax positions

Group companies are hable to pay income tax in many coun-
tries around the world When evaluating global income tax
assets and liabihties, there may be some uncertainty relating,
In particular, to the interpretation of tax regulations It cannot

be ruled out that the fiscal authonties will take a d\fferent
view on the correct interpretation of tax regulations Changes
In assumptions regarding the correct interpretation of tax
regulations, for example, as a result of changes in legal dea-
sions, are reflected tn the recogrition of uncertain Income tax
assets and liabihties for the corresponding fiscal year

{d) Impatrment of other assets
Estimates are made about the usefu! ife, depreciatron/amor-
tization period and value of other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, investments, and loans and receivables
These estimates are based on experience and planning data,
which contain assumptions on business conditions, sector
trends and the creditworthiness of customers

If there 15 3 considerable change 1n such assumptions or
arcumstances, the estimates have to be reviewed This may
result in impairment of the related assets

{e) Valuation of provisions for pensions

and other post-employment benefits
The valuation of provisions for pensions and other post-
employment benefits 1s subject, among other things, to
assumptions about discount rates, expected future salary and
pensian increases, the cost trend for healthcare, and mortality
tables The actual data may differ from these assumptions
as a result of changes in economic or market conditions
Sensitivity depends on the interest rate as of December 31 of
the respective fiscal year, which 1s used as the discount rate,
see Note 7 8

A reduction of 1 percentage point in the Group-wide
discount rate, assuming other parameters rematn unchanged,
would increase the present value of the defined benefit obli-
gation by €1,906 million (2014 €1,976 milhon) Conversely,
increasing the discount rate by 1 percentage point, assuming
other parameters do not change, would decrease the defined
benefit obligation by €1,456 milhon {2014 €1,518 million)

A reduction of 1 percentage point in the assumed Group-
wide salary increases would reduce the defined benefit
obligation by €152 mithon (2014 €185 million) Conversely,
assuming other parameters remain unchanged, a nse of 1 per-
centage point in the assumed Group-wide salary fises would
increase the defined benefit obligation by €175 million (2014
€198 million)
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The assets and liabihties must be measured 1n accordance
with the relevant accounting standards immediately before
imitial classification as held for sale They are subsequently
valued at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell Where the assets and habilities do not fall wathin
the scope of the measurement critena set out n IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Safe and Discontinued Opera-
tions, subsequent revaluation 1s performed n accordance
with the relevant accounting standards

Unless they are classified as discontinued operations, the
results of the valuation and the sale of the asset are stil
included in income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation 1s either a major line of business ar
geographical area of the company that 1s to be sold or shut
down on the basis of a single coordinated plan, either as a
whole or in parts, or a subsidiary acquired with a view to
resale

The income from the operating actwiuies and the measure-
ment and divestment of discontinued operations 1s reported
separately from the continuing operations on the \ncome
statement Similarly, the cash flow from the operating activi-
ties of discontinued operations 1s reported separately from
the continuing operations in the cash flow statement

Determination of fair value

The fair value is the price that would be received for the sale
of an asset or transfer of a hability in an orderly transaction
between market partiipants at the measurement date Itis
therefore an exit price based on a hypothetical transaction on
the reporting date If there are several markets for the asset
or habihty, the principal market or, as a secondary criterion,
the most advantageous market to which the reporting entity
has access 1s used Transaction costs are not included in fair
value They are accounted for as prescribed by the applicable
accounting standard The fair value of non-financial assets s
deterrmined as the best use from a market perspective, this
may differ from current use of the asset In the measurement
of financial assets and habihines, the credit default nisk 1s
taken into account

Fair value measurement 15 based on a three-level hierarchy
Where available, the fair value 15 determined from the quoted
prices for wdentical assets or habibties in an active market
without adjustment (Level 1) If such data are not available,
measurement based on directly or indirectly observable
tnputs 1s used {Level 2} In all other cases, valuation methods
that are not based on observable market data are used
(Level 3) Where input factors from different levels are used,
the level apphicable for the lowest matenal input factor s
determined and the overall fair value 15 assigned to this level

Contingent liabilities, contingent recewvables
and other financial commitments
Contingent habilities, except for those recognized in connec-
tion with a business combination, are possible or present
obligations ansing from past events where an outflow of
resources 15 not imprebable but which are not recognized on
the balance sheet

Contingent receivables are possible assets arising from
past events, which cannot be recognized on the balance
sheet, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events that are not fully under the company’s control A con-
tingent recewvable is indicated where an inflow resulting from
its economic benefits 1s probable

Other financial commitments result from non-onerous
executory contracts, continuous obhigations, statutory require-
ments and other commercial obligations that are not already
included in the habilities shown on the balance sheet or in
contingent hiabihties and that are of significance for an assess-
ment of the company’s financial position

4. Discussion of assumptions and
estimation uncertainties

The preparation of consoldated financial statements involves
assumphions and estimates about the future Evidently, the
sutbsequent circumstances do not always match the estimates
made Adjustments to esumates are recogmzed 1n income as
soon as better information 1s available The estimates and
assumptions that constitute 3 cansiderable risk that the carry-
Ing amounts of assets and habilittes may have to be adjusted
within the next fiscal year are discussed below
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

b) Derwative financial instruments
Denvatve financial instruments are used to hedge the risk of
changes in exchange rates, the price of commodities and
snterest rates Hedging instruments are recogmized on the
balance sheet either on a stand-alone basis or as a valuation
unit with the corresponding hedged items (hedge account-
ing) Initial recognitron 1s on the trading date If no stock
exchange or market price 15 avaitable for the denvative from
an active market, the fair value 1s determined using financiat
vatuation methods The market price of options 1s determined
using established option pricing models Commodity deriva-
tives are valued with the aid of spot pnices and forward rates
while interest rate derivatives are valued by discounting
future cash flows

Stand-alone financial derwatives are assigned to the
category at fair value through profit or loss and classified
as held for trading Financial instruments assigned to this
category are recognized at fair value on each reporting date
Any gan or loss resulting from 2 change in their fair value s
recogmized in the income statement

Both the hedging instrument and the hedged item have to
meet speafic cntena to quahfy for hedge accounting In par-
ticular, hedge accounting requires extensive documentation
of the hedging relattonship, together with evidence that the
expected and actual effectiveness of the hedge 1s between 80
and 125 percent A derivative no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting if these condinions are not fulfilled In the case of
cash flow hedges, hedge accounting must also be halted if
the forecast transaction no longer appears probable In such
cases, the amount recognized in other comprehensive income
i1s reclassified to the income statement

Depending on the type of hedge, hedging instruments
and the associated hedged 1items for which hedge accounting
15 used, are valued as outlined below

The purpose of fair value hedges 1s to hedge the fair value
of assets or liabilities reflected on the balance sheet Changes
in the far value of the hedging mstrument as well as changes
in the fair value of the hedged item are recognized n the
income statement If off-balance-sheet firm commitments are
hedged, changes in the fair value of the firm commitment
resulting from changes in the hedged risk give rise to recog-
mition of an asset or a hability which affects income In view
of this method, changes 1n the value of the hedged item and
the hedge cancel each other out in the Income statement

The purpose of cash flow hedges 1s to minimize the nisk of
volatihty of future cash flows from a recognized asset or
liability or a forecast transaction that 15 considered hughly
probable The effective pertion of changes in the fair value of
a hedging instrument 15 recognized tn other comprehensive
income and the ineffective portion of the change in value 1s
recognized in the income statement Amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement as soon as the hedged item has an impact on the
income statement In the case of interest rate hedges, such
amounts are included I1n net interest iIncome or expense,
while in the case of sales hedges they are included in the
corresponding sales revenues, and hedges on the procure-
ment of goods are included directly in the cost of sales If the
hedged future transaction comprises a non-financial asset or
a non-financial hability, the gan or loss previously recognized
in other comprehensive income 1s included in the cost of acqui-
siion of the asset or liabihty when it1s intially recognized

The purpose of a hedge of 2 net investment 5 to reduce
the foreign currency nisk involved 1n an investment in a com-
pany whose functional currency 1s not the eure Such hedges
are accounted for in the same way as cash flow hedges Gains
and losses recogmized 1n ather comprehensive iIncome are
reclassified to the income statement when the foreign sub-
sidiary is divested or investment in 1t 1s reduced

Leasing

A lease comprises an agreement that transfers the right to
use an asset for a certain penod in return for one or more
payments The Group 1s mainly party to operating leases as
either lessor or lessee The related income and expenses are
recognized In the income statement in the period in which
they are received or incurred

Assets held for sale and the associated habilities
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if the corre-
sponding carrying amount 1s to be reabzed principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continued use
Such assets must be available for immediate sale in their
present condition, on terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets, and sale must be highly probable
If the associated liabilities are to be sold with the asset as part
of the transacticn, these must also be presented separately
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Other rcome taxes for the reporting penod and previous
periods are recogmzed on the basts of the expected payment
or refund They are calculated using the company-speaific tax
rates applicable on the reporting date Uncertain tax assets
and liabilities are recognized as soon as their probabihity of
occurrence 15 more than 50 percent Uncertain income tax
positions are recognized on the basis of their most Likely
amount

Finanoial instruments
Financial instruments compnise contractually agreed rights
and obligatrons resulting in an inflow or outflow of financial
assets or the issue of equity instruments They are divided
into derivative and non-derivative financial instruments and
are recognized on the balance sheet as financial assets or
financial habihties or as trade accounts recewvable or trade
accounts payable

Financial instruments are inibally measured at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs Transaction
costs for fimancial instroments held at fair value through
profit or loss are included directly in the income statement
To measure non-current financial instruments that do not
bear interest at market rates, the expected future cash flows
are discounted to the date of acquisiion using the effective
interest rate (present value) The effective interest rate takes
account of all directly attnibutable fees that are by nature
interest Subsequent measurement ts based on the classifica-
tron of the financial instruments

{a) Non-derivative finanoial instruments
Evonik classifies non-denivative financial instruments as
financial assets in the categories loans and receivables or
avallable-for-sale They are initially recognized at the settle-
ment date Financial assets are derecognized when the con-
tractual rights to receive payments lapse or are transferred
and Evonik has transferred substantialiy all opportunities and
risks associated with ownership There were no instances
where the Group sold financial assets and the assets were still
reported in the financial statements on the basis of continuing
involvement

Non-derivative financtal instruments that constitute finan-
cial habilities are recognized at amortized cost Financial
liabilities are derecognized when the obligation has been
settled or canceled, or has expired

The categones used by the Group are outlined below

Loans and receivables principally comprise trade accounts
receivable and loans The assets asstgned to this category are
valued at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method If there are objective indications based on histonical
empinical values that it will not be possible to collect the
full amounts due under the customary conditions, an impair-
ment loss 1s recogmzed This 1s measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the esimated fuiure payments calculated using the
onginal effective interest rate Impatrment losses are recag-
mized in the income staternent |f the onginal reason for the
impairment loss no longer apphes, it 1s reversed to income,
but only up to the amortized cost

Available-for-sale assets comprise equity instruments that
are not consolidated or recognized at equity, and other secu-
rities |f no fair value 1s available for such assets or the fair
value cannot be determined rehiably, for example, in the case
of equity instruments that are not listed on a stock exchange,
the assets are recogmized at amoruzed cost Changes in the
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,
taking into account deferred taxes Financial assets are exam-
ined for objective indications of impairment on every report-
ing date A material or lasting reduction i the fair value to
below the cost of acquisition 1s regarded as an indication of
impairment In the case of equities, a decline in the fair value
of at least 20 percent compared with the cost of acquisition 1s
regarded as matenal In such cases, the corresponding losses
are derecognized from other comprehensive tncome and
recognized 1n the income statement {f the reason for the
impairment loss no longer applies, the reversal 1s recognized
in other comprehensive income QOnly debt instruments that
are allocated to this category are wnitten back by up to the
amount of the onginal impairment in the income statement
Impairment losses are not reversed If they apply to invest-
ments and other financial assets whose fair value cannot be
rehably determined

The category at amortized cost mainly refers to trade
accounts payable and leans The liabihties assigned to this
category are valued at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method
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Changes that anise during a year as a result of actuanal gans/
losses relating to pension obligations, income from plan assets
{excluding interest income), changes in the asset ceiling
{excluding interest cost) and income from claims to refunds
{excluding interest tncome) are offset directly in other com-
prehensive income

The benefit obligations at year end are compared with
the fair value of the plan assets (funded status) Pension
provisions are derived from this, taking the asset celling :nto
account

Defined contnbution plans result 1n an expense in the
peried tn which the contribution 1s made Defined contribu-
tion plans exist for both company pension plans and state
pension plans (statutory penston insurance)

Other provisions
Other provistons are habilities of uncertain ttming or amount
They are established to cover a present legal or constructive
obhgation to third parties based on past events that wili prob-
ably lead to a cash outflow If there are severat obhgations of
the same type, the probability of a cash outflow s calculated
for these obhigations as an aggregate It must also be possible
to reliably estimate the leve! of the obligation

Provisions are based on the probable settlement obliga-
tions and take account of future cost increases Non-current
provisions are discounted Current provisions and the current
portion of non-current provisions are not discounted Provi-
sions are adjusted over time to take account of new findings

Reversals of provistons are recognized as income n the
functional areas to which the onginal expense for the provi-
s1on was charged

Long-Term Incentive Plans are included in personnel-
related provisions These are performance-related remuner-
ation plans for Evonik’s executives and members of the Exec-
utive Board The resulting obhgations are determined as a
cash compensation payment and expensed in accordance
with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Restructuring provisions are only established (f construc-
tive oblhigations exist on the basis of a formal, detailed plan
and those affected have been given justifizble expectations
that the restructuring will be carried out

Provisions relating to legal nisks are allocated to the various
categories of provisions on the basis of their type They
contain appropriate expenses for, e g court and lawyers’
fees, payments to plaintiffs and any payments for settlement
or indemnity The level of such provisions 15 based, among
other factors, on the type of dispute or claim, status of the
legal proceedings, the opinion of lawyers, experience of
comparable cases and probability assumptions

Deferred taxes, other income taxes
In compliance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes, deferred tax assets
and lhabilities are established for temporary valuation and
recognition differences between the assets and liabdities
recogrized in the balance sheets prepared for tax purposes
and those prepared in accordance with IFRS Tax-deductible
loss carryfowards that will probably be utiized 1n the future
are capitahized at the amount of the deferred tax asset, taking
Into account whether they can be carried forward for a
limited or unlimited period The recogritron of deferred tax
assets at companies with tax-deductible loss carryforwards is
based, on the one hand, on current planning calculations,
which are normally for a five-year penod, and on the other
hand, the avallability of sufficient temporary tax differences
Deferred tax assets are recognized where 1t is probable that
future taxable income will be generated, which can cover
these temporary differences Where the realization of deferred
tax assets is unhkely, they are written down

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are netted if the com-
pany 1s permitted to net other income tax assets and habilities
and if the deferred tax assets and habilites relate to income
taxes in the same tax junsdiction

The tax rates used to calculate deferred taxes are those
vahd under current legislation or that have been announced
as being applicable as of the date when the temporary
differences will probably be settled The overall tax rate
used to calculate deferred taxes for compantes in Germany 15
30 percent In addition to 15 percent German corporation tax,
the tax rate includes a solidanty surcharge of 55 percent of
the German corporation tax and average trade tax of around
14 percent The tax rates used for foreign companies are their
national tax rates These vary between 10 percent {Hungary)
and 40 percent (USA)
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Investments recognized at equity
Associates and joint ventures are generally recognized using
the equity method «f Evenik 1s able to exert a significant
influence or exercises joint control

Initially they are measured at cost of acquisiion The cost
of acquisiion also contains all ancillary acquisiion costs
directly attributable to the investment

For minal measurement, the difference between the cost
of acquisition and the investor’s share in the investee’s equity
must be determined This 1s then analyzed to see whether 1t
contains hidden reserves or hidden liabiliies Any positive
difference remaining after allocation of hidden reserves or
habilities 1s treated as goodwill and recogrized in the carrying
amount of the investment Negative differences are included
in income by increasing the carrying amount of the investment

Starting from the cost of acquisition of the investment,
n subsequent periods 1S carmying amount 1s ncreased or
reduced by the investor’s share in the investee’s net income
Further adjustments to the carrying amount of the invest-
ment are necessary If the equity of the investment aiters as
a result of items contained in other comprehensive income
Subsequent measurement must take into account deprecia-
tion of the hidden reserves identfied at the tme of initial
recognition, which must be deducted from the investor’s
share in the investee’s net income To avoid dual recogrution,
any dividends receved must be deducted from the carrying
amount

If there are indications of a possible impairment, the
investment must be tested for impairment, see Note 37
“impairment test” There is no separate impairment test for
the goodwill Rather, the impairment test 1s performed for
the entire carrying amount of the investment Accordingly,
impairment losses are not allocated to the goodwill included
1n the carrying amount of the investment and can thus be
reversed in full in subsequent periods

(nventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net reahz-
able value The histarical cost of acquisition or production
15 the upper limit The net realizable value corresponds to
the selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
production and selling expenses incurred prior to sale The cost
of inventories of similar structure or for smilar applications s

determined uniformly as an average or using the first-in
first-out method The cost of production of finished goods
and work in progress compnses the cost of raw matenals and
supphes, directly attnbutable personnel expenses, other
direct costs and fixed and vanable overheads that can be
systematically assigned to production (based on normal oper-
ating capacity) The cost of inventones may also contain
gans and losses from cash flow hedges entered into to hedge
the exchange rates or price of goods 1n connection with the
procuremnent of raw materials and which were included tn
other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehen-
sive income until they were reclassified to the inventories
acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

This item contains checks, cash and cash equivalents and
balances held at banks 1 also contamns hghly hguid financial
instruments with a maturity, calculated as of the date of
purchase, of no more than three months, provided that they
can be converted into ¢ash and cash equivalents at any time
and are only subject to neghgible fluctuations in value They
are measured at fair value

Provisions for pensions and other
post-employment benefits
Provisions for pensions and other post-empioyment benefits
are measured using the projected unit credit method for de-
fined benefit obligations in accordance with IAS 19 Employee
Benefits This method takes account of future salary and
pension increases as well as pension obligations and accrued
entitlements as of the reporting date In Germany, valuation
15 based on the brometric data in the 2005 G mortality tables
published by Klaus Heubeck For the companies in the UK,
the S1PXA tables are used, and for the USA PPA mortabty
tables are used Pension obligabions in the remainder of the
Group are determined using country-specific parameters and
measurement princples

Actuanal gains and losses relating to pension obligations
and income from plan assets (apart from taterest income) are
derived from the difference between the expected pension
obligations and the actual obligation calculated at year end,
and from deviations between the expected and actual fair
value of plan assets calculated at year end
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The impairment test comprises comparing the recaverable
amount of the CGU/group of CGUs with uts carrying
amount The recoverable amount is determined as the higher
of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use of
the CGU/group of CGUs An impairment loss 1s recognized
if the recoverable amount of a CGU /group of CGUs 15 below
its carrying amount The impairment loss 1s reversed—except
in the case of goodwill—f the reason for the original impar-
ment charge no longer apphies

When testing goodwill for impairment, the recoverable
value of goodwill 1s determined from the fair value less costs
of disposal of the relevant segment The fair value less costs
of disposal 1s determined as the present value of future cash
flows using a valuation model and on the basis of non-
observable inputs (Level 3 of the farr value hierarchy) Future
cash flows are derived from the current three-year mid-term
plan The mid-term planning 1s based on a mixture of expe-
rience and expectations of future market trends The main
economic data, such as growth in gross domestic product, the
development of exchange rates, raw matenal and energy

prices and the increase 1n wages and salanes used in the mid-
term planmng are derived from internal and external market
expectations and are set centrally by Evonik The specific
growth rates for individual segments are derived from expe-
nence and future expectations, a terminal growth rate is also
assumed

The expected future cash flows are discounted using the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) after taxes WACC
15 determined for each segment on the basis of a capital asset
pricing model and 1s the weighted average cost of debt and
equity The cost of equity 15 determined from the nsk-free
interest rate and a nsk premium Anidentical thirty-year nsk-
free interest rate ts used for all segments The risk premium
15 derived by muitiplying the beta factor by the market risk
premium The cost of debt comprises a nsk-free interest rate
plus a premium for the credit risk, taking into account the
average tax rate

The beta factor, the credit nisk premium and the capital
structure are obtained from the capital market by comparison
with the values for the peer group for the segment

Parameters used in impairment testing and allocation of goodwill by segment

WACC after taxes (in %) Termnal growth rate (in %)  Goodwall (in € milhien)

Dec 11, Dec 31,

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Nutntion & Care 719 70 150 150 1,023 1,021
Resource Efficiency 838 928 130 150 1,185 892
Performance Matenals 883 858 150 150 492 7
Services 816 831 150 150 63 51
Corparate, other operations 775 806 150 150 - 14

The carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated among the
segments for the purpose of impairment testing The good-
will allocated to the three chemical segments principally
relates to earlier acquisitions of shares in Evonik Degussa
GmbH (Evonik Degussa), Essen (Germany) In the segment
reporting, 1t 1s assigned to “Corporate, consolidation” Changes
in the allocation of this goodwill compared with the previous

year resulted from the reorganization of various activities, see
Note 1 All other goodwll s recogrized immedsately in the
segments

For impairment testing of other intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, the recoverable amount 1s
normally determined by calculating the value in use of the
CGU/group of CGUs
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Franchises, trademarks and licenses are amortized over their
estimated useful life of between S and 25 years using the
straight-line method Some nights have an indefinite useful
life These are trademarks with no restrictions on their use
They are tested annually for impairment and to check that their
useful hfeis still indefinite If the assessment of the useful ife
of such trademarks has altered and 1s reclassified as finite,
their carrying amounts are amortized over their estimated
remaining useful hife using the straight-ine method

Development costs are capitalized if they can be clearly
assigned to a newly developed product or process that 15
technically feasible and 1s designated for captive use or
commerciahzation Capitalized development costs mainly
relate to the development of new products and are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful Iife
of between 3 and 15 years

The majonty of other intangible assets are acquired cus-
tomer relationships These are amortized over their expected
useful hfe Their useful Iife 1s estmated on the basis of
contractual data and experience and 1s generally between 2
and 11 years Amortization takes account of bath useful Life
and probabity of continuance of the customer relationship in
the form of a churn rate

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at acquisition or
production cost and depreciated over their useful life If there
are indications of a possible rmpairment, an impairment test
is conducted as outhned sn Note 3 7 "Impairment test”

The cost of acquisition Includes expenses dwectly
attributable to the acquisition The cost of production of
self-manufactured assets compnises all direct costs, plus the
systemnatically allocable fixed and vanable matenal costs
and manufacturing overheads Costs relating to obligations to
dismantle or remove non-current assets at the end of their
useful iife are capitalized as acquisition or production costs at
the tme of acquisition or production

Acquisition and production costs may also include transfers
from gans and losses on cash flow hedges entered into to
hedge foreign currency exposures in connection with the
purchase of plants, which were recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income until they were reclassified to
property, plant and equtpment

Borrowing costs that can be allocated directly to the acquisi-
tion, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
included n the cost of acquisition or production A quahfying
asset 15 an asset for which more than a year is required to get
it ready for its intended use

Government grants for the purchase or construction of
property, plant and equipment reduce the cost of acquisition
or production of such assets They are reflected in the income
statement over the usefu! life of the assets through lower
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are deprectated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful life of the
assets

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

in years

Buwildings 5-50
Plant 2nd machinery 2-25
Other plant, offica furniture and equipment 3-25

If major components of an asset have different useful lives,
they are recognized and depreciated separately

Spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the require-
ments for recogmtion as property, plant and equipment are
recogmized as such, rather than as inventories Minor repairs
and other maintenance work are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred

If there 1s a hugh probabihity that the project will be real-
1zed, costs incurred for planning and pre-engineering work
for capital expenditure projects are capitalized Depreciation
15 recognized tn line with the useful Iife of the project

Gains and losses from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds of sale and the carrying amount and recognized in
other operating income or other aperating expenses

Impairment test

If there are indications of possible impairment, an impairment
test 1s conducted on intangible assets, property plant and
equipment 1n accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life are tested for impairment at least once 3 year The
impairment test 0n such assets 1s generally conducted for
a cash-generating unit (CGU), which s the smallest identifi-
able group of assets that generates independent cash flows,
or for a group of CGUs
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Exchange rates

Average annual rates Closmng rates

Dec N, Dec 31,
€1 corresponds to 2018 2074 2058 2014
Brazihian real (BRL) 370 312 43 322
Bntish pound (GBP) 073 [ X:1] 073 078
Chinese renminbi yuan (CNY) 699 8137 708 754
Japanese yen (JPY) 134 52 140 B3 13107 145 23
Singapore dollar (SGD) 153 168 154 161
US dollar {USD) 11 133 109 in

3.7 Accounting policies
Revenue recognition

(a) Sales
Sales revenues anse from normal business activity

The Nutriion & Care, Resource Efficiency and Perfor-
mance Materials segments mainly generate sales by selling
specialty chemicals to industrial customers for further pro-
cessing The Services segment principally provides services
for the chemicals businesses, the management holding com-
pany, and external customers at Evonik’s sites, for further
details see Note 91

Prices are contractually agreed between the parties to a
transaction Sales revenues are measured as the fair value of
the consideration received or to be recerved less value-added
tax and any discounts or bulk rebates granted The general
principle for revenue recognition is that both the revenues
and the related costs can be measured reliably It must also be
sufficiently probable that the economic benefit will flow to
the company

Revenues from the sale of products are recognized,
assuming that the general prinaiples for revenue recogmition
are met, when the matn opportunities and risks associated
with title to the products pass to the customer This 1s gener-
ally determined by the international terms for commeraal
transactions (Incoterms®) Prowisions are established for
general nsks ansing from such sales on the basis of previous
experience

Revenues from services are recognized, assuming that the
general principles for revenue recogrition in the period are
met, when the percentage of completion can be rehably
measured Where the provision of services extends over
more than one reporting penod, revenues are recognized
proportionately to the total service to be provided

(b) Other revenues
Other revenues are only recognized if they can be determined
reliably and it 15 sufficiently probable that the economic
benefit will flow to the company

Interest income Is recogrzed on a pro rata temporis basts
using the effective interest method Income from royalties 1s
accrued on the basis of the commeraal terms of the under-
lying contract and recognized on a pro rata basis Dividend
income 15 recognized as of the date of the nght to receipt of
the payment

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are capitalized at acquisition or production
cost Intangible assets with a fimite useful hife are amortized
and an impairment test 1s conducted f there are indications
of a possible impairment, see Note 37 “Impairment test”
Depending on the type of intangible asset, amortization
15 recogrized in the cost of sales, selling expenses, research
and development expenses or general admimistrative
expenses Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are
not amortized, instead they are tested for impairment at least
once a year

Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and 1s tested for.
impairment at least once a year
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Changes in shareholdings 1n a previously consolidated sub-
sidiary that do not result in a loss of control are recognized
directly in equity as a transaction between owners In this
case, the shares attnbutable to the owners of the parent
company and to the other shareholders are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their respective stakes In the subsidiary Any
difference between this adjustment and the fair value of the
consideration paid or recewed 15 recogmzed directly n equity
and allocated to the shares attributable to the owners of
the parent company Directly related transaction costs are
also recognized as a transaction between owners that has no
impact on income, with the exception of costs for the 1ssu-
ance of debt or equity instruments, which are stitl measured
In accordance with the criteria for recogrizing financial
instruments Cash inflows and outflows relating to these
transactions are presented in the cash flow from financing
actites

A subsidiary must be deconsolidated as of the date on
which control is lost The net assets of the subsidiary and
the nan-controlhing interests (in other words, the parent
company's share in the net assets of the subsidiary) are
derecognized The gain or loss on the divestments must be
calculated from the Group viewpomnt It s derived from the
difference between the proceeds of the divestment (setiing
price less costs to sell) and the parent company’s share in the
divested net assets of the subsidiary (incleding the remaining
hidden reserves and liabihties, and any goodwill shown on
the balance sheet) The shares in the former subsidrary still
held by Evonik are revalued at fair value as of the date on
which control is lost All resulting gains and losses are recog-
nized in the income statement as other operating iIncome or
other operating expenses In addition, amounts shown in
equity under accumulated other comprehensive mcome are
also reclassified to the income statement, except where
another accounting standard requires direct transfer to reve-
nue reserves

Intragroup income and expenses, profits, losses, recevables
and hiabilities between consolidated subsidiaries are fully
eliminated In the case of joint operations, elimination 1s pro
rata Write-downs on shares in such companies recegnized in
the separate financial statements are reversed

Jont operations are recognized in the consohdated finanaal
statements at the proportionate amount of their assets and
habilities, revenues and expenses in accordance with Evonik’s
nghts and obligations

The same consolidation principles apply for comparies
accounted for using the equity method In this case, any good-
will1s recognized in the carrying amount of the investment
The financtial statements of the compames recognized at
equity are prepared using uniform accounting and valuation
principles, see Note 3 7 *investments recognized at equity”

3.6 Currency translation

The financial statements of Evonik Industries AG and its sub-
stdiaries are generally prepared in their functional currency
The functional currency 15 the currency used 1n the pnmary
economic area In which the respective company operates

In the separate financial statements prepared by these
companies, business transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rate on the date of initial recogmi-
tion Any gains or losses resulting from the valuation of mon-
etary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are recognized
in other operating income, other operating expenses, or
other financial result at the closing rate on the reporting date

In the consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabihties of all foreign subsidiaries are translated from their
functronal currency into euros at closing rates on the report-
ing date Goodwilf and hidden assets and habilines from the
acquisition of a foreign subsidiary are translated at the closing
rate as assets and habilites of the foreign subsidiary Income
and expense items are translated at average exchange rates
for the year The average annual exchange rates comprise the
mean of the exchange rates at month-end over the past 13
months Translation differences compared to the prior year
and translation differences between the income statement
and balance sheet are recognized in other comprehensive
income They are only reclassified to the income statement
when the foreign subsidiary 1s divested

The equity of foreign comparues recognized using the
equity method 15 translated in the same way
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The following prior-period items have been restated

Impact of changes in the presentation of the
consolidated income statement of the Evonik Group
{excerpt)

2014
Impact of
€ million change
Other operating income -450
Other operating expenses 457
Result feom mvestments recognized at equity 14
income before finanaal result and income taxes,
continuing operations k3]
Result from mvestments recognized at equity -14
OCther financial income =17
Financial result -31
Income before income taxes, continuing operations -

There was no impact on net income or on basic or diluted
earnings per share

For reasons of materiality, \nvestment property, which
was previously shown as a separate line item on the balance
sheet, is now included 1in property, plant and equipment As
of December 31, 2015, investment property amounting to
€10 muilion (2014 €10 milhon) was included 1n thes item

With effect from January 1, 2015, the determination of the
discount rate used to value newly acquired pension entitle-
ments (service cost) in the euro zone was adjusted While the
discount rate for service cost was previously denived from
total cash flows relating to pension entitlements (present
employees, vested rights of former employees, retirees), 1t)s
now based on cash flows relating to present employees, since
only they acquire new entitlements

Before this change, the discount rate as of January 1, 2015
would have been 2 50 percent The new discount rate for
newly acquired entitlements 1s 2 75 percent The service cost
was therefore €15 million lower as of December 31, 2015 As
a change in estimation, this adjustment 1s entirely prospective

3.5 Consolidation methods and scope
of consolidation

Scope of consolidation
Alongside Evonik Industries AG, all matenal German and for-
eign subsidiaries directly or indirectly controlled by Evornk
Industries AG are fully consolidated in the consolidated finan-
aal statements of Evornk Industries AG Evonik Industries AG
controls a company if it 1s exposed to, or has rights to, var-
able returns from its invelvement with the company and has
the ability to affect those returns through 1ts power over the
company

Joint operations are included in the consolidated financial
statements on a pro rata basis A joint operation 15 an
arrangement where the parties that have joint control have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the Liabilities, refating
to the arrangement

Joint ventures and associates are generally recogmized at
equity A joint venture 1s a joint arrangement where the
Group has joint control, together with other parties, and has
rights to the net assets of the arrangement Associates are
companies where the Evonik Group has a significant influence
but does not have control or joint control of financial and
operating polictes

Compantes whose influence on the assets, financial
position and earmings of the Group, both indwvidually and in
aggregate, 15 negligible are carned at amortized cost

Changes in the scope of consohdation are outlined In
Note 51

Consolhdation methods
The financial statements of the consclidated German and
foreign subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting
and valuation principles

Capital 1s consohdated at the time of acquisition by offset-
ting the carrying amount of the business acquired against the
pro rata revalued equity of the subsidiary Ancillary acguisi-
tion costs are not included in the carrying amount of the
subsidhary Instead they are recogrized as expense in the
income statement The assets and habtlities {net assets) of the
subsidiary are included at their fair values If shares in the
subsidiary are held before acquining control, they must be
revalued and any resultant change 1n value must be recog-
nized in the Income statement in other operating iIncome or
other operating expenses Gans or losses recognized in other
comprehensive income must be derecognized in the same
way as If the acquirer had divested the shares previously held
Any remaining excess of the acquisition cost over the fair
value of the net assets 1s recognized as goodwill Negative
differences are included in income following a renewed
examination of the fair vatue of the net assets
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Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory

Standard
a lssued by the IASB

b Effective date as per IASB

¢ Effective date as per EU

d Publication in the Officiat Journat of the EU

Y. o oy

Subject of standard—Expected impact on the lid

Annual Improvement a Sep 25,2014 | Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle contains amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19
Process (IFRSs b Jan 1, 2016 and |AS 34 They comprise improvements and clanfication of existing standards The amendments
2012-2014 Cycle) ¢ Jan 17,2016 are not currently relevant for the consolidated financial statements
d Dec. 16, 2015
Amendments to 1AS 1 a Dec 18,2014 | Through these amendments the IASB eliminates uncertainty relating to the apphication of the
Disclosure lnitiative b Jan 1,206 matenality principle sutlined n 1AS 1, and the subdivision of items in the balance sheet and statement
¢ jan 1, 2016 of comprehensive fncome Further clarifications and improvements relate to the presentation of
d Dec 19,2015 sub-totals, the structure of disclosures tn the notes to the financial statements, and information on
significant accounting policies These amendments only affect the disclosures in the notes to the
consohidated finanoial statements
IFRS 14 Leases a Jan 13,2016 The new standard has far-reaching implications for the recognition of leases by the lessee Under
b Jan 1, 2019 IAS 17, the transfer of substantually all opportunities and nisks of the leased asset was decisive for
¢ open recognition of a lease by the lessee In future, the lessee will generally recogmize each lease on the
d open balance sheet in the form of a night-of-use for the leased asset and a corresponding liability For
lessors, by contrast, the accounting principles are essentially unchanged, espeaally as regards the
continued requirements for the classification of leases IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 and the associated
interpretations IFRIC 4, SIC-15 and SIC-27 The impact on the consolidated Ffinancial statements will
be examined at a later date
Amendments telIAS 12 a Jan 19, 2016 The amendments clanfy the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt
Recogrution of b Jan 1, 2017 instruments recognized at fair value The impact on the consolidated financial statements 1s
Deferred Tax Assets c open currently being examined
for Unrealised Losses d open
Amendments to IAS 7 3 Jan 29,2016 The changes relate to additional disclosure requerernents for notes to financial statements to enable
Statements b Jan 1, 2017 users to evaluate changes in habilities from a company’s financing actvities These amendments
of Cash Flows c open affect the disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
d open

3.4 Changes in presentation, structure
and accounting principles

Effective january 1, 2015, the Executive Board of Evonik
Industries AG altered the management and portfolio struc- -
ture to further improve the opportunities for profitable
growth This has greatly increased the entrepreneunal
independence of the three chemical segments In line with
this, changes have been made to the presentation of the
income statement to ensure clear separation of operational
and financing-related 1ncome and expenses and to better -«
reflect the reorganized responsibilittes Further, this improves

comparability with competitors

The following changes have been made to the presentation

- the result from (nvestments recogrized at equity 1s now
allocated to income before financial result and income
taxes from conunuing operations

greater differentiation in the allocation of income and
expenses from currency translation and currency hedging,
these are recogmized in income before finanaal result and
income taxes from continuing operations where they
relate to the operating business, and tn the financial result
where they relate to financing

more transparent presentation of the econamic signifi-
cance of the results of currency translation and currency
hedging by switching from a gross to a net view '

1 Cf the explanations on currency management and the associated results in Note 102
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Basis of preparation of the finanaal staiemenss

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory

Standard

a lIssued by the IASB

b Effective date as per IASB

¢ Effective date as per EU

d Publication in the Officiat Journal of the Eut

Subjact of standard—Expected impact on the « fidated finandal ts

Amendments to IFRS 11 a May 6, 2014
Accounting for b Jan 1, 2016
Acquisiions of Interests ¢ Jan 1, 2016
n Joint Operations d Nov 25,2015

The amendments clanfy recogmtion of acquisitions of interests in a joint operation where the
Joint operation constitutes a business They stipulate that the principles of accounting for business
combinations (FFRS 3) also apply for the acquisiion of interests in joint operations of this type
This amendment 1 not currently relevant for the consolidated finanaal statements

IFRS 15 Revenue a May 28,2014/
from Contracts Sep 11,2015
with Customers Jan 1, 2018

< open

d open

o

IFRS 15 contains extensive new rules for the recogmition of revenues ansing from contracts with
customers for all sectors A five-step model outhnes in detai aspects such 2s identifying distinct
performance obligations, the level of the expected consideration, taking into account variable price
components, and the distnbution of the expected consideration among the identified performance
obligations There are now uniform criteria to determine whether a performance obhgation is to

be satisfied at a point in time or over ime In addition, IFRS 15 wll result in 2 considerable increase
in disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements This new standard will replace
the following current standards and nterpretations 1A5 17, I1AS 18, IFRIC 13,4FRIC 15, IFRIC 18
and S1C-31 An analysis of contracts has identified 3 possible need for change

A change in the timing of revenue recogrition may result from dentification of an additional
performance obhigation, a change In the assessment of whether revenue 15 realized at a point i time
or over tme, or of the timing of the transfer of control

The following could be identified as separate performance obligations

+ Dosing systems, which were previously transferred as an additional benefit in cornection with
the sale of a product

= Frexght and transportation services provided after transfer of control

- Extended warranties that go well beyond the statutory requirements and contain a service

+ component

- Exclusive sales nghts

An altered assessment of whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in ime or over
ume 15 possible in the following cases

* License agreements

« Development contracts

An altered assessment of the ime of the transfer of control 1s possible for agreements on
consignment warehouses

Further, under IFRS 15 the level of revenues recogrized over the total penod may differ from

previous practice Thisis possible in the following cases

- Prepayments by customers, where it may be necessary to recognize a financing component that
would Increase sales

+ Agreements on the unconditiona! repurchase of products

« Exchange-type transactions between competitors

Finally, the cost of services that are incurred after inception of the contract and can be clearly
assigned to the contract must be capitalized and depreciated over the period of time in which the
associated goods were transferred to the customer or the services were provided This may affect
application technolagy sernces

In the next step, the quantitative impact on the consohdated financial statements will be analyzed
n more detail

IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

July 24,2014
Jan 1,2018
open

open

an oo

IFRS 9 1s the replacement for IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement

The main changes in IFRS 9 comparad with the old standard |AS 39 comprise the introduction of
completely new dlassification and measurement rules for financial assets, the introduction of a

new impairment model which should result in more tmely recogmition of losses, extension of the
permitted hedged items, a modified assessment of the effectiveness of hedge accounting relationships,
and extended information in the notes The impact on the consohdated financial statements 15
currently being exarmined

Amendments to IFRS 10 a Sep 11, 2014/

and IAS 28 Sale or Dec 17,2015
Contribution of Assets b open
between an Investor c open
and 1ts Associate or d open

Jont Venture

The purpose of this amendment 15 to eliminate an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and {AS 28 in the
event of the sale or contribution of assets to an associate or joint venture The amendment provides
that in the future the full gan or loss resulting from such transactions should only be recogmzed if
the assets sold or contnbuted constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 Otherwise, only partial gain
or loss recogmition will be permitted The legal form of the assets sald or contnibuted 15 not relevant
In 2015, the |ASB postponed the date of first-time application indefinitely This amendment 1s not

currently relevant for the consolidated financial statements
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2. General information

Evonik Industries AG 15 an international specialty chemicals
company headquartered in Germany Its reqistered office 1s at
Rellinghauser Strafte 1-71, 45128 Essen {Germany), and the
company 1s registered tn the Commeraal Register at Essen
District Court under HRB No 19474

The present consclidated financial statements of Evonik
Industries AG and 1ts subsidiaries (referred to jointly as
Evoruk or the Group) were prepared by the Executive Board
of Evonik Industries AG at 1ts meeting on February 19, 2016,
discussed at the meeting of the Audit Cornmittee on Feb-
ruary 26, 2016, and presented to the Supervisory Board for
appraval at its meeting on March 2, 2016 The consobdated
financial statements are published in the German Federal
Gazette (Bundesanzeiger)

3. Basis of preparation of the .
financial statements

3.1 Compliance with IFRS

As permitted by Section 315 a Paragraph 1 of the German
Commercial Code (HGBY), the present consohidated financial
statements have been prepared on the basis of the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS} and comply
with these standards The IFRS comprise the standards (IFRS,
IAS} 1ssued by the Internanonal Accounting Standards Board
(1ASB), London (UK} and the interpretations (IFRIC, SIC) of
the IFRS Interpretattons Commuttee {IFRS IC), as adopted by
the European Umon

3.2 Presentation of the
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements cover the period from
January 1to December 31, 2015 and are presented in euros
Alt amounts are stated in millions of euros (€ million) except
where otherwise indicated In some cases, rounding may
mean that the figures tn this repert do not add up exactly to
the totals stated, and percentages do not correlate exactly to
the figures presented

The recognition and valuation principles and items
presented in the consolidated financial statements are In
principle consistent from one period to the next Deviations
from this principle are outlined in Note 3 3 where they
refate to changes 1o accounung standards, and 1n Note 3 4
or the relevant Notes where they relate to other changes To
enhance the clanty of presentatian, some rtems are combined
In the income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, balance sheet and statement of changes in equity
and explained in the Notes

The income statement has been prepared using the cost-
of-sales method Expenses are dvided by function

The statement of comprehensive income s a reconcilia-
tion from income after taxes as shown in the income state-
ment to the Group's total comprehensive income, taking into
account other comprehensive income

On the balance sheet, assets and habilities are classified by
maturity They are classifted as current if they are due or
expected to be realized within twelve months from the
reporting date

The statement of changes in equity shows changes in
the issued capital, reserves attributable to shareholders of
Evonik Industries AG and changes in non-controlling interests
in the reporting penod Transactions with shareholders in
thetr capaaty as owners are also shown separately here

The cash flow statement provides information on the
Group's cash flows The cash flow from operating activities 1s
calculated using the indirect method, where income before
financial result and income taxes from continuing operations
15 adpusted for the effects of non-cash income and expenses
and items that are allocated to investing or finanaing activities
Certain other changes in amounts shown on the balance
sheet are added to the result

The Notes contain basic infermation on the financial
statements, supplementary information on the above compo-
nents of the financial statements and further information such
as the segment report

3.3 New accounting standards

Accounting standards to be applied for the first time
A number of revised and newly 1ssued standards and inter-
pretations had to be applied for the first ime in fiscal 2015
However, they did not have a material impact on the consoli-
dated financial statements

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory

The IASB has 1ssued further accounting standards which did
not become mandatory 1n fiscal 2015 or have not yet been
officially adopted by the European Unton The accounting
standards that could be of relevance for the consclidated
financial statements are outlined below They will probably
be applied for the first time from the date on which they
come into force
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Notes
Segment report
Total Group
Services Other operations Caorporate, consolidation (continuing operations)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2018 2014
828 906 51 104 =10 =35 13,507 12917
1,886 1,865 87 71 -2,194 -2,203 - -
2,715 2,7N 138 175 -2,204 -2,238 13,507 12,917
9 7 1 23 - -13 -15 14
163 151 -81 -54 =257 -223 2,465 1,882
197 167 - - - - 182 146
53 49 -96 ~68 -268 -256 1,752 1,256
565 507 1 801 2,838 2,348 10,530 10,054
94 97 - - - - 166 125
-107 -10 -15 =14 -12 =31 ~-700 -606
177 153 24 20 2 1 877 1,123
6 6 2 64 1 - S0 14
12,668 13,173 3 775 310 162 33,576 33,241
Total Group
Central and South America Asia-Paofic Middle East, Afnca (continuing operations)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 205 2014
954 77 2,860 2,440 462 341 13,507 12,917
32 29 274 250 - - 2,764 2,695
178 172 1,587 1,564 8 10 6,212 5920
67 106 86 323 1 1 877 1,123
668 611 4,751 4,620 161 125 33,576 33,241
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Notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Evonik Group

1. Segment report

Segment report by operating segments Note 91

Nutrition & Care Resource Effiaency Performance Materials

n€million 2Mms 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
External sales 4,924 4,075 4,279 4,040 3,435 3,827
Internal sales 34 27 53 84 133 156
R | Total sales 4,958 4,102 4,332 4,124 3,568 3,983
Result from investments
recognrzed at equity -25 -4 1 3 -1 -
Adjusted EBITDA 1,435 847 B96 836 309 325
Adjusted EBITDA margin in % 291 208 209 207 90 83
Adjusted EBIT 1,214 685 675 642 174 204
Capital employed (annual average) 2,923 2,527 2,726 2,474 1,467 1,397
ROCE in % 415 271 248 259 119 14 6
Depreciation and amortization® =212 =157 -222 -194 -132 -109
Capital expenditures® 250 458 241 273 183 218
Financial investments 5 2 54 42 22 -
No of employees as of December 31 7165 6,943 8,662 7,835 4,380 4,353
Prior year figures restated
* For intangible assets, property, plant and equip Forthe seq of impawrment losses and reversals of impatrment losses, see Notes § Jand 6 4
Segment report by regions Note 92
Germany QOther European tountries Horth Amenca
in €million 2015 2074 2015 2014 2015 2014
External sales 2,436 2,814 4,148 4,235 2,647 2,310
Goodwill as of December 31° 1,542 1,542 546 544 370 330
Other intangible assets, property plant
and equipment as of December 31" 2,832 2,777 555 534 1,052 B&3
Capital expenditures 427 419 88 133 208 141
No of employees as of December 31 21,514 21,435 2,681 2,741 3,801 3,70%

Prior-year figures restated
* Non-currens assets according 1o IFRS 8 33 b




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS MANAGEMENT REPORT

Statement of changes in equity
Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement for the Evonik Group

* CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

€ million Note 2015 2014
Income before financial result and iIncome taxes, continuing operations 1,664 1077
Depreciation, amortization, imparrment losses/reversal of impairment losses on non-current assets 764 656
Result from investments recognized at equity 15 -14
Gainsf/losses on the disposal of non-current assets -144 -4
Change in nventories 52 -%0
Change in trade accounts recewvable -44 -29
Change 1o trade accounts payable and current advance payments receved from customers -18 23
Change in provisions for pensians and other post-employment benefits -162 -165
Change in other provisions 111 -43
Change in miscellaneous assets fiabilines 92 =70
Cash outflows for interest -67 -114
Cash inflows from interest 22 13
Cash inflows from dividends 19 20
Cash inflows foutfiows for Income taxes -336 -230

Cash flow from operating activities, continuing operations 1,968 1.035
Cash flow from operating activilies, discontinued operatons 3 N

Cash flow from operating activities 81 1IN 1,066
Cash outflows for investments in intangible assets, property, plant and equipment -916 -1,095
Cash outflows for investments in shareho!dings =70 -114
Cash inflows from divestments of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment 13 17
Cash inflows/outflows from divestment of shareholdings 4 578
Cash inflows foutflows relating to securities, deposits and loans 1M 248
Transfers to the pension trust fund (CTA) =219 -209

Cash flow from investing activities, continuing operations -860 =575
Cash flow from investing activities, discontinued operations - -1

Cash flow from investing actrvities B2 -660 -576
Cash inflows foutflows relating to capital contributions 3 -
Cash outflows for dividends to shareholders of Evomik Industries AG -466 -466
Cash outflows for dnadends to non-controlling interests -1 -5
Cash outflows for the purchase of treasury shares -4 -13
Cash inflows from the sale of treasury shares 15 13
Cashinflows from the addition of financial habiliies 844 207
Cash outflows for repayment of financial habilities -238 -89

Cash flow from financing activitios, continuing operations 133 =-1,155
Cash flow from financing activities, discontinued operations - -

Cash flow from financing activities 133 -1,155%

Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,444 -665

Cash and cash equivalents as of january 1 921 1,572
Change in ¢ash and cash equivalents 1,444 -655
Changes in exchange rates and other changes in cash and cash equivalents 3 14

Cash and cash equivalents as on the balance sheet as of December 31 83 2,368 I

Prior-year figures restated
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Statement of changes in equity

Statement of changes in equity for the Evonik Group Note77

Accurnulated Attnbutable to Attnbutable
other com-  shareholders to non-
Caprtal  Accumulated Treasury prehensive of Evorik controlling Total
n € million Issued capital reserve incorne shares mcome  Industnies AG tnterests equity
As of January 1, 2014 466 1,165 5,547 - -420 6,758 78 £,836
Caputal increases/decreases - - - - - - - -
Drndend distribution - - ~466 - - ~466 -5 -47
Purchase of treasury shares - - - -13 - -13 - ~13
Share-based payment - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Sale of treasury shases - -3 - 13 - 10 - 10
income after taxes - - 568 - - 568 13 581
Other comprehensive
income after taxes - - -601 - 179 -422 6 -416
Total comprehensive income - - -33 - 179 146 19 165
Other changes - - -8 - -3 -1 3 -8
As of Decembaer 31, 2014 456 1165 5,040 - -244 6,427 95 6,512
Capital increases /decreases - - - - - - 3 3
Dwidend distribution - - -466 - - =466 -1 -477
Purchase of treasury shares - - - =14 - -14 - -14
Share-based payment - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Sale of treasury shares - -2 - 14 - 12 - 12
Income after taxes - - 991 - - 991 11 1,002
Other comprehensive
income after taxes - - 253 - 286 539 1 540
Total comprehensive income - - 1,244 - 286 1,530 12 1,542
Other changes - - 3 - -2 1 =16 -15
As of December 31, 2015 4566 1,166 5821 - 40 7,493 83 7576
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Balance sheet
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n € million Note Dec 31,2015 Dec 31,2014
Issued capital 466 466
Capital reserve 1,166 1,165
Accumulated income 5,821 5,040
Accumulated other comprehensive income 40 -244
Equrty attributabla to shareholders of Evonik Industries AG 7.493 6,427
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests B3 95

Equity 77 7,576 6,522
Provisions for pensions and other post-employment benefits 78 3,349 3,953
Other provisions 79 854 903
Deferred taxes 712 479 449
Other income tax liab/lities 712 150 199
Financial habilives i 710 1,415 666
Other payables 711 106 ral

Non-current hiabilities 6,353 6,241
Other provisions 79 1177 957
Other income tax liabiiities 712 209 105
Financial habilities 710 291 469
Trade accounts payable PN 1,090 1126
Other payables 711 309 247

3,076 2,904

Liabditres associated with assets held for sale 53 - 18
Current labifities 3,076 2,922
Total aqurty and habilrties 17,005 15,685

Prior-year figures restated
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Balance sheet

Balance sheet for the Evonik Group

in € million Note Dec 3%, 2015 Dec 31,2014
Intangible assets 71 3,168 3,100
Property, plant and equipment 72 5,808 5,515
Investments recognized at equity 73 33 357
Fmancna‘l assets 74 116 83
Deferred taxes 712 1,110 3,127
Current income tax assets 712 M M
— Qther recewables 76 54 58
Non-current assets 10,320 10,251
Inventones 75 1,763 1,778
Current income tax assets 712 1 k|
Trade accounts receivable 76 1813 1,720
Other recevables 76 265 303
Financial assets 74 365 449
Cash and cash equivalents 813 2,368 b4l
6,685 £,382
Assets held for sale 53 - 52
Current sssots 6,685 5,434
y
Total assets 17,005 15,685

Pror year figures restated
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Income statement
Suatement of comprehensive income

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of comprehensive income for the Evonik Group

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

n € million 2015 2014
Income after taxes 1,002 581
Comprehensive income that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 287 185
Gainsflosses on available-for-sale securities 4l =1
Gains flosses on hedging instruments 32 -142
Currency translation adjustment 245 295
Attributable to the equity method (after income taxes) . 6 -
Deferred taxes -17 43
Comprehensive tncome that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 253 -601
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit hability for defined benefit pension plans 361 -844
Attributable to the equity method (after income taxes) -4 -7
Deferred taxes -104 250
Other comprehensive income after taxes 540 -416
Total comprehensive income 1,542 143
thereof attnbutable to
Non-controlling interests 12 19
Shareholders of Evomk Industries AG 1,530 146
Total comprehensive income attnbutable to shareholders of Evomk Industries AG 1,530 146
thereof attnbutable to
continuing operations 1,547 156
discontinued operations =17 -0
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Income statement

Income statement for the Evonik Group

in € pmilion Note 2015 2014
Sales 61 13,507 12,97
Cost of sales 62 -9,096 -9,308
Gross profit on salas 4411 3,609
Selling expenses 62 =1,447 -1,289
Research and development expenses 62 ~434 -413
General admimistrative expenses 62 -693 =601
Other operating income 63 445 250
Other operating expenses 64 -603 -493
Result from investments recognized at equity 65 =15 14

Income before financial result and income taxes, continuing operstions 1,664 1,077
Interest mncome 46 71
interest expense -243 -289
Other financial income/expense ~24 -17
Financal result 66 -223 -235

Income beforg income taxes, continuing operstions 1441 842
Income taxes 67 -422 -252

Income sfter taxes, continuing operations 1019 590
Income after taxes, discontinued operations 53 =17 -9

Income after taxes 1,002 5
thereof attributable to

Non-controlling interests 1M 13
Shareholders of Evorik Industries AG (net income) 991 568
Earnings per share in € (basic and diluted) 68 +213 +122

Prior-year figures restated
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11.2 OQutlook

Basis for our forecast

- Globa! growth of 2 5 percent

+ Euro/US dollar exchange rate around the same level as
2015 (approx US$110)

+ Internal raw material cost index lower than in prior year

Sales and earnings

The anticipated weak global growth momentum outhined in
the section headed "Economic background” will also affect
the development of our business in 2016

Following a very successful year in 2015, we expect
to report shghtly lower sales i 2016 {2015 €13 5 bithion)
Thanks to our strong market positions, balanced portfoho
and concentration on high-growth businesses, we assume
continued high demand for our products and appreciable
volume growth despite the difficult macro-economic condi-
tions The new production capacities taken into service in
recent years and further intensification of sales activities
should also contnbute to this We expect selling prices to
develop solidly across most of our product portfolio How-
ever, lower selling prices are anticipated for some businesses
in the Nutntion & Care and Performance Matenals segments,
leading to the forecast shight reduction in overall sales

Nevertheless, we are confident that our business will
continue to develop successfully in 2016 and expect to report
adjusted EBITDA of between €2 0 billion and €2 2 billion
{2015 €2 47 billion)

For the majonity of businesses in the Nutnition & Care
segment we are expecting a stable or shghtly positive bust-
ness trend compared with the previous year We assume that
the price of essential amino acids for animal nutrition will
normahze from the very high prior-year level Moreover,
the baby care business will be affected by persistently high
competitive pressure

We expect that the Resource Efficiency segment will continue
the previous year's successful business development despite
weaker global growth

In the Performance Matenals segment, the year-on-year
dechine in the ol price, in particular, will result in a further
reduction n selling prices, putting downward pressure on
this segment’s operating performance

The continued systematic implementation of our On
Track 2 0 and Administration Excellence efficency enhance-
ment programs will also contnbute to earnings 1n 2016 The
earnings timpact of lower raw matenial prices on individual
businesses will vary, but should largely balance out across the
portfolio as a whole

The return on capital employed (ROCE) should again be
above the cost of capital in 2016, although it will be shghtly
lower than in 2015 (16 6 percent) due to the overall reduction
In earnings

Financrng and investments

We anucipate that capital expenditures will be around
the 2015 level (€0 9 billien) and thus shghtly higher than
depreciation and amortization The free cash flow should
therefore be clearly positive again, but will fall short of the
high level reported for 2015 (€11 billion) owing to the
weaker operating earnings trend

Occupational and plant safety

We assume that the acadent frequency’ indicator will be
stable n 2016 (2015 1 0) and expect it to be below the upper
limit of 7 3 defined for 2015 Our long-term goal 1s still a
sustained value of less than 10 We are retaining our target
of a maximum of 48 for the plant safety indicater incident
frequency® 1n 2016 and expect 1t to be between 48 and 53,

_a shght improvement compared with 2015 (55)

Thes report contains forward-looking statements based on the present expeciations, assumptons and forecasts made by the Executive Board and the
information available to st These forward-looking statements do not constitute a guarantee of future developments and earmings expectations Future
performance and developments depend on a wide variety of factors which contain a number of nisks and unforeseeable factors and are based on assumptions

that may prove incorrect

' Number of accrdents involving Evonik employees and contractors’ employess under Evonik s direct supervision per 1 mitlion working hours
2 Number of incidents per 1 mithon hours worked in the production facilities operated by the segments, taking 2008 as the reference base

(expressed in percentage points 2008 = 100}
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Report on expected developments
Econemic background

Forecast for Evonik’s end-customer industries 2016°

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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* Rounded amoynts
® Where not directly assigned to other end-customer mndustries

Along with global economic momentum, trends in our end-
customer industries nfluence the development of Evonik’s
market environment While the general industrial trend was
weak in 2015 with low growth in output, and conly a few
industnes registering moderate growth, looking ahead to
2016 we only anticipate shight additional impetus in view
of the fragile macro-economic environment Cyclical end-
customer industries such as the construchion, automotive,
mechanucal engineering, and electrical and electronics sectors
will probably report slower growth There could be some
1isolated positive iImpetus on a regional basis, especially 1n
Europe, which 1s Evonik’s most important market In other
key end-customer industries such as pharmaceuticals, food
and animal feed, and the consumer goods and personal care
sectors, we assume that the pace of growth will continue

The development of our end-customer industries (s likely
to have a varied impact on industrial value chains and our
business We anticipate that global inflation will remain at
the present low level as a result of slower growth and price
pressure from commodities Moreover, significant deflationary
trends could emerge in some areas

We expect that the weaker cyclical momentum and cur-
rent increase in supply will continue to have an impact on the
raw matenal markets Evomik’s specific raw materials witl be
shghtly more expensive compared with the end of 2015/ early
2016, but overall we expect our internal raw matenal cost
index to remain below the average for 2015 Tihis scenano 1s
based on the assumption that the average ol price will be
slightly lower in 2016 than 1in 2015 Risks here still include
geopohtical conflicts, which could adversely affect supply
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11. Report on expected developments

s  Slightly weaker global economic development
»  Shghtly lower sales and adjusted EBITDA of between €2.0 billion

and €2.2 billion expected

*  ROCE expected to be well above the cost of capital again

1.1 Economic background

Weaker global economic growth momentum
anticipated for 2016
We anticipate that global economic conditions will once
again be charactenzed by diffening reqonat growth trends in
2016 The continued economic upturn in the industnialized
economies will probably be held back by slower growth in
the emerging markets QOverall, we expect a slight reduction
in global momentum n 2016, with the growth rate dropping
to 2 5 percent, compared with 2 6 percent in 2015

We assume that m 2016 the industralized economies will
continue to benefit from an expansionary monetary policy
and that the o1l price will boost consumer spending In view
of this, we expect the fragtle upturn in Europe to continue,
although momentum will be lower than 1n 2015

We anticipate that the German economy will grow by
18 percent in 2016, with consumer spending remaining the
main growth driver By contrast, we expect httle impetus to
come from capital expenditures and foreign trade

We still see the USA as the keystone of global economic
growth, but we expect the growth rate to drop to 2 2 percent
in 2016 Domestic consumer spending will prabably make the
biggest contribution here, while capital spending and forergn
trade are likely to be lower than in 2015

The present chatlenges in the emerging markets will
presumably continue in 2016 and could even be exacerbated
by the Fed’s monetary policy {f the Fed raises interest rates
as planned 1n 2016, this could accelerate the outflow of capital
from emerging markets and increase the cost of financing
their ugh levels of debt Overall, we expect economic growth
in the emerging markets to be around the 2015 level, but the
downside risks remain high

We assume that growth will slow furtherin China Given
the Chinese government’s willingness to take action to sup-
port the economy, we expect gross domestic product to rise
by 6 5 percent 1n 2016

However, the projection for the global economy 1s still
marked by considerable uncertainty Apart from geopoliticat
conflicts, action by central banks could cause the global eco-
nomic development to differ from our expectations

GDP forecast for 2016
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Remuneration report
Remuneration of the Supennsory Board

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Remuneration for

Fixed remuneration membership of a committee Attendance fees Total
n€ 000 2015 2014 2015 2074 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gunter Adam
(unul December 10, 2015) 90 90 58 58 10 10 158 158
Mart:n Albers
(from October 1, 2015) 23 - 2 - 1 - 26 -
Prof Barbara Albert
(from July 1, 2014) 90 45 - - 5 2 95 47
Dr Peter Bettermann
(until jJune 30, 2014) - 45 - - - 3 - 48
Karin Erbard 90 0 30 20 9 7 129 117
Carmen Fuchs
(from December 10, 201 5) 8 - - - - - 8 -
Stephan Gemkow 90 0 28 28 9 8 127 126
Ralf Giesen
(until Apnil 30, 2014) - 10 - 19 - 4 - 53
Prof Barbara Grunewald 90 20 30 30 9 Ed 129 129
Ralf Hermann 90 0 58 58 10 9 158 157
Prof Wolfgang A Herrmann 90 90 - - 5 5 95 95
Dieter Kleren 90 g0 - - 5 5 95 #5
Steven Koltes 90 90 45 45 8 5 143 140
Frank Loligen
{from May 1, 2014) 90 60 28 18 8 7 126 85
Or Siegfried Luther 920 90 45 45 10 10 145 145
Or Werner Maller 200 200 103 103 16 13 319 316
Jirgen Noding
(until September 30, 2015)* 68 110 23 30 7 1 98 151
Norbert Pohlmann 20 g0 8 - G 5 104 95
Dr Wilfried Robers %0 %0 30 30 9 10 129 130
Muchael Rudiger 90 90 35 35 9 9 134 134
Ulnch Terbrack 90 20 - - 5 5 ?5 95
Dr Volker Trautz 90 20 45 45 8 ] 143 14
Michael Vassiliadis 130 130 58 58 12 10 200 198
D Christian Wildmoser 90 90 58 58 14 13 162 161
Total 1,959 1,970 584 680 175 166 2,818 2816

* Mr Noding was also a member of the Supervisary Board of Evontk Services GmbH until July 31, 2014

The remuneration and attendance fees paid to the Super-
visory Board in 2014 and 2015 15 presented on a cost basis
For members wha jotned or left the Supervisory Board during
2014 and 2015, the amounts are calculated on a pro rata basis

As of December 31, 2015 there were no loans or advances
to members of the Supervisory Board In 2015, the members
of the Supervisory Board did not receive any remuneration
for services provided personally, especially consulting and
referral services

Finally, third-party financial loss insurance cover Is provided
for each member of the Supervisory Board to cover their
statutory frability anising from therr work on the Supervisory
Board In the event of a claim, this provides for a deductible
of 10 percent of the damage, up to one-and-a-half times the
indwidual member’s fixed annual remuneration

13
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Allocation
Dr Ralph Sven
Dr Klaus Engel Kaufmann Christian Kullmann  Thomas Wessel Patrik Wohlhauser  Ute Wolf
Cheef Executive Chief Qperating Chuef Strategic Chief Human Chaef Operating Chief Financial
Officer Officer Officer Resources Officer Officer Officer
(from July 1, 2015)  (from fuly 1, 2014) (until June 30, 2015)
€000 2014 2015 2004 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Fixed compensation 1,100 | 1,100 - 300 300 600 500 600 600 300 600 600
Fringe benefits 49 22 - 28 27 55 91 77 34 17 89 45
Total 1149 1,122 - 328 327 655 &N 677 634 317 689 645
One-year variable
compensation® ® ¢ 1128 | 2,070 - 585 326 1,170 632 1,108 652 585 606 1,170
Multi-year vaniable
compensation 835 420 - - - - - - - - - -
LTi 2009
through 2013 835 - - - - - - - - - - -
LT 2010
through 2014 - 420 - - - - - - - - - -
Total 3naj 3612 - 73 653 1,828 | 1,323 | 1785 1,286 %02 | 1,295 | 1815
Service cost 438 712 - - 160 414 280 384 322 402 276 349
Total compensation 3,600 4,324 - 73 813 2,239 1,603 2,169 1,608 1,304 1,571 2,164

* In some cases, fees for other offices held, which are contained in fringe benefits, are offset dgainst one-yesr vanable compensanon, 2014 Or Engel €26 thousand,
Wessel €53 thousand (including correction of €33 thousand), Wolf €46 thousand, 2015 Wessel €30 thousand The correction made for Mr Wessel for 2014 15 also

offset against his one-year- variable compensation in 2015

¥ The ane year vanable compensauon for 2014 corresponds to the actual payments made in 2015 for 2014 (a correction has been made for any discrepancies between the
actual payments in 2015 and the estimate made for 2015 in the 2014 remuneration report)

€ The one year vangble compensation for 2015 has not yet been finalized,

based on

15 made for pr

Former Executive Board members, including
members who left the Executive Board 1n 2015

Total remuneration of former members of the Executive
Board and their survming dependents was €2,729 thousand
in 2015 (2014 €1,374 thousand)

10.2 Remuneration of the
Supervisory Board

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board s governed
by Section 15 of the Articles of Incorporation of Evonik
Industries AG

The remuneration system takes account of the responsi-
bilitres and scope of actmities of the members of the Super-
wisory Board In addition to reimbursement of their expenses
and value-added tax payable on their remuneration and
expenses, the members of the Supervisory Board receive a
fixed annual payment Their remuneration does not include
a vanable component

Different levels of fixed annual remuneration are
pad to the Chairman (€200 thousand), Deputy Chairman
(€130 thousand) and other members of the Supervisory
Board (€90 thousand)

e

Additional remuneration of €45 thousand 15 paid for chainng
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee, while the
deputy chairpersons receive €30 thousand each and other
mernbers €30 thousand each The chaicperson of the Finance
and Investment Committee receives additional remuneration
of €35 thousand, the deputy chairperson €27 5 thousand,
and the other members €27 5 thousand each The addi-
tional remuneration for the Nominauon Committee and the
Mediatron Committee 1s €30 thousand for the chairperson,
€775 thousand for the deputy chairperson and €15 thousand
each for the other members Members of the Mediation
Commuttee are only entitled to the additional remuneration if
the committee meets during the year

Further, members of the Supervisory Board receive a fee
of €1 thousand for each meeting of the Supervisory Board
and its commuttees that they attend If several meetings are
held on the same day, this fee 1s only paid once

Members who only serve on the Supervisory Board for
part of a fiscal year receive remuneration on a pro rata basis
This also applies for increases in the remuneration for the
Chatrman and Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
and any increased remuneration paid for membership of or
chatring a committee
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Remuneration report
Remuneration of the Executive Board

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN

Benefits granted
Dr Klaus Engel Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer (from july 1, 2015)
n €000 2014 2015 2015{(mn) 2015 (max) 2014 2015 2015{min) 2075 {max)
Fixed compensation 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 - 300 300 300
Fringe benefits 49 22 22 22 - 28 28 28
Total 1149 1,122 1,122 1,122 - 328 328 328
Cne-year variable
compensation 1,150 1,150 - 2,300 - 325 - 650
Multi-year vanable
compensation 1,023 1,488 - 3,750 - 447 - 1,125
LTI 2014 through 2017 1,023 - - - - - - -
LTI 2015 through 2018 - 1,488 - 3,750 - 447 - 1,125
Total 3,322 3,760 1,122 7172 - 1,100 328 2,103
Service cost 488 712 712 712 - - - -
Total compensation 3,810 4,472 1,834 7,884 - 1,100 328 2,103
Christian Kullmann Thomas Wesse!
Chuef Strateglc Officer (from July 1, 2014) Chief Human Resources Cfficer
In €000 2014 2015 2015(mn) 2015 (max) 2014° 2015 2015{mm) 2015 {max)
Fixed compensation 300 600 600 500 600 600 600 600
Fringe benefits 27 55 55 55 kAl 77 77 77
Total 327 655 655 655 &M 677 677 677
One-year variable
compensation 325 650 - 1,300 650 450 - 1,300
Multi-year variable
compensation 307 893 - 2,250 614 893 - 2,250
LTI 2074 through 2017 307 - - - 614 - - -
LTI 2075 through 2018 - 893 - 2,250 - 893 - 2,250
Total 959 2,198 655 4,205 1,955 2,220 677 4,227
Service cost 160 414 414 414 280 384 384 384
Total compensation 1,119 2,612 1,069 4,619 2,235 2,604 1,061 4,611
Patrik Wohlhayser Ute Wolf
Chuef Operating Officer (until June 30, 2015) Chief Financial Officer
n€ 000 2014 2015 2015 (min) 2015 (max) 2014 2015 2015 (emin) 2075 (max)
Fixed compensation 600 300 300 300 600 600 400 600
Fringe benefits 34 17 17 17 89 45 45 45
Total 634 117 117 317 689 645 645 645
One-year variable
compensation 650 325 - 650 650 650 - 1,300
Multi-year vanable
compensabion 614 893 - 2,250 614 893 - 2,250
LTI 2014 through 2017 674 - - - 6714 - - -
LTI 2075 through 2018 - 893 - 2,250 - 893 - 2,250
Total 1,898 1,538 37 3,217 1,953 2,188 645 4,195
Service cost 322 402 402 402 276 349 349 349
Total compensation 2,220 1,937 e 3,619 2,229 2,537 994 4,544

? Correction to the remunegration report 2014 remuneration of €33 thousand recerved by Mr Wessel for other offices but not stated in the remuneration report for 2014

m
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Change-of-control ctause

Change-of-control clauses are only agreed with members
of the Executive Board 1n connection with long-term
remuneration A change of control 1s deftned as cases when
another company obtains control of Evonik Industries AG as
defined in the German Secunities Acquisition and Takeover
Act (WpUG) or there 15 a matenal change in the company’s
shareholders as a result of a merger or comparable reorgam-
zation or business combination In such cases, the long-term
remuneration due to the eligible Executive Board members 1s
calculated immediately and paid into their salary account
From the 2013 tranche, the payment 1s calcutated pro rata

Remuneration of the Executive Board

based on the period between the grant date and the change
of control and the four-year performance period

Remuneration of the Executive Board in fiscal 2015
The total remuneration paid to the members of the Executive
Board for theirr work in 2015, including remuneration for the
performance of other offices, was €15,608 thousand (2014
€10,677 thousand) In 2015 provisions for bonus payments of
€ 332 thousand for 2014 were reversed

Based on the principles outhned, the breakdown of remu-
neration for each Executive Board member in 2015 was
as follows

Performance-unrelated remuneration

Performance-refated remunerzthon

Benefits in kind and

Total remuneration
1n accordance with

Fixed remuneration other fringe benefits Annual bonus LTt DRS17
in €'000 205 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 ms 2014 2015 2014
Dr Klaus Engel 1,100 1,100 22 49 1,959 1419 1,488 1,023 4,569 3,59
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann® 300 - 28 - 585 - 447 - 1,360 -
Chnistian Kultmann® 600 300 55 27 1139 358 893 307 2,687 992
Thomas Wessel 600 600 77 9 1,045 700 893 614 2,615 2,005
Patrik Wohlhauser* 300 600 17 34 522 B&9 893 614 1,732 2117
Ute Wolf 600 600 45 89 1,107 669 893 614 2,645 1,972
Total 3,500 3,200 244 290 6,357 4,015 5,507 3172 | 15608 ] 10,677

* Fair vatue as of the legally binding commitment or grant date
b 2015 pro rata from July 1, 2015
€ 2014 pro rata from July 1, 2014

9 Correction to the remuneration report 2014 remuneration of €33 thousand received for other offices but not stated in the remuneration report for 20714

* 2015 prorata up to June 30, 2015

in 2015, no member of the Executive Board received benefits
or corresponding promises from third parties in connection
with his or her service on the Executive Board Further, as
of December 31, 2015 there were no loans or advances to
members of the Executive Board

Finally, third-party financial loss insurance cover 1s pro-
vided for each member of the Executive Board to cover their
statutory habihty anising from their work on the Executive
Board In the event of a claim, this provides for a deductible
of 10 percent of the damage, up to one-and-a-half times the
individual member’s fixed annual remuneration

Remuneration report in accordance with the

German Corporate Governance Code

The German Corporate Governance Code recommends that
hsted companies should also disclose the remuneration of the
Executive Board on the basis of a defined table showing the
granting and allocation of benefits
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Remuneratson report
Remuneration of the Executive Baard

Service cost and present value of pension obligations

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Gesman Commercal Code {(HGB) IFRS
Settlement amount Present value of the
of pension obligations defined benefit cbligatron
Service cost as of Dec 31 Sernce cost asof Dec 31
n €000 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Dr Klaus Engel 114 2,215 14,102 12,148 712 488 16,945 17162
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann
(from july 1, 2015) - - - - - - -
Christian Kullmann
{from July 1, 2014) 217 121 2,787 2,068 414 160 3,732 3,523
Thomas Wessel 236 251 3,027 2,332 384 280 3,810 3,563
Patrik Wohlhauser
{until June 30, 2015) 73 254 2,917 402 322 - 4,539
Ute Wolf 235 136 998 600 349 276 1.312 986
Tota! 875 2,977 20,914 20,065 2,261 1,526 25,799 29,773

The difference 1n service cost for pension commitments
1s attributable to differences in the valuation methods used
to calculate the settlement amount in accordance with the
German Commercial Code and the present value of pension
obhgatons calculated in accordance with IFRS

The present value of pension obligations for members
of the Executive Board was €20,914 thousand (2014
€20,065 thousand} based on the German Commercial Code
{HGB) and €25,799 thousand {2014 €29,773 thousand)
based on IFRS

Prowisions for pension obligations to former members of
the Executive Board and therr surviving dependents as of the
reporting date were €38,704 thousand (2014 €28,801 thou-
sand) based on the German Commercial Code {HGB) and
€50,551 thousand (2014 €43,816 thousand) based on IFRS

Rules on termination of service on the Executive Board

Cap on termination benefits in the event of

premature termination of term of office

In conformance with the German Corporate Governance
Code, the employment contracts with all members of the
Executive Board provide for a cap on termmation benefits

Termination benefits

If a member’s term of office 1s prematurely terminated,
payments may not exceed two years’ remuneration, including
variable remuneration components In no case I1s remuneration
payable for periods beyond the remaining term of contract
The contracts specify that no termination benefits are payable
if an Executive Board member’s contract 1s ternminated
for reasons for which he or she s responsible The cap on
termination benefits 15 based on total remuneration including
fringe benefits in the previous fiscal year and, where appro-
priate, the anticipated total remuneration for the current
fiscal year

The termination benefit paid to Patnik Wohlhauser does
not exceed the cap

tn addmon, fram Apnl 1, 2016 Mr Wohlhauser will
receive contractual transition payments totaling €1,795 thou-
sand (past service cost) until he reaches the age of 60
These will be offset against any other earnings he receives
in the future

Post-contractual non-compete agreements
Post-contractual non-compete agreements have not been
concluded with members of the Executive Board

Pension Long-term
n € 000 Fixed remuneration Benefits in kand Annual bonus contributions remuneration Total
Patrik Wohlhauser 450_| 1 378 141 200* 2,380°

1 The terminaucn benefit takes account of the LTI tranches 2011 and 2012 and—on a pro rata basis—2016 The LT1 tranches 2013 through 2015 wilt be upheld
b at Mr Wohlhauser's request, €975 thousand of this amount has been allocsted for future pension benefits (“deferred compensation”}
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The farr values of the LTI tranches 2010 through 2015 as of
the date of the legally binding commitment are shown in the

next table

LTI tranches
2010* 01! 2012* 2013° 20148 2015
No of No of Mo of
wirtual virtual virtual
n €000 m €000 m €000 shares n €000 shares w €000 shares In€'000
Dr Klaus Engel 478 479 495 43,133 1,028 45,208 1,023 47,510 1,488
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann - - - - - - - 14,253 447
Christian Kultmann - - - - - 13,562 307 28,506 893
Thomas Wessel - 26 297 25,880 617 27,125 614 28,506 893
Patrik Wohlhauser - 216 297 25,880 617 271258 614 28,506 893
Ute Wolf - - - 6,470 154 27125 614 28,506 893
Total 478 N 1,089 101,363 2,416 140,145 37 175,787 5,507

1 No details are qiven of other share-based payrments because a specific number of shares or share options was not issued, nor can the tranches be converted tnto 2 number

of wirtual shares
b The date of the legally bindiag commitment corresponds to the grant date

The total expense for all LTI tranches w 2015 was
€4,753 thousand The breakdown of the expense was as
folows €1,204 thousand for Dr Engel, €102 thousand for
Dr Kaufmann, €329 thousand for Mr Kullmann, €752 thou-
sand for Mr Wessel, €1,837 thousand for Mr Wohlhauser,
and €529 thousand for Ms Wolf

Company pension plan
The company pension arrangements for Dr Klaus Engel
comprise a percentage of his fixed annual base salary, which
1s dependent on length of service with the company and
1s capped at 60 percent This pension commitment provides
for a hfelong retirement penston and surviving dependents’
benefits

A defined-contribution system 1s applicable for Christian
Kullmann, Thomas Wessel, Patnik Wohlhauser and Ute Wolf
This 1s a capital-based system funded by prowisions The
company credits a fixed annual amount to their pension
account This compnses 15 percent of their target remuner-
ation, 1 e base safary and target bonus (variable short-term
remuneration assuming 100 percent target attainment) The
guaranteed annual return is 5 percent The pension benefit
comprises the amount that has accrued on the account,
1e contrnbutions credited to the account plus interest
In the event of death or disabihty, the amount that would be
availdable on the account on the member’s 55th birthday,
including projected contnbutions and interest, 15 calculated
Payment normally comprises a lifelong pension Alternatively,

Executive Board members may opt for disbursement of part
of the capital {maximum S0 percent) in six to ten install-
ments Pension entitiements accrued prior to appointment to
the Executive Board are either integrated into the system as
an inisal contnibution or centinue to be managed separately
If a member’s contract as a member of the Executive Board
ends before benefits are payable, no further contributions
are credited to the account However, 1t continues to
earn interest at the common market interest rate based on
the average return earned by major German hfe insurers
(at least 225 percent pa) until benefits are claimed
Currently, no pension arrangements have been agreed for
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann

Members of the Executive Board are entitled to pension
benefits after they leave the company If they leave on or
after reaching the age of 60 or 62 {depending on their
individual pension arrangements) ar if they leave as a result
of permanent incapacity to work In addition, Dr Engel
can claim pension benefits from the date of premature term-
nation or non-extension of his contract on the Executive
Board, providing he does not give due cause for such terrm-
nation Mr Kullmann, Mr Wessel and Mr Wehlhauser have
similar claims based on pension entitlements accrued prior to
their appointment to the Executive Board

In 2075, the service cost for members of the Executrve
Board totaled €875 thousand (2014 €2,977 thousand) based
on the German Commercial Code (HGB) and €2,261 thou-
sand (2014 €1,526 thousand) based on IFRS
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Remuneration report
Remuneration of the Executive Board

LTI tranches 2010 through 2072
The tranches 2010 through 2012 reward achieving or ex-
ceeding the operating earnings targets set in the mid-term
planning and their impact on the value of the company Each
tranche runs for five years from January 1 of the grant year

Entitlements are based on individually agreed target
amounts provided that earnings targets are met LTI payments
are calculated in the year following the end of the perfor-
mance period, when the necessary indicators are available
Payments are capped at three times the target amount, and
can be zero If the defined lower thresheld is not reached

To determine the value of the company as a basis for
ascertaining target attainment, the share price at the end of
the performance penod s used For this purpose, the average
price of shares in Evonik in the three menths prior to the end
of the performance penod i1s calculated In addition, dvi-
dends paid and any capital increases or decreases during the
performance penod are taken into account The cumulative
discrepancy between planned and actual target attainment in
the performance pencd and the dividends pard in the last
year of the performance perod are taken into account in the
calculation |f there is no share price, the value of equity s
determined on the basis of the last share transaction in the
last twelve months of the performance period If there was
no share transaction in the last twelve months, a fictitious
equity value 1s used This i1s derived by applying a fixed
EBITDA multiple to the company’s business performance in
the last full fiscal year

Given the structure of the LT! Plans 2010 through 2012,
they did not meet the definition of share-based payment pur-
suant to DRS 17 9 until Evonik Industries AG was listed on
the stock exchange Consequently, they were not classified as
share-based payments In each case, payment was contingent
on attainment of the defined performance target and on the
condition that the amount available for distnbution was not
zero Accordingly, these tranches were only deemed to have
been granted n the year in which the respective performance
period ended Granting of payments was further conditional
on the fact that the stock exchange hsting had not taken
place This final condition was met in 2013, resulting in the
reclassification of this remuneration component as a share-
based payment In accordance with DRS 17, the LTI tranches
2010 through 2012 are therefare regarded as granted as
of this date and treated as share-based payments The farr
value of each tranche as of the date of the legally binding
commitment was calculated

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LTI tranches 2013 and subsequent years

In view of the stock exchange listing of Evonik Industries AG,
the Supervisory Board redesigned the LTI Plan for the pericd
from 2013 so 1t differs from the tranches 2010 through 2072
Performance 1s now measured by the absolute performance
of Evonik’s share price and its performance relative to the
MSCI World Chermicals Index*™

Based on the contractually agreed target amount, which is
defined n euros, a number of wvirtual shares 1s calculated
using the share price at the start of the performance period
This 15 based on the price in the last 60 trading days before
the start of the performance period The performance period
starts on January 1 of the grant year and runs for four years
Since there was no share price at the start of the performance
period, as an exception, the virtual shares for the 2013
tranche were calcutated from the share price in the first
60 trading days following admission to the stock exchange
{April 25, 2013) At the end of the performance peniod, the
starting price of Evonik shares 1s viewed against the average
share price at the end of the performance penod, including
any dividends per share actually paid in this pertod This is
compared with the perfarmance of the benchmark index
(total shareholder return)

The relative performance may be between 70 and
130 percentage points If the relative performance 1s below
70 percentage points, the relative performance factor 1s
deemed to be zero If the relative performance 1s above
130 percentage points, the refative performance factor 1s set
at 130

The payment s calculated by multiplying the relative
performance by the number of virtual shares allocated
and the average price of Evonik shares at the end of the
performance penod

Eligible participants are informed of the outcome after the
end of the performance penod They can then opt to accept
the payment calculated or to extend the performance period
on a one-off basis for a further year In this case, a renewed
calculation 1s performed at the end of the extended per-
formance penod Partial exercise at the end of the original
performance period 15 not permitted The upper himit for
these payments is set at 300 percent of the indvidual target
amount

17
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The chart shows the breakdown of the main remuneration
components in 2015, 1 e excluding benefits in kind, other
fringe benefits and company pension plans

Structure of remuneration of members
of the Executive Board?

Fixed annual base salary
approx. 30%

Long-term remuneration
(agreed target amounts)
approx 7%

Annual bonus
(assuming 100%
target gttainment)

approx 33%

2 Excluding fringe benefits and retirement pensions

Performance-unrelated components

Fixed annua! base salary

The fixed annual base salary 15 a cash payment for the
fiscal year It takes account of the scope of responsibility of
each Executive Board member and 1s paid out in twelve equal
installments

Benefits in kind and other fringe benefits
As benefits in kind and other fringe benefits, members of the
Executive Board receive, in particular, a company car with a
driver, the installation of telecommunications equipment, and
an entilement to an annual medical check-up Executive
Board members may recewve a rent subsidy if performance
of their duties requires them to rent a second apartment
Benefits in kind are presented in this remuneration report at
the values defined in the tax requlations

Further, members of the Executive Board may receive
additional remuneration for offices at Group companies that
they hold in the interests of Evonik Apart from fees for
the attendance of meetings, insofar as such fees are paid to
Executive Board members, such payments are deducted from
their annual bonus or paid over to the company In this remu-
neration report, remuneration for offices held in the interests
of the company is included in other fringe benefits

Performance-related components

Short-term variable remuneration
The performance-related annual benus 1s dependent on the
attainment of business targets measured by performance
indicators (bonus factor) and the attainment of indwidual
objectives (performance factor) The bonus factor and
performance factor are multiphed The level of the bonus
factor depends on the achievement of the agreed business
targets, and may be between 0 and 200 percent ROCE,
adjusted net income and adjusted EBITDA are defined as
business targets The ROCE target 1s measured against the
mid-term cost of capital, the net income target 15 derived
from a comparison with the prior year, and the EBITDA target
15 denived from corporate planming The company’s accident
performance 1n the financial year (number and severity
of acaidents compared with the previous year) also has an
influence

The performance facter rewards the attainment of the
personal objectives and can vary between 80 percent and
120 percent The reference indicators are aligned individually
to the performance objectives for each member of the
Executive Board and normally have a multi-year context
within the target-setting framework

If the personal and business targets are achieved in full,
the contractually agreed bonus s paid If the company's
income falls short of the planned level, the bonus factor
may—in the extreme case—be zero, reqgardless of personal
attainment |n other words, it 1s conceivable that a bonus
might not be paid for a specific year The bonus is capped at
200 percent of the target bonus

The business and personal targets set for Executive Board
members for the bonus and performance factors are agreed
in writing at the start of each fiscal year between the Super-
visory Board and each member of the Executive Board and
the level of attainment 1s determined by the Supervisory
Board after the end of the year

Long-term variable remuneration (LTI)

The members of the Executive Board receive long-term
variable remuneration in the form of Long-Term Incentive
(LT1) Plans Following Evenik’s stock exchange listing, the
structure of the LTI Plans was redefined as from the 2013
tranche The general reference base for long-term remuner-
ation is a sustained rise in the value of the company
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Remuneration report
Remuneration of the Executive Board
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9. Declaration on corporate governance

The declaration on corporate governance 1n comphance
with Section 289a of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
has been made available to the public on the company’s
website at www evonik com/declaration-on-corporate-
governance

Further, extensive information on corporate governance
15 contained in the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report

10. Remuneration report

The remuneration report outhnes the prinaples of the remu-
neratron system for the members of the Executive Board
and the Supervisory Board, together wath the structure and
level of their individual remuneration This report complies
with the German Commercial Code (HGB), including the
principles set out in German Accounting Standard No 17
(DRS 17), the International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), and the requirements of the German Corporate
Governance Code

10.1 Remuneration of the Executive Board

Changes on the Executive Board

The appomntment of Mr Patrik Wohlhauser ended on June
30, 2015 with his resignation from the Executive Board Atits
meeting on June 25, 2015, the Supervisory Board appointed
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann to the Executive Board as Chief
Operating Officer for three years from July 1, 2015 At
its meeting on September 24, 2015, the Supervisory Board
extended the appointment of Mr Thomas Wessel as
Chief Human Resources Officer for a further five years until
August 31, 201

Principles and objectives

The remuneration system for the Executive Board 1s designed
to ensure that members receve adequate remuneration for
their tasks and responsibulities, and to take direct account of
the performance of each member of the Executive Board and

of the company The structure of the remuneration system for
the members of the Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG
1s geared to sustained value creation and performance-
oriented management of the company It comprises a fixed
monthly base salary, which takes account of the tasks and
services performed by the respective member, and a vanable
short-term component compnising an annual bonus which ts
dependent on the attainment of annual performance targets
This 1s supplemented by a long-term component hnked
directly to the increase in the value of the company as an
incentive for sustained commitment to the company, and the
customary fringe benefits

The remuneration 1s reviewed regularly by the Super-
visory Board, where appropnate on the basis of remuneration
reports from independent consultants These reviews exam-
ine the structure and level of remuneration of the Executive
Board, particularly in comparison with the external market,
and also in relation to remuneration elsewhere tn the
company If this reveals a need to adjust the remuneration
system, or the level or structure of remuneration, the
Executive Commuttee of the Supervisory Board submits a
corresponding proposal to the full Supervisory Board for a
deciston The last external review of the remuneration system
for appropriateness was in September 2015 Following this
review, 1t was decided that from January 1, 2016 the fixed
annual base salary should be increased by €150 thousand for
the Chairman of the Executive Board and by €100 thousand
for all other Executive Board members
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The proportionate amount of the capital stack attributable
to the shares for which subscnption nights are excluded,
together with the proportionate amount of the capital stock
attributable to treasury stock or to conversion and/or war-
rant rights or obligations arising from debt instruments,
which are sold or 1ssued after May 20, 2014 under exclusion
of subscription rights, may not exceed 20 percent of the
capital stock If the sale or 1ssue takes place in apphication—
analogously or mutatis mutandis—of Section 186 Paragraph 3
Sentence 4 of the German Stock Corparation Act (AktG),
this shall also be deemed to constitute exclusion of sub-
scription rnights

The Executive Board 15 authorized, subject to the approval
of the Supervisory Board, to define further details of capital
increases out of the Authorized Capital 2014 The authorized
capital has not yet been utilized

In connection with the authonzation of May 20, 2014 to
1ssue convertible and for warrant bonds with a nominal value
of up to €1 25 billion up to May 1, 2019, the capital stock 1s
condittonally increased by a further €37,280,000 {Conditional
Capital 2014)

The conditional capital increase will only be conducted
insofar as holders or creditors of warrant or conversion rights
or obligors of warrant or conversion obligations artsing from
warrant bonds and/or convertible bonds issued or guaranteed
on the basis of the authonzation resolved at the Annual Share-
holders’” Meeting of May 20, 2014, exercise their warrants or
conversion rights or, insofar as they have an obligation to
exercise the warrants or conversion obligations, meet the
obligation to exercise the warrant or conversion cbligations
and other forms of settlement are not used

The new shares are entitled to a dwvidend from the start of
the fiscal year in which they are i1ssued

Significant agreements concluded by the company

that are contingent upon a change of control resulting

from a takeover bid

Evonik Industries AG 1s a contracting party m the following

agreements that are contingent upon a change of control

resulting from a takeover bid

- The company has agreed a €1 75 billion syndicated credit
facility with 1ts core banks, which had not been drawn as
of December 31, 2015 In the event of a change of control

resulting from a takeover bid, these banks could withdraw
the credit facility On the terms agreed, this applies |f
a new major shareholder (apart from RAG-Stiftung and
its subsidianies) acquires direct or indirect voting rights of
more than 50 percent in Evonik Industries AG—including
through a voting rights agreement with one or more other
shareholders {(pursuant to Section 30 Paragraph 2 of the
German Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act (WpUG))

- The company has a debt 1ssuance program to place bonds
with a total volume of up to €3 bilhon By December 3,
2015 two bonds with a total norminal value of €125 billion
had been issued under this program The issue conditions
contain a change-of-control clause In the event of 3
change of control resulting from a takeover bid and a
deterioration in the credit rating of Evontk Industnies AG
to non-investment grade within 90 days as a result of
such change of control, the bondholders have the nght
to demand redemption of the bond at nominal value
plus accrued interest A change of control 1s deemed to
have occurred if a person (apart from RAG-Suftung or 3
{direct or indirect) subsidiary of RAG-Stiftung} or persons
acting 1n a concerted manner directly or indirectly
acquire(s) more than 50 percent of the voting nghts in
Evonik Industries AG

Agreements on payment of compensation by the
company to members of the Executive Board or other
employees in the event of a change of control
Change-of -control clauses are only agreed with members of
the Executive Board in connection with long-term remuner-
ation A change of control 1s defined as cases when another
company obtains control of Evonik Industries AG as defined
in the German Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act
{WpUG) or there 1s a material change in the company’s
shareholders as a result of a merger or comparable recrgani-
Zation or business combination In such cases, the long-term
remuneration due to the eligible employees 1s calculated
immediately and paid inta therr salary account with their next
regular salary payment From the 2013 tranche, the payment
15 calculated pro rata based on the period between the
grant date and the change of contro! and the four-year
performance period
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Takeover-relevant information

Direct and indirect shareholdings
that exceed 10 percent of the voting rnights
Under the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), every
shareholder whose votng rnghts in the company reach,
exceed or drop below a certain level, whether through the
purchase or sale of shares or in any other way, must notfy
the company and the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority
{BaFin) Under Section 21 Paragraph 1 of the German Secu-
rines Trading Act, the relevant thresholds are 3, 5,10, 15, 20,
25, 30, 50 and 75 percent of the voting nghts Changes 1n
vouing rights between these thresholds are not subject to
notification under the German Securities Trading Act so the
following data may differ from more recent overviews of the
shareholder structure In compliance with Section 160 Para-
graph 1 No 8 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG),
the notes to the financial statements of Evonik Industries AG
contain an overview of all voting nghts notifications sub-
mitted to the company

Under Section 289 Paragraph 4 No 3 and Section 315
Paragraph 4 No 3 of the German Commercial Code {HGB),
all direct and indirect shareholdings exceeding 10 percent of
the voting nghts must be declared

As of December 31, 2015, the Executive Board had only
received notification of one direct shareholding exceeding
10 percent of the voting rights RAG-5tiftung holds 67 91 per-
cent of the company's shares

The Executive Board is not aware of any further direct or
indirect holdings in the company’s capital stock that exceed
10 percent of the voting rights

Appointment and dismissal of Executive Board
members, amendments to the Articles of Incorporation
The appomntment and dismissal of members of the Executive
Board of Evomik Industries AG Is governed by Section 84 of
the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and Section 31 of
the German Codetermination Act {MitbestG), in conjunction
with Section 6 of the company’s Articles of Incorporation
Section 6 of the Articles of incorporation states that the
Executive Board comprises at least two members Further, the
Supervisory Board s responsible for determiming the number
of members

Changes to the Articles of Incorporation are narmally
resolved by the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Section 20
Paragraph 2 of the Arucles of incorporation states that, unless
mandatory provisions require otherwise, resolutions shall be
adopted by a simple majority of the votes cast and—unless,
besides a majority of the votes, a majority of the capital 1s
required by law—by a simple majority of the capital stock
represented

Under Section 11 Paragraph 7 of the Articles of Incorpo-
ration, the Supervisory Board is authorized to resolve on
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, provided they
are only editenial A simple majornity vote 1s sufficient

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Authonzation of the Executive Board, especially to
issue and repurchase shares
Pursuant to a resolution of the Shareholdess’ Meeting of
March 11, 2013, the Executive Board 1s authorized until March
10, 2018, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to
purchase up to 10 percent of the company’s capital stock
Together with other shares in the company which the
company has already acquired or still owns, or which are
attributable to it pursuant to Sections 71d and 71e of the
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the shares acquired
under this authorization may not, at any time, exceed 10 per-
cent of the capital stock Shares in the company may not be
purchased for trading purposes

Subject to the prnaiple of equal treatment (Section 53a
AktG), the purchase may take place via the stock exchange
or via a public offer to all shareholders for the purchase or
exchange of shares In the latter case, notwithstanding the
exclusion of tender nghts permitted in specific arcumstances,
the principle of equal treatment {Section 53a AktG) must also
be taken into account

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 20, 2014 ad-
opted an amendment to Section 4 Paragraph 6 of the Articles
of Incorporation authonzing the Executive Board until May 1,
2019, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to
increase the company's capital stock by up to €116,500,000
(Authorized Capital 2074)

This authonization may be exercised through one or more
Issuances

The new shares may be 1ssued agarnst cash and for contn-
butions in kind The Executive Board 1s authonized, subject
to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to exclude share-
holders’ statutory subscription nghts when issuing new shares
in the following cases

« capital increases against contributions in kind
if the capital increase 1s against cash and the proportionate
share of the capital stock attnibutable to the new shares
does not exceed 10 percent of the capital stock, and the
1ssue price of the new shares 15 not sigmificantly below the
stock market price of shares already listed on the stock
exchange
to exclude fractional amounts arising from the subscrip-
tion ratio

+ insofar as 1s necessary to grant holders and for creditors of
warrants or conversion nghts or obligors of warrant and /
or conversion obligations subscription nghts to new
shares to the extent that they would be entitled to them
after exercise of their warrants andfor conversion rights
or fulfillment of therr warrant or conversion obligations
to grant shares to employees (employee stock), provided
that the new shares for which subscription rights are
excluded do not In aggregate account for a proportionate
share of the capital stock in excess of 1 percent
for the execution of a scrip dividend
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The evaluation of specific nsks resulting from weaknesses in
processes within the organizational units showed very little
scope to optimize existing processes because of the efficacy
of the current controls Corresponding scope for improve-
ment has been identified There are therefore no signs of
systematic errors in the Evonik Group's ICS

2 Internal control system for financial accounting
The main financial reporting nisks are 1dentified in the 1CS
through a quantitative and a qualitative analysis Controls are
defined for each risk area of the accounting process Their
efficacy 1s tested at reqular intervals and improved where
necessary All elements of the contral process are venfied by
Internal Audit on the basis of random samples

To ensure the quality of financial statements we have
a Group-wide policy which defines uniform accounting and
valuation principles for all German and foreign companies
included in the consolidated financial statements The major-
ity of compames have delegated the preparation of therr
financial statements to Financial Services Through systematic
process orientation, standardization and the utilization of
economies of scale, this leverages sustained cost benefits and
also improves the quality of accounting Financial Services
has developed a standardized control matrix for the nternal
control system for financial accounting This 15 already
applied to all Group companies in Germany for which Financial

Services 1s responsible Following successful introduction of
the control matrix at the major operating compames in China,
Southeast Asia and, tn the course of 2015, the USA and
Belgium, 1t will be rolled out successively to further foreign
compantes The aim 15 to ensure a uniform global standard
for the internal control system for financial accounting An
external audit 1s conducted on the annva! financial statements
of more than 95 percent of compantes

All data are consolidated by the Accounting Division using
the SAP SEM-BCS system Group companies submit their
financial statements via a web-based interface A range of
technical validations are performed at this stage Computer-
ized and manual process controls and checking by 2 second
person are the key oversight functions performed in the
financial reporting process The preparation of the menthly
consolidated income statement and publcation of three
quarterly reports enables us to gain experience with new
accounting 1ssues and provide a sound basis for plausibili-
zanon of the year-end accounts The Executive Board receives
monthly reports and quarterly reports are submitted to the
Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board

Aspects that may represent opportunities or risks for
financial reporting n the future are identified and evaluated
early through the risk management system This allows close
meshing of nisk management with contralling and accounting
processes

8. Information pursuant to Section 289 Paragraph 4
and Section 315 Paragraph 4 of the German Com-
mercial Code (HGB) and explanatory report by the
Executive Board pursuant to Section 176 Paragraph 1
of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

Structure of 1ssued capital
The capital stock of Evonik Industries AG 15 € 466,000,000
and s divided into 466,000,000 no-par registered shares
Each share entitles the holder to one vote

Under Section 5 Paragraph 2 of the Articles of Incorpo-
ration, shareholders do not have any claim to the issue of
certificates for their shares unless the 1ssue of a certificate Is
required by the rules of a stock exchange on which the share
has been admitted for trading

There are no different share classes, nor any shares with
special nghts

Restrictions on voting rights or the transfer of shares
In connection with Evonik’s employea share programs, there
are restnctions on the ability of participating employees to
dispose of their shares for 3 certain tme penod In particular,
they are required to hold their shares in each case until the end
of the next-but-one calendar year after the year of allocation

The Executive Board 15 not aware of any other restrictions
on voting rghts or the transfer of shares
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Opportumty and nsk report
Process forganization risks

Tax risks relate to differences in the valuation of business
processes, capital expenditures and restructuring by the
financial authorities and potential retroactive payments in the
wake of tax audits

Compliance means lawful and ethically correct bustness
conduct Alf employees are subject to the binding regulations
on fair treatment of each other and of business partners set
out in our Code of Conduct Risks could therefore result
from fallure to comply with the corresponding regulations’
To mimimize compliance nisks, extensive training and sensii-
zation of employees i1s undertaken at face-to-face training
sessions and/or through e-learning programs

2. Risks relating to the protection of

intellectual property and know-how
Innovations play & significant part in Evonik’s business success
Protecting know-how and intellectual property 1s therefore
of central importance With markets growing ever closer
and the globahzation of business, a competent approach to
protecting our competitive edge 1s a key element in our
investment activiies The company s also exposed to a nisk
that intellectual property cannot be adequately protected,
even through patents, especially when building new produc-
tion facilities in certain countries Similarly, the transfer of
know-how in joint ventures and other forms of cooperation
also entails a risk of an outflow of expertise from Evonik For
example, in the event of the possible separation from a joint
venture or other cooperation partner there 1s no guarantee
that the business partner will not continue to use know-how
transferred or disclose it to third parties, thereby damaging
Evonik's competitive position

Measures to minimize and avoid such risks are coords-
nated by the Corporate Security Division and the Intellectual
Property Management umit The Corporate Secunty Division
has Group-wide responsibility for protecting Evonik’s employ-
ees, facilities, shipments and know-how That includes, for
example, the threat of violence, political unrest, sabotage and
industrial espionage Intellectual Property Management pro-
vides Group-wide support for the development, protection,
strategic use and commerciahzation of intellectual preperty,
for instance through patents and brands The approximately
150 employees in this unit are assisted by a global network of
correspondent lawyers

) The Corporate Governance Repaort 15 contained in this annual report on page 56

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

3 Environmental risks

(environment, safety, health, quality)
Evonik 15 exposed to risks in the fields of plant safety, product
safety, occupational safety and failure to comply with environ-
mental regulations Group-wide poliaes on the environment,
health and safety, and worldwide imitiatives taken by the
Group and the segments to steadily improve safety in our
production facilihies effectively reduce these risks In addition,
risks that could anise as a result of the sourcing of raw mate-
nals and technical services and their impact on our operating
business are systematically 1dentified and evaluated More-
over, audits are conducted at the request of the Executive
Board to check the controlled handhng of such nisks Further-
more, the Group-wide environment and safety management
system, which 15 validated as conforming to international
standards, undergoes constant development and improvement
As a responsible chemical company, Evonik ensures that such
processes are operated in accordance with the principles of
the global Responsible Care initiative and the UN Global
Compact

Adequate provisions have been established to secure or
remediate contaminated sites where necessary Alongside the
need to adjust environmental provisions identified through
structured internal processes, for example as a result of
changes in the regulatory framework, further unplanned
additions to such provisions may be necessary

7.5 Process/organization risks

1 General

This risk category covers the interface between risk manage-
ment and the internal control system (ICS) In this category,
nsks generally result from specific process shortcomings
Alongside general weaknesses, these include, in particular,
risks within the ICS and the accounting-related ICS Classifi-
cation 1s therefore based on the list of processes drawn up
by Corporate Audit Starting from key corporate processes,
the existence of relevant control objectives and standard
controls for the main aisks (dentfied 1s checked In view of
the types of nsk in this category, a purely qualitative assess-
ment 15 normally used
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Oppartunines and risks for the development of personnel
expenses could come, for example, from future collective
agreements

7.4 Legal/compliance risks
and opportunities

The cpporturuties and risks in this category are far mere dif-
ficult to quantify than planning/market risks, s they not onfy
have financial imphcations but often also involve reputational
nsks for the company and/or criminal law consequences
Provisions are set up on our balance sheet to cover the finan-
a3l impact These are reflected in our system as reducing nisk
In view of this complexity, legal /compliance opportunities
and risks are not normally assigned to the opportumity/risk
matnx ilustrated above, nor are they allocated 1o the nisk
quantification classes Major opportunities and risks for the
Group’s earnings naturally anse from issues that result in the
reversal of or an increase In prowisions

1. Law, regulatory framework and compliance
Evonik 15 exposed to lega! nisks resulting, for example, from
legal disputes such as claims for compensation, and from
administrative proceedings and fines In its operating busi-
ness, the Evonik Group 1s exposed to hability nsks, especially
1 connectian with praduct habidity, patent law, tax law, com-
petition law, antitrust law and environmental law Changes in
public law could also give rise to legal risks or matenially alter
such nisk positions As a chemical company with its own
power plants, nsks of partticular relevance here are a possible
change in the charges levied under the German Alternative
Energies Act (EEG) and amendments to the European emis-
sions trading regulanions

Further, Evonik may be lable for guarantee claims
relating to divestments Post-transaction management closely
monitors any liability and guarantee risks resulting from
divestments We have developed a concept involving tigh
quality and safety standards to ensure a controlled approach
to such legal risks

Insurance cover has been purchased for the financial
consequences of any damage that may nevertheless occur as
a result of damage to property, product hability claims and
other nsks Where necessary, Evonik sets up prowisions for
legal nsks

At present, the i1ssues outlined below represent the main legal
risks As a matter of principle, we reframn from evaluating
the opportunities and nsks of potential legal proceedings or
proceedings that have commenced, in order not to influence
our position

Evonik 15 currently involved in three ongoing appraisal
proceedings In connecnion with the settlement paid te former
shareholders The background relates to the following corpo-
rate restructuning measures the dorminatton and profit-
and-loss agreement concluded with RUTGERS GmbH (for-
merly RUTGERS AG) 1n 1999, the squeeze-out of non-
controlling interests in RUTGERS AG (now RUTGERS
GmbH} in 2003, and the squeeze-out of non-controlling
interests in Degussa AG (now Evonik Degussa GmbH) in
2006 The appraisal proceedings comprise a court review of
the appropnateness of cash settlements or compensation

I connection with the divestment of its former energy
activities, Evornrk gave the purchaser vanious indemntties
with regard to the Walsum 10 coal-fired power plant that
was under construction at the tme As a result of technical
problems, the commissioning of this plant was delayed by
nearly four years, so commercial operation only started on
December 20, 2013 Evonik 1s of the opinion that the general
contractor is responsible for retmbursement of the majority
of additional costs and the damage caused by the delay Arbi-
tration proceedings are now pending between the project
company and the general contractor

In connection with the divestrnent of the former carbon
black activities, the purchaser has requested indemnification
from environmental guarantees relating to alleged infringe-
ment of the US Clean Air Act Evenik is currently engaged in
a dispute with the purchaser on this

Following a fine imposed by the EU Commussion in
2002 on various methionine producers {including Evonik),
the Brazihan antitrust authorities have filed proceedings
aganst Evoruk in connection with the delvery of methionine
to Brazil Evonik is of the opinion that a fine cannot be
imposed due to the statute of hmitations

Furthermore, foilowing completion of admintstrative pro-
ceedings outside Germany, 1t is not improbable that individual
customers could file claims for compensation

With regard to employment law, there are nisks relating,
for exarnple, 1o recalculation of pension commitments entered
mio by Evonik and its legal predecassors
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Opportunity and nsk report
Planning/market nisks and epportunities
7. Other

To increase scope for growth and innovations, we are
working steadily to improve our cost position, especially
through the On Track 2 0 and Administration Excellence pro-
grams Beside the potential to raise strategic flexibility and
strengthen the operating units as a result of these programs
and other restructuring projects, there are risks relating to
their implementation These tnclude the risk of falling to
meet the ambitious tmelines, a loss of personnel with key
expertise, fallure to meet financial targets, and higher
restructuring costs Stringent project management, including
involving relevant stakeholders, 1s used to counter these nisks

8. Energy markets
Evenik requires considerable amounts of energy from a wide
variety of sources for its chemcal facilities and infrastructure
The main sources are natural gas, coal and electricity Ol only
plays a subordinate role in Evonik’s energy mix At several
major sites, Evonik generates some of its electricity require-
ments itself in resource-efficient co-generation plants In
2015, we constantly monitored the trend on national and
international energy markets, enabling us to respond cost-
consciously

In countries where the sourcing of energy 15 not
state-requlated, Evonik procures and trades in energy and—
where necessary—emission allowances (CO, allowances)
within the framewaork of defined nsk strategies The aim s
to balance the nisks and opportunities of volatile energy
markets Depending on how the general conditions develop,
our segments could be faced with additional costs

A further significant drop in the price of oil and coalin the
second half of 2015 and high supply on the global gas markets
have led to a drop in electriaity and natural gas prices, which
has also been felt in Germany and Central Europe Never-
theless, natural gas prices at Evonik’s sites in Europe and Asia
are still far hugher than in the USA and Canada

Risks could also arnise from the continued nise in the price
of emission allowances In 2015, there was a largely uninter-
rupted upward trend in the price of allowances in European
emissions trading, unhke the situation for pnimary and secon-
dary energy sources Looking at the regulatory environment,
it remains to be seen which rulings will be applied in Ger-
many after 2017 to allocate the cost of renewables among
captive energy generators

Overall, we are exposed to fluctuations 1n the market
pnice and cost of vanous energy sources as a result of the
specific demand/supply situation and political events These
entall both opportunities and risks

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9. Mergers & acquisitions
Active portfolio management has high prionty for Evomk
as part of our value-based management approach We have
set out clear procedures for prepaning, analyzing and under-
taking acquisitions and divestments In particular, these
include clear rules on accountability and approval processes
An intensive examination of potential acquisitron targets (due
diligence) 1s undertaken before they are acquired This
involves systematic identification of all major epportunities
and risks and an appropriate valuation Key aspects of this
process are strategic focus, earnings power and development
potential ¢n the one hand, and any legal, financial and
environmental risks on the other New companies are rapidly
integrated into the Group and thus into our risk management
and controlling processes Every transaction of this type
entails a risk that (ntegration of the business may not be
successful or that integration costs may be unexpectedly
ligh, thus jeopardizing realization of the planned quantitative
and qualitative targets such as synergies

Where businesses no longer fit our strategy or meet our
sustainable profitability requirements despite optimization,
we 3lso examine external options If a planned divestment Is
not achieved successfully, this could generate nisks that
impact the Group's earnings posibon

10. Human resources
Quahified specialists and managers are the basis for the
achievement of our strategic and operational targets and thus
a key competitive factor

Both the loss of key personnel and difficulties in attracting
and hiring skilled and talented staff could therefore constitute
a risk in this context

To ensure that we can recruit and retain qualified staff
to meet our future requirements, we offer attractive employ-
ment opportunities worldwide, systematic personnel devel-
opment, and competitive remuneration In this way, we retain
and foster mgh-performers and talented employees, and
position Evonik as an attractive employer for prospective
staff We also maintain close links to universities and pro-
fesstona! assooations to help us recruit suitable youngsters
Both our employer branding and many internal activities are
aligned to diversity The aim 15 to make Evonik even more
attractive to talented specialists and managers Strategic
human resources planning identifies requirements for a five-
year period so timely steps can be taken to cover future
personnel needs We have thus largely imited potential
human resources risks

%
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Further opportunities are being generated by the increasing
involvement of external partners (open innovaton) We co-
operate with research institutes and universities to ensure rapid
translatron of the latest research findings into our company
We also work with start-ups and other industnal companies
to facilitate solutions at all stages in the value chain that set us
apart from our competitors

Through our venture capnal program, we take stakes in
compames whose know-how can support us in joint devel-
opments

Opportunities and risks i R&D relate to the viability of
planned product and process developments and the timing
of their implementation We mainly see significant opportu-
nmities from the introduction of new products that go beyond
our present planning in the Resource Efficiency segment

3 Investments
Generating organic growth through investment entails risks
as regards the proposed scope and timing of projects These
nisks are addressed through established, structured processes
For instance, we take an extremely disciplined approach to
implementng aur wwestment progeam Both projects that
have not yet started and those that are already underway are
constantly reviewed for changes in the market situation and
postponed if necessary

At the same time, we regard buifding new production
facihities in regions with high growth momentum as an oppor-
tunity to generate further profitable growth For example,
socio-economic megatrends are driving the development of
our amino acids business Following the successful start-up
of a world-scale facilty for DL-methionine in Singapore in
falt 2014, we are planning to erect another plant at this com-
ptex by 2019 Global population growth means that demand
for amimal protein will continue to nise steadily in the future
This 1s being reinforced by a further trend In the emerging
markets eating habits n the growing middle class are shifting
towards western patterns in the wake of nsing prospernity and
increasing urbaruzation Consumption of meat 1s therefore
increasing sharply in Asian cities, leading to more intensive
Ivestock farming wn this region Moreover, environmentally
compatible agricultural production that makes more efficient
use of resources 1s becoming more important worldwide for
ecological reasons

In additien, 1n emerging markets there is nising demand
from the affluent middie class for personal care products and
cosmetics China and Brazil are important growth markets for
personal care products because of ther size and momentum
Evoruk wants to participate in this growth through new local
production capacities

The resource efficiency megatrend 15 the basis for a large
number of energy-efficient and environment-friendly
products from Evonik One example 15 precipitated silica,
where we are a market leader Combining these silicas with
sdlanes allows the manufacture of tres with considerably
lower rolling reststance than conventional auto trres, resulting
in fuel savings of up to 8 percent Here, future growth will
be supported, among other factors, by the introduchon of
tire labehing regulations in further countries, for example in
Brazil in 2016 To utilize the resultant opportunities, we are
increasing our capacity for stlica A new preduction facility 15
therefore currently under construction in Americana (Brazil)
This will be the first local producer of highly dispersible silica
{HD silica} specifically for the South American tire industry
In South Amenca the market for tires with low rolling resis-
tance, and thus for HD silica, 15 growing far faster than the
market for normal auto tires

The investments described above are included in our
mid-term planning Delayed realization or abandonment of
investment projects, for example because of the polincal
situation in certain countries, would adversely affect planned
growth and, in extreme situations, cauld result inimpawrment
losses and the associated write-downs on facilities or plants
under construction By contrast, new projects could result in
additional earmings In some areas

6. Production

As a specialty chemicals company, Evonik is exposed to the
nsk of business interruptions, quality problems and unex-
pected technical difficulties Our products involve complex
production processes, some of them with mterdependent
production steps Consequently, disruption and stoppages can
adversely affect subsequent production steps and products
The outage of production facilities and interruptions in pro-
duction workflows could have a sigrificant negative influence
on business and earmings performance, a2nd could also harm
people and the environment Group-wide policies on project
and quality management, highly qualified employees and
regular maintenance of our plants effectively minimize these
nisks Insofar as 15 economically wiable, we take out insurance
to cover damage to our plants and sites and production
stoppages, so the financial consequences of potential pro-
duction risks are largely insured Nevertheless, there 1s a nisk
of unforeseeable individual incidents
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Opportunity and nsk report
Planning/market nisks and opportuninies

Overall, Evomk beheves that adequate financing instruments
are available to ensure sufficient liquidity at all bmes

Credit risks refating to financial contracts are system-
atically examined when the contracts are concluded and
monitored continugusly afterwards Limits are set for each
counterparty on the basis of internal or rating-based credit-
worthiness analyses

Market opportunities and nisks, and liquidity and default
nsks relating to financial instruments also anse from the
management of our pension plan assets Here, we take an
active approach to nisk management, which 15 combined
with detailed risk controlhing Strategic management of the
portfolios takes place via reqular acuve/passive studies To
mimmize risk, we use a range of dernvative hedging strategies
where appropnate The broad diversification of asset classes,
portfolio sizes and asset managers avoids cluster risks How-
ever, unavoidable residual nisks may rematn in the individual
Investments

Goodwill from business combinations 1s allocated to the
segments An impairment tast is conducted annually for these
reporting segments Impairment losses on these intangible
assets can result from a change n reporting structure, the
welghted average cost of capital and, above all, lower cash
flow expectations

3 Raw matenal markets
For our business operations we require both high-volume
commodities and smaller amounts of strategically relevant
raw materials that have to meet highly demanding specifi-
cations Across the entire spectrum of raw matenals, Evomk
1s confronted with opportuntties and risks relating to the
increasing volatihty of the availability of raw matenials and
therr prices Another nsk may anse from single-source
situations, although the extent of such risks I1s hmited

The operating business 1s dependent on the price of
strategic raw rmaterials, especially petrochemical feedstocks
obtained directly or indirectly from crude o1l The price of
crude a1l therefore has a considerable influence on both the
procurement prices of raw materials further down the value
chatn and energy costs The price of renewable raw materials
15 also hughly volatile and depends, among other things, on
harvest conditions Another factor influencing pnce nisks 1s
changes in exchange rates

Some procurement risks are hedged by optimizing
global procurement activities, for example, by accessing new
markets for raw matenals and concluding market-oriented
agreements The overriding aim of the procurement strategy
1s to secure the avalability of raw matenals on the best
possible terms

CONSQOLIDATED FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To further reduce the risks with regard to products that have
intensive raw material requirements, our aim 15 to align the
procurement and sales sides in order to pass fluctuations i
raw material prices along to other stages in the value chain
where necessary, for example through price escalation
clauses The sharp drop in the oil price i the past two years
has made a significant contribution to reducing the cost of
procuring raw matenals

Short- and mid-term bottlenacks in the availability of
precursors and ntermediates are also potental nsks We
alleviate these where necessary by substituting suppliers We
constantly observe the business performance of suppliers of
selected key raw materials to anticipate bottlenecks and avoid
nsks 20175 was characterized to an usual extent by outages in
the supply chain resulting from force majeure Such events
can generally be overcome by taking suitable steps in cooper-
ation with the suppliers affected and alternative suppliers

Rising volatiity will require increased management of the
various supply chain risks in the future

Aspects such as safety, health, environmental protection,
corporate responsibility and quality have a firm place in our
procurement strategy These sustainability aspects are also
supported by standardized global assessments through the
Together for Sustainability (TS} sector imtiative, which was
co-founded by Evonik Evonik’s principal supphers and the
majority of critical suppliers have already taken part in these
assessments, which are evaluated by EcoVadss, an impartial
sustainability rating company

The opportunities and risks arising from changes in the
price of petrochemical feedstocks mainly affect the Perfor-
mance Materiafs segment because of its tugh procurement
volume Risks relating to single sourcing and short-term
restrictions on the availability of raw matenals manly affect
the Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency segments

4. Research & development

Opportunities for Evonik also come from market-onented
research & development (R&D), which we regard as an
important driver of profitable growth We have a well-
stocked R&D pipeline with a balanced mixture of short-,
mid- and long-term R&D projects On the one hand, we
constantly strive to improve our processes to strengthen our
cost leadership, and on the other, our projects open the door
to new markets and new fields of technology Our project
portfolio 15 consistently ahgned to the strategy of the relevant
business entities

7
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Minimizing these nisks 1s an important objective of our cor-
porate policy Group-wide policies and principles specify that
all matenal financial nsk positons have to be identified and
evaluated The risks are limited through selective use of
dervative and non-denvative financial instruments, taking the
cost /benefit profile into account This may include the use of
options for hedging purposes For financial nsk management
purposes, Evonik apphes the prinaple of separation of front
office, nisk controting and back office functions and takes as
its guide the banking-specific “Mimimum Requirements for
Risk Management” (MaRisk) and the requirements of the
German legisiation on corporate control and 1ransparency
(KonTraG) Binding trading hmits, responsibilities and controls
are thus set in accordance with recogmized best practices
This forms the basis for selective hedging to hmut nisks

The nsks and opportunities associated with interest
rates and exchange rates are managed centrally by the
Finance Diwision of Evonik industries AG, which also issues
nstructions on the management of liquidity and default risks
Financial derivatives’ are used exclusively to reduce the nisks
resulting from operating and finanaing activities and there-
fore always relate to corresponding underlying transactions
Use of financial instruments for speculation is not permitted

Forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and cross-
currency interest rate swaps are used to manage currency
risks When setting interest terms, we pay attention to care-
ful structuring of the fixed-to-floating interest rauo, interest
rate swaps can be used to optimize the situation Commaodity
swaps are used to hedge the nisk of fluctuations in the price
of coal, natural gas and petrochemical feedstocks We also
use forward contracts to secure the procurement of emissions
allowances to meet statutory obligations

A considerable portron of the Evonik Group's financial
assets and habrhties and 1ts sales are in currenoies other than
the euro, which 1s the Group’s reporting currency The most
mmportant foreign currencies are the US dollar and the Chinese
renminbt yuan All cash flows that are planned, firmly agreed
of recognized on the balance sheet as receivables and habilities
and are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective company are exposed to the epportumities and
risks of changes in exchange rates Risk positions resulting
from trade accounts receivable and payable in foreign curren-
cies are normally bundied and offset through intragroup

hedging The remaining net nsk exposure 1s then fully
hedged through currency dervatives Cash pool positions and
time deposits in foreign currencies are hedged analogously
Unhke these portfolio hedges, micro-hedges are concluded
for non-current loans and for planned and firmly agreed
forergn currency payments {for example, planned foreign
currency sales, where the aim 1s to hedge 65 percent of the
idenufred exchange rate nsk, and exchange rate nisks relating
to planned investments) When hedging planned and firmly
agreed nisk positions with financial instruments, hedge
accounting is used to synchromze the earnings effects of
the recognized hedging nstruments with those of the off-
balance-sheet hedged items

Evonik manages the opportunities and nisks resulting fram
changes n interest rates in finanaing and investment actinties
on a case-by-case basis Through the use of fixed-interest
loans and interest rate hedging instruments, 96 percent of all
finanoial liabihtres were classified as fixed-interest as of the
reporting date and therefore had no matenal exposure to
changes i interest rates

Changes in interest rates can have a sigruficant influence
on the present value of cur pension obligations® and thus
entall both risks and opportunities for the Group

We use scenario analyses® to assess the possible impact of
opportunittes and risks relating to currencres and interest
rates In view of the nising importance of regions outside the
euro zone, exchange rate risks and opportunities will increase
in the long term

Gther price risks relating to the financial markets come
mainly from investments in compames that are listed on the
stock exchange, which 1AS 39 specifies have to be recognized
on the balance sheet at their stock market value Since Evonik
does not generally undertake such investments with a view to
short-term purchase or sale, the unreahzed changes i market
value are only recognized in the income statement if they
represent a sigmficant or long-term loss of value Otherwise,
they are recognized as changes in egquity with no impact on
profit or loss until such gains or losses are reahized through
sale of the investment

At the heart of Evonik's centeal iquidity nsk management ®
1s a Group-wide cash pool In addition, the Group's financial
independence i1s secured through a broadly dwersified finane-
Ing structure

1 Further details of the financial denvatives used and thewr recognition and valuation can be found in Note 10.2 to the consalidated financial statements

Z See Note 4 (&)

3 Adetated averview of hquidity nisks and their management can be faund in Nate 10.2 to the consalidated financial statements Detads of the finanang of the
Evonik Group and action to protect iquidity can be found in the section on finanoial condstion
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Opportunity and risk classes within the planning/market category

Risiks Sub-category Opportunities
. Sales markets - .
I e Financsal markets B .
[ Raw materis) markets ]
Research & development | ]
[ ] Capital expenditures
[ ] Production mm High
] Other opportunities /risks
- Energy markets mm Moderate

Mergers & acquisitsions

Hurman resources

cpportunities frisks

Low
opporturities /nsks

Alongside the general demand situatton, intensive competition
In the various market segments harbors both opportunities
and nsks In particular, competitors in low-wage countries
Increase competitive pressure through new capacities and
aggressive pricing policies that can impair our selling prices
and volume trends To counter this we are broadening our
foreign production base and gaming access to new markets
in high-growth regions such as Asia and South America The
operating units affected also use various methods of increas-
ing customer loyalty to reduce these risks These include, In
particular, strategic research allances with customers and
extending the services offered along the value chain We are
constantly developing attractive and competitive new products
and technologies to mitigate the nsk that chemical products
could be replaced by new, improved or less expensive
materials or technologies Opportunities arise for our busi-
ness from unmet demand in indmdual markets, for example
if our competitors are unable to bring planned new capaaty
into service on schedule

The specific market development for indwidual business
activities 15 another focus in the assessment of opportunities
and nsks This relates to both demand from specific markets
and the competitive situation 1n various industnes Changes
in demand can impact our business volume and sales We
address these risks proacuvely through permanent market
monitering, activities to retain customers and gain new
accounts, and timely endeavors to develop innovative new
appheations and enter new markets In principle, these
opportunities and risks may affect all segments, but they
are particularly relevant for the Nutrition & Care and Per-
formance Matenals segments One potential risk factor for
our armino acrds business, for example in Asia, 15 the possible

impact of substandard food qualty and food safety, especially
due to bird flu We utihze opportunities for profitable future
growth by gaining access to new markets as part of our
strateqgic development One attractive market for our portfolio
of feed additives 1s aquaculture, for which we have developed
innovative products As a result of global population growth,
nsing affluence in emerging markets and overfishing of the
world’s oceans, the global aquaculture market 1s growing
faster than other areas of livestock farming

Customer concentration 15 basically low in our chemicals
segments None of the end-markets that we supply accounts
for more than 20 percent of sales Neverthefess, some oper-
aunonal units, especially in the Nutrition & Care and Resource
Efficiency segrments, and the Services segment have a certain
dependence on key customers In the operating business, this
apples n particular to production facihties erected n the
direct vicimity of major customers The possible loss of a major
customer could result in lower sales and in impairment losses
on receivables and investments, as well as impacting our
long-term raw material agreements or the financial structure
of our affiliates

2 Financial markets

On the financial markets, the company 1s exposed to risks and
opportumties associated with prices and to hiquidity and
default nsks Price-related opportunities and nsks result from
changes in exchange rates, interest rates and other prices
Liquidity risks relate to the ability of the company to meet its
payment cbhigations, while default risks entail the risk of a
loss if a debtor 1s fully or partially unable to meet its payment
commitments

15
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Opportunity frisk matrix

>0 I W N N
o5 sor-aso [N I R B B orres/ots
B2 o — 1T e
TS 1
Low
0-25 opparturities/risks
1-10% 1M1-25% 26-49% 50-75% 76-100%

Probability of occurrence

The orgamizational units conduct an extensive annual risk
Inventory in connection with the mid-term planning process
They are required to provide details of the measures to be
taken with regard to the risks identfied, introduce them
immediately, and track their imely implementation Internal
management (for example, reporting by the Risk Commuttee)
takes a mid-term view The opportunities and rnisks identified
are classified as low, moderate or high (see opportunity and
risk matrix) The evaluation 1s always based on a net view, In
other words, taking into account nsk hmitation measures
The nsk inventory 1s supplemented by quarterly reviews
of all opportunities and risks relating to the present year to
spot changes in the opportumities and risks that have already
been identified and 1dentify new nisks and opportunities
The management of nsks and opportunities is based on
therr potential impact and probability of occurrence All high
risks are classified as matenal individual nisks, as are moderate
risks with an expected value of over €10 milion in the mid
term The expected value is used exclusively as a basis for
prioritization and to focus reporting on key 1ssues

7.2 Overall assessment
of opportunities and risks

Given the measures planned and implemented, no nisks have
been Wentified that—either individually or in compunction
with other risks—could jeopardize the continued existence of
Evonik as @ whole, including Evonik Industries AG in 1ts role
as the holding company for the Group

For 2015 we expected shghtly more risks than opportu-
niies However, some major opportunities were realized
during the year, resulting in a substantial increase in earnings,
especially in the Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency

segments By contrast, the development of the Performance
Materials segment was characterized by considerably mare
nsks than opportunities Key factors relating to the nsk
categories were the macro-economic environment and the
specific market and competitive situation, especially in the
markets for amino aads and C, chemicals From the present
standpoint, the risks for 2016 outweigh the potental oppor-
tunibies, which are around the same level as last year

Sections 7 3 and 7 4 present the opportunities and nisks in
each category in descending order of significance for the
Evonik Group Except where otherwise indicated, they apply
for all segments

7.3 Planning/market risks
and opportunities

In accordance with our internal management, opportunities
and nisks in the planning/ market category are allocated to nsk
quantification classes within sub-categories The chart shows
the highest class to which an individual nsk or opportunity 15
allocated in each sub-category Indmidual opportunities and
risks may also be allocated to the lower risk classes Where
two sub-categories have the same profile in the chart, they
are ranked first on the basis of opportunities, then hsted in
descending order, based on their expected impact

1 Sales markets

The macro-economic environment 1s particularly relevant for
an assessment of opporturuttes and risks This applies both to
the development of the global econemy and to economic
trends 1n specific regions such as Europe, China and other
growth markets There are also nisks associated with geo-
political conflicts in some regtans and countnies
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6. Events after the reporting date

No reportable events have occurred since the reporting date

7. Opportunity and risk report

7.1 Opportunity and risk management

Risk strategy

Evonik’s Group-wide internal opportunity and nisk manage-
ment {referred to generically as risk management in this
section) forms a central element in the management of the
company Our risk detection system meets the requirements
for publicly isted companies The aims are to identify oppor-
tunities and risks as early as possible and to define measures
to counter and minimize any nsks and utiftze opportunities
That includes nisks which could jeopardize the future of the
company We only enter into entrepreneunal risks if we are
convinced that in this way we can generate a sustained rise in
the value of the company and, at the same time, permanently
limit possible negative implications

Structure and orgamization of risk management
At Group level risk management 1s assigned to the Chief
Financial Officer and 1s organized on a decentralized basis in
line with Evonik’s organizational structure

The segments, corporate divisions and service units bear
prime responsibility for risk management That comprises
early identification of nsks, estimating thewr implications,
introducing suitable preventive and control measures and the
related internal communication Risk coordinators in the orga-
mzational units are responsible for agreeing on the relevant
risk management activities Risk management is therefore a
key element in various management and decision-making
processes (for example, controlling processes) at all levels in
the Group Itincludes strategic and operational planming, the
preparation of investment decisions, projections, and timely
and systematic reporting of risks

A central Corporate Risk Officer coordinates and oversees
the processes and systems He 1s the contact for all nsk co-
ordinaters and is responsible for information, documentation

and coordination at Group level Further responsibilities
include ongoing development of the methodology used by
the risk management system The Risk Commuittee 15 chaired
by the Chief Financial Officer and composed of represen-
tatives of the corporate divisions it validates the Group-wide
nsk situation and verifies that it 1s adequately reflected in
financial reporting The Supervisory Board, especially the
Audit Committee, oversees the risk management system

tn 2015, the companies included in our nsk management
system were 1dentical to those in the scope of consohidation
for the financial statements At companies where we do not
exert a controlling influence, we implement our risk manage-
ment requirements pnmarily through our presence in manage-
ment and supervisory bodies Corporate Audit monitors risk
management In our organizational units to make sure they
comply with statutory and internal requirements and to
ensure continuous improvement of risk management The
system used to identify emerging nisks 1s included in the
annual audit in comphiance with the requirements for listed
compantes This audit showed that Evonik’s risk detection
system 1s suitable for timely identification of risks that could
pose a threat to the company’s survival

The nsk management system 1s based on the internation-
ally recogrized COSO Enterpnse Management standard
It 15 implemented through a binding Group-wide policy
Individual risks are systematically identified and managed
with the aid of special sk management software Their
probability of occurrence and the possible damage (potential
impact) are evaluated and documented, together with their
expected value (product of probabihty of occurrence and
potential impact) Analogously to current planning, the evalu-
ation 15 based on a peniod of three years (mid-term planning)
Opportunities and nsks are defined as positive and negative
deviations from the plan

1n3
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High standard of chmate reporting established
Potential to grow our business can be leveraged by systematic
realignment of our portfolio of products and services, taking
global megatrends into account For Evonik, these include
global chimate change We have a large number of innovate
products that improve energy efficiency at subsequent stages
in the value chain and therefore make an important contn-
bution to reducing the use of resources and cutting emissions
Our lubricant and fuel addiuves are a good example Hydrauhe
fluids contaning our DYNAVIS® additives can increase the
productivity of excavators by up to 30 percent and at the same
time cut fuel consumption by up to 30 percent Companies
that are interested can calculate the exact savings for them-
selves using a special calculator on the DYNAVIS® website
Maximum comparabibity based on complete transparency 15
essential to make sustainable business activities measurable
and traceable

The Carbon Disclosure Project 1s currently the world's
largest and most impartant ininative by the financial sector on
chmate change, bringing together more than 800 mstitutional
investors with combned assets under management of over
US$95 tnllion

This project examines all aspects of corporate policy and
how it is put into practice in business It covers both the com-
pleteness of reporting and the quality of the information
relating to actual climate performance In 2015, Evonik was
able to improve on its very good results for 2014 (91/B)
With a ranking of 98/B, Evonik once again did significantly
better than the average of 72/C for the participating MDAX
companies

Lower CO, emissions’

CO; emissions dechined shghtly from 8 8 million metnic tons
in 2014 to 8 7 mulhion metnc tons in 2015 akthough output
increased from 10 3 milhon metric tons to 10 4 million metric
tons in this period The deciine in ermissions was mainly due to
unplementation of specfic measures to calse energy efficiency,
an altered energy mix in Mar! (Germany} as a result of lower
availabiity of the coal-fired power plants due to maintenance
shut-downs, and the divestment of the remaining carbon
black activities in China The 30 facihibies operated by Evanik
that fall wathin the scope of the European Unton’s Emissions
Trading System (EU ETS) emitted 4 0 milhon metric tons of
CO;in 2015 The reduction of 0 2 million metric tons com-
pared with 2014 was marnly due to temporary reductions in
coal-based energy generation and lower utihzation of the
hydrogen plant in Marl

Environmental protection investment
and operating costs
We invested €43 million 1n 2015 to achieve a further improve-
ment 1n envirenmental protection This comprised capital
expenditures for investment projects undertaken n 2015
such as the expansion of capaaty for specialty silicas in Ako
(Japan), a large number of indiidual investments in effective
end-of-pipe technologies, and environmental protection
measures integrated wnto plants and processes The high
prior-year figure of €107 million was dominated by the
start-up of major strategic investment projects in the Asian
region These included, wn particular, the new methionine
complex in Stngapore and the new production faciliues for
isophorone and 1sophorone diamine in Shanghai (China)
Qperating costs for emvironmental pratection facilines rase
considerably to €283 milhon 1n 2015 (2014 €259 million),
principally due to the start-up of methionine production and
the use of the environmental protection facilities at the site
in Singapore

Health management and
contingency planning go hand-in-hand
To fulfill our responsibility to our employees, we have a wide
range of measures to protect and maintain their health These
have a firm place in aur Group-wide well@work program

Evonik’s workplace health protection and promotion mea-
sures focus first and foremost on encouraging a hezlthy
Ifestyle with offernings in the areas of exercise, a healthy diet,
work-life balance, and preventing infections and addiction
To supplement this, special annual campaigns are devoted
to different aspects and the company offers voluntary pre-
ventive measures In 2015, for example, campaigns aimed at
preventing colorectal cancer were run at many of our sites

Standardized processes based on hazard assessments are
used for occupational health management Potential dangers
in the workplace are systematically identified and measures
are developed to assure the health and safety of our em-
ployees Their effectiveness is monttored through medical
check-ups

Medical contrngency management at Evonik 15 based on
a global policy that sets out the necessary emergency organi-
zation and the equipment and personnel to be provided, taking
the regional emergency response infrastructure into account
Exercises are conducted regularly to check the functioning of
this system

¥ Direct CO, emissions {Scope T emissions under the Greenhouse Gas Protocal) come from energy generation and praduction Indirect CO, emissions come from

purchased energy (Scope 2 emissions)
2 See also the section on Employees
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Number of accidents per 1 millwn working hours
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Incident frequency did not meet our target

Process safety at our plants 1s another focus of our imitiative
The concepts to prevent fire and the release of hazardous
substances are reqularly analyzed in detail The aim 15 timely
identification of risks so we can develop appropnate
measures that reliably prevent these nsks We monitor
and evaluate plant safety using the incident frequency
indicator’, which covers incidents involving the release
of substances, fire or explosion, even If there 15 little or no
damage (process safety performance indicator defined by the
European Chemical Industry Council, Cefic) This indicator
deteriorated shghtly to 55 points in 2015 (2014 53), so we
did not meet our target of maximum 48 points The differ-

Incident frequency indicator

ence was attnbutable to one segment and individual sites and
measures have already been taken to counter the situation

Another common indicator of plant safety 1s also used
in external compansons This 1s defined as the number of
incidents per 1 milhon hours worked by all employees in the
Group Evonik’s performance rated by this indicator was13

To ensure that our safety concepts to prevent the release
of substances, fire and explosion meet unifermly high safety
standards throughout the world, they are developed with
the involvement of selected and experienced safety experts,
who are assigned to our Global Process Safety Competence
Center (GPSC) and form the Global Safety Expert Network
fed by the GPSC

Number of incidents per 1 million hours worked, taking 2008 as the reference base
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T Number of incsdents per 1 million hours worked 1n the production facilities operated by the segments, taking 2008 as the reference base

{expressed in percentage paints 2008 = 100)
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5.2 Environment, safety and health

Ambitious environmental targets
Protecting our environment and the chimate are major globat
challenges of our age, along with the efficient use of imited
natural resources i the face of the growing world population
and increasing affluence Maintaining the natural basis for
future generations 15 part of our corporate respansibility
Key areas of action in the ecological arena can be derived
from efficiency requirements For us, that principally means
reducing energy consumption, miniMIZING emissions into the
air and water, and efficent water management

We also develop products that contribute to forging a
clear ink between economic success and ecological progress
However, improving our ecological footprnt and remaining
nternationally competitive are also dependent on public
acceptance and political opportunity These conditions are
reflected in our strategic focus

We have set demanding envirenmental targets for the period
2013-2020 (reference base 2012)

- Reduce specific greenhouse gas emissions ' by 12 percent
- Reduce specific water intake® by 10 percent

In sustainable waste management, we are continuing our
efforts to make more efficient use of resources

In 2015, we made substantal progress in further reducing
emissions at all stages in the value chain A functioning
environmental management system is the basis for this
Integrating it wto OUF corporate processes 15 an ongong task
and an integral part of sustainability management at Evomk
At Evonik, accountability for plants, technical systems, products
and processes 15 therefore assigned to the responsible mem-
bers of staff, for example, through )ob descriptions and letters
of delegation

Cur binding Group-wide Environment, Safety and Health
(ESH) strategy, including a set of rules that has been audited
externally, forms the basis for our action Audits are conducted
to monitor implementation by the segments, regions and sites
Alongside many mternal audits in operating units, 1n 2015 we
conducted 17 corporate audits Maore than 95 percent of our
global production 13 at sites that have been validated as con-
forming to ISO 14001, an internationally recogrized environ-
mental management standard

1 Energy- and process-related emussions a5 defined by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
2 Excluding site-specific factors in the use of surface water or groundwater

Safety as a management task

We take our responsibility in the field of safety particularly
sertously—during production and while shipping products
to our customers Qur objective 15 to protect our employees
and local residents, as well as the environment, against any
potential negative impact of our activities The Group-wide
“Safety at Evonik” tmitiative introduced in 2014 has become
firmly established as an ongoing process to develop our safety
culture and a fundamental management approach to all aspects
of occupational and traffic safety Our guiding principles for
safety and our safety culture provide a structure and guidance
for our corporate targets and activities Binding principles are
applicable for all employees, from local personnel to cur
management, and provide clear and measurable guidance for
their personal conduct and leadership

Reduction in accident frequency
A speoial focus of our inttiative 1s the safety of our employ-
ees—both at work and on the way to and from work—and
the safety of contractors working at our sites n 2013, we
registered a further improvement 1n the accsdent frequency
indicator? for our continuing operations to 10, compared
with 12 in the previous year This indicator has now been
stable for several years at our long-term strateqic goal of
around 10 The acadent frequency rate was well below
the target of a maximum of 1 3 defined for 2015

There were no fatal accidents at work involving our
employees or contractors at gur sites in 2015, nor were there
any fatal traffic acaidents involving employees on the way to
and from work or on business trips

The acodent frequency indicator for contractors (number
of work-related accidents involving non-Evonik employees
resulting 1 absence from work per 1 million working haurs)
dropped back to 29 (2014 3 6) We attnibute this positive
result to the steps taken to improve our contractor manage-
ment principles in 2014 The processes to improve the moni-
toring and evaluation of contractors were implemented at
all major German sites 1n 2015 and are now having an effect
A standard has also been drawn up for our international sites
and will be implemented in 2016

3 Number of accidents involving Evonik employees and contractors’ employees under Evanik’s direct superwision per 1 million working hours




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS * MANAGEMENT REPORT

Sustainabality
Employees

Diversity 1s decisive
We place great emphasis on a good mix of employees to
ensure diversity of nationahty, gender, educational back-
ground and professional experience, as well as a wide-
ranging age structure We specifically support this through
activities such as gender networks at our major Germany
sites and various events and formats that bring together
people, enrich discussions and help build bridges between
different cultures and backgrounds The Evonik WoMentoring
initiative entered 1ts second round (n 2015 In addition, we
again included binding dwersity targets 1n the objectives
agreed with our corporate executives

Qur diversity strategy also forms the strategic basis
for our resolutions on implementing the new legislation on
gender quotas’, for which the German government set
a deadline of September 30, 2015 These resolutions confirm
that we wall step up the measures already defined and estab-
lished as part of our diversity strategy to foster women in
management positions

Employee survey—Online only for the first time

In our first fully onhine employee survey run under the motto
“I'm inonline” at the end of 2015, around 33,000 employees
worldwide were asked for their input to actively shape the
future of the Group The survey included questions about the
change process for the ongoing development of Evonik’s
organizational structure As a new element, there were
spectfic questions on occupational safety, which 1s a top
prionity for Evonik as a specialty chemicals company The
participation rate was an excellent 83 9 percent In the
follow-up process, the results of the survey will be translated
into specific improvement measures in 2016

Work-life balance

Healthy and motivated employees are vital for Evonik's
success and an integral part of our corporate responsibility
Our well@work program covers all aspects that maintain and

' See Declaration on COrporate governance
? See secuon on Environment, safety and health

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

improve the employability and quality of life of our employ-
ees For example, in the area of health management serminars
are organized throughout Germany to provide information on
a healthy diet, handling stress and appropnate physical exer-
aise Evonik also offers employees a wide range of sports
activities—from yoga to conventional gym classes

Combining work and family life has also had very
high priority for Evonik for years and is part of our overal
well@work approach In 2015 we embarked on a review of
our performance in this area in order to uphold our validation
by the Hertie Foundation as a farmity-frendly company Core
elements of our offering include support in child care and
flexible worktime models

At the end of 2015 we also started to revise our regional
and country-specific approach to work-hfe balance

Lead
In the area of leadership, Evonik builds on a uriform and
concrete Group-wide understanding of leadership, centered
on a trustful relationship between employees and managers

To ensure that sincere and effective leadership 15 a
distinctive quality at all Evonik sites, 1n 2015 we harmonized
global training to prepare staff for leadership roles The aim s
to establish high-quality leadership ahigned to our corporate
culture as 2 hallmark of Evonik

Strong leaders are essential for value-onented manage-
ment of the company In 2015 nearly 70 corporate talents
therefore once again made a contribution to the housing
construction project in Vietnam in coliaboration with Habitat
for Humanity As well as direct experience of value-ornented
action, they gained inspiration, which they conveyed back
into our cempany In addibon, wn 2015 two pilot groups
embarked on a program that explores ethical conduct,
personal values and their relationship to the working
environment Nearly 30 corporate talents took part in this
program in 2015
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Talent management for executives
Evomik 15 committed to the established practice of filhing
executive and other key positions principafly from within the
company Our talent management 1dentifies, develops and
fosters employees with potential across hierarchica! levels
and functions Regular planning conferences with the close
involvement of the Executve Board focus on development
and succession planning for corporate talents and executives
To ensure continued business-onented 1dentification
and career development for talented employees, in 2015
we aligned our processes and personnel conferences to the
management holding structure Operational and functional
urits and the Corporate Center discuss key potentials within
the Group with the Executive Board, along with the next
steps n their development and target functions Alongside
employee development reviews and various panels, we use
clearly defined indicaters, which are reviewed regularly and
were revised 1n 2015 In 2015 we introduced a new program
for top-level development members of Evonik’s top man-
agement support personally selected executives in their
professional development and act as sparnng partners for
their future career paths

Perform
Here the focus is on a healthy performance culture as the
basis for the company’s success and the personal motivation
of every indwvidual employee Globally, our actvities in this
area are based on appropnate human resources tools comple-
mented by a wide variety of performance incentives Fan,
performance-related remuneration plays a central role in this,
together with the annual performance and development
review

In 2015, personnel expenses, inciuding social secunty
contributions and pension expense, rose 14 percent to
€3,121 rillion” as a result of the ncrease in our headcount
and pay nses Personnel expenses were therefore 2317 per-
cent of sales (2014 21 3 percent)

Remuneration—Uniform global evaluation criteria
When shaping remuneration systems, Evonik believes it 1s
very important to offer specialists and executives market-
onented and performance-refated salaries based on uniform
global evaluation criteria The remuneration of many mem-
bers of our workforce includes bonus payments that are
dependent on the company’s business performance or the
personal performance of the employee

¥ See Note 112

In addition, two years ago we introduced the “Share”
employee share program for personnel in Germany, Belgium
and the USA The high participation rate of around 36 percent
highhights our employees’ confidence in Evonik’s business
development In 2015 around 10,000 employees, including
apprentices, took part in the “Share” program They pur-
chased nearly 280,000 shares and were allocated argund
95,000 bonus shares through the company's subsidy program

Pensions form part of overall compensation

Evonik helps employees provide for security after retirement
Different arrangements are offered depending on regional
specifics and the conditions prevailing in individual countries
In Germany, Evonik has established a system of company
pension plans that provide retirement, disability and surviving
dependents’ pensions through a reinsured support fund
Mandatory contributions to this fund, supplemented by
optional contnibutions through deferred compensation
arrangements, ensure that employees’ pension provision
extends beyond the level funded by therr employer Employer
contnibutions o pension plans are also an important element
of total annual remuneration outside Germany, for example
in the USA and some European countries

Retain

In spite of the necessary change processes a high level of
employee retention 15 achieved through our corporate values
and common corporate culture, which foster identification
with the company

Employee fluctuation 2015?

No of
Fluctuauon employees
rate  who left the
0% company

By gender
Femate 52 416
Male 45 1,133

By age

Under 30 44 295
301050 R 537
Over 50 77 717
Evonik 47 1,549

* Referencebase no of employees in each category a5 of December 31, 2014

Previgus reporting base altered m sustainablliy reports from 2015
Instead of unplanned fluctuation, the figure now shows total fluctuation
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Employer branding—Positioning Evonik

as an attractive employer

A strong and umform global employer brand 1s an important
success factor in the competition to attract the most talented
employees and executives Qur promise “Explonng opportu-
nities Growing together * 1s an expression of our values as an
employer wide-ranging global development opportunities
and team spinit As part of our employer branding, we use
creative and unusual methods to fire passion for Evonik
In tomorrow’s specialists at an early stage For example, in
2015 we challenged students at ten universities in Germany
to Battle of Brains, a digital quiz that attracted around 1,000
participants High-quality prizes were awarded to the best
three from each university and the winning entrant from each
university was invited to attend the Evornk Student Network
Day In addition, around 100,000 impressions of Battle of
Brains were registered in various media (including films on
YouTube)

A variety of awards and surveys confirm that Evonik
1s already one of Germany's most attractive employers
For example, in 2015 we ranked third in the chemical and
pharmaceutical sector 1n the employer ranking conducted by
the German news magazine FOCUS In China, Evonik was
once again included in the list of the most popular employers
published by the Top Employer Institute 1n 2015

Modern recruiting tools extended
To build contact to relevant groups of potential employees
at an early stage, we engage in selective cooperation with
unversities and higher education institutes around the world
These are selected in consultation with the relevant specialist
departments

In Germany, for example, we support particularly com-
mitted students at 1S universities as part of the German
government’s "Deutschlandstipendium” program This includes
offering them cpportumities for internships and supporting
them in the preparation of their dissertations and theses
through specific projects at Evontk

Through the Evonik Perspectives program we remain in
contact with students whose performance i internships 1s
above average Many partrcipants in this program join Evonik
when they finish their studies

In view of the high and growing significance of social
media, we have stepped up our activities in this area and
further strengthened our presence in such media

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Our global talent recruitment witiative RISE 15 designed to
attract talented external candidates for key positions and
management posts The core element of RISE, apart from
suitabihty for a specific position, 1s the potential to take on
more demanding assignments

Develop

In this area, we concentrate on targeted development of
talented employees Group-wide we are therefore stepping
up structured development opportunities for all employees
ahgned to requirements This also lays the foundations for
our sustatned policy of filling key positions from within the
company

Vocational and further tratning for present
and future specialists
Evorik still recruits specialists from within its own ranks and
1s committed to supporting their vocational traiming and
ongoing development This 15 also an element in meeting
our corporate responsibility to society and our workforce
The number of apprentices and, above all, the number of
apprentices hired by us at the end of their traiming will be
aligned even more clearly to the personnel requirements of
our organizational units in the future

At year-end 2015, we had around 2,050 apprentices at
17 sites 1n Germany on more than 40 vocational training
courses and combined vocational traiing and study programs
Around 340 of them were being trained on behalf of other
companies We have around 30 places on the “Start in den
Beruf® pre-apprenticeship project, plus about 20 additional
places for refugees About 590 new apprentices started their
training at Evonik in 2015 Apprentices accounted for around
9 percent of our workforce in Germany, which s still well
above the national average Overall, we invested some
€65 million in vocational training in 2015

Continuous professional development of our skilled per-
sonnel geared speafically to the needs of the company 15
another core element of our HR activities A large number of
tratming opportunities are offered through in-house courses
and in cooperation with external training partners, either cen-
trally or on a decentralized basis by the segments or indwadual
sites Focal areas 1n 2015 were competency management and
leadership skills
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Active support for the reorganization of the Group
The strategic rearganization of the management and port-
foho structure of the Evonik Group was supported from an
early stage in the project by an agreement on key points that
subsequently formed the basis for the reconciliation of inter-
ests with representatives of the workforce and provided
security for the structural changes and safequarding employ-
ment In all, around 19,000 employees were transferred to
the new companies To secure the operational viability of the
new orgamizational structures, employee representation
structures were adjusted, Supervisory Boards were estab-
hshed in accordance with the 1976 Codetermination Act, the
new members of our companies were granted the necessary
powers, and agreements were concluded in respect of the
multi-user sites where there will in future be several or
additional Group compames

Further optimization of the HR organization
The organtzation of the human resources departments was
also adjusted and optimized to reflect the reorganization of
the Group The aim 1s to continue to provide uniform, effec-
tive and efficient human resources services and sustained
support for the segments in the attainment of their business
targets

Personne! planning 1s geared to this goal In 2015 we
successfully established an all-round approach as a basic pre-
requisite for high-quality and foresighted human resources
waork that combines strategic and operational personnel
planning and sets a umform standard for the Group As a
consequence of Evonik’s histonic roots In a large number of
separate companies, the HR systems landscape has so far been
very diverse The HR IT strategy now aims to systematically
harmomize the systems landscape Alongside efficient and
effective processes, this should ensure greater transparency
and measurabtlity of the success of human resources work

HR strategy

Exemplary leadership is the heart of our HR strategy
Our employees are a key factor in the successful and sustain-
able implementation of our corporate strategy As a world-
leading specialty chemicals company, innovative strength and
entrepreneurship play a central role as drivers that enable us
to meet our goals of growth and an increase in efficiency

Based on this, our Group-wide human resources strategy
15 geared to a healthy performance culture, 1ogether with
dialogue based on partnership and excellence in human
resources processes The strategic focus of our human
resources work 15 on the principles of *Attract”, *Develop®,
“Perform”, “Retain®, "Lead” and “HR Excellence” Special
attention 1s paid to exemplary teadership because this 1s the
key to the success in the other areas of action

In our annual strategy review we defined action for these
key areas in consultation with the operational business enti-
ties and regional erganizanons, taking 1nto account relevant
political and societal developments The action defined was
implemented through projects

Attract

The focus here 15 on pasitoning Evanik globally as a strong
employer brand Alongside conventional and modern recruit-
ing methods, activities include measures to ensure that
new employees and executives get off to a good start in
the company

Corporate strategy

HR strategy

HR Excellence
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Sustainability
Employess
5.1 Employees Nearly two-thirds of our workforce 1s employed in Germany
In Line with our global positioning, other focal areas of
Shght increase in headcount employment are the Asia-Paafic region (2015 14 percent)

At year-end 2015, the Evonik Group had 33,576 employees  and North Amenica (2015 11 percent)

The headcaunt in our continuing operations was 335 higher

than at year-end 2014, prmcnpally as a result of acquisttions Employees by region, contmuing operations
and investment in growth projects in the Resource Efficiency
and Nutntion & Care segments Implementation of the

Administration Excellence program to enhance efficiency, :‘herp"‘t v l
some small opumization programs in the chemical segments, e \
and divestment of the remaining carbon black activities Central and ‘
South Amernca 2%
had a counter-effect At year-end 2014, the discontinued n—“—“—
operations still contained Evonik Litarion GmbH, Kamenz A,f',,r:,.,u 1%
{Germany), which was dvested in Apnil 2015
Other European Germany 64%

Employees by segment Countries 8% —_—

Dec 31, Dec 31,

2015 2014
Nutrition & Care 7,165 6,943
Resource Efficency 8,662 7,835
Performance Matenals 4,380 4,353
Services 12,668 13,173 Around 24 percent of employees are female (2014 around
Other operations 701 937 24 percent) The age structure 15 still brased towards the 46+
Continumg operations 33,576 33,241 age group, which accounts for 44 percent of employees
Discontinued operations _ 171 (i(;m 44 pezr;t:gt)z;he ::e;age age of our employees was
4 I

Evonik asre | Tasana| 7 yearsin2015( years)

Prior year figures restated

Age structure in the Evonik Group, continuing operations
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Accordingly, our market-oriented research & development
pays special attention to sustarnabihity and efficient use of
resaurces Evonik therefore has a good basis for innovative
solutions that will strengthen its market-leading positions in
the future, give it access to new growth markets, and make a
tangible contribution to improving sustamable development

Reorganization of sustainability management

The Executive Board bears overall responsibility for sustain-
ability and drrect responsibility 1s assigned to the Chief Human
Resources Officer In view of the importance of sustainability
far Evonik, the associated topics are assigned to an inde-
pendent corporate diviston at Group level This division sets
the strategic framework for Evanik’s sustainability activities
It cooperates closely with the segments to implement this
strategy

Evonik in dialogue with
significant stakeholder groups
At Evonik, sustamnability management 1s characterized by close
dalogue with stakehalders This continucus exchange facili-
tates timely rdentification of trends and future requirements
and gives us a better understanding of different perspectives
Overall, it helps Evontk to position itself as a company ahigned
to sustainable business practices

To update our materiahity analysis, in fall 2015 we agan
asked internal and external stakeholder groups for their views
on the relevance of specific sustainability i1ssues for Evomk
The results also form the basis for our Sustamability Report
2015, which wll be prepared for the first time in accordance
with the Global Reporting Initrative’s G4 guidelines

Evonik’s stakeholder groups

Important feedback about our sustainability performance also
comes from talking with members of the investment commu-
nity Alongside financial ¢ritena, more and more investors
include ecological, social and governance factors in their
investment decisions Key stakeholder groups for Evonik are
shown in the chart below

Evonik is well-positioned 1n leading
sustainability indices and ratings
Evonik 15 included 1n the sustainability-oriented index
farmilies FTSE4Good Global, STOXX® Global ESG Leaders
and Euronext Vigeo Eurozone 120 Important sustainabihty
rating agencies such as Oekom Research, Sustainalytics and
imug /EIRIS also rank the company among the leaders in the
chemucal sector

in 2015 we took part in the assessment for the Dow
lones Sustainability Index (DJS1), which is performed by
RobecoSAM  As a result, Evonik was included n the
RobecoSAM Sustainabilty Yearbook 2016 as a Sustainability
Leader with the distinction *Silver Class™ This was the first
time we took part and we gained a place straight away
among the top ten of the approximately 70 chemical com-
panies rated worldwide

This provides further motwvation for us to drve forward
our sustaingbility activities In the mid term, we aim to
sharpen our sustainabihity strategy further, anchor 1t even
more firmly in the company, and improve the transparency of
our sustainability performance Alongstde this, our goal 1s to
enhance our good poswtion in relevant ratings and rankings
and step up dialogue with significant stakeholder groups

Interest groups, e g local inhabitants,
non-governmental orgamizations (NGOs)

Media

Politicans f poltical
decsion-makers

Equity and debt holders

Scientific community

Bustness assoaates/ customers

Employees

Suppliess
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+ Committed employees are a key success factor for Evonik

+ Ambitious environmental targets

»  Evonik s well-positioned in sustainability indices and ratings

Responsible corporate management
Sustainability 1s a core element 1n our corporate claim “Power
to create” Qur products and solutions are used 1n many areas
that play a sigmificant role in improving people’s lives and
making efficient use of scarce resources In fall 2015 the
United Nations published 17 goals for global sustainable
development, to be achieved by 2030 Our sustainability
activities support these in many areas

Evonik 1s committed to the ten principles of the UN
Global Compact and 1s guided by the Internatronal Labour
Standards 1ssued by the International Labour Organization,
and the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises
In addition, we are involved 1n many networks such as the
Chemie3 sustasnability imtiative of the German chemical
industry, and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development (WBCSDY), to which more than 200 companies
worldwide belong Together wath our Code of Conduct, our
Global Social Policy (GSP) and our Environment, Safety and
Health (ESH) Values provide a framework for responsible
corporate management

Furthermore, we are committed to the WBCSD's Vision
2050 "9 billion people lving well, within the hmits of
the planet ”

Sustainability management at Evonik

Close hinks between sustainability
and corporate strategy
We are convinced that sustainable business activities and
respansible conduct by our management and staff at all tevels
are vital for the future of our company Our sustainability
strategy therefore takes up the megatrends 1dentifted in our
corparate strategy—health, nutntion, resource efficiency
and globalizanon—supplemented by ecological and societal
challenges

in view of this, we systematically drove forward the
sustainability analysis of our business in 2015 1n collaboration
with the operational units This analysis covers the entire
value chain of our products and is based on a hst of entena
including elements of the life cycle analysis of the supply
chain, producticn and subsequent use of the product This
sustainability-oriented evaluation of our business supports
Evenik’s positioning on the capital markets because sustain-
ability 15 becoming an increasingly significant element in
many investors’ investment policies

Demand from our customers for products and solutions
that balance economtc, ecological and social factors is nsing
steadily Sustainabifity 1s often an additional benefit for
customers that can clinch purchasing decisions and 15 there-
fore a clear growth driver 1n certain businesses such as amino
acids for ammal nutnition and the personal care sector

Executive Board
QOvwerall responsibility for sustainability

Responsible Executive Board member: Chief Human Resources Officer

Sustainability strategy and networks

Speaalist regionat project-based steering committees and management teams
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Market-oniented research & development
In 2075 our segments once again developed major innovative
products and processes up to market matunty or market
launch In addwon, they drove forward key future-onented
projects such as new matenals and production processes
for hghtweight construction Special attention was paid to
sustainability and efficient use of resources

Since summer 2015 our Nutnition & Care segment has
been working with OSM Nutntional Products Ltd on the
development of algae-based omega-3 fatty acid products for
arimal nutriion Both humans and animals need to absorb
a certain amount of these essential long-chain polyunsatu-
rated fatty acids through their diat to ensure healthy growth
At present, most of the omega-3 fatty acids required for
aguaculture come from fish otl The development partners
aim to meet the rising globat demand for omega-3 fatty acids
more resource-efficiently using biotechnological production
processes based on marine algae The anticipated high-quality
products are intended prinaipally for applications in aqua-
culture and the nutrition of pets

This segment has introduced two new environment-
fniendly adjuvants under the brand name BREAK-THRU®
to improve the performance of crop protection products
These biodegradable adjuvants are based on renewable raw
materials, and have an exceptionally good ecotoxicological
profile They improve the retention of agrochemicals on
plants and thewr diffusion into the leaves The result is a
considerable reduction 10 the amount of crop protection
products required Both new developments therefore make
a multiple contribution to more effective and environmentally
fnendly agnculture

The Rescurce Efficiency segment has now entered the
market for nitrogen {N,) with its SEPURAN® membrane
technology, bullding on 1ts success in the treatment of biogas
The new SEPURAN® N, hollow fiber membranes allow
particularly energy- and cost-saving recovery of nitrogen
from air Investment costs and energy consumption are lower
than for both the conventional method—separation of air at
low temperatures—and previous membrane processes As an
inert gas, nitrogen prevents fires and explosions, extends the
shelf-life of food, and can also be used as a protective gas for
processing chemicals and plastics The nitrogen market s
worth more than US$10 billion, making it the world's second
biggest gas market after oxygen Although SEPURAN® has
anly been on the market for four years, it 15 already making
a positive contribution to earnings

1 Reference base 2010

This segment 15 currently introducing 1Xsenic®, a new
technology for ultra-hugh resolution displays developed by
the Creawis strategic innovation unst 1Xsenic® is an inorganic
metal oxide sermconductor, which s apphed as a solunon
in normal ambient conditions like a coating The thin-layer
transistors produced in this way allow higher resolution than
the established semiconductor amorphous silicon In addi-
tion, 1Xsenic® can be processed without a vacuum, leading
to a simpler pracess with high yields and clear cost benefits
The Resource Efficiency segment has entered inte a strategic
partnership with a market-leading plant engineering com-
pany to ensure that the material, equipment and process
are aligned for the production of displays A manufacturer of
displays 1s plannuing to use Xseaie® in a new productton facl-
ity for flat screens in China

Olefins, which are used to produce the plasticizer alcohal
isononanol and the anti-knock agent MTBE, are an important
precursar for our integrated C, production in Marl {Ger-
many} Olefins mainly come from C, product streams from
steam crackers as by-products of ethylene production
Thanks to 3 unique new process, our Performance Materials
segment can now use product streams from fluid catalytic
cracking (FCC) processes as a source of olefins These product
streams occur 10 refineries and are not dependent on the
production of ethylene Since FCC product streams contain
unwanted by-products, in the past they were of imited use
to the chernical industry The Performance Materials segment
has been using a new process to remove unwanted sub-
stances at its new C, plant in Marl (Germany) since summer
2015 This innovative process has strengthened the segment's
positton as a technolegy leader

CAPLUS®, a new amine for scrubbing tndustnial gas
streams, has been brought onto the market by Performance
Matenals Unwanted acid gases such as carbon dioxide and/
or hydrogen sulfide have to be removed from natural gas,
synthetic gas, biogas and flue gas for various reasons
CAPLUS® scrubs these gases far more effectively than
conventional amines and also increases the performance
and working life of plants Following success in the treatment
of biogas and flue gas, the segment has now entered the
important natural gas scrubbing market The first commeroial
natural gas scrubber was converted in Southeast Asia Perfor-
mance Matenials 1s currently introducing CAPLUS® to other
well-known natural gas producers in the attractive growth
regions of Southeast Asia, the Middle East/North Africa and
South America The International Energy Agency estimates
that gas consumption will increase by 50 percent by 2035’
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Evonik Venture Capital: New investments in 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Name

Headquarters

Tachnology /business model

Strategic focus on the followang
Evonik competenaes

JeNaCell GmbH

Jena
{Germany)

Speciahst in nanocellulose generated by
blotechnological methods, which 15 used, for
example, 2s a wound dressing to improve the
treatment of burns It can also be loaded with
medical active ingredients for controlled release
to the skin over time

An excellent strategic fit with Evonik’s expertise
i biotechnology and delivery systems for active
medical ingredients

Wiwv Wearables tnc

Vancouver
(Canada}

Wiivv 1s one of the first compantes 1n the world to
use 30 prnting for individualized mass production
of biomechanically optimized insoles

Evonik 1s a leading supplier of polyamide 12 for
3D printing, a highly innovative growth market
with diverse applications

Airborne Ol & Gas

ljmurden
(Netherlands)

Awrborne Ol & Gas has a unique production
technology for thermoplastic composite pipes for
a whole range of applicavons in offshore oif and
gas production

The oil and gas industry 15 an attractive growth
market for Evomnik and an important area of
tnnovation |n addition, it 1s the market leader in
polyamide 12, which 1s marketed as VESTAMID®
and used in pipelines for the production and
transportation of o1l and gas

Synoste Oy

Espoo
(Finland)

Synoste 1s a young medical technology company
that has developed a novel implant to “lengthen”
the legs of patients suffering from limb length
discrepancy Unlike conventional methods, after
umplantation the implant 1s activated by an
external magnetic field and can correct differences
of upto7em

As a technology leader in lugh-performance
polymers, Evontk supplies polyetherether ketone
(PEEK) for medical appiications Qur VESTAKEEP®
PEEK grades for implants, dental and medical
applications set new standards in medical apphca-
tions thanks to their outstanding biocompatibility
and biostabllity

GRC SinoGreen Fund 11

Beiying
(China)

GRC 15 2 Chinese venture capital fund which focuses
on investing in nen-hsted green-tech companies in
Greater China (Chena, Taiwan and Hong Kong) that
have unique technological competencies and hugh
growth potential The target sectors include energy
and resource efficiency, environment-friendly
mobility, sustasnabihity and ¢limate protection

By investing in the GRC SinoGreen Fund i,
Evomik has extended 11s venture capital actities to
Asia The company now has a presence in the most
important venture capital markets North America,
Europe and Asia Investments «n venture capital
funds are a fundamental element of the innovation
strategy of Evonik Venture Capital because they
offer excellent apportunities to speed up the devel-
opment of new business and gain access to new
growth areas

Focus on sustainability
Our innovative products, systems and solutions make a con-
tribution to sustainable development and we are continuously
extending our work in this field Our market-oniented REZD
plays an important role in this We are aligning our innova-
ton pipeline increasingly to sustainable projects and solutions
In response to rnsing interest from our customers In this way,
we enable them to improve their ecological footprint and
successfully differentiate themselves from competitors
Examples of sustainable products recently launched by Evonik
include a new ingredient based on renewable resources
for shampoos and conditioners, an innovative silica-based
insulating matenal, and a biologica! fungicide for agncultural
applications

Together with the Wuppertal Institute for Climate, Environ-
ment and Energy and the in-house Life-Cycle Management
and Innovation Excellence Consulting groups, Creawvis has

developed the 12P? (idea to people, planet, profit) innovation
management process, which allows an extensive sustainability
assessment of new products and processes at an early stage
in their development

Fostering education and science

Fostering education and science s a core focus of the Evonik
Foundation In 2015 the Foundation supported 18 particularly
gifted and committed science students at 17 universities
in Germany and in collaboration with foreign universines
Regular meetings with these scholarship students, scientific
colloquia and a mentoring program give them an early insight
inte the day-to-day work of a leading speciatty chemicals
company Evonik s also one of the most committed sponsors
of the German government’s "Deutschlandstipendium”
program, with 200 scholarships provided by the Evonik
Foundation

m
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Main products introduced in 2015

Product

Description

Application

Sector

VISCOBASE 11-524/526

High-wiscosity synthetic base fluid
with dispersing properties

Favorable alternative formulation
for modern gear lubnicants for cars,
trucks and industnal gears

Automotive, industnal gears

VISCOPLEX 0-192

Easy-to-handle viscosity index
improver based on comb polymers

Used in gear lubnicant formulations
to minimize energy losses in the
drivetrain, reduces fuel consumption

Automotie

SILIKOPHEN® AC 950

Heat-resistant, low-toxic
(aromatc-free) sihcone resin that
cures at ambient temperature

High-temperature coating of
industnal plant, corrosion protection
of high-volume components

Machinery and plant engineenng,
consurner durables and capital goods,
automotive

SEPURAN® Noble

Membrane technology for gas
separation, several thousand hollow

Recovery and treatment of helum
and hydrogen

Hydrogen refinenes, production
of ammonia and methanol

fibers made from a high-performance
polymer (polyimide} are used as
membranes

Helium medical institutes, MRT
technology, welding and metal-
working, electronics industry, oi
and gas production

BREAK-THRU® SP 131 and
BREAK-THRU® SP 133

Based on renewable raw matenals,
brodegradable, very good ecotoxico-
logical profile, adjuvant to increase the
efficacy of crop protection products

Crop protection

Agnculture

SITREN AwrVeid® 360 Defoamer for cement- and gypsum- Dry mortar Construction
based construction applications
Methacrylic acid Market entry with improved product Synthesis Specialty chemicals

anhydnide (MAAH) quality from a new plant

Innovation drivers at Evomk
Interdisciplinary collabaration across orgarizational umits and
regions ts regarded as very important at Evonik because it is
a key source of innovative 1deas In the project houses at
Creavis, experts work with specialists from the eperaung
business on scientific tasks At present the project houses,
which are set up for a defined ttme period, are working on
research in the innovation areas of medical technology and
composites for hghtweight engineering The Business and
Innovation Center in Richmond (Virginia, USA), which was
inaugurated 1n summer 2015, 15 speaifically designed for
interdisaiphinary research it bnings together R&D experts
with speaalists from the Marketing and Sales, Procurement,
Controlling, HR, IT and Environment, Safety, Health and
Quality functions

In addiion, we are steadily becoming more open to
external partners We cooperate with research institutes,
universities and other industrral companies so that the latest
findings in chemistry, biology and physics can rapidly be
transported into our company Through strategic partnerships
we are linked to leading universities in the USA, China, and
Saudi Arabia, and to Singapore’s state-run research agency

(A*STAR) Our support for our estabhshed partnership with
the University of Dursburg-Essen‘m Germany comprises a
junior professorship, ten scholarships for doctoral candidates
and a large number of joint projects and colloguia We
recently entered (nto a preferred partnership with the
Technical Unwversity of Mumch (FUM) through a master
research agreement In addition, we regularly organize the
Evonk Meets Science forum in Germany, China, Japan and
the USA to strengthen networking with leading international
research scientists This is a platform for discussion between
our experts and leading scientists from a wide range of
disciplines and institutions

Our corporate venture capital activities are a special
way of networking and a strategic complement to our
understanding of open innovation We invest selectively in
speciahized technology funds and promusing start-ups of
strategic relevance to Evonik This gives us an insight inte
innovative technologies and business activities aligned 1o aur
growth strategy at a very early stage of development New
projects and technologies are developed in Joint projects In
this way we speed up our innovative process We selectively
extended our corporate venture capital portfolio in 2015
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in € milion

T
2011 e ———————————————————————————————

2012

2013 _ 394

2014 _ 413

2015 I <5+
0

In addition, in close collaboration with our segments, our
strategic innovation unit Creavis 15 involved n research in
new high-tech areas outside the Group’s present portfolic
Creavis focuses on mid- to long-term nnovation projects
that support Evonik’s growth and sustainabihity strateqy For
example, the Composites Project House has developed a new
composrte that combines the benefits of thermoplastics and
thermosets For this innovation Evonik received the 2015
Innovation Award presented by CFK Valley, a leading com-
petency network for fiber composites Creavis 1s currently
developing a new high-performance surfactant produced
using a biotechnological process

As the driving force behind strategic inovations, the role
of Corporate Innovation 1s to provide direction and leadership
for the Evonik Group This division 1s headed by the Chief
Innovation Officer, who reports directly to the Chairman of
the Executive Board Furthermore, we bring together our
in-house expertise in specialty chemicals, process technology
and engineering at an early stage in projects to facilitate rapid
transfer of new processes to efficient industral production
In recent years, we have also integrated marketing and sales
more closely Into Innovation processes

One important success factor for our R&ED 1s close
tnteracthion with our customers, which gives us a deep knowl-
edge of their specific markets and requirements Often,
this collaboration results 1n new products and applications
which provide 3 sound basts for profitable growth We are
strengthening our position as a strategic partner for our
customers by raising our R&D presence close to their local
markets At the same time, this enables us to posiion Evenik
as an attractive employer and gain outstanding experts for
the Group

The progressive internationahzation of our R&D can be
illustrated by two examples In 2015, Evoruk opened new
innovation centers in Midrand (South Africa) and Singapore
to develop product solutions specifically for customers in the
personal care sector in Subsaharan Africa, Southeast Asia,
Australia and New Zealand Similarly, the Health Care Busi-

ness Line started to build up a worldwide network of service
laboratones for medical products in 2015 The aim 15 to
provide technical support for customers who use our bio-
degradable polymers The first of these laboratories was
opened 1n Shanghai {(China} in summer 2015

High commitment to R&D in 2015

R&D expenses amounted to €434 milhon in 2015, an
increase of 5 percent compared with the previous year
(€413 million} The ratio of R&D expenses to sales was
3 2 percent (2014 3 2 percent)

Breakdown of RErD expenses

Creavis

Performance Materials ‘

Nutntion & Care

Resource Efficency

Moreover, in the past four years Evonik has spent €170 ml-
hon on building laboratory capacity and pilot plants The
focus of this investment in R&D facilities was on new and
extended mnovation centers in Essen {Germany), Shanghai
(China), Richmond (Virginia, USA) and Birmingham (Ala-
bama, LISA)

Examples of Evonik’s most recent research successes
include an innovative microencapsulation process for
extended release of medication, and composites for hight-
weight structures In addition, work has commenced on
a new generation of lubricant additives

9
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Qur claim: First-class in innovation

Evomk 1s one of the most snnovative
companies in the world

Explore new honzons
Push radical innovation
Cross-unit collaboration

First-class

in innovation

Increase the value of the innovation pipeline

New products, apphications, and processes must
make a substantial contnibution to sales and profit

Enhance nsk-taking
Trust, openness and transparency
Improve knowledge sharing

Our R&D 1s aligned to three core strategic objectives we

aim te

+  produce custom-tailored products and soluttons in close
collaboration wath our customers and partners, to drive
their success 1n international competition

- continuously improve our processes, and

- make a substantial contnbution to profitable growth and
to the future of Evomik

Qur open, learning innovation culture based on a business
mindset 1s the key to achieving these goals It ensures timely
identification of good 1deas which we can drive forward and
turn into additional sales and earnings To reinforce Evonik’s
innovative strength, we organize regular internal conferences
under the motto Leading Innovation, which are attended by
members of our top management

Every year, we present an Innovation Award in various
categories to honor outstanding research achievements
At the same time, we consistently terminate RE&D projects (f
there are no prospects of success and take a constructive
attitude to such cases

We have a weli-stocked innovation pipeline with a bal-
anced mixture of more than 500 short-, mid- and long-term
projects These are managed with the aid of ldea-to-Prafy,
a multi-step innovation process developed by Evonik
Ingredients for the cosmetics industry, membranes, specialty
materials for medical technology, feed and food additives,
and composites have been identifted as promising areas
of innovation for Evonik In addition, we aim to steadily
extend our clear expertise in catalysis and biotechnology
To raise the pace of innovaton, we want 1o align our R&D
project portfolio even more closely to these fields, step up
external knowledge sharing, and drive forward the inter-
nationalization of our R&D

Evonik has an extensive patent strategy to protect new prod-
ucts and processes The value and quality of our patent port-
folio have increased steadily in recent years

Innovative strength and patent protection at Evonik

ms
No of new patent applications filed approx 260
Patents held and applications filed more than 25,000
Registered / pending trademarks more than 7,000

more than 500

No of projects in the R&D pipeline

In view of the strategic importance of R&D, we have raised
R&D expenses by an average of 6 percent a year since 2010
Given our growth strategy and our vision of being one of the
world’s most innovative companies, we want to mamntain this
ambitious level and intend to spend more than €4 billion on
RE&D in the next ten years

The recrganization of our management and portfolio
structure allows more differentiated management and devel-
opment of our various businesses close to the market This (s
also reflected in our innovation strategy The Nutrition &
Care and Resource Efficiency growth segments should
receive an above-average share of our R&D funds in order
to enter new markets through innovations and alhances The
Performance Matenals segment focuses on process optimi-
zation and incrementat product improvements

Decentralized orgamization of R&D

Evonik’s global R&D network comprises 35 locations with
approximately 2,700 R&D employees Around 90 percent of
our R&D 15 performed by our segments That includes, first
and foremost, research geared speafically to their core tech-
nologies and markets and the development of new business
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Net income was 158 percent higher at €1,205 million
€599,873,641 46 was allocated to revenue reserves, leaving
a net profit of €605,000,000 00 A proposal will be put to
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting that € 69,100,000 00 of
the net profit should be allocated to revenue reserves and
€535,900,000 00 should be paid out, giving a dividend of
€115 per share

The total assets of Evonik Industries AG declined shghtly
from €14 2 billion tn the previous year to €14 0 billion
Financial assets mainly compnise shares in subsidianes
The recewvables mainly comprise financial recevables of
€2 5 billion (2014 €19 billion), principally 1n connection
with loans and cash pooling activities In 2014, recewvables
also included claims for reimbursermnent in connection with
plant management (€2 1 billion) Cash and cash equivalents
increased by € 606 mithon to €2,056 million, mainly because
of the sale of the shares in Vivawest and the bond 1ssue

Equity increased by €0 7 bilhon to €6 0 bilhon, mainly as
a consequence of the high earnings The equity ratio therefore
improved from 37 2 percent i1n the prior year to 43 2 percent
The provisions of €2 3 bithon tn 2014 included €1 5 bsllion
relating to the plants managed by Evonik Industries AG The
receivables and hiabilities reflect the financing activities of
Evonik Industries AG in its role as the holding company for
the Group Payables include financia! habilities of €6 8 billion
(2014 €57 billion) €55 billion {2014 €5 2 billion) of this
cornpnses liabilities to affiliated companies, mainly in connec-
tion with cash pooling actvities A further €1 3 billion (2014
€0 5 biilion) relates to corporate bonds

CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Opportumties and risks

The most significant operating subsidianies in Germany have
profit-and-loss transfer agreements with Evonik Industries
AG In line with the central financing strategy of the Evomk
Group, most internal and external financing transactions are
handled by Evonik {ndustnes AG Consequently, Evanik
Industries AG 1s essentially exposed to the same risks and
opportunities as the Evonik Group Further information can
be found in the Opportunity and risk report

Outlook* for 2016

We anticipate that in 2016 the net income of Evonik
Industries AG will be below the high level of 2015, which was
also boosted by the sale of the real estate investment and an
Increase in income from investments as a result of one-off
payouts from investments

Report on relations with affiliated companies

A report on Evonik Industries AG's relations with affiliated
companies has been prepared in accordance wath Section 312
of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) It concludes
with the following declaration “Our company recewved
adequate remuneration or compensation for each of the
transactions set out in this report on relatons with affiliated
companies under the circumstances known to us at the time
when the transactions were undertaken No actions were
performed or omitted at the instigation of such companies *

4, Research & development

»  Our vision- Evonik—one of the world’s most innovative companies

Innovation strategy firmly anchored

in corporate strategy

Evonik—one of the world’s most innovative companies That
i1s the vision that guides our research & development (R&D)
As a major driver of profitable growth and value creation, our
market-oriented R&D 1s firmly anchared in our corporate

1 For details of the assumptions, please refer to the Report on expected developments

More than 500 R&D projects in the pipeline
Innovations drive our profitable growth course

strategy Innovations strengthen our leading market and
technology positions and open up new high-growth business
opportunities The careful selection of our areas of inno-
vation 15 guided by the megatrends of relevance for Evonik
health, nutrition, rescurce efficiency and globalization

-
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Balance sheet for Evonik Industries AG

Dec 31, Dec 31,
in €milhon 2015 2074
Assats
Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment 40 20
Finzncial assets 8,870 8,834
Non-current assets 8,910 8,854
Inventones 8 -
Recewables and other assets 2,720 4,354
Securities 249 377
Cash and cash equivalents 2,056 606
Currant assets 5,033 5,337
Prepard expenses and deferred charges L] 7
Total assets 13,951 14,198
Equity and Liabilities
Issued capital 466 466
Capital reserve 21 720
Revenue reserves 4,235 3,635
Net profit 605 4466
Equity 6,027 5,287
Provisions 850 2,278
Payables 7.074 6,633
Total equity and lizbilities 13,95 14,198

The earnings performance of Evontk Industries AG 1s essen-
tially dependent on income from its subsidianies, income
and expenses relating to corporate financing and portfahio
management actvinies Financial management s therefore
based on an earnings indicator that contains all these effects
net Income

Sales wncreased substantially from €216 mullion to
€592 millien as a result of activities assumed by Evonik
Industries AG, especially strategic procurement for the sub-
sidiaries Sales revenues include plant management fees of
€31 million (2014 €48 milion) The cost of matenals rose
from €2 million in 2014 to €235 million, due to the assump-
tion of procurement activities  Personnel expense increased
by 64 percent to €337 million, driven marnly by staff trans-
fers in connection with the transfers of undertaking in the
first half of 2015 The other operating income of €1,431 mil-
hon contains income from the disposal of assets totaling
€413 million, manly from the divestment of the stake in
Vivawest Further, this item includes currency translation
gains of €939 million (2014 €354 miliion} In the gross pre-
sentation, currency translation losses of €921 milhon (2074

€337 miliion} are shown in other operating expenses, sepa-
rately from the currency translation gains The net effect was
a gan of €18 millien (2074 €17 milhion)

income from investments wcreased by 64 percent to
€1,509 million, principally because of considerably higher
income from profit-and-loss transfer agreements The increase
was mamnly due to higher profit transfers from subsidianes as
a resuit of the good operating performance and to one-off
payouts by investments The write-downs of financial assets
and current securities totaling €41 million and wnite-ups of
financial assets and financral securities totaling €10 million
mainly related to affihated companies

Net interest expense deteriorated considerably from
€86 milhon to €157 million This was matnly due to higher
interest on penston provisions due to a change 1n the interest
rate and an increase 1n headcount This item also contains
interest iIncome and expense from the Group-wide cash pooi,
which 1s concentrated at Evonik Industres AG

Income before income taxes rose 148 percent to €1,464 mil-
lton Income taxes increased to €259 million due to the
Increase in Income
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3. Performance of Evonik Industries AG

« Management holding company concentrates on strategic development of the Group

« High netincome of €1,205 million

+ Proposed increase in the dividend from€1.00 to €1.15

Evonrk Industries AG, Essen (Germany) 1s the parent com-
pany of the Evonik Group It holds direct and indirect
stakes in all subsidiaries in the Group The annual financial
statements for Evonik Industries AG have been prepared
in accordance with the accounting standards set out in the
German Commercial Code {HGB) and the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG)

Since January 1, 2015, the Executive Board of Evonik
Industries AG has concentrated on the strategic development
of the Evonik Group through a management holding
structure

In this connection the plant management agreements
between the company and five subsidiaries were terminated
effective June 30, 2015 These plant management agreements
had been performed on behalf of Evonik Industries AG and
for the account of the subsidiaries The substance of agree-
ments of this type 1s that the companies remain the economic

Income statement for Evonik Industries AG

owners of the assets and habilities of the plants, while the
operator recognizes iabilities entered into 1n 1ts own name
and at the same time capitalizes a claim for reimbursement
against the owners of the plants As a result of the termination
of these agreements, the balance sheet of Evonik Industnies AG
at year-end 2075 no longer contained any items of this type

In the income statement, the arrangement merely gave
nse to sales revenues from plant management fees All other
income and expenses were allocated to the companies
that owned the plants and were recognized in their annual
financial statements

In connection with the strategic realignment of the Evonik
Group, in the first half of the year Evonik Industries AG
acquired the acovities of subsidianes within the scope of the
management holding company or that serve to support it,
through asset deals Activities outside 1ts scope were trans-
ferred to the subsidiaries

n € million 20158 2014
Sales 592 216
Increase in work in progress 1 -
Other operating income 1,431 425
Cost of materials -235 -2
Personne! expense -337 -206
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment -15 -6
Other operating expenses -1,294 =647

Operating result 143 -220
Income from investments 1,509 921
Write-downs of financial assets and current securities -41 =121
Write-ups of financial assets and current secunties 10 96
Net interest expense -157 -Bé

Income before incoms taxes 1,464 590
Income taxes =259 =123

Net income 1,208 457
Allocation to revenue reserves -600 -1

Nat profit 605 466

95
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The cash flow from financing activities was €133 million
The cash inflow from the new bond was reduced principally
by the repayment of financial debt and the payment of the
dvidend for 2014 In 2014, there was a cash outflow of
€1,155 mllion, mainly for the redemption of a bond and the
dwidend for fiscal 2013

The free cash flow was very high at €1,052 mithen in
2015 (2014 -€60 millien) The significant improvement was
mainly due to the very good operating performance and dis-
ciphined implementation of our growth-driven investments

2.10 Asset structure

Increase in total assets

As of December 31, 2015, total assets were €13 biflion
tugher at €17 O tulhon Non-current assets increased shightly
year-on-year to €10 3 billion While the value of investments
recogmzed at equity decreased by €0 3 billton, mainly
because of the sale of the stake in Vivawest in June 2015,
property, plant and equipment increased by €0 3 billion to
€5 8 billion as a result of growth-driven investments Intan-
gible assets increased shghtly, by €0 1 billron, to €3 2 bilion
In all, non-current assets decreased to 61 percent of total
assets, down from 65 percent in the prior year They are
financed by liabihiies with the same maturity structure

Balance sheet structure of the Evonik Group

Current assets increased by €13 billion t0o €6 7 billion This
was primarily attnibutable to a strong rise of €14 billion in
cash and cash equivalents to €2 4 billion, principally as a
result of the 1ssue of the new bond i January 2015 and
the good operating performance Owing to the increase in
business, trade accounts recevable were €0 1 billion higher
at €18 billion Inventories and financial assets basically
remained constant at €18 billion and €0 4 billion respec-
tively Current assets therefore rose to 39 percent of total
assets {2014 35 percent)

Equity increased by €11 billion to €7 6 billion as a conse-
quence of the good business performance The equity ratio
rose from 41 6 percent to 44 § percent

Non-current liabilities increased by €0 1 billion to €6 4 bii-
lion, principally due to the increase in financial liabilives to
€14 bilhon in the wake of the bond 1ssue in January 2075 By
contrast, provisions for pensions and other post-employment
benefits decreased by €0 6 billion to €3 3 billion Non-
current habthties decreased from 40 percent to 37 percent
of total equity and liabilities

Current habilittes increased by €0.2 billion to €3 1 billion
While trade accounts payable were virtually unchanged at
€11 billion, other hiabtlities tncreased by €0 1 bithon Current
habihities accounted for an unchanged 18 percent of total
equity and liabihties

10 € mulfror
018" 204 2015* 2014°
7576 6,522 Equaty
Non-current assets 10,320 10,251 (45%) (42%)
{61%) {65%}
$,353 6,241 MNon-currens tabhiues
(37%) (40%)
Current assets 6,685 5,434
(39%) (35%)
3,076 2,512 Current habiliues
{18%) {(18%)
Tatal assets 17,005 15,485 17,008 15,685 Total equity and ifabilities

' As of Decemnber 31
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Business review
Finanual condition

Capital expenditures amounted to €877 millien 1n 2015,
below the previous year’s high figure of €1,123 milhon In
principle, the related cash outflows are delayed shghtly by
payment terms In 2015, cash outflows for property, plant and
equipment totaled €916 million (2014 €1,095 millon}

The highest proportion of capital expenditures went to
the Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency segments
(29 percent and 27 percent respectively) A further 21 per-
cent was allocated to the Performance Materials segment,
and 20 percent was nvested in the Services segment The
regional focus of capital expenditures was Germany, which
accounted for 49 percent of the total, followed by North
Amernica (24 percent) and the Asia-Pacific region and other
European countries, which each received 10 percent

Financial Investments totaled €90 million (2014 €114 mil-
hon) They mainly cornprised the acquisition of Monarch
Catalyst Pvt Ltd , Dombivli (India), and PeroxyChem Nether-
tands B V, Amsterdam (Netherlands) '

A strong cash flow

The cash flow from operating activities, continuing opera-
tions increased by €933 million to €1,968 million, principally
due to the good operating performance The cash flow from
operating activities, discontinued operations related to the
Iithium-1on business, which has now been divested and,
in the prior year, also to the stake in STEAG, which was sold
in September 2014 In 2015, the cash flow from operating
activities, discontinued operations was € 3 million, compared
with €31 million in 2014 QOverall, the cash flow from oper-
ating activiies increased by €905 million to €1,971 million

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Cash flow statement (excerpt)

in€million 2015 2014
Cash flow from operaung actvittes,
continuing operations 1,968 1,035
Cash flow from operating activitres,
discontinued operations 3 n
Cash flow from operating sctivities 1,971 1,066
Cash flow from investing activities,
continuing operations -660 ~575
Cash flow from investing actraities,
discontinued operations - -1
Cash flow from investing actwities =560 -576
Cash flow from financing activities,
contnuing eperations 133 -1,155
Cash flow from financing activities,
discontinued operations - -
Cash flow from financing activities 133 -1,155
Change in cash and cash aquivalents 1,444 -665

The cash flow from investing activittes comprised an outflow
of €660 million This was manly for capital expenditures on
property, plant and equipment and investments, and the cash
contribution to the CTA It was countered by cash inflows,
manly from the disposal of investments, especially the shares
in Vivawest In 2074 the cash outflow for investing activities
was €576 milhon

Cash and cash equivalents December 31, 2015 versus December 31, 2014

in € million

3,000 +1,968

2,500 +133 +6 2,368

2,000 - 660

1,500

1,000 521

500 G
0

Dec 37, 2014 Cash flow, Cash flow, Cash flow, Other Dec 31,2015
Cash and ¢ash operating Investing finanding Cash and cash
equivalents® activities® actvites® actnties® equivalents”

* Conunuing operations

1 See section on Segment performance and Note 5 2
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Maturity profile of financial lizbilities

in € mithon
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As of December 31, 2015

Further increase in the strong hquidity position
Alongside cash and cash equivalents of €2,368 milhon and
investments of €262 mihion 0 current secunues, Evonik’s
central source of hquidity 1s still a €175 billion revolving
credit facihty from a syndicate of 27 national and international
banks This crednt facihty 1s drvided into two tranches of
€875 million each The second and last option to extend therr
term by one year was exercised 10 2015 and they now run untl
September 2078 and 2020 respectively This credit facihity
was not drawn at any time 1n 2015 It does not contain any
covenants requirtng Evonik to meet specific financtal ratios
Further, as of December 31, 2015, various unused credit
lines totaling €368 million were available to meet local
requirements, especially in the Asia-Pacific region

Major projects completed or virtually completed in 2015

Significant growth projects completed successfully

In the specialty chemicals sector Evonik i1s expanding 1n busi-
ness areas and markets where it already has—or intends to
build—a strong competitive position Investment projects are
aimed at utihzing potential for sustained profitable growth
and value creation Every project undergoes detaled strateqic
and economic analyses In addition, there 15 a mimimum
return requirement for every project based on Evonik’s cost
of capital We take 3 flexible and disciphined approach 1o
extending our leading market positions All projects are
regularly reviewed for changes in the market sitvation
Examples of projects completed successfully in 2015 are
a new lysine facihty n Castro (Brazil), expansion of the
production faalities for specialty silicas in Ako {Japan), and
expansion of production capaaty far butadiene in Antwerp
(Belgium), 1sononansl in Marl (Germany) and the anti-knock
agent MTBE n Marl and Antwerp

Segment Lacztion

Project

Nutntion & Care Castro (Brazl)

Construction of a new lysine plant

Essen (Germany)

Expansion of the silicone platform

Maobale (Alabama, USA)

Construction of 3 new preduction faohity for Mepron

Resource Efficiency Ako (Japan} Expansion of capaaity for specialty silicas
Singapore Expansion of a facility for oil additives

Perfarmance Matenals Marl (Germany) and Expansion of capacity for butadiene in Antwerp, the plasticizer
Antwerp (Belgium) alcohol 1sononanal in Marl, and the anti-knock agent MTBE in Marl

and Antwerp

Fer further infermation on current capital expenditure projects, please sée the secton on Segment performance
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Business review
Financeal condition

amounted to €11 million (2074 €13 million) and compnsed
the pro rata profits and losses of fully consolidated sub-
sidiaries that are attributable to shareholders outside the
Evonik Group

The Evonk Group’s net income rose 74 percent to
€991 mullion

2.9 Financial condition

Central financial management

The principal objectives of financial management are safe-
guarding the financial independence of the Evonik Group and
limiting financial nisks We therefore apply a central financing
strategy Borrowing and bond 1ssuance are normally under-
taken by Evonik Industnies AG or 1ts financing company
Evonik Finance B V, Amsterdam (Netherlands), whose labil-
ities are fully guaranteed by Evonik Industnies AG To reduce
external borrowing, surplus liquidity at Group companies Is
placed in a cash pool at Group level to cover financing
requirements in other Group companies Evonik has a flexible
range of corporate financing instruments to meet hiquidity
requirements for day-to-day business, investments, and the
repayment of financial debt

Solid investment grade rating confirmed

In 2015 both Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (S&P) con-
firmed their credit ratings for Evonik tndustries AG Moody's
still rates Evonik as Baa2 wath a positive outlook, while S&P's
rating remains BBB+ with a stable outlook Maintaining a
sound investment grade rating 1s a central element in our
financing strategy to ensure we remain a rehable partner for
bond investors and banks in the long term

Active management of pension obligations

Pension provistons make up the major portion of our totat
debt They are non-current and depend on the discount rate
The €604 million decline in pension provisions was principally
due to the fact that the discount rate at year end was higher
than in the previous year Unfunded pension obligations were
reduced as scheduled in 2015 by a further voluntary cash con-
tribution of €219 million” to the contractual trust arrangement
{CTA), completing the program of transfers totaling €1 6 bil-
lion that commenced 1n 2010 At present, there are no plans
to allocate further funds to the CTA

' Including a refund of €19 million for advance tax payments by the CTA

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Further increase in net financial assets

Financial debt increased by €626 million compared with
year-end 2014 to €1,555 million, essentially as a result of the
€750 million bond issued in January 2015 In the same period,
financial assets increased by €1,324 milhion to €2,653 mithon,
mainly because of the high free cash flow?, proceeds from
the new bond 1ssue, and income from the divestment of the
stake In Vivawest (€428 million) at the end of June The diwvi-
dend of €466 milhon for fiscal 2014 was paid in May 2015
Overall, net financial assets were €1,098 million, €698 mil-
lion higher than at year-end 2014

Net financial assets

Dec 31, Dec 31,
n € million 2015 2014
Non-current financial habihives* -1,361 =639
Current financial habibines® -194 -290
Fmnancial debt -1,555% -929
Cash and cash equivalents 2,368 921
Current securities 262 387
Other financial investments 23 Pl
Financial assets 2,653 1,329
Net financal assets
s stated on the balance sheet 1,098 400

* Excluding dervatives

Corporate bonds as a central financing instrument
At year-end 2015, the financial debt of €1,555 milion com-
prised two bonds with a total carrying amount of €1,241 mil-
lion, decentralized bank loans totaling €282 milhon, and other
financial habibties of €32 milion Following the issuance of a
bond with a nominal value of €500 mulion in 2013, another
bond with a nominal value of €750 million was 1ssued in
2015 This matures in 2023 and has a coupon of 1000 per-
cent On the reporting date, €125 billion of the debt 1ssuance
program of up to €3 billion had been used to 1ssue bonds
Over 85 percent of the Group's financial habilittes are
denominated in euros (2014 over 65 percent) Only Group
companies outside the euro zone have financial habilities in
other currencies The retevant currencies incfude the Chinese
renminbi yuan (CNY) and the Brazilian real (BRL)

2 Cash flow from operating activibes, continuing operations, less outflows for capital expenditures for intangible assets, praperty, plant and equipment

n

”
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Since the start of 2015, the effects of currency translaton of
operating monetary assets and labilities and the associated
hedqing instruments have been presented as net amounts in
other operating income and expenses This avoids increases
in income and expenses as a result of the high currency-
drwen volatility of bedging transactions and hedged ttems
during the year, which essentially offset each other The
78 percent increase in other operating income to €445 mil-
lion n 2015 was mainly due to higher income from the
disposal of assets, especially the sale of the stake In Vivawest
The 22 percent increase in other operating expenses to

Income statement for the Evenik Group

€603 milhon resulted mainly from provisions for nsks anising
from an agreement with a raw matenal suppher, and expenses
for the reorgamzation and simphification of corporate
structures in Europe The result from investments recognized
at equity was —€15 million and chiefly related to an impair-
ment loss on an equity investment v the Nutrion & Care
segment, whereas \n the previous year, this item comprised
income of €10 million froem the former westment in
Vivawest Income before financial result and income taxes,
continuing operations improved 55 percent to €1,664 million

Change
in €millon 2015 2014 n%
Sales 13,507 1207 5
Cost of sales -9,096 -9,308 -2
Gross profit on sales 4,411 3,609 22
Selling expenses -1,447 -1,289 12
Research and development expenses =434 =413 5
General administrative expenses -693 =601 15
Other operating income 445 250 78
Other operating expenses =603 -493 22
Result from investments recognized at equity =15 14 -
Income before financial result and income taxes, continuing eperations 1,664 1,077 55
Financal result =223 =235 -5
Income before iIncome taxes, continuing operauons 1,441 842 71
Income taxes -422 =252 67
Income after taxes, continuing operations 1,019 590 73
Income after taxes, discontinued operations -17 -9 89
Income after taxes 1,002 £1:3] 72
thereof attnbutable to
Non-controlling interests n 13 -15
Sharehalders of Evoatk ladustries AG (nat incomae) L3 | 568 74

Pror year iigures restated

Considerable increase in net iIncome

The financial result improved 5 percent 1o —€223 million
This includes one-off factors of —€44 million, mainly for
interest expense in connection with the establishment of pro-
visions n the prior year, these effects were -€26 millhion
Excluding these effects, there was a significant improvement
in the financial result, pnincipally as a consequence of far
more favorable refinancing and the voluntary cash contribu-
tion to the contractual trust arrangement (CTA) for pensions
Income before income taxes, continuing operations rose

1 See Note 5.3

71 percent 1o €1,441 milhion The 67 percent increase in
income taxes to €422 million was mainly due to higher
earnings

Income after taxes, discontinued gperations’ was —€17 mil-
lion and mainly relates to the remaining lithium-10n actwities,
which were divested 1n April 2015 The prior-year figure of
—€9 millron contains operating income from the hthium-10n
business and the stake in STEAG, which was divested in Sep-
tember 2014 Income after taxes improved 72 percent to
€1,002 million Non-controling mterests in after-tax income
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Earnings position
Sales by region®
Other 3%
Germany 18%
Asia-Prafic D%
Central and
South Amenca 7%
Other European
Countries 31%

North America 20%

* By locaton of customer

Sales in the other European countries slipped 2 percent to
€4,148 million This was caused by an o1l price-induced drop
tn sales in the Performance Materials segment By contrast,
high demand enabled the Nutntion & Care and Resource
Efficiency segments to raise sales This region’s share of
Group sales fell to 31 percent Capital expenditures in this
region were €88 million, a decline of 34 percent year-
on-year A new production plant for C,-based products was
successfully brought into service in Antwerp (Belgium}
In addition, the first production plant for a new source of
methionine for shrimp and crustaceans 1s scheduled for
completion at this site (n April 2016

Higher investment in the Amenicas
In North America, sales grew 15 percent to €2,647 million,
mainly for currency reasons The principal contributions to
this came fram the Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency
segments This region’s share of Group sales increased to
20 percent Caprtal expenditures rose 48 percent to €208 mil-
hon A new plant to produce Mepron® for dairy cattle was
completed in Mobile (Alabama, USA) At the same time,
work started on expansion of capacity for ACA (acrolein
cyanohydrin-o-acetate) at this site This 1s scheduled to come
on stream in earty 2017

Sales totaled €954 million in Central and South America,
an increase of 23 percent year-on-year This was driven
mainly by the Nutntion & Care and Resource Efficiency seg-
ments This region’s share of Group sales therefore increased

1 SeaNote 101

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

shightly to 7 percent Capital expenditures were 37 percent
lower at €67 millon A new production plant for Biolys®,
an amino acd for feed additives, was officially opened
in Castro (Brazil) In addition, a new plant for precipitated
silicas 1s currently under construction tn S3o Pauto (Brazil)
It1s scheduled to come into service in 2016

Substantial nse in sales in Asia-Paalfic

Sales grew 17 percent to €2,860 million in the Asia-Pacific
regron The Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency seg-
ments made equal contributions to this, while Performance
Matenals posted lower sales This reqion’s share of Group
sales increased to 21 percent Capital expenditures amounted
to €86 million, below the previous year’s high level of
€323 million, which was dominated by construction of the
new production complex for the amino 2cid DL-methiomine
in Singapore A new production plant which opened at this
site 10 2075 has virtually doubled capacity for ol additives
The expansion of production capacity for specialty silicas
at the facility in Ako {)apan) came on stream

2.8 Earnings position

Considerable improvement in income before
income taxes, continuing operations
Sales rose 5 percent to €13,507 million thanks to higher
demand and positive currency effects Despite higher sales
volumes and cost-drniving currency effects, the cost of sales
declined by 2 percent to €9,096 milhon The main positive
factors were lower raw matenal costs, along with substantial
cost-savings from the successful implementation of the Cn
Track 2 O efficency enhancement program The gross profit
on sales therefore increased by 22 percent to €4,411 million
Currency effects and the expansion of business following
the start-up of new plants increased selling expenses by
12 percent to €1,447 milllon Admimistrative expenses were
€693 mullion, 15 percent higher than in 2014 The main rea-
sons for this increase were a change 1n the system used to
cross-charge services within the Group, higher additions to
provisions for long-term incentive programs for executives
{LT1 Plan)" and other vanable remuneration components, and
currency effects The rise was mitigated by savings made
through the Admimistration Excellence program To strengthen
our innovative capability still further, we raised spending on
research & development by 5 percent to €434 million
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Services segment

The Services segment provides site management, utilities, and waste management, technical, process technology,
engineering, and logistics services for the chemicals segments and external customers at our sites It also
provides standardized Group-wide administrative services to support the chemicals businesses and the management

holding company

Key data for the Services segment

Change
€ mithien s 014 n%
External sales 828 906 -9
Adjusted EBITDA 163 151 ]
Adjusted EBITDA margin in % 197 167 -
Adjusted EBIT 33 49 8
Capital expenditures 177 153 14
Deprecation and amortizatron 107 101 3
Capital employed {annual average) 565 507 11
ROCE n% 94 97 -
No of employees as of December 31 12,668 13173 -4

Prior-year figures festated

The Services segment generates sales both internally, with
the speaalty chemicals segments and Corporate Center
(2015 €1,886 million), and with external customers Exter-
nal sales contracted by ¢ percent to €828 million 1n 2015
This was mainly due to the reduction in the price of energy,
which the segment charges to external customers at our sites

2.7 Regional development

A global presence
As part of our growth strategy, we are expanding our pres-
ence in emerging markets We define these as selected coun-
tries in Asia, South Amenica, Eastern Europe and the Middle
East in 2015, 82 percent of our sales were generated outside
Germany

In Germany, sales were 13 percent lower at €2,436 million
in 2015 Sales declined considerably in the Performance
Matenals segment, mainly as a consequence of the ol price,
but the Nutrinon & Care and Resource Efficiency segments
also reported lower sales

Adjusted EBITDA mcreased 8 percent to €163 million, mainly
because of changes to the internal cross-charging system

Capital expenditures in this segment increased 16 percent
to €177 milhion That was above depreciation, which
amounted to €107 million Numerous infrastructure projects
were completed at German sites tn 2015

Our German sites serve customers throughout Europe and
1n some overseas markets as well as domestic customers To
strengthen these sites, we increased capital expenditures to
€427 million (2014 €419 million) A new production plant
for C.-based products came on stream in Mard 1n 2015, and in
Essen we extended a production plant for speaialty silicones
In addition, many infrastructure projects were completed,
for example, a freight transport project tn Marl and a new
control center in Darmstadt
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Development of sales in the Performance Materials segment

w € mithon
2011 — 4,880
2012 — 4,843
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2014 _ 3,827
2015 _ 3435
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Figures for 2071 through 2013 reflect the old structure, prior year figures restated

Development of adjusted EBITDA in the Performance Materials segment

n € millon

20m N 507
:

2012 _ 853
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Figures for 2011 through 2013 reflect the old structure, prior-year figures restated

Global projects to expand capacity
As part of the Europe-wide expansian of capacity for
C,-based products, new plants came on stream in Mar! (Ger-
many) and Antwerp {Belgium) These have successfully
raised capacity for the plasticizer alcohol 1sononanol, for
butadiene and for MTBE, an anti-knock additive for fuel
Thanks to a unique new process, some product streams from
refineries can be utihzed for C, chemustry for the first ime
Total investment was in the triple-digit milhion euro range
To ensure sustainable and reliable long-term supply of
potassium dervatives to customers, Evonik has estabhished a
production joint venture with Akzo Nobel to build and oper-
ate a membrane electrolysis plant for chlorine and potassium
hydnde solution in Ibbenburen {Germany} Production s
scheduled to start in the fourth quarter of 2017

In Mobile (Alabama, USA) the Performance Materials seg-
ment has embarked on a substantial capacity increase for
ACA (acrolein cyanchydrin-o-acetate) This drives forward
the very successful exclusive partnership with z glebal leader
in broadband herbicides The new production plant, which
involves total investment in the tnple-digit million euro
range, should start operating in early 2017

From the second half of 2016 Performance Materials will
have access to new capacity for sodium cyanide from a jornt
venture with the Mexican group IDESA This will greatly
strengthen its position tn the growing Mexican market

&7
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Performance Materials segment

The heart of the Performance Materials segment is the production of polymer materials and intermediates, mainly for
the rubber, plastics and agriculture industrnies Progressive globalization offers market opportunities for this segment,
driven by the mobility and urbanization megatrends, which are raising global demand for efficient transportation

systems and sustainable construction methods

Key data for the Performance Materials segment

Change
in € mithon 2015 2014 in%
External sales 3,435 3,827 -10
Adjusted EBITDA 309 325 -5
Adjusted EBITDA margin i % 90 85 -
Adjusted EBIT 174 204 =15
Capital expenditures 183 218 =16
Depreciation and amoruzation 132 109 1
Capnal employed (annual average} 1,467 1,397 5
ROCEn % 119 146 -
No of employees as of December 31 4,380 4,353 1

Prior-year figures restated

Lower sales
Sales declined 10 percent to €3,435 million in the Perfor-
mance Materrals segment Since volume sales were almost
stable, the dechne was prncipally due to the oill-driven
reduction in selling prices By contrast, exchange rates had
a positive effect

Performance intermediates, in particutar, reported signifi-
cantly lower sales than 1n the previous year This was caused
by a sharp decline in selling prices for products from the inte-
grated C, platfarm in the wake of the reduction in the ol
price The downward trend gained momentumn In the second
half of the year Methacrylate products benefited from good
demand in the first half of the year Polymethylmethacrylate
(PMMA) for the automotive industry also developed well,
but market conditions for PMMA sheet remained difficult
Alcoholates for the production of biodiesel posted another
good performance

Adjusted EBITDA down year-on-year

Adjusted EBITDA shpped 5 percent year-on-year to
€309 milhon This was caused by lower selhing prices, while
the dechne was checked by the reduction in the cost of oil-
based raw matenials The adjusted EBITDA margin improved
from 8 5 percent to 9 O percent

Targeted investment—Lower return

on capital employed

To secure 1its leading market positions, raise efficiency and
broaden its technology base, the Performance Materials seg-
ment invested €183 million in property, plant and equipment
in 2015 Capnal expenditures therefore exceeded deprecia-
tron, which amounted to €132 million The average captal
employed increased by €70 milhon to €1,467 million as a
result of the segment’s selective capitat expenditures ROCE
dropped from 14 6 percent to 119 percent, mainly as a con-
sequence of the reductionin earnings
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Figures for 2011 through 2013 reflect the old structure, prior-year figures restated

Development of adjusted EBITDA in the Resource Efficiency segment

n € million
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Figures for 2011 through 2013 reflect the old structuse, prior-year figures restated

Investment projects to expand market positions
The Resource Efficiency segment has almost doubled pro-
duction capacity for oil additives on furong tsland (Singapore)
This facility, which was inaugurated m May 2015, 15 now
Evonik's biggest production plant for o1l additives The addi-
tional capacity enables this segment to meet rising demand
from customers for more efficient lubricants

By raising global capaaity for precipitated silicas, the
Resource Efficiency segment 1s supporting the growth of its
glabal customers in the tire, construction, ammal feed and
nutntion industries A new production facility s currently
under construction near Sio Pauto (Brazl) and 1s scheduled
to start operating in 2016 This will be the first production
facility for hughly dispersible siica (HD silica) for the South
Amencan tire industry Pre-engineenng work has started for
a new production plant for precipitated silicas in North
America, which is scheduled to be completed n early 2018
The entire project 1s stll contingent upon approval by
the relevant bodies Progress is also being made with the
expansion of capacity for specialty sihcas, primarily for
customers 10 the food, cosmetic and pharmaceutical sectors
In fall 2015, DSL Japan Co, Ltd {DSL), Tokyo (Japan), in

which Evonik has a 51 percent stake, started up new capacity
at the extended production faclity for specialty silicas in Ako
(Japan)

As binders for paints, specialty copolyesters are used In
coil coatings and, increasingly, in food can coatings To meet
rising demand, the segment 15 investing n a new plant at
the Witten site 1n Germany This will have annual capacity of
several thousand metric tons and 15 scheduled for completion
in 2018

Strengthened by selective acquisitions
The Indian catalyst producer Monarch was acquired In June
2015 This strategic acquisiion will strengthen the Resource
Efficiency segment’s market position in activated base and
precious metal catalysts and extend its business into odl and
fat hydrogenaton catalysts

In October 2015, the Resource Efficiency segment
acquired the hydrogen peroxide producer PeroxyChem
Netherlands BV, Amsterdam (Netherlands) Its site in
Delfzyl complements the present network of European
production sites

"
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Resource Efficiency segment

The Resource Efficiency segment supphes high-performance matenials for environment-friendly and energy-
efficient system solutions for the automotive, paints, coatings, adhesives and construction industries and many
other sectors The resource efficiency megatrend ss the basts for energy-efficent and environmentally compatible
products and s therefore a key factor in the development of this segment’s business

Key data for the Resource Efficiency segment

Change
m€milhon 2015 2014 n%
External sales 4,279 4,040 &
Adjusted EBITDA 8%6 834 7
Adyusted EBITDA margin in % 209 207 -
Adjusted EBIT 75 642 5
Caputal expendituces 241 273 =12
Depreciation and amortization T 222 194 14
Capital employed {annual sverage) 2,726 2474 10
ROCE m % 248 259 -
No of employees as of December 31 8,682 7,835 1"

Pnor-year figures restated

Higher sales
Sales in the Resource Efficiency segment grew & percent to
€4,279 mullion Alongside positive curcency effects, this was
attributable to organic sales growth resulting from higher
volumes and stable selhng prices

There was strong growth in sales of crosslinkers, which
benefited above all from attractive end-markets such as
construction and wind energy Ol additives, which enhance
the performance of engines and gears in the automotive,
construchion and transportation industries, were again very
successful Sales of silica also increased appreciably, manly
due to buoyant demand for products for the silicones and vre
sectors The catalysts bustness benefited from the first-time
consolidation of the catalyst producer Maonarch Catalyst Put
Ltd , Dombivh (India), which was acquired in June 2015 High
demand for hydrogen peroxide products for tradiional apph-
cations, especially in the paper and textile industnes, resulted
n hugher sales Sales of high performance polymers were
around the prior-year level, although this stll included the
soltrmides business that was divested in September 2014

Improvement in earnings

Adjusted EBITDA in the Resource Efficiency segment
advanced 7 percent to €896 mullion, mainly as a result of
higher volumes, better capacity utilization, positive currency
effects, and lower raw matenal costs The adjusted EBITDA
margin increased shghtly to 20 9 percent

High investment—Return on capital

employed still very good

Capital expenditures m the Resource Efficiency segment
remained tigh at €247 million, but were 12 percent lower
than in the previous year Nevertheless, they were shghtly
above depreciation, which amounted to €222 millon As a
result of the expansion of production capacity, the average
capital employed increased by €252 millron to €2,726 million
ROCE was very good at 24 8 percent, but below the prior-
year level of 25 9 percent due to higher capital expenditures,
which increase capital employed but only impact adjusted
EBIT successively as the new capacity comes into service
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Development of adjusted EBITDA in the Nutrnition & Care segment
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The average capital employed increased by €396 milhon to
€2,923 million, prinapally because of the high capital expen-
ditures 1n previous years Thanks to the positive earnings
trend, ROCE improved to 415 percent, up from 27 1 percent
in 2014

Investment projects to drive growth
Since demand for amino aaids for modern animal nutrition
1s growing fast, selective capacity increases in this field are
a major focus of investment 1n the Nutrition & Care segment
A new facility for biotechnological production of around
100,000 metric tons p a of Biolys® (L-lysine), an amino acid
for ammal feed, was completed in Castro (Brazil) This site
has excellent access to corn, which is used as a raw matenal,
very good logistics connections, and 15 close to our customers
in the growing Latin American market

In addition, the segment invested 1n new production
facilinies for methionine formulations tallored specifically to
the nutritional requirements of species other than poultry
A faclity to produce Mepron® for dairy cattle has been
erected in Mobile (Alabama, USA) Investment in this plant
was n the low double-digit mithon euro range Evonik has
also developed AQUAVI® Met-Met, a dipeptide with two
methionine molecules, for aquaculture of shrmp and other
crustaceans The first production facility 1s currently under

construction in Antwerp (Belgium), and 1s scheduled to come
on stream 1n April 2016 This investment 15 also in the low
double-digit milhon euro range

In view of the strong growth in the market for
methionine, Evonik is planning to build a further world-scale
produchon complex alongside the facility on Jurong Island
{Singapore) that came into service in November 2014 In this
new, fully backwardly integrated production complex as well,
all key strateqic precursors will be produced by Evonik

As part of the global expansion of the production
network for oleochemical specialty surfactants, all pro-
duction technologies for the high-growth cosmetics and
consumer goods industry were successfully started up at the
new facthty in Americana {Brazil)

Evonik has a global investment initiative to strengthen
its integrated technology platform for specialty silicones
in Germany and China Total planned investment is in the
triple-digit milbon euro range The first capacity expansion in
Essen (Germany) came into operation tn 2015 The plants
thare will be extended further over the next few years and
a new siicone platform will be constructed 1n Shangha
{China) The sthcone platforms are the backbone of signifi-
cant business activities in the Nutrition & Care and Resource
Efficiency segments
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2.6 Segment performance

Nutrition & Care segment

The Nutrition & Care segment produces speaialty chemcals, principally for use in consumer goods for daily needs,
and tn ansmal nutnitton and healthcare products The long-term development of this segment’s business is driven by
sacio-economic megatrends As a result of growth in the world population, demand for food based on animal protein
15 rising At the same time, the nise of an affluent muddle class in the emerging markets 1s increasing consumption af
animal protein such as meat, eggs, milk and fish, leading tc higher demand for better quality day-to-day consumer
goods such as personal care products and cosmetics Moreaver, as a result of demoegraphic change the proportion of
older people in the developed markets will nise in the long term, leading to lugher demand for cosmetics, wellness

andg healthcare products

Key data for the Nutrition & Care segment

Change
n € mithon 201s 2014 in %
External sales 4,924 4,075 . n
Adjusted EBITDA 1,435 847 49
Adjusted EBITDA margin in % 291 208 -
Adjusted EBIT 1.214 685 77
Capital expenditures 150 458 -45
Deprecianon and amortzation 212 157 35
Capital employed (annual average} 2,923 2,527 16
ROCEwn % 413 221 -
No of employees as of December 31 7,165 6,943 3

Prior year figures restated

Considerable sales growth
The Nutntion & Care segment posted an extremely success-
ful business performance in 2015 and grew sales 21 percent
to €4,924 milhon Alongside shghtly higher volumes, the
mam drivers were considerably higher selhng pnces and
positive currency effects

In particular, there was a substantial increase in sales of
essential amino acids for arumal nutatton The strong trend
to modern and sustainable amimal nutrition continues to have
a posttive impact on this business Thanks to the new pro-
duction facility that came on stream in Singapore at the end
of 2014, we were able to sauisfy the sigmificant nse in demand
for our methicrune products and raise volumes further
Having risen since fall 2014, prices have stabilized at a very
attractive level since summer 2015 Considerably hugher sales
were also registered for healtheare products, with exclusive
synthesis and pharmaceutical polymers for smart drug
delivery systems proving particularly successful Sales of per-
sonal care products were higher, especrally in North America

and the Asia-Pacific region, aided by the new capacity in
China In the baby care business, volumes declined, princi-
pally because competitors brought new production capacities
on stream Sales were therefore down year-on-year

Substantial increase in adjusted EBITDA

The Nutntion & Care segment’s adjusted EBITDA grew
69 percent to €3,435 million, drven mainly by higher seling
prices and positive currency effects The adjusted EBITDA
margin improved significantly from 20 8 percent in 2014 to
29 1 percent

Capital expenditures scaled back as planned—
Attractive return on capital employed

Capital expenditures in the Nutrition & Care segment
amounted to €250 million That was well below the prior-
year figure of €458 mullion, which was boosted by high
growth-driven investments Nevertheless, capital expendi-
tures ware well above depreciatron, which was €212 mithon
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Business review
Comparsson of forecast and
attual performance

The average capital employed increased by €0 5 billion to
€10 5 billion 1n 2015 Capital employed was increased by the
rise 1n property, plant and equipment and higher trade
accounts receivable, which resulted from further implemen-
tation of our growth investments The divestment of the stake
10 Vivawest and impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment had a counter-effect The constderable improve-
ment in ROCE was atinbutable to higher operating earnings,
while the increase in capital employed had a counter-effect

In the three chemical segments, ROCE 15 well above
the cost of capital The return on capital employed in the
Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency segrnents 1s well
above average The ROCE for the Group 15 considerably
lower because capital employed also includes 1dentified
hndden reserves from former business combinations

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ROCE by segment

In% 2015 2014
Nutrition & Care 415 271
Resource Efficiency . 248 239
Perfarmance Materials 119 14 6
Services 94 97
Evonik {including Corporate,

other operations) 166 125

Prior-year figures restated

Clear value creation

Economic Value Added (EVA®) 15 the difference between
adjusted EBIT and the cost of capital, which s calculated by
multiplying average capital employed by the average cost of
capital (WACC) If EVA® is positive, the Group creates value
(value spread approach) In 2015, we generated EVA® of
€646 mithon The hike of €446 million compared with the
previous year was mamly attributable to the improvement in
operating earnings

2.5 Comparison of forecast and
actual performance

Financial forecast clearly met

'n our annual report for 2014 we forecast a slight nise in sales
and shghtly lugher adjusted EBITDA than in the previous year
Thanks to the very good development of our growth seg-
ments, Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency, espeaally

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

in the first half of the year, we raised our guidance at the end
of the first and second quarters After the first six months, we
anticipated that at year end we would report sales of around
€13 5 billion and adjusted EBITDA of around €2 4 billion
We cleasly achieved this revised forecast, with sales up 5 per-
cent at €13,507 million and a 31 percent nse 1n adjusted
EBITDA to €2,465 million Adjusted EBITDA greatly exceeded
our onginal forecast This was principally attributable to the
more favorable price trend in the Nutrition & Care segment
and the reduction in raw matenial costs resulting from the
drop in the oll price

Since the earnings improvement was better than expected,
ROCE was well above the prior-year figure at 16 6 percent It
was also well above the cost of capital, as had been expected

As a consequence of the disaplined implementation of
our growth investments, our capital expenditures totaled
€0 9 bulhon in 2015 so we did not fully utihize the budget of
up to €171 billion

In view of the capital required to fund our growth invest-
ments, payment of the dwvidend and the planned cash transfer
to the CTA, we had expected to report net financial debt
However, we are able to report a net financial asset position
of €17 bilhon thanks to the better-than-expected business
performance, the sale of the shares in Vivawest and the fact
that capital expenditures were lower than had been budgeted

Non-financial safety indicators at a good level

Our significant non-financial performance indicators for
occupational and plant safety continued their positive long-
term trend A further improvement in our safety indicators is
especially important to us We have therefore set ambitious
long-term targets However, these indicators can naturally
fluctuate from year to year

We had expected to achieve a shight improvement in the
acadent frequency indicator in 2015 and aimed to reman
below our upper lirmit of 13 We clearly achieved this goal,
with an acadent frequency rate of 10

We also aimed for a slight improvement 1n our Incident
frequency indicator, with 3 ceilling of 48 The indicator again
came 1n 3t a good level of 55 and therefore exceeded our
ambitious target despite a shght detenoration compared with
the previous year (53)

Based on our systematic analysis of all acadents and
incidents, action has already been initiated to bring about
an improvement We are stepping up measures to Jmprove
our performance, for example, through our safety culture
inmbiative

-
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Spectfic human resources measures have now been defined
to achieve the headcount reductions associated with the
savings and will be implemented in consultation with repre-
sentatives of the workforce to avord undue hardship

Systematic optimization of the value chain and implemen-
tation of the efficiency enhancement programs support
Evonik’s strategy of profitable growth

Effictent and effective procurement
Reliable supply, gaiming access to new procurement markets,
and ongoing optimization of matenial costs are still the key
tasks for Evonik’s procurement function Procurement in the
company's growth markets will increase further in the future

There were a large number of unfareseeable production
outages (force majeure) n 2015, especially in the European
chemical industry We essentially managed to secure supply
to our sites through close cooperation with the supphers
affected and by drawing on alternative suppliers

To optimize matenal costs, Evonrk uses a total-cost-
of-ownership (TCO) approach to procurement, together with
cross-unit purchasing to leverage savings potential in the pro-
cess as a whole and along the entire supply chain Stepping
up collzboration with the business entities 1s a key success
factor for efficient and effective procurement processes

The efficiency of the procurement organization has been
optimized further through Administration Excellence The
main leverage was further integration of local and regionat
procurement into our global procurement structures, and
systernatic separation of strategic and operational activities
within the procurement organization Ongoing efficiency
improvements will remain a core aspect of procurermnent in
2016 The maip drivers will be automation and harmont-
zation of global procurement processes, especially in the
operating units

As well as participating 1n procurement alliances with
other compamies and validating new suppliers, we are working
intensively to extend strategic relationships with suppliers
Here we are looking for addittonal opportunities to reduce
risk, optimize costs and enhance cooperation and innovation
with the suppliers that are currently of the greatest strategtc
importance We are aware of our responsibility within the
supply chain Issues such as safety, health, environmental
protectron, corporate responsibility and quality play an
integral part in our procurement strategy These sustainability
aspects are also supported by standardized global assess-
ments through the Together for Sustarnabihity (TfS) sector
wutiative, which was co-founded by Evomk Evomk’s principal

suppliers and the majority of our critical suppliers have
already taken part in these assessments, which are evaluated
by EcoVadis, an impartial sustainabiity rating company

In 2015 Evonik spent around €8 3 billion on raw matenals
and supplies, technical goods, services, energy and other
operating supplies Petrochemical feedstocks accounted for
about 25 percent of the total Overall, raw matenals and
supplies make up around 59 percent of procurement volume

Using renewable resources remains very important 1o
Evonik In 2015, arcund 8 percent of raw ratenals were from
renewable resources The main applications for these raw
matenals are amino acids and starting products for the
cosmetics industry

Very good return on capital employed

Within our value-onented management approach, our success
1s measured principally by ROCE, which was 16 6 percentin
2015 and therefore well above our cost of capital, which was
confirmed as 10 5 percent before taxes in our regular review
for the fiscal year

Capital employed, ROCE
and Economic Value Added (EVA®)

in € million 2075 2014
intangible assets 3,158 3,067
+ Property, plant and equipment,

investment property 5,690 5116
+ Investments 175 386
+ Inventonies 1,782 1,681
+ Trade accounts recewable 1,923 1,749
+ Other interest-free assets 435 497
- Interest-free provisions =999 =911
= Trade accounts payable ~-1.050 =-1,072
~ Other interest-free ligbilittes -584 -459
= Capital employed’ 10,530 10,054
Adjusted EBIT 1,752 1,256
ROCE (adjusted EBIT/
capital employed) in % 16.6 1258
Cost of capital
(capital employed * WACC) 1106 1,056
EVA?® (sdjusted EBIT - cost of capital) 646 200

Prior-year figures restated
b Anoual meerages
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Reconciliation to adjusted net income

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Change
in € million 2015 2014 n %
Adjusted EBITDA 2,465 1,882 £} |
Depreciation and amortization =713 -626

Adjusted EBIT 1,752 1,256 39
Adjusted financial result =-17% -209
Amortization and impairment losses on intangible assets 39 59

Adjusted income before income taxes’ 1,612 1,106 46
Ad)justed income taxes -473 -313

Adjusted income after taxes® 1,139 793 44
thereof adjusted income attributable to non-controlling nterests 1 11

Adjusted net income * 1,128 782 44

Adjusted earnings per share” n€ 2.42 168

? Continuing operations

The adjustments are the net balance of non-operating
income and non-operating expense items which are by
nature one-off or rare and amounted to —€88 million 1n 2015
The adjustments include restructuring expenses of €65 mil-
hon, mainly for optimization of the product portfolio in the
Performance Matenals segment and in connection with the
new Group structure The impairment losses /reversals of
impairment losses totaling —€63 million relate to capitalized
costs for a project in the Resource Efficiency and Performance
Materials segments that was terminated following a routine
review of investment projects, a production plant and intan-
gible assets in the Performance Materials segment, and an
equity investment n the Nutnition & Care segment Income
of €142 million from the divestment of shareholdings
mainly comprised the divestment of the stake In Vivawest
Other adjustments chtefly comprise nisk provisioning relating
to a contract with a raw materials supplier, expenses for the
reorganization and simplification of corporate structures in
Europe, and expenses for an increase in provisions for the
partial retirement program to comply with IAS 19 In the prior
year, the adjustments totaling - €179 millron mainly comprised
restructuring expense, principally to optimize administrative
structures and the product portfolio of the Nutritton & Care
segment

The financial result of —€223 million contains one-off
factors of —€44 million mainly for interest expense 1n con-
nection with the establishment of provisions In the previous
year, this compnised one-off expense of €26 milion Exclud-
ing these effects, the improvement in the financial result was
higher, mainly because of the considerably lower cost of
refinancing and the voluntary transfers to the contractual
trust arrangement (CTA) Income before income taxes,
continuing operations grew 71 percent to €1,441 milhon
The income tax rate was 29 percent, which was in line with
the expected Group tax rate

Income after taxes, discontinued operations was —€17 mil-
lion and mainly relates to the remairung Iithium-ion actwities,
which were divested 1n April 2015 The prior-year figure of
—€9 million contained operating income from the hthium-
1on business and the stake in STEAG, which was divested in
September 2014

The Evomik Group's net income rose 74 percent to
€991 million .

Adjusted net income, which reflects the operating per-
formance of the continuing operations, increased 44 percent
10 €1,128 million 1n 2015 Ad)justed earnings per share there-
fore rose from €168 t0 €2 42

Target for On Track 2.0 achieved—
Administration Excellence welil on schedule
At the start of 2012 we set up the On Track 2 O effrciency
enhancement program to achieve a continuous improvement
n process efficiency, especially in the production function
The goal was to reduce production costs by €500 million
following realization of this program in the period up to 2016
That has now been achieved By the end of 2015, measures
with the potential to cut costs by well over €550 million had
been identified and adopted for implementation

Following the successful stock exchange histing and
Evonik’s strategic focus on the specialty chemicals business,
in September 2013 we launched the Administration Excel-
lence program to further strengthen our competitive posttion
and optimize the quality of our administrative processes
This atms to implement measures with cost-improvement
potenttal of around €230 million by the end of 2016 By year-
end 2015 measures with cost-saving potential of around
€100 mullion had already been implemented In addition,
more than 90 percent of the measures defined had been
passed on to the responsible umits for implementation
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Organic sales growth

Evonik posted organic sales growth of 1 percent as volumes
were higher and prices were unchanged overall Sales grew
5 percent to €13,507 million, driven by positive currency
effects {5 percentage points), principally as a consequence
of the depreciation of the eurg versus the US dollar and the
Chinese renminbt yuan The other effects (-1 percentage
point) include changes in the scope of consolidation

Change in sales 2015 versus 2014

n%

Volumes

Prices

Organic sales growth

w Ao -

Exchange rates

COther effects =1
Total 5

Very good adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA was €2,465 million, 31 percent above the
prior-year figure Alongside positive currency effects,
contcibutary factors were sustained good demand, the posi-
tive price trend and lower raw matenal costs The adjusted
EBITDA margin increased from 14 6 percent to a very good
level of 18 2 percent

Adjusted EBITDA by segment

Change
in € milhon 2015 2014 in %
Nutritwon £ Care 1,435 B47 59
Resource Efficency 896 836 7
Performance Matenals 309 325 -5
Services 163 15 8
Corporate, other
aperatons, consolidation -338 =277 -22
Evornk 2,455 1,882 n

Prior-year figures restated

The Nutnition & Care segment benefited from higher
volumes and, abave all, higher selling prices accompanied
by lower raw matenal prices Its earmings were therefore
considerably higher than n the prior year The Resource
Efficiency ségrnent improved earnings thanks to higher
volumes, high capacity utilizaton and lower raw materia!
costs By contrast, the Performance Materials segment was
hampered considerably by the reduction in selling prices,
whereas lower raw matenal costs allewiated the situation.
Quercall, tts earnuings contribution was shghtly tower than in
the previous year Earnings in the Services segment were
higher than in the previous year The adjusted EBITDA
reported by Corporate, other operations, cluding consohi-
dation, was —€338 million This includes, among others,
expenses for the Corporate Center and strategic research

Sales and reconciliation from adjusted EBITDA to net income

Change
In € million 2075 2014 n%
Sales 13,507 1297 5
Adjusted EBITDA 2,445 1,882 Ed
Depreciation and amortization =713 -626
Adjusted EBIT 1,752 1,256 %
Adjustments -88 -179
thereof attnbutable to
Restructuring -65 -86
Impairment losses/reversals of impairment losses -63 -37
Acquisition/divestment of shareholdings 142 1
Gther -102 -57
income before financial result and ncome taxes (EBIT) 1,664 1,077 55
Financial result -223 =235
Income before income taxes, continuing operations 1,441 842 bal
tncome taxes -422 ~252
Income after taxes, continuing operations 1,09 590 73
Income after taxes, discontinued operations =17 ~9
Income after taxes 1,002 581 72
thereof attributable to non-controlling interests 11 13
Net income L) 568 74
Earnings per share 213 1.22

Prior year figures restated
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Development of Evonik’s end-customer industries 2014/2015

n %

Ovarall

w
w
-

Consumer and
personal care products

Food and amimal feed

|

Automative and
mechameal engineering

Construction

Plastics and rubber*

Pharmaceuticals

Efectrical and electronics

Metal and oil products

Paints and coatings*

Paper and printing

Agnculture
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o
L)
o

50
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o
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w2015 {projected} me 2014
® Where not directly assigned to ather end-customer industnies

2.3 Major events

At the end of June 2015, Evonik Industries AG divested its
remaining 10 3 percent stake in the residential real estate
campany Vivawest GmbH to RAG Aknengesellschaft for
€428 million Through this transaction, Evonik Industries AG
has now completely withdrawn from its real estate activities
in order to focus on specialty chemicals The dvestment gain
1s recognized in other operating iIncome

At its meeting on June 25, 2015, the Superwisery Board of
Evonik Industries AG adopted a resolution on ending the
term of office of Patrk Wohlhauser as a member of the
Executive Board and Chief Operating Officer (COQ) by
mutual agreement effective June 30, 2015 At the same tme,
Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann was appointed to the Executive
Board of Evonik Industries AG as the company’s new COQ
with effect from July 1, 2015

2.4 Business conditions and performance

A successful business trend

Despite the challenging business conditions, we achieved a
significant year-on-year improvement in adjusted EBITDA 1n
all four quarters Although global growth was below expec-
tations, high demand enabled our two growth segments,
Nutrition & Care and Resource Efficiency, to report good
volume trends, aided by new production capacity Selling
prices rose considerably in the Nutrition & Care segment but
decreased in the Performance Materials segment, princepally
due to the fower ol price Overall, selling prices were on the
previcus year's level

r
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2.2 Economic background

Weaker global economic momentum
Global economic conditions were slightly weaker than
expected 1n 2015 We estimate that global economic growth
was around 2 6 percent, which was lower than in the pre-
vious year {2 7 percent) At the start of 2015, growth of
3 0 percent had still been anticipated

The main factors were the contnued slowdown of eco-
nomic activity in the emerging markets, which overshadowed
the sound economic momentum n the industrialized eco-
nomies

In Europe, the economy picked up in 2015 thanks to the
European Central Bank's expansionary monetary policy, the
depreciation of the euro, and the low oil price In Germany,
consumer spending, in particular, was boosted by the good
employment situation and lower o1l price By contrast, industry
only posted modest growth

During the year the US economy recovered from the
temporary dip at the start of the year, with the main impetus
coming from consumer spending Although the appreciation
of the dollar and lower 1nvestment in the o1l and gas sector
tield back manufacturing ndustry, the US economy achieved
full employment in 2015 The Federal Reserve raised its key
interest rates tn the fourth quarter for the first ttme since
2006, ushering in the reversal of 1ts monetary policy

The lower growth in the emerging markets was driven
by a number of factors slowing growth in China, declining
commodity prices and a deterioration in the financial
situation as a result of capital outflows and the depreciation
of currencies This had an especially big impact on commod-
ity exporting countries The recession in Brazil and Russia
worsened

Development of GDP 2014/2015

In China, the slowdown in growth caused by the transition to
3 new economic model with a greater focus on the domestic
market continued tncertainty about the economic devel-
opment in China increased, especially in the second half of
the year, resulting in higher volatihty on the financial markets

Solid development of end-customer industries
Worldwide, the development of Evonik’s end-customer
industnes differed by region and by sector in the first half
of 2015

Demand for food and arimal feed continued its very
pleasing trend There was a year-on-year rise in output of
consumer and care products, mainly in North America but
also to some extent in Europe Following a strong first half,
growth momentum in the electrical and electronics sectar in
Asia, North Amenica and some parts of Europe weakened in
the remainder of the year Automotive production cocled in
Asia, but continued to grow at a moderate pace in North
America and Europe Overall though, the general industrial
trend in Europe and North America remained weak and
output only increased shghtly

The average price of Evonik’s raw materials was lower
than in 2014 This was due to the substantial drop 10 the price
of oil, which triggered a reduction in the price of most of
Evonik’s specific raw matenals

The euro continued to depreciate against Evonik’s most
important foreign currency, the US dollar, 1n 2015 and the
average exchange rate was constderably lower than in the
previgus year at LUS$111 (2014 US$133)

in%

Global GDP

Germany

Other European Countries

North Amenca

Central and South America

Asia Paafic

Middle East, Africa
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»  Successful development of the Nutrition & Care
and Resource Efficiency growth segments

»  Very good adjusted EBITDA margin of 18.2 percent,
attractive return on capital employed (ROCE) of 16.6 percent

«  Adjusted net income up 44 percent

2.1 Overall assessment of the
economic situation

Strategically, our new Group structure has further improved
our basis for profitable growth in the future The selective
expansion of our market-leading positions was also success-
ful The new production capacities that have come on stream
made a clear contribution to our very good business per-
formance We are still implementing our growth investments
in a disaiplined manner

Operationally, our business developed extremely well
In particular, our two growth segments, Nutrition & Care and
Resource Efficiency, were able to raise volume sales further
thanks to buoyant demand and increased production capacity
The positive price trend for some important products that
started 1n the second half of 2014 continued uninterrupted
until summer 2015 and pnces then remained stable in the
second half of the year By contrast, selling prices fell con-
siderably in the Performance Materials segment due to the
sharp drop in the oil pnice Overall, selling prices were on a
level with the prior year

Sales increased by 5 percent to €13,507 million 1n 2015
Adjusted EBITDA rose even faster, growing 31 percent to
€2,465 million Higher earnings contributions mainly came

Development of adjusted EBITDA in the Evonik Group

from the growth segments, and earmings 1n the Performance
Matenals segment were only down shghtly year-on-year

Thanks to our very successful business performance,
earnings were high The adjusted EBITDA margin improved
substannially 10 18 2 percent, which 15 also excellent by sector
standards The ROCE of 16 6 percent represents a very
attractive return

Net income improved 74 percent to €991 million, while
adjusted net incorne advanced 44 percent to€1,128 milhon
To enable our shareholders to participate in this very pleasing
business trend, at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting the
Executive Board and Supervisory Board will be proposing
a dividend payment of €115 per share

Our financial profile remains good At year-end 2015 we
again had a net asset position The cash flow from operating
activities, continuing operations was a strong €1,968 milhon
After deduction of outflows for capital expenditures, the free
cash flow was very high at €1,052 million Evonik stll has
a sound investment grade raung (Moody’s Baa2, Standard &
Poor's BBB+)

Overall, we consider that we are weil-posittoned for
the challenges that could result from the weak economic
conditions and geopohtical tension 1n 2016

in € millian
2011 A 2.753
2012 N <57
2013 A 555
2014 e —— =
:

s 1 2,465

0 500 1,000

1500 2,000 2,500 3,000

The figure for 2011 indudes adjusted EBITDA of €219 million far the farmer Real Estate segment 2074 restated
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We also set ourselves ambitious environmental targets The
aim 15 to make a contributron to chimate protection, minimize
our ecological footprint, and steachly improve our environ-
mental protection performance In 2014, we set new targets
for the period 2013 to 2020 (reference base 2012)

« Reduce specific greenhouse gas emissions’ by 12 percent
- Reduce speaific water intake by 10 percent

in the area of sustainable waste management, we are con-
tinuing our efforts to mimmze the use of resources

1.3 Business management systems

Most important financial key performance indicators
Financial management of Evomik s based on a consistent
system of value-oriented indicators These are used to assess
the business performance of the operational units and the
Group Through systematic alignment to these indicators,
Evomk endeavors to create value by raising profitability and
ensuring profitable growth

Our key performance indicator 1s adjusted EBITDA To
track the attamment of targets, adjusted EBITDA 1s broken
down to the level of the operating umts Adjusted EBITDA
and the corresponding relative indicator, the adjusted
EBITDA margin, show the operating performance of an
entrty irrespective of the structure of its assets and its invest-
ment profile They therefore provide a key basis for internal
and external comparison of the cost structure of business
operations Since depreciation, amortization and Impairment
losses are not included, these are also cash-flow based
parameters The adjusted EBITDA margin can therefore be
taken as an approximation of the return on sales-related
cash flows

1 Energy- and process related emissians 25 defined by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol

The return on capital employed (ROCE) 15 used as a further
indicator of value-dniven management of the company The
calculation starts from adjusted EBIT in relation to average
capital employed Companson with the cost of capital, which
shows the risk-adjusted return expectations of our investors,
indicates relative value creation This 15 calculated using
a weighted average cost of capital, which reflects the return
expectations of both shareholders, derived from the capita!
asset pricing model, and prowviders of debt capital

Most important non-financial
key performance indicators
Evonik also uses a wide vanety of non-financial performance
indicators For example, our annual sustainability report®
provides information on ecological and soctetal 1ssues to
supplement our economic reporting

Traditionally, we accord special significance to safety,
which s regarded as a holistc management task that has to
be lived at all management levels Our guiding principles on
safety are binding for staff at all ievels and were reinforced in
2015 by a global safety culture initiative In accordance with
corporate policy, all units at Evonik have an occupational
safety target n addition, all production units have a plant
safety target The relevant indicators are acadent frequency
and inaident frequency

To protect the environment we specifically aim to reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases, not just from our pro-
duction but also along the entire value chain We therefore
strive continuously to improve our production processes still
further That ensures more efficient use of resources and
minmizes environmental impact We regard specific green-
house gas emissions as a particularly impartant environ-
mental indicator, which we plan to use as a key non-financiat
performance indicator from fiscal 2017

2 This report 1s based on G4, the currently valid gurdelings 1ssued by the Global Reporting Initsative (GRI)

1 See sections Principles and objectives and Sustainability
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Global production

Evonik has a presence in more than 100 countries and
82 percent of sales are generated outside Germany We have
production facihities in 24 countries on five continents and
are therefore close to our markets and our customers Our
largest production sites—Marl, Wesseling and Rheinfelden
(Germany}, Antwerp (Belgium), Mobile (Alabama, USA),
Shanghai (China) and Singapore—have integrated techno-
logy platforms used by vanous units

1.2 Principles and objectives

Profitable growth, enhanced efficiency, values

A sustained increase 1n the value of the company 1s our
overriding goal and the basis for Evonik’s strategic ahgnment
To implement our strategy, we have set demanding financial,
safety and environmental targets

Our strategy Is based on profitable growth, efficiency and

values We aim to

- further increase our leading market positions

-+ concentrate on attractive growth businesses and emerging
markets

+ gain access to new growth areas through innovation and
external growth, and

- continuously iImprove our cost and technology position

As growth drivers for our business we have identified
the megatrends health, nutrition, resource efficiency and
globalization, and the dynamic development of the emerging
markets We take a flexible and disciplined approach to
extending our feading market positions around the world
Allnvestment projects are regularly reviewed for changes in
the market situation

Innovations are the driving force of future growth
Through them, we gain access to new products and appli-
cations, enter attractive future markets and strengthen our
market and technology leadership

1 See section headed Business review
2 See section on Sustainability

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To raise scope for growth and innovations, we are con-
tinvously working to improve our cost position The On
Track 2 0 efficiency enhancement program 15 geared to
optimizing production and related workflows, while the
Administration Excellence program 1s designed to optimize
our administrative functions’ worldwide

The cornerstones of our corporate culture are our corpo-
rate values "sparing no effort”, “courage to innovate” and
“responsible action”, which represent the balance between
economically successful, ecologically responsible and soaally
appropriate behavior

Our sustainability strategy 1s based on the megatrends
identified in our corporate strategy, supplemented by eco-
logical and societal challenges We are keenly commutted to
expanding the contribution made by our inngvative solutions
to sustainable development

Ambitious targets

In line with our growth strategy, we set ambibous financial

targets in 2013

« We aim to report sales of around €18 billion and adjusted
EBITDA of over €3 bilhon by 2018

« We want to maintain our sound investment-grade rating
in the long term

As a responsible specialty chemicals company, we have
also defined ambitious non-financial targets We take our
responstbility in the field of safety? particularly seniously
Our objective 15 to protect our employees and local residents
as well as the environment from any potential negative
impact of our activities Accordingly, we set annual imits for
occupational safety and plant safety indicators For 2016
these are once agam

- The accident frequency® rate should not exceed 13

- Inaident frequency * should not exceed 48°, taking 2008

as the reference base

3 Number of acadents involving Evonik employees and contractors’ emplayees under Evonik’s direct supervision per 1 million wosking hours
4 This indicator comprises mcidents resulting in the release of substances, fire or explosian, even if there 15 little or no damage
5 Number of incidents per 1 million hours worked in the productien facilities operated by the segments, taking 2008 as the reference base

{expressed n percentage ponts 2008 =100)

3

»”
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far greater entrepreneurial independence, so they can operate
closer to their markets and customers and improve efficiency
still further

The Nutnition & Care segment produces specialty chem-
cals, princrpally for use in consumer goods for daily needs,
and in animal nutntion and healthcare products

The Resource Efficiency segment supphies high-
performance matenals for environment-friendly and energy-
efficient system solutions for the automotive, paints,
coatings, adhesives and construction industries and many
other sectors

The heart of the Performance Matertals segment 15 the
production of polymer matenals and intermediates, mainly
for the rubber, plastcs and agriculture industries

The Services segment offers services for the chemical
segments and external customers at our sites and supports
the chemucals businesses and the management holding
company by prowiding standardized Group-wide business
services

The Nutnition & Care and Resource Efficiency segments
operate principally in markets with hugh margins, growth rates
and entry barriers They both offer customers customized,
innovation-driven solutions and the aim s for them to achteve
above-average, profitable growth through nnovations,
Investments and acquisitions

The Performance Matenals segment is characterized by
processes that make intensive use of energy and raw mate-
rials It therefore concentrates on integrated, cost-optimzed
technology platforms, efficient workflows, and economuies of
scale QOur strategic goal for this segment Is to contribute
earnings to finance the growth of the Evonik Group In the

Evonik’s end-markets

future, investments and, where appropriate, alhances will
concentrate on securing and extending our good market
posItions

Integrated technology platforms
are a competitive advantage
Qur products are manufactured using highly developed
technologies that we are constantly refining In many cases
Evonik has backwardly integrated production complexes
where 1t produces key precursors for its operations In
neighboring production faciittes In this way we offer our
customers maximum reliability of supply At the same time,
backwardly integrated world-scale production faciliues com-
bined with technologically demanding production processes
act as high entry barriers

Further advantages are leveraged by the use of our
integrated tachnology platforms for several businesses That
generates economies of scale and optimizes the use of
product streams because by-products from one production
facihty can be used as starting matenals for other products
This results in optimum utihzation of capacity and resources
and thus high added value Moreover, the operating urits
can share the site energy supply and infrastructure cost-
effecuvely

Broadly diversified end-markets

Most of our customers are ndustnial companies that use
our products for further processing The range of markets in
which they operate ts diverse and balanced None of the
end-markets that we supply accounts for more than 20 per-
cent of our sales

Agnaulture

Renewable energies
Paper and prinung
Paints and coatings”

Metal and od products \

Electrical and electromes \\“

Y

Pharmaceuticals

Cther industnes

Plastics and rubber*

Construction

Consumer goods and personal care products

Food and animal feed

Automothve and mechirucal engineering

- 15-20% 10-15% 5-10% - < 5%
¥ Where not directly assigned to other end customer industries
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An excellent performance in 2015—
Responding vigorously to challenges

in 2016

1. Basic information on the Evonik Group

+  Strong market positions
+ A balanced portfolio
+ Innovatiaons drive profitabie growth

1.1 Business model

Strong market positions, a clear innovation culture,
sustainable business activities
Evonik 1s one of the world’s leading specialty chemicals
companies We concentrate on high-growth megatrends,
especially health, nutrition, resource efficiency and globak-
zavon Our strengths include the balanced spectrum of our
business achwities, end-markets and regions Around 80 per-
cent of sales come from market-leading posmons', which we
are systematically expanding Our streng competiive position
15 based on integrated technology platforms, innovative
strength and working closely with our customers

Qur specialty chemicals products make an indispensable
contnibution to the benefits of our customers’ products,
which generate their success 1n global competition Close
cocperation with our customers enables us to build up 2 deep
knowledge of their business, so we can offer products tai-
lored to their specifications, and extensive technical service
Qur technology centers and customer competence centers
play an important role in this around the world We also have
a focus on our customers’ customers

Corporate structure

Market-oriented research & development 15 a key driver
of profitable growth This 15 based on aur strong innovation
culture, which 15 rooted 1n our Innovation management and
management development

We are convinced that sustainable and responsible bust-
ness activities are wital for the future of our company Evonik
therefore accepts responsibihity worldwide—for its business,
its employees and society

Highly trained employees are a key success factor They
drnive forward the company on a daily basis through their hard
work and identification We have therefore developed a wide
range of activities to gain and develop talented and qualified
employees and to position Evonik as a preferred employer in
order to retain them

A decentralized corporate structure

To further improve our scope for profitable growth, we reor-
ganized our management and portfolio structure effective
January 1, 2015 The Executive Board now concentrates on
Evonik’s strategic development within a management holding
structure The three chemical manufacturing segments” are
run by newly estabhshed management compames and have

Segments Nutnition & Care

Resource Effictency

Performance Matenals Services

1 We define these as ranking 15, 2nd or 3rd in the refevant markets

2 Two segments were renamed and some activities were assigned to different segments The prior-year figures have been restated accordingly See Note §1
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3. Performance of Evonik Industries AG

4. Research & development

Combined management report for 2015

This management report s a combined management report for the Evonik Group and Evonik Industries AG
Given the influence of the segments, statements relating to the development of the segments in the Evorik Group
alsa apply for Evonik Industries AG The consolidated financial statements for the Evonik Group have been
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the financial statements of
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Evonik on the capital markets

Ammal Nutrition field tnp

A mghhght of our capital market commurication in 2015 was the Amimal Nutntion field trip on October 1
Nearly 40 international analysts and investors visited our production site in Antwerp (Belgium) The focus
was the Nutrition & Care segment’s Amimal Nutnition Business Line The Executive Board started by
outlining the company’s present corporate strategy and progress with its growth strategy As well as
giving analysts and investors extensive information on all aspects of the animal nutrition business, the
management then explained that market conditions remain attractive thanks to the nutrinon, globahization
and, above all, sustainability megatrends On the same day, Evonik announced plans to build a further
methionine plant in Singapore, which 1s scheduled to come on stream n 2019

Sound investment grade ratings and a successful bond issue

Evonik stll has sound investment grade ratings BBB+ (outlook stable) from Standard and Poor’s and Baa2

{outlook positive) from Moody's, so we have achieved one of the main goals of our financial strategy
In January 2015 Evonik Industries AG 1ssued a new €750 million bond with a tenor of eight years

The annual coupon of 1 0 percent 1s the lowest ever on a bond 1ssued by Evontk The bond 1s being used

to finance ongoing business and the investment program

Further increase in price targets Analysts’ ratings
The number of analysts that cover
Evonik increased further in 2015—

Sefl 2

from 22 to 23 Thirteen of them rated = '

the share as a buy, two as a sell,
and eight 1ssued neutral recommen-
dations Therr price targets ranged
from €29 to €42 The median was Hold 8

€38 In the previous year, the price B
targets were between €23 and €34
with a median of €30

Buy 13

Incluston in another sustainability index

Evonik ss included in well-known sustatnability stock indices In 2014 it garned a place in the FTSE4Good
Global and STOXX® Globa! ESG Leaders indices Since December 2015 we have also been included in the
Euronext Vigeo Eurozone 120 index

Investor Relations

For further information on our investor relations activities, visit our website at www.evonik.com/
investor-relations. The financial calendar on our website provides a convenient overview of
important dates The website also contains key facts and figures, especially financial and segment
data and details of the company’s structure and organization

This 1s supplemented by information on Evonik shares, the terms of bond 1ssues and an over-
view of our credit ratings Current presentations, analysts’ estimates and reports on our business
performance are also available

Contact: PHONE +49 201 177-3144 | investor-relations@evontk com

&9
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Dialogue with investors intensified
We extended gur intensive dialogue with the capital markets in 2015 The Executive Board and the
Investor Relations team outlined Evonik’s business and growth strategy in detail to equity and bond
investors at 17 roadshows and 17 conferences In addition, they discussed our business drivers and their
present development Most of the roadshows and conferences were held in Europe, for example in
London, Frankfurt, Amsterdam, Luxembourg, Pans, Dublin, Edinburgh, Oslo, Copenhagen, Zunch, Munich
and Milan The main financial centers in North America—New York, Boston, Chicago and Toronto—
were also visited

Alongside conventional capital market communication, we offer tnvestars the opportunity to particaipate
n freld trips to our production sites to garn an insight into cur products and how they are produced and
marketed Last year, the number of field trips was doubled to ten, compared with five i 2014, and
included trips to our sites in Shanghal, Singapore and Antwerp as well as several sites \n Germany, for
example Marl, Krefeld, Essen and Herne Overall, we registered around 700 contacts with investors
during the year

Evontk organized a field trip
to its Arimal Nutrition facilities
n Antwerp on October 1, 2015

CFO Ute Woif walking to
nvestors and analysts

The field trip gave international investors an insight
nto the Amimal Nutrition business
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Evonik on the capital markets

Performance of Evonik shares January 1 - December 31, 2015
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Higher free float Shareholder structure

Our biggest shareholder n fiscal 2075 was still RAG-
Stftung, which holds 67 9 percent of our capital stock
Our second largest shareholder—CVC Capital Partners—
sold four blocks of shares totaling around 14 8 percent of
the capital stock in 2015 At year-end, its shareholding
was therefore around 4 1 percent The free float as
defined by Deutsche Borse therefore rose to 321 per-
cent The regional distnibution of the free float showed RAG-Suftung 67 9%
that—alongside the UK—most shareholders were in the
USA, Asia and Germany

Free float 32 1%

Far higher trading volume

The average daily trading volume in our shares increased considerably thanks to the higher free float and
was around 648,000 shares (€20 9 million} in 2015, compared with 185,000 shares (€5 1 milhon) in 2014
Market capttahzation was €14 27 billion on December 30, 2015 At the end of 2015, Evonik ranked twelfth
in the MDAX on the basis of market capitalization weighted by free float and sixth on the basts of trading
volume, positioning it clearly in the upper section of the index

Considerable dividend increase for 2015
At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 18, 2016, the Executive Board and Superwvisory Board will
be propostng a dividend of €115 per share for 2015 That would be a nse of 15 percent from the previous
year's dividend of €1 00 per share

This increase continues our attractive dividend policy, which aims for dividend continutty and a payout
ratio of around 40 percent of adjusted net income At the same time, the high operating cash flow in
fiscal 2015 allows a considerable increase in the dividend without impairing the Group’s ambitious growth
targets Evonik has increased the dividend by an average of 9 percent per year over the past six years,
positioning 1t among the chermical companies that pay the highest dividends

67
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Evonik on the capital markets

* Pleasing share price performance in 2015
» Higher free float
+ Considerable dividend increase

Pleasing share price performance

Shares in Evonik started 2015 at €27 10 and the share price rose considerably in the early part of the year
to over €36 per share in mid-April The main reasons for this pleasing price performance were our strong
operating performance and rising earnings contributions from our growth investments and efficiency
enhancement programs On August 10, followng the second upward revision of our guidance for 2015,
our share price rose to an all-time high of €37 73 Amud mounting concern about China’s economic devel-
opment, which increased the volatibity of the financial markets, from mid-August Evonik’s share price lost
ground, along with the market as a whole Our shares recovered shghtly in the final weeks of 2015 and
closed at €30 62 on December 30, 2015 That was nearly 13 percent higher than at the start of the year
Excluding the dividend payment of €1 00 1n May, the increase was 16 percent Shares in Evonik therefore
performed far better than direct compentors in the chemical sector the D) STOXX 600 Chemicals®™ only
ganed 5 percent over the year The broader MDAX index rose by around 23 percent in the same period
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s s = 2 : At the Annual Shareholders”

———— . Meeung on May 19, 2015,

l ‘ Dr Klaus Engel, Chairman
of the Executive Board,

reported on the previous
fiscal year, and private and
institutional investors had
an opportunity for direct
distussion with members of
Evonik’s management

Key data Basic data on Evonik stock
Jom 1~ WKN EVNKO1
Dec 31,2015 ISIN DEQQUEVNKOD13
Highest share price® n€ 3773 Ticker symbol EVK
Lowest share price’ n € 26 30 Reuters (Xetra trading) EVKn DE
Average price* in€ 3225 Bloomberg (Xetra trading) EVK GY
Closing price® on December 31, 2015 m€ 3062 Trading segments Regulated market (Prime Standard),
No of shares 466,000,000 Frankfurt am Mam
Market capnalization® Indices MDAX, MSCI World,
D) STOXX® Europe 600,
on December 31, 2015 m € billion 1427 Euranext Vigeo Eurozone 120,
Average dasly trading volyme* FTSE4Good Global,
{Na of shares) - 548,000 STOXX* Global ESG Leaders

* Xetra trading
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In view of this, the Supervisory Board has set a target of at least 20 percent female members of the
Executive Board to be achieved by June 30, 2017 That would maintain the present status quo as no new
appointments are expected to be made before then

Further, the Executive Board of Evonik Industries AG has a target of 8 0 percent female managers at
the first management level below the Executive Board and 18 8 percent wemen at the second management
level Both targets are to be met by December 31, 2076 In each case, the targets correspond to the present
status quo and take account of succession planning for these two management levels in the penod up to
the deadline

3. Shareholders and the Shareholders’ Meeting

The shareholders exercise their rights at the Shareholders’ Meeting The Shareholders” Meeting elects
the auditor and the shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board and resolves on the ratification
of the actions of members of the Executive Board and Superwisory Board, the distnibution of the profit,
capital transactions and amendments to the Articles of Incorporation The shares are registered shares
Shareholders who are entered in the register of shareholders are eligible to attend the Shareholders’
Meeting and exercise their voting rights, providing they register in good time to attend the meeting The
shareholders may exercise their voting nights at the Shareholders’ Meeting in person, through a proxy of
their choice or through a proxy appointed by the company Each share entitles the holder to one vote

4. Information on accounting and auditing of the financial statements

Evonik Industnies AG prepares its annuai finanoial statements in accordance with the German Commercial
Code (HGB) and the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) The consolidated financial statements are
prepared on the bas:s of the International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS), as adopted for use in the
EU [n addition, the applicable statutory provisions of Section 315a Paragraph 1 of the German Commeraial
Code (HGB) are taken into account

As proposed by the Superwisory Board, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 19, 2015 elected
PricewaterhauseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft (PwC), Dusseldorf, as
auditor for the annual finanoial statements of Evonik Industries AG and the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Evonik Group and the combined management report for fiscal 2015 The Superwsory Board
previously ascertained the independence of the auditor The auditors that sign the audit of the annual
financial statements of Evonik Industries AG and the consolidated financial statements of the Evonik
Group are Mr Lutz Granderath {since fiscal 2012) and Ms Antje Schlotter (since fiscal 2014) In addition
to the accounting, the audit covered the systemn to identify emerging risks and the accounting-refated
internal control system Further, PwC conducted a review of the interim financial statements for the first
half of 2015 This was also based on the resolution adopted on May 39, 2015

5. Risk management and internal control system (I1CS)

Risk management in the Evonik Group, tncluding the ICS relating to the accounting process, 15 described
in the opportunity and nisk report, which forms part of the management report Details can be found
on page 113

6. Remuneration

The principles of the remuneration system and the remuneration of the members of the Executive Board
and the Superwisory Board are outhined in the remuneration report, which forms part of the management
report Details can be found on page 125
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The Nomination Committee comprises three Supervisory Board members elected as representatives of
the shareholders The task of the Nomination Committee 1s to prepare a proposal for the Supervisory Board
on the candidates to be nominated to the Sharehotders’ Meeting for election 10 the Supervisory Board

Finally, there 15 3 Mediation Committee established in accordance with Section 27 Paragraph 3 of the
German Codetermination Act 1976 This mandatory cornmittee 1s composed of the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman of the Supervisory Board, one shareholder representative and one employee representative
This commuttee puts forward propaosals to the Supervisary Board on the appointment of members of the
Executive Board if the necessary two-thirds majority of the Supervisory Board members is not achieved
in the first vote

It 15 only convened when necessary All other commuttees meet regularly and may also hold additional
meetings on specific 1ssues in line with their responsibilities as set out in the Rules of Procedure for the
Supervisory Board

Further detaifs of the work of the Supervisory Board and its committees in the past fiscal year can be
found in the report of the Supervisory Board on page 48 The repart of the Supervisory Board also out-
lines the composition of the various committees and the meetings attended by members the Supervisory
Board For details of the composition of the Supervisory Board and membership of other supervisory and
governance bodies see pages 214 and 215

The Superwvisory Board regularly examines the efficiency of its work Further details can be found in
the report of the Supervisory Board on page 53

Directors’ Dealings
Under Section 15a Paragraph 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), members of the Executive
Board and Supervisory Board and related parhies (including spouses, registered same-sex partners and
dependent ctuldren) are required to aotfy Evonik Industries AG and the Federal Financial Supervisary
Authonty (BaFin) of any transactions in shares in Evenik Industries AG or related financial instruments,
if the total value of such transactions by a member of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board or a related
party 15 €5,000 or above 1n a calendar year The transactions notified are disclosed on the website of
Evonik Industries AG

Total holdings of shares in Evenik Industnies AG and related financial instruments by members of the
Executive Board and Supervisory Board on the reporting date amounted to less than 1 percent of the
issved shares

2.4 Information on statutory diversity requirements

The German law on equal participation of women and men in management positions in the private and
public sectors came into force on May 1, 2015 The regulations are additional to the diversity requirements
set forth in the German Corporate Governance Code, which Evonik has satished uwp 1o now The new
requirements have been considered by the relevant bodies at Evonik at various levels and the necessary
resolutions have been adopted

Stnce Evonik Industries AG 1s a publicly histed company and 15 therefore also subject to German co-
determination lequslatian, 1ts Supervisory Board 15 required to meet a fixed gender ratio, which 1s applicable
for new appointments from January 1, 2016 The regulation specifies that the Supervisory Board should
comprise at least 30 percent women and at least 30 percent men As of December 31, 2015, four members
of the Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG were women, two representing the shareholders and
two representing the workforce Thus, on the reporting date 20 percent of Supervisory Board members
were women

Evonik will take the new statutary regulations into account for new appotntments from January 1, 2016
in order to meet the requirements in hight of this, the Supervisory Board has revised the targets for its
composition in accordance with Section 5 4 1 Paragraph 2 of the German Corporate Governance Code to
take account of this aspect of diversity (see also the section headed “Superwisory Board” above)

Further, the legislation on equal participation of women and men 1n management positions in the
private and public sectors requires that targets be set for the percentage of women on the Executve Board
and at the two management levels below the Executive Board, together with deadlines for achieving
them The first deadhne for achteving these targets must be no fater than june 30, 2077
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These targets were last revised in September 2015 The present composition of the Supervisory Board
satisfies these objectives, apart from the fact that it currently compnises 20 percent women and conse-
quently does not yet meet the statutory requirement of 30 percent women specified for future elections
and appointments (see section 2 4 below) The Supervisory Board and its Nomination Commuittee will
continue to monitor observance of these targets in the future

In the past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board had the following committees

The Executive Commuttee comprises the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, s deputy and four
further members 1t undertakes the regular business of the Supervisory Board and advises the Executive
Board on fundamental issues relating to the ongoing strategic development of the company Insofar as s
permitted by law, it takes decisions in place of the full Supervisory Board on matters which cannot be
deferred unui the necessary resolution 1s passed by the full Supervisory Board without detnimental effects
for the company It also takes deaisions on the use of authonized capital It prepares meetings of the Super-
wisory Board and, in particular, personnel decisions and resolutions on the remuneration of the Executive
Board, including the man contractual elements and the overall remuneration of individual members of the
Executive Board It is also responsible for concluding, amending and terminating employment contracts
with the members of the Executive Board, where this does not involve altering or setting remuneration,
and represents the company In other transactions of a legal nature with present and former members of
the Executive Board and certan related parties

The Audit Committee has six members The members of the Audit Committee should have specialist
knowledge and experience in the application of accounting standards and internal control systems The
Supervisory Board has appointed the Chairman of the Audit Committee as an independent financial
expert in accordance with Section 100 Paragraph 5 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) He also
meets the more extensive requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code Acting on behalf of
the Supervisory Board, the Audit Committee’s principal tasks compnse supervising the accounting process,
the efficacy of the internal control system, the risk management system and the internal audit system, the
auditing of the financial statements, especially the independence of the auditor, any additional services
provided by the auditor, compliance and the related decisions It prepares the Supervisory Board's proposal
to the Shareholders’ Meeting on the choice of auditor, and takes decisions on the appointment of the
auditor, the focal points of the audit and the agreement on audit fees Further, it authonzes the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board to 1ssue the contract to the auditor

The Audit Committee prepares the decision of the Supervisary Board on approval of the annual
financial statements of Evonik Industries AG and the consclidated financial statements fer the Group For
this purpose, 1t I1s required to conduct a preliminary examination of the annual financial statements of
Evonik Industries AG, the consolidated financial statements for the Group, the management report for the
Group and the Executive Board's proposal for the distnibution of the profit The auditor of the financial
statements must attend these meetings of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews the interim reports, especially the half-yearly report, discusses the audit
review report with the auditor—if an auditor 1s engaged to conduct a review—and decides whether to
raise any objections Further, it exarmines issues relating to corporate governance and reports to the Super-
visory Board at least once a year on the status, effectiveness and scope to implement any improvements
to corporate governance, and on new requirements and new developments in this field

The Finance and Investment Committee has eight members Its work covers aspects of corporate
finance and investment planning For example, it takes decisions on behalf of the Supervisory Board
involving approval for the estabhshment, acquisiion and divestrnent of businesses, capital measures at
other Group companies and real estate transactions with a value of more than €25 million and up to
€50 million If the value of such measures or transactions exceeds the above limit, 1t prepares for a
resolution by the Supervisory Board The Finance and Investment Committee also takes deaisions on the
assumption of guarantees and sureties for credits exceeding €50 midlion and on investments in companies
of more than €100 million
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The Supesrwsory Board should not include more than two former members of the Executive Board
A former member of the Executive Board has been elected to the Supervisory Board His term of office
an the Executive Board ended more than two 'years before the date of hus election to the Supervisary
Board All members of the Supervisory Board shall ensure that they have sufficient ime to perform ther
tasks as a member of the Supervisory Board Members of the Supervisory Board who are also members
of the Executive Board of a publicly histed stock corporation should not hold more than three seats on
the Supervisory Boards of listed companies outside their group of companies or Supervisory Boards of
companies where comparable demands are made on them

Members of the Supervisory Board must act in the interests of the company and not pursue personal
interests (n their decisions, nor may they utilize business opportunities available to the company for
themselves Members must disclose conflicts of interest to the Supervisory Board Any member of the
Supervisory Board who discloses a conflict of interest 1s excluded from resclutions at the meetings
of the Supervisory Board dealing with matters relating to the conflict of interest in its report to the
Shareholders” Meeting the Supervisory Board discloses any conflicts of interest that have arisen and how
they have been dealt with Matenal confhicts of interest relating to a member of the Supervisory Board
that are not by nature temporasy should lead to termnation of his/her term of office

Consultancy, service and similar contracts between a member of the Supervisory Board and the
company must be approved by the Superwisory Board There were no contracts of this type in 2015, nor
were there any conflicts of interest relating to members of the Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG
The Supervisery Board has adopted Rutles of Procedure, which also govern the formation and tasks of the
committees At least two meetings of the Supervisory Board are held in each calendar half-year In addition,
meetings may be convened as required and the Supervisory Board may adopt resolutions outside meetings
If an equal number of votes 15 cast when taking a decision, and a second vote does not alter this situation,
the Chairman of the Supervisory Board has the casting vote

The Supervisory Board has set objectives for its composition, which are taken into account in the proposals

put to the Shareholders’ Meeting with regard to the regular election of members of the Supervisory Board

and the subsequent election of a member of the Supervisory Board

- Atleast two members should have sound knowledge and experience of regions which are of matenal
importance for the Evonik Group’s business, either through their background or through professional
expertence gained in an international context

+ At least two members should have special knowledge and experience of business administration and
of finance/ accounting or auditing

+ At least two members of the Supervisory Board should have speciahst knowledge and expernience of
the area of specialty chemicals

- Atleast two members should have experience of manaqing er supervising a major company

- The Supervisory Board should compnise at least 30 percent women and at least 30 percent men

+ The members of the Supervisory Board should not hold consulting or governance pasitrons with
customers, supphers, creditors or other business partners that could lead to a conflict of interests
Dewtations from this rule are permitted in legitimate individual cases

+  Members of the Supervisory Board should not normally be over 70 when they are elected

+  Members of the Supervisory Board should not normally hold office for more than three full terms
within the meaning of Section 102, Paragraph 1 of the German Stock Corporation Act {AktG), 1e
normally 15 years It 1s possible to devrate from this rule, in particular in the case of a member of the
Supervisory Board who directly or indirectly helds at least 25 percent of the company’s shares or
belongs to the governance body of a shareholder that directly or indirectly holds at least 25 percent of
the company’s shares

At least five members of the Supervisory Board should be independent within the meaning of
Section 5 4 2 of the German Corporate Governance Code

1

1 Applicable for new elections and the appoiniment of substitute members for one ar more members of the Supervisery Board
fram January 1, 2016
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Further, the Executive Board submits timely reports to the Supervisory Board on business matters
and actions for which it 1s required by the Articles of Incorporation or the Supervisory Board's Rules of
Procedure to obtain the approval of the Supervisory Board, including the annual budget for the Group
In addition, the Supervisory Board can make further business activities and measures dependent on its
consent on a case-by-case basis

Members of the Executive Board are required to act in the interests of the company They may not
pursue personal interests in their decistons, nor may they utlize business opportumties available to the
company for themselves

The members of the Executive Board are subject to a comprehensive non-compete obligation duning
their term of office They may only assume additional posts, espeaially seats on the supervisory boards of
companies that are not affiliated companies of Evonik Industries AG, with the consent of the Supervisory
Board Where such posts are assumed with the consent of the Supervisory Board, the Executive Board
member shall accept the post as a personal office and shall ensure strict confidentiality and strict separation
from his/her activities as a member of the company’s Executive Board Every member of the Executive
Board 1s required to disclose any conflict of interests to the Chawrman of the Supervisory Board without
delay and to inform the other members of the Executive Board

In fiscal 2015 there were no conflicts of interest relating to members of the Executive Board of
Evoruk Industries AG

All transactions between the company or companies in the Evonik Group on the one hand and Executive
Board members and related parties on the other must take place on terms that are customary n the sector
No such transactions tock place in the reporting penod

The composition of the Executive Board and membership of supervisory boards and similar governance
bodies are outlined on page 216

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board advises and supervises the Executive Board It appoints the members of the

Executive Board and names one member as the Chairperson of the Executive Beard It also decides on the

remuneration of the members of the Executive Board The Executive Board 15 required to obtain the

approval of the Supervisory Board on decisions of fundamental importance, which are defined i a separate

hst These include

+ fundamental changes to the structure of the company and the Group

- setung the annual budget for the Group

+ investments exceeding €25 milhon

« the assumption of loans and the issuance of bonds exceeding €300 milhion with a maturity of more
than one year

The Supervisory Board examines the company’s annual financial statements, the Executive Board's proposal
for the distribution of the profit, the consolhdated financial statements for the Group and the combined
management report The Supervisory Board submits a written report on the outcome of the audit to the
Shareholders’ Meeting

The Superwisery Board 15 subject to the German Codetermination Act (MitbestG) 1976 In accordance
with these statutory provisions, the Supervisory Board comprises twenty members, ten representatives of
the shareholders and ten representatives of the workforce The representatives of the shareholders are
elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting on the basis of nominations put forward by the Supervisory Board
as prepared by the Nomination Commitiee The representatives of the employees are elected by the
workforce and comprise seven employee representatives and three representatives of the industrial umion

The composition of the Supervisory Board should ensure that overall its members have the knowledge,
ability and professional expenience required to perform their duties The members of the Supervisory
Board may not undertake any duties as officers or advisors to the company’s major competttors
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Evonik’s business performance 1s outlined principally in our quarterly reports, annual report and investar
relations presentations These are supplemented by information on Evonik’s shares, the terms of bond
1ssues and an overview of our credit ratings

Mandatory pubhcauons such as ad-hoc announcements, voting nghts announcements and information
on directors’ dealings are also published immediately on our Investor Relations site ?

The offering also mcludes information on corporate strateqy, and Evonik’s corporate structure and
organization

In addition, the Investor Relations site prowides information on Evonik’s approach to corporate respon-
sibility, and how the management and superviston of the company {corporate governance) are aligned to
responsible and sustained value creation

2.3 Work of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

The German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) forms the legal basis for the incorporation of Evonik Industries AG
Further details are set forth in the company‘s Articles of Incorporation and the provisions of the German
Corparate Governance Code (see section 2 1 above)

Executive Board
The Executive Board of Evomik Industries AG 1s responsible for running the company in the company’s
interests with a view to sustained value creation, taking into account the interests of the shareholders,
employees and other stakeholders It works together trustfully with the other corporate governance bodies
for the good of the company

The Executive Board defines and updates the company’s business objectives, its basic strategic
focus, bustness policy and corporate structure It 1s responsible for complying with statutory provisions
and ternal directives, and exerts its influence to ensure that they are observed by Group companies
(comphance) Its tasks also include ensuring appropniate nsk management and risk controling within the
company

When making appointments to management functions in the company, the Executive Board applies
the principles of diversity In this it stiives, in particular, to ensure adequate representation of women

The Executive Board currently has five members One member 15 appointed to chair the Executive
Board With the approval of the Superwvisary Board, the Executive Board has adopted Rulas of Procedure
and a plan allocating areas of responsibiity The Chairman coordinates the work of the Executive Board,
provides information for the Supervisory Board and mantains regular contact with the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board The members of the Executive Board are jointly responsible for the overall
management of the company They work together constructively and keep each other informed of the
main activies and developments in their areas of responsibility The Executive Board endeavors to take
decisions unammously, but may also adopt reselutions by majority vote If an equal number of votes i1s
cast, the Chairman has the casting vote

Ensuring that the Supervisory Board receves sufficient information 1s the joint responsibility of the
Executive Board and Supervisory Board The Executive Board provides the Supervisory Board with the
reports to be prepared in accordance with Section 90 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and
the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Board It gives the Supervisory Board tumely, regular and full
information on all matters that are relevant to the company and Group relating to strategy, planning,
business development, risks, risk management and compliance It outlines deviations between the planned
and actuat business perfarmance and targets and the reasons therefor

b www evonik com/investor-relations, News & Reports, Share and Bonds & Raungs For details of the shareholder structure
see "Evonik on the capital markets” on p 67 of thes annual report

2 www evonik com finvestor-relatigns, News & Reports/Ad-hoc annauncements, Share/Voung rights, and
Corporate Governance/Directors’ Dealings

3 www evonik comfinvestor-relations, Sustainable Investments (SRJ) and Corporate Governance
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Corporate Responsibility

Compames that strive for lasting success on the market need social acceptance as well as reliable
and responsible corporate governance Together with Evomik’s Code of Conduct, the Global Soazl
Policy {GSP) and our Environment, Safety and Health (ESH} Values contribute to responsible corporate
management *

In1ts Globat Social Policy, Evonik cuthnes its principles of social responsibility for its employees and
requtres them to comply with recognized international standards of conduct such as the International
Labor Standards of the International Labour Organisation (ILQO) and the Guidelines for Multunational
Enterprises 1ssued by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Devetopment (OECD) Evonik does
not tolerate any conduct that violates the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises The govern-
ments of the OECD member states and other countries have signed these as a guide to multinational
enterprises on how to meet their obligation to ensure responsible corporate conduct The Global Social
Policy states that the company's success and reputation are based fundamentally on the professionalism
and commitment of all employees

By joining the United Nations’ Global Compact (UN Global Compact), Evonik also gave an undertaking
that, within its sphere of influence, 1t would respect and promote labor nights and human nghts, avoid
discnmination, protect people and the environment and fight against corruption

As a signatory to the chemical industry’s Responsible Care Globat Charter, we have also given an
undertaking that we will continuously strive to improve our performance in health protection, safety,
environmental protection and product stewardship Evonik has signed the Code of Responsible Conduct
for Business, which sets measurable standards that have to be firmly anchored in participating companies
These include fair competition, social partnership, the ment principle and sustainabihty We also expect
our supphers to share these principles and accept their respensibihty with regard to their own employees
and business partners, society and the environment This s set out in our Supplier Code of Conduct

Further, as a responsible company we have given a commitment to report regularly on our chimate
performance as part of the world's largest climate iniiative, the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) This
covers internal organizational processes and accountability, as well as transparent and challenging targets

Evonik’s sustainability management complies with the prowvisions of the German Sustainability Code

The man documents containing the guidelines on cenduct (n the Evonik Group can be found on the
following internet sites
+  Code of Conduct www evonik com fcoc
+ Supplier Code of Conduct www evonik com/responsibility
-+ ESH Values www evonik com/esh
+  Global Social Policy www evonik com/gsp
- Code of Responsible Conduct for Business
www wege org/download /140918 _leitbiid-eng_Unterschriften_o pdf
+ Responsible Care www 1cca-chem org/en/Home/Responsible-care/
+  Sustainability Report www evonik com/responsibility

Transparency
Evonik regards timely and equal public disclosure of information as a key basis of good corporate
governance The lnvestor Relations section of the company’s website provides extensive information in
German and English

This includes our financial calendar, which provides a convenient overview of important dates '

1 www evonik com/investar-relations
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The role of the House of Comphance is to define rumimum Group-wide standards for the complance
management systems for these areas and ensure that they are implemented The process of forming
a consensus, sharing expenience and coordinating joint activities takes place in the Compliance Committee,
which 15 composed of the heads of the respective units, who have independent responsibility for their
areas, and the Head of Corporate Audit The Comphance Committee 15 chared by the Head of Comphance
and Antitrust L.aw

House of Compliance

Supervisory Board

Executive Board

Compliance Committee
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Comphance Management System

The compliance management system to be implemented by each area of comphance on the basis of the
defined values and specific targets has to implement the tools shown in the next chart Measures must be
put in place to avoid compliance risks and systematic misconduct, identfy cases of misconduct, apply
appropriate sanctions, and correct process weaknesses

Compliance Management System (CMS)

Responsibility of Management

Values and Objectives

Prevention Detection Response =

L

+ Risk analysis Investigations » Corrective measures 5
+ Policies & standards Whistiebiower system + Sanctions E
« Processes Monitoring Er audits + Lessons learnt %
» Traiming - Reporting §
¢ Awareness raising/communication E
+ Advice & support 3

Compliance Organization

Further nformation on Evonik's comphiance management system and the corresponding areas of focus
and achion taken in the year under review can be found in the Sustarnability Report '

1 Sustainabidity Report 2074 (the Sustanability Report 2015 will be published 1n May 2016)
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Further, nearly all suggestions contained in the aforementioned two versions of the German Corporate
Governance Code were applied, with the following exceptions

The suggestion set forth in Section 2 3 3 of.the German Corporate Governance Code (the company
should make it possible to follow the general meeting using modern communication media) was not
and will not be applied Instead, for orgamizational reasons, only the speeches by the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and the Chairman of the Executive Board will be transmitted This procedure also
correlates with widespread practice Moreover, 1t cannot be excluded that a more extensive transmission
could infringe the personal nghts of shareholders, which are to be protected

Further, Section 2 3 2 Sentence 2, second half-sentence of the German Corporate Governance Code
{the representative appointed to exercise shareholders’ voting rights in accordance with instructions
should also be reachable during the general meeting) was not and will not be applied Application of this
suggestion would only be appropnate in the event of transmission of the general shareholders’ meeting
in full via modern communication media Furthermore, the availability of the representatives nominated by
the company wia electronic media durning the meeting as put forward by this suggestion involves technical
uncertainties These and the assoaated risks for the efficacy of resolutions are to be avoided

Essen, December 2015

The Executive Board The Superwisory Board

2.2 Relevant information on corporate management practices

Corporate governance
The company complies with the recommendations and—with two exceptions—the suggestions set forth
in the German Corporate Governance Code (detalled in section 21 above)

Comphance

Evonik understands compliance as all actwities to ensure that the conduct of the company, 1ts governance
bodies and its employees respect all applicable mandatory standards such as legal provisions, statutory
requirements and prohibitions, In-house directives and voluntary undertakings The basis for this under-
standing and for comphiance with these binding standards 1s set out in Evonik’s Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct

Evonik's binding Group-wide Code of Conduct contains the most important corporate values and
principles and governs the conduct of Evonik, its leqgal representatives and its employees both internally,
in the treatment of one another, and externally in the treatment of the company’s shareholders and
business partners, representatives of authornties and government bodies, and the general public It requires
all employees to comply with the applicable laws, regulations and other obligations They are also required
to observe ethical standards All employees receive training in the Cade of Conduct and systematic action
15 taken to deal with any breach of its rules The Code of Conduct fosters a culture that ensures clear
responsibility, mutual trust and respect, dependability and lawfulness

House of Compliance

The comphance areas identified as being of specific relevance to our company are bundled in a House of
Compliance Following a refocusing, this stll includes the traditional comphiance 1ssues antitrust law,
foreign trade law, fighting corruption, data protection and—as a publicly listed company—capital market
comphance Enviranment, safety, health and quality are bundled in a separate corporate diviston

[
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Joint report of the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG
on Corporate Governance

(Corporate Governance Report)

1. Principles of corporate governance and corporate structure

Corporate governance comprises all principles for the management and supervision of a company As an
expression of good and responsible corporate management, 1t 1s therefore a key element in Evonik’s
management philosophy The principles of corporate governance relate mainly to collaboration within
the Executive Board and Supervisory Board, between these two boards and between the boards and
the shareholders, especially at Shareholders” Meetings They also relate to the company’s relatronship
with other people and erganizations with which it has business dealings

Evonik is committed to the German Corporate Governance Code
Evonik Industries is a stock corporation established under German law Its shares have been histed on the
stock exchange since April 25, 2013

Alongside compliance with the prowisions of the relevant legislation, the basis for ensuring responsible
management and supervision of Evonik with a view 10 a sustained increase In corporate value 15 our
commitment to the German Corporate Governance Code, both in the version dated June 24, 2014, and the
revised version of May 5, 2015 This code, which was adopted by the Government Commission on the
German Corporate Governance Code, contains both key statutory prowisions on the management and
supervision of pubhely listed German companies and recommendations and suggestions based on nationally
and internationally recognized standards of responsible corporate governance

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG are explicitly committed to
responsible corporate governance and identify with the goals of the German Corporate Governance Code
According to the foreword, In the interest of good and proactive corporate governance, a company may
deviate from the recommendations set out in the code if this 1s necessary to reflect enterprise-specific
requirernents

2. Information on corporate management and corporate governance

2.1 Declaration of conformity with the German
Corporate Governance Code pursuant to Section 161
of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

Under Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the Executive Board and Supervisory
Board of Evoruk industries AG are required to annually submit a declaration that the company has
been, and 15, 1n compliance with the recommendations of the Government Commission on the German
Corporate Governance Code and which recommendations have not been or are not being applied,
together with the associated reasons The declaration has to be made permanently available to the public
on the company’s website

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Evonik tndustries AG hereby submit the following
declaration pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act

Since submitting uts last declaration of conformuty tn March 2015, the company has fully complied with
all recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code 1n the versions dated June 24, 2014 and
May 5, 2015, as published in the Federal Gazette on September 30, 2014 and June 12, 2015, respectively,
and will continue ta do so
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Report of the Supervisary Board

The Supervisory Board discussed the report on relations with affiliated companies at its meeting on
March 2, 2016 At this meeting too, the members of the Executive Board provided detailed explanations
of the report on relations with affihated companies and answered questions on it Moreover, the auditor
was present at this meeting of the Superwvisory Board and reported on the main findings of the audit
of the report on relations with affiliated companies and answered questions from members of the Super-
wisory Board On this basis, the Supervisory Board ascertained that under the circumstances known at the
time they were undertaken, the company’s expenditures in connection with the transactions outhned in
the report on relatrons with affiliated companies were not unreasonably high and compensation had been
received for any disadvantages In particular, it abtained an explanation of the principles used to determine
the relevant actvities and the remuneration therefor, especially in the case of transactions of material
significance The Audit Committee had discussed the report on relatnons with affiliated companies and
gave the Superwisory Board a detailed overview of the outcome of 1ts deliberanons The Supervisory
Board was able to convince itself of the orderly nature of the audit and audit report and came to the
conclusion, in particular, that both the audit report and the audit itself meet the statutory requirements

In particular, 1t examined the compieteness and correctness of the report on relations with affiliated
companies No grounds for objection were identified

The Supervisory Board thus has no cbjection to raise to the final declaration made by the Executive
Board in 1ts report on relations with affiliated companies and concurs with the auditor’s findings

Personnel issues relating to the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

At 1ts meeting on June 25, 2015, the Superwvisory Board first agreed to the early termination of the contract
with Patnik Wohlhauser as a member of the Executive Board and his resignation as of June 30, 2015 The
Supervisory Board then appomted Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann as a member of the Executive Board for three
years from July 1, 2015 At its meeting in Septemnber, the Supervisory Board reappointed Thomas Wessel
to the Executive Board as Chief Human Resources Officer for a further five years from September 1, 2016
unbf August 31, 2021

There were some changes in the employee representatives on the Supervisory Board in 2015 Jdrgen
Noding resigned from the Supervisory Board with effect from September 30, 2015 Martin Albers was
appointed to the Supervisory Board effective October 1, 2015 through a deaision taken by the District Court
of Essen on October 2, 2015 in accordance with Section 104 of the German Stack Corporation Act (AktG)
Ganter Adam resigned from the Supervisory Board effective December 10, 2015 He was succeeded by
Carmen Fuchs, who was elected to the Supervisory Board as a substitute member 1n accordance with the
provisions of the German Codetermination Act (MitbestG} of 1976

The Superwisory Board would like to thank those members who have left for therr dedicated commit-
ment to the good of the company and i1ts workforce over the years

Concluding remark

The Supervisory Board would also like to thank the Executive Board, Works Counals and Executive Staff
Counals, and all employees of Evonik Industries AG and its affiliated companies, for their successful work
over the past year

The Supervisory Board adopted this report at its meeting on March 2, 2016, in accordance with
Section 171 Paragraph 2 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

Essen, March 2, 2016

W N s

On behalf of the Supervisory Board
Dr Werner Miiller, Chairman
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The Supervisory Board conducted a thorough examination of the annual financial statements of Evonik
Industries AG, the consohdated financial statements for the Evonik Group, the combined management
report for fiscal 2015 and the Executive Board's proposal for the distribution of the profit and—on the
basis of explanatians of these documents by the Executive Board—discussed them at its meeting on
March 2, 2016 The auditor was also present at this meeting and reported on the main findings of the
audit He also answered questions from the Supervisory Board about the type and extent of the audit and
the audit findings The discussion included the audit of the nisk identfication system The Supervisory
Board shares the Audit Committee’s assessment of the effectiveness of this system

In this way, the Supervisory Board convinced tself that the audit had been conducted properly by the
audrtor and that both the audit and the audit reports comply with the statutory requirements Following
us thorough examunation of the annual financial statements of Evonik Industiies AG, the consolidated
annual financial statements and the combined management report (including the declaration on corporate
governance), the Supervisory Board declares that, based on the outcome of its examination, it has no
objections to raise to the annual financial statements of Evonik Industries AG, the consolidated annual
financial statements and the combined management report In line with the recommendation made
by the Audit Commuttee, the Supervisory Board has therefore accepted the audit findings At 1ts meeting
on March 2, 2016, the Supervisory Board therefore endorsed the annual financial statements of
Evonik Industries AG and the consolidated annual financial statements The annual financial statements
for 2015 are thus ratified The Supervisory Board concurs with the Executive Board’s assessment of the
situation of the company and the Group as expressed in the combined management report The Super-
visory Board considered the Executive Board's proposal for the distnbution of the profit, in particular with
a view to the dividend policy, the impact on liquidity and its regard for shareholders’ interests Thus also
tncluded an explanation by the Executive Board and a discussion with the auditor The Supervisory Board
then voted in favor of the proposal put forward by the Executive Board for the distribution of the profit

Examination of the report by the Executive Board on relations
with affiliated companies

The Executive Board has prepared a report on relations with affiliated companies in 2015 This was
examined by the auditor, who 1ssued the following unqualified opinion in accordance with Section 313 of
the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

"In accordance with our professional audit and judgment we confirm that

1 the factual disclosures made in this report are correct

2 the company’s expenditures in connection with the legal transactions contained in the report were not
unreasonably high *

The Executive Board submitted the report on relations with affiliated companies and the associated
auditor’s report to all members of the Supervisory Board to enable them to prepare for the Superwisory
Board meeting on March 2, 2016

The Audit Committee conducted a thorough exammation of these documents at its meeting on
February 26, 2016 to prepare for the examination and resolution by the full Superwisory Board The mem-
bers of the Executive Board provided detailed explanations of the report on relations to affihated compantes
and answered questions on it The auditor, who was present at this meeting, reported on the marn findings
of the audit of the report on relations with affilated companies and answered questions raised by members
of the Audit Comrmttee The members of the Audit Commuttee acknowledged the audit repert and the
audit opinion The Audit Committee was able to convince itself of the orderly nature of the audit and audit
report and, in particular, came to the conclusion that both the audit report and the audit conducted by the
auditor comply wath the statutory requirements The Audit Committee recommended that the Supervisory
Board should approve the results of the audit and, since 1t was of the opinton that there were no objections
to the Executive Board’s declaration on the report on relations with affiliated companies, should adopt
a corresponding resolutron
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Report of the Supervisory Board

As an additional objective for its compasition, Evonik’s Supervisory Board has set a regular hmit on
membership of no more than three full terms of office to satisfy the new requirements set out in the tatest
version of the German Corporate Governance Code

With the exception of the quotas for men and women to be observed n future appointments, the
present composition of the Supervisory Board meets all of the major objectives set for its composition

Further detalls of the diversity requirements and the list of objectives are set out in the corporate
governance report on pages 64 and 65

For 2015, the members of the Supervisory Board will receive attendance fees and purely fixed remu-
neration for their work on the Supervisory Board and any membership of committees (see page 133)

Members of the Supervisory Board of Evomik Industries AG had no confhicts of interest in 2015

Moreover, there were no consultancy, service or simifar contracts with any members of the company’s
Superwvisory Board 1n 2015 Furthermore, there were no transactions between the company or a company
in the Evonik Group on the one hand and Supervisory Board members and related parties on the other

In 2014 the Supervisory Board examined the efficiency of its work with the support of an externat
consultant The measures adopted as a result of this review were either implemented in 2015 or adopted
as an ongoing process All of the measures implemented will increase the efficiency of the Supervisory
Board and thus bring a further improvernent in corporate governance at Evonik

Audit of the annual financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers Akuengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft (PwC), Disseldorf (Germany)
has audited the financial statements of Evonik Industries AG as of December 31, 2015 prepared in accor-
dance with the German Commeraial Code (HGB), the consolidated financial statements for the Evonik
Group prepared using the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as permitted by Sectron 315a
Paragraph 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB), and the combined management report for Evonik
Industries AG and the Evonik Group, and has endorsed them with an unqualified opinton pursuant
to Section 322 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) The Supervisory Board awarded the contract
for the audit of the annual financral statements of Evonik Industries AG and the consclidated financial
statements of the Evanik Group in line with the resolution taken by the Shareholders’ Meeting on May 19,
2015 In accordance with Section 317 Paragraph 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the annual
audit includes an audit of the nisk identification system The audit established that the Executive Board has
taken the steps required 1n compliance with Section 91 Paragraph 2 of the German Stock Corporation Act
(AktG) to establish an appropriate risk identification system and that this system 1s suitable for timely
identification of developments that could represent a threat to the continued existence of the company

The Executive Board submitted the above documents, together with the auditor’s reports and the
Executive Board's proposal for the distribution of the profit to all members of the Supervisory Board to
prepare for the meeting of the Supervisory Board on March 2, 2016 Atits meeting on February 26, 2016
the Audit Committee discussed the annual financial statements, auditor’s reports and proposal for the
distribution of the profit in the presence of the auditor to prepare for the subsequent examination and
discussion of these documents by the full meeting of the Superwisory Board Further, the Audit Committee
requested the auditor to report on its collaboration with the snternal audit department and other units
involved 1n risk management, and on the effectiveness of the nisk idenufication systern The audstor
reported that the Executive Board had taken the steps required in compliance with Section 91 Paragraph 2
of the German Stock Corporation Act {(AktG) to establish an appropriate risk tdentification system and that
this system 1s suitable to ensure timely dentficatien of developments that could represent a threat to the
continued existence of the company
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Individual disclosure of the attendance at meetings of the Supervisory Board and its committees

Finance &
Supervisory Executive Investment Audrt Nomination Mediation
Board Committes Committee Committee Committee Committes
Supernisory Board member Presence n% | Presence n% | Presence 1n9% | Presence % | Presence in % | Presence n %
Dr Werner Miller (Charrman) 5/5 | 100 8/8 | 100 4/4 [ 100 1/1 {100 ofo
Machae} Vassihadis {Deputy Chairman) 5/5 ) 100 8/8 ] 100 4f4 100 o/0
Ginter Adam {until December 10, 2015} 4/5] 80 7/8 1875 4/4 | 100
Martin Albers {from October 1, 2015) 1/1 | 100
Pref Barbara Albert 5/5 1100
Kanin Erhard 5/5 | 100 4/4 | 100
Carmen Fuchs (from December 10, 2015) 0/0
Stephan Gemkow 5/5 | 100 4/a | 100
Prof Barbara Grunewald 5/5 [ 100 474 1100
Ralf Hermann 5/5 1100 8/8 | 100 3/4| 75 0/0
Prof Wolfgang A Herrmann 5/5[ 100
Dieter Kleren 5/5 | 100
Steven Koltes a/5 | 80 7/8 |875 1/1 {100
Frank Léligen 5/5 {100 3/a| 75
Dr Siegfried Luther 5/5 | 100 4/4 | 100
Jirgen Noding (until September 30, 2015) 4/4 100 3/3 100
Norbert Pohlmann 5/5 {100 1/1 1100
Dr Wilfried Robers 5/5 1100 4/4 | 100
Muichael Radiger §/5 1100 4/4 [ 100
Ulrich Terbrack 5/5 {100
Dr Volker Trautz 5/5 1100 8/8 | 100 o/ 0 0/0
Dr Chnstian Wildmoser 5/5 {100 4/4 [ 100 4/4 1100

Corporate governance

The Supecwisocy Board s commutted to the principles of good corporate gavernance Thus 15 based
principally on recognition of the provisions of the German Corporate Governance Code, both in the
version dated June 24, 2014 and in the present version of May 5, 2015 This does not exclude the possibility
of deviation from 1ts recommendations and suggestions 1n legiimate individual cases

Since 1t 15 hsted on the stock exchange, Evanik is subject to the obligation contained in Section 161 of
the German Stock Corporation Act {AKtG) to submit a declaration of the extent to which 1t has complied
with or will comply with the German Corporate Governance Code and which recommendations have not
been and will not be met, together with the reasons for this (declaraton of conformty) The Executwe
Board and Supervisory Board 1ssued declarations of conformity in March and December 2015 These are
available on the company’s website In addition, the corporate governance report on page 56 f contains
the most recent declaration of conformity from December 2015

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board examined the requirements imposed by the German
legislation on equal participation of women and men 1n ma2nagement positons in the private and
public sectors In accordance with thus, the list of objectives for the composition of the Supervisory Board
was amended to state that n the future appowntments to the Supervisory Board should ensure at least
30 percent women and at least 30 percent men, this requirement 1s applicable for new appomtments from
fanuary 1, 2016 Further, the Supervisory Board defined a target of at least 20 percent female members of
the Executive Board for the period up to June 30, 2017
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Report of the Supsnisory Board

- Concentration of Evonik Industries AG from this date as a management holding company on the
strategic management and ongoing development of the legal entihies

This intreduced the principle of differentiated management Consequently, the Nutrition & Care and
Resource Efficiency segments now have an even stronger focus on growth, while the Performance
Matenals segment is run as a financing business

Investment and investment controlling

Alongside this, the Supervisory Board and its committees kept a close eye on Evonik’s growth course
At our meetings we discussed the development of Evonik’s sales, earnings and capacity utiization, the
financial and earnings posttion and the main growth projects, including investment controlling for current
projects The projects considered in detald by the Supervisory Board and the Finance and Investment
Committee included

Preliminary planning for the construction of a further methionine plant (Singapore)

Ongoing construction work on an integrated production complex for oleochemical specialty

surfactants (Brazil}

Ongoing construction of a lysine plant {Brazil)

Extension of capacity for palyamide 12 powder {Germany)

Extension of production of high-molecular polyester (Germany)

Acquisition of Monarch Catalyst Pvt Lid {India)

Jornt venture for the constructron of a production facility for potassium hydroxide solution and

chlorine (Germany)
« Construction of a production facility for acrolein cyanhydnn-o-acetate (ISA)

Divestments

During the year the Supervisory Board and the Finance and Investment Commuttee also closely examined

divestment projects, including the fallowing

« Dwestment of the remaining 10 3 percent stake held by Evonik Industries AG in the real estate
company Vivawest GmbH to RAG Aktiengesellschaft, Herne (Germany)

Other 1ssues addressed by the Supervisory Board and its committees

In addition to the 1ssues and developments cutlined above, the main topics addressed by the Supervisory

Board and its commuttees in 2015 were

- Proposals for resclutions to be adopted at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in May 2015, especially
the proposal of the Supervisory Board to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on the appointment of the
auditor

+ Rewision of the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Board

- Appointment of Dr Ralph Sven Kaufmann as a member of the Executive Board and renewal of the
appointment of Thomas Wessel as a member of the Executive Board (see “Personnel issues relating to
the Executive Board and Superwisory Board” on page 55)

+ Resolutions on the Declarations of Conformity in comphance with Section 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG) in March and December 2015, and the Supervisory Board's report to the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting

n
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At its meeting in December, the Supervisory Board discussed the Declaraton of Conformity in comphiance
with Sectton 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the budget for 2016, the mid-term
planning for the period to 2018, and progress in implementing the measures adopted following the
efficiency review

In the reporting penod, the main issues discussed by the Executive Committee were the bonuses for
the Executive Board members for 2014 and their objectives for 2015, adjustment of the remuneration of
the Executive Board effective January 1, 2016, systematic succession planning for the Executive Board,
preparabon of 2 proposal on implementauon of the recommendations made by the efficiency review,
the change of Chief Operating Officer on the Executive Board, acceptance and discussion of a report by
the Chairman of the Executive Board on acquisition considerations, determination of the targets for the
proportion of women on the Supervisory Board and Executive Board, and the bustness situation, current
projects and Evonik’s share price .

At its meeting in March, the Audit Committee examined the annual finanaal statements of
Evonik industries AG, the consolidated financial statements, and the proposal for the election of the
auditor for fiscal 2015 The focus at its meeting i May was the intenm report on the first guarter, while
in July the meettng focused on the interim report on the first six months In October, the central 1ssues
discussed by the Audit Committee, apart from the interim report on the third quarter, were corporate
governance and the compliance update

The attention of the Finance and Investment Committee in the reporting period was mainly concentrated
on growth projects and investment controlling (see page 51 “Investment and investment controlling”)

In January, the Nomination Commuttee discussed the tmplications of the legislation on equal participation
of women and men 1in management positions in the private and pubhc sectors for both groups of repre-
sentatives on the Supervisory Board

In addition—apart from the reports required by law—the Superwisory Board and its committees
exarmined and discussed the followng 1ssues in detail

Performance and situation of the Evonik Group

The Evonik Group posted a very successful business performance despite the challenging macro-economic
environment Althcugh global growth was lower than expected, the Group posted a pleasing volume
trend, supported by the new production capacities There was a particularly strong nse in selling prices in
the Nutnition & Care segment, whereas prices in the Performance Matenals segment declined, manly
because of the drop in the oil price Overall, sething prices were on the previous year’s level Sales increased
to €13 5 billion 1n 2015 and adjusted EBITDA improved considerably to €2 47 billion

Implementation of the new management and portfolio structure

The Supervisory Board discussed in detail the reorganization of the management and portfolio structure
of the Evonik Group, which started in 2014 and was completed in 2015 The principal objective of the
reorgamzation—to take account of the different management needs of the businesses and bring a further
improvement In the structural basis for their profitable growth—was achieved in the reporting penod
through the followsng steps
- Estabishment of new legal entities and transfer of management responsibibity to the future managing
directors of these companies with effect from the start of 2015
Assumption of the operating business by these new companies through plant management agreements
and the associated transfers of undertaking pursuant to Section 613a of the German Civil Code (BGB)
effective July 1, 2015




& TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS MANAGEMENT REPORT CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Report of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board was always consulted at an early stage on decisions of any significance The
Superwisory Board’s oversight of the Executive Board centered in particular on ensuring the correct,
orderly, expedient and cost-effective management of Group-wide business activities The content and
scope of reporting by the Executive Board complied with the law, the principles of good corporate
governance and the requirements set by the Supervisory Board

Section 16 of the Articles of Incorporation of Evonmik Industries AG and the Rules of Procedure of the
Supervisory Board set out business activittes and measures of fundamental impartance on which the
Executive Board 1s required to seek the approval of the Supervisory Board or, In some cases, individual
commuttees In the past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board took decisians an business activities and measures
submitted by the Executive Board after examining them and discussing them with the Executive Board

Meetings and work of the Supervisory Board

We examined all 1ssues of importance to the company at five meetings, on March 2, May 19, june 25,
September 24 and December 10, 2015 In addition, the Supervisory Board adopted one resolution via
a written airculation procedure

In 2015 the work of the Supervisory Board was again prepared and supported by its committees

The committees and their members in the year under review were as follows

- Executive Committee Dr Werner Muller (Chairman), Michael Vassiiadis (Deputy Chairman),
Gunter Adam (until December 10, 2015), Ralf Hermann, Steven Koltes and Dr Volker Trautz

+ Audit Committee Dr Siegfried Luther (Chairman and independent financial expert within the meaning
of Section 100 Paragraph $ German Stock Corporation Act/AktG), Karin Echard {Deputy Chairwoman),

. Prof Barbara Grunewald, Jurgen Noding {until September 30, 2015), Norbert Pohtmann (from Octo-

ber 1, 2015}, Dr Wilfried Robers and Dr Chnstian Wildmoser

- Finance and Investment Committee Michael Rudiger (Chairman), Michael Vassiiadis (Deputy
Charrman), Gunter Adam {until December 10, 2015), Martin Albers (from December 11, 2015),
Stephan Gemkow, Ralf Hermann, Frank Lollgen, Dr Werner Miiller and Dr Christian Wildmoser

- Nomination Committee Dr Werner Muller (Chairman), Steven Koltes and Dr Volker Trautz

+ Mediation Committee Dr Werner Muller (Chairman), Michae! Vassihadis (Deputy Chairman),
Ralf Hermann and Dr Volker Trautz

The tasks allocated to these committees are descnbed in detail in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 63 and 64

The Executive Committee held eight meetings in 2015 The Audit Committee and the Finance and
Investment Committee each held four meetings In addition, the Finance and Investment Committee adopted
one resolution via a written circulation procedure The Normmation Cornmittee met once (n the reporting
peniod There was no need for the Mediation Committee to meet during the reporting period The chatrman
or deputy chairperson of each committee reported regularly at the meetings of the Supervisory Board on
the issues discussed and decisions taken at committee meetings The Supervisory Board therefore always
had extensive and well-founded information on all matters of significance in the Evomik Group

At its meeting in March, the Supervisory Board focused on examining the annual financial state-
ments, which had first been considered in detail by the Audit Commuttee, and on preparing for the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting It also resolved on measures resulting from an efficiency review conducted with
external support in 2014 The meeting in May was dedicated to supplementary information prior to the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting In June, the focus of the meeting was the resignation from the Executive
Board of Patrick Wohlhauser, formerly Chief Operating Officer, and the appointment of Dr Ralph Sven
Kaufmann as his successor At the meeting in September, the Supervisory Board discussed the strategy of
the Evonik Group, the extension of the term of office of Thomas Wessel as Chief Human Resources Officer,
targets for female members of the Supervisory Board and Executive Board, revision of the objectives for
the composition of the Supervisory Board in accordance with Section 5 4 1 Paragraph 2 of the German
Corporate Governance Code, and the new version of the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Board
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Or Werner Maller, Chairman of the Supervisory Board

_£A M A WH(,IM!M |

In 2015, the Supervisory Board of Evonik Industries AG (Evonik) performed the obligations defined by
law and the Articles of Incorporation correctly and with the utmost care, and regularly and conscientiously
supervised the work of the Executive Board We supported the Executive Board by providing adwice on
the management and strateqic development of the company

Collaboration between the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

The Executive Board always gave us full and timely information on all material issues affecting the Group,
and involved us 1n all fundamental decisions relating to the company Key areas were business performance
and the situation of the company, along with aspects of business policy, corporate planning and Evonik's
ongotng strategic development

In addition 1o reporting at meetings of the Supervisory Board, the Executive Board kept us informed
orally and in wnuing of current business developments and actvitres of particular significance for Evonik
The Charrman of the Superwisory Board was kept informed of all major business events
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Our strategy is based on profitable growth, efficiency
and values. We are strengthening our leading market
positions and concentrating on attractive growth
businesses and emerging markets. Innovations and
external growth give us access to new growth areas.
We are also continuously improving our cost base
and technology position.
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Specialty products from Evonik
are also helping against undesir-
able adhesiveness of a different
kind: graffiti. A special surface
coating protects facades against
spray attacks, repelling spray
paint and markers so they can be
easily removed. Although subject
to the full force of the weather
and repeated cleaning, the coat-

ing lasts for several years.

J
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We not only supply the components
for high-performance coatings, we
also know precisely what they have to

do and under which conditions

JURGEN LOROSCH
Head of the Paints & Coatings Industry Team
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CLEAR SAILING

ON THE HIGH SEAS

Because anti-fouling protection makes shipping more
efficent and sustanable, fleet gpecrators and ship
builders are looking for effective protective paints.
Evomik 1s making today's paint recipes especrally
effective and 15 also working on the coatings of
tomorrow

Measuning 400 meters tn length and beasting more than
80,000 hp, the largest container ships that currently ply
the world’s oceans often have up to 19,000 contatners
on board, representing almost 200,000 tons of freight
However, a tenacious enemy of these grants of the seass
microscopically small

In a process called fouling, these tiny microorganisms and
algae create a shmy orgamc film on alt ships’ hulls that are
in the water long enocugh, ne matter whether the vessel
15 a luxury yacht or a deep-sea freighter Once this *soft
growth” has made stself at home on the hull, 1t1s fellowed
somewhat later by mussels, barnacles, and other types

of “hard growth " These “stowaways” not anly increase
the ship’s weight but also promote the corrosion of the
hull, thus necessitating frequent maintenance work in dry
docks Fouling particularly increases flow resistance, be-
cause only clean and smooth hulls glide optimally through
the water

This has a huge impact on the energy efficiency of ship-
ping and thus on its costs and carbon footprint That's be-
cause a strongly fouled container ship can consume up to
40 percent more fuel than a clean one With consumption
figures measured in hundreds of tons of bunker oIl per
day, this 1s a considerable amount, and it 1s also the main
reason why fleet operators and ship builders use effective
anti-fouling products These products consist of ship

paint that keeps fouling at bay for as long as possible

The ancient Romans were already familiar with the most
important anti-fouling agents against manne pests

metals such as lead and copper that prevent the organisms
from attaching themselves to the hull That's why the
paints used on ships today contain copper compounds
The typically red color that adorns the hulls of merchant
ships 1s caused by copper oxide in the paint By contrast,
the paints used for recreationa! craft mostly contain cop-
per thiocyanate, which 1s white but much more expensive
than copper oxide

Every large merchant ship s painted with hundreds of
tons of coating to protect it against the elements and
corrosive cargo Almost all of the coatings—whether for
the deck or the ballast water tanks—contan products
from Evonik, which improve the coatings’ resistance to
the rough condittons aboard a ship in additon, Evomk
products in the formulations of the anti-fouling paints
ensure that extremely tiny layers continuously peel off to
uncover new copper underneath This keeps hulis clean
langer so that fewer stays are needed in dry dock It also
ensures that the same effect s achieved with less copper,
which i1s beneficial from both an environmental and an
economic point of view

Moreover, Evontk works together with paint manufac-
turers and research nstitutes to create new formulations
and new ant-fouling systems The aim 15 to create paints
that are especially effective and sustainable For example,
paints might not need any copper i the future, as they
will create surfaces that mechanically prevent organisms
from attaching themselves to the hult in a kind of lotus
effect for the giants of the seas The tiny stowaways
would then ne longer pose any threat to the iewiathans
of the high seas




OUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:
There are special paints to

prevent barnacles growing on
the hulls of container ships.
H's a pity that such paints
dou’'t exist for whales as well.
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THE SMARTPHONE GENERATION'S
THE BIOLOGY TEACHER'S THINKING
THINKING: Cool Can you get whale songs
Oh, a Megaptera novaeanghae as a ring tone?




medications that can be injected directly beneath the skin
or into the affected tissue There, custonuzed micropar-

ticles then continuously release the active ingredient in Bioresorbable pelymers from Evonik have

a targeted way before they themselves are disintegrated proven their worth for years—in the form of

and absorbed by the body in a natural process surgical screws, for example. The screws do
not need to be removed, which cuts costs and

These depot medications in particular harbor tremendous the risks posed by an additional operation.

potential Evontk s cooperating with major customers Moreover, they can be filled with active ingre-

from the pharmaceutical industry and also with creative dients that support healing where it's needed.

startups to develop formulations for the treatment of

diseases such as cancer and multiple sclerosis, as well

as acute injunies, rare diseases such as solar urticana,
which 1s a severe form of solar allergy, and psychological
disorders such as depression and schizophremia

Evonik 1s providing important and comprehensive sup-
port, especially i its cooperation with creative startups
that are developing new types of treatment From the
initial 1dea to the development of a prototype, creatton of
the patterns for clinical studies, and manufacture of the
final product, Evomk supports the development process
and the steps leading toward commercial production In
this way 1t ensures that an active ingredient actually gets
to the places where 1t's needed

Forms of drug administration that
intervene n physiological processes
through precise dosing make new types
of treatment possible. We are helping

our customers to implement them.

THOMAS RIERMEIER
Head of Evenik Pharma Polymers & Services Product Line
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NUTRITION & CARE

HELPING

WHERE IT COUNTS

Dosing active ingredients precisely and purposefully 1s
an artn itself. It's an art that Evonik has mastered by
means of polymers for the pharmaceutical industry—
and one that could generate innovative treatments
against numerous illnesses

Today people are growing older than ever before

Whthin four generations, life expectancy has more than
doubled all over the world In the period since 1990, chid
mortality has been cut in half This 1s pnmanly thanks to
the successful struggle against infectigus diseases Today
med:cine is focusing all the more on noninfectious and
chronic diseases, which have long been responsible for
the great majority of deaths—espeaially in developing
countries and emerging economies Diabetes, cancer,
cardiovascular disease, and diseases of the respiratory
tract are four of the most important fields of medical and
pharmaceutical research

Active ingredients that can precisely mtervene in the
body’s internal processes even in tiny doses are regard-
ed as espevially promising But researchers are also
increasingly locking for the optimal way to administer
them Especially in the case of active ingredients with

complex molecules, itis very difficult to ensure that they
will be available inside the body in a targeted way as
continuously as possible It)s difficult to administer some
active ingredients in tablet form, either because they
disintegrate in the digestve tract or cannot be absorbed
through the intestinal wall Other active ingredients need
to do their work locally, for example in a joint, a certain
tissue or an organ, continuously for several weeks or
months That requires frequent injections As 3 result, the
concentration of the active ingredient in the tissue peaks
at first, but then gradually decreases In addition, every
injection increases the patient’s risk of infection, not

to mention the unpleasant direct effects an the patient

One solution that involves oral as well as parenteral dos-
age 1s offered by pharmaceutical polymers from Evonik
Industnes They make it possible to release orally admin-
istered active ingredients at the night time and place in
the gastrointestinal tract and to transport them from there
into the bloodstream continuousty in precise doses This
has made 1t possible to administer some active ingredients

in tablet form for the first time ever Others can now

be taken once a day rather than at regular intervals over
24 hours Biologically absorbable polymers from Evonik
now make 1t possible to formulate parenteral depot




OUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:
Gelting aveal injection is seldom
this much fun. Fertunately,

we'll soon be able to avoid them
more and more often.
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THE LITTLE GIRL'S THINKING
When I grow up, [ want to be
a doctor too! Or a pop star!

)

THE DOCTOR’S THINKING
I'm glad no brown bears are
showing up at my office’




As a post-application crosslinking agent, VISIOMER®

6976 is also suited for other resin systems such as paints
and coatings. Such paints are easy to apply before the
crosslinking takes place. The natural vitraviolet light
from the sun gradually causes the paints to harden

and thus become more resistant to external influences,
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STRONG
BONDS

Special additives from Evonik Industries ensure that
adhesive tape and labels stick extremely reliably
wherever it really matters. And they do that even
when they are taken off and stuck back on

Adhesives have to stay coo! even when the going gets
tough That also apphes fully to adhesive tape, no matter
whether it’s used in sports or at home However, the ugly
brown spots that can be found on many bathroom tiles
tell another story Whereas adhesive strips that have just
come off the roll seem to hold no matter what, the towel
hooks they support eventually fall off the bathroom wall
and only the adhesive itself remains permanently attached
to the tiles The adhesive was weakened by external
influences such as temperature fluctuations, cleaning
agents, and ultraviolet hght This is an area where Evonik
can demonstrate its skill As a result of post-application
UV crosshnking, one of the company’s additives, VISIO-
MER” 6976, can greatly increase a tape’s adhesive force
In endurance testng, it stuck 400 times better than a
non-crosshnked adhesive

A typical property of the adhesive used in adhesive tape
15 1ts permanent stickiness This distinguishes it from
many types of adhesive, which don’t become hard and
adhesive until they dry or undergo a chemical reaction
This permanent stickiness makes it possible to attach tape
to almost any surface Butit’s precisely this versatility that
makes the use of tape demanding because it inuts the
tape’s adhesive strength As a result, 1t’s not just adhesive
strips on hockey sticks and labels for frozen products

that have to stay sticky at low temperatures and not
become bnittle Stickers on hazardous materials also have
to adhere reliably for a long ime and when subjected to
extensive wear and tear Removable labels have to stick
well but not leave any residue when they are taken off

This 1s where the special methacrylate VISIOMER”
6976 from the Performance Materials Segment comes
into play When an adhesive contamning this substance
15 exposed to ultraviolet hight, the adhesive becomes
crossinked The UV-active monomer VISIOMER®
6976 helps the individual palymers in the adheswve to
link up with one another and thus increase the adhesive
strength What's more, this process increases the ad-
hesive's chemical stability, insensitivity to temperature
fluctuations, and resistance to moisture By changing
the dose, 1t's possible to customize the type and duratton
of the UV influence and thus also the crosslinking to the
respective application

Another benefit of adhesive tape containing VISIOMER®
6976 1s that no solvents are needed to make them This,
0 turn, reduces the environmental impact and increases
the manufacturers’ productivity Typical areas of apph-
cation for such adhesive tape include electronic systems
and the industreal assembly of components The special
methacrylate 1s also well suited for everyday applications,
particularly those that require strong bonds under unfa-
vorable condiions—ice hockey being 2 good example

k6 The incorporation of our UV-active monomer
VISIOMER® 6976 increases not only a glue’s

adhesiveness but also its resistance to many

external influences such as moisture,

temperature fluctuations, and chernicals.

DR SABINE KOMMELT
Techmical Manager Applied Technology
Acrylic Monomers Business Line




OUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:

...as ever, tobody notices
the self-adliesive strip o the
hockey stick, which defies
the icy cold without losing its
adhesive properties.
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MOTHER'S THINKING:
Don’t hurt yourself, my boy!

FATHER'S THINKING
Put 1t in the net, son!




Many companies in the food and packaging industries
have already expressed interest in the newly developed
VISPARENT® product, despite the fact thatit's still being
examined by the authorities for approval The market
here harbors great potential—for example, demand for
such packaging is very high in Europe, the USA, and
Japan Evonik s already working with leading manufac-
turers on the development of formulations that can offer
the right solution for each type of packaging That's be-
cause regardless of whether it's transparent fouls, plastic
containers, or bottle caps—the new oxygen absorber
can basically be used with all types of packaging This will
give 1t a unique standing on the market and very hkely
ensure that it will make its way into a large number of
supermarkets

Additive concentrates from Evonik keep cheese,
meat, and other foods fresh for a longer period
of time. Drinks in PET bottles and milk also last
longer—and bottle caps with oxygen absorbers
on the inside extend the shelf life of beer and
other beverages as well,




n RESQURCE EFFICIENCY

APPETITE
FOR MORE

Foods and beverages stay fresh with the help of
protective “active packaging” on the inside of the
normal packages This helps reduce the amount of
food that’s thrown away. Scientists at Evornik develop
the key raw matenals for this “active packaging.”

Foods that lock tasty and fresh and are attractively pack-
aged as well—modern supermarkets have a huge amount
of products on offer, and this someumes causes shoppers
to buy more than they can consume over a given period
The problem here 1s that the food products don’t last
forever Atsome point, sausages will go bad even in the
refrigerator, where yoghurt can also turn sour and cheese
moldy A lot of food therefore ends up in the garbage
Germany’s Ministry of Food and Agriculture reports that
every German throws away around 82 kilograms of

food each year on average, although 64 percent of this
amount really doesn’t have to go to waste

One third of all the food produced is thrown away,
according to the United Nations. Our innovative
solutions for the food industry can help ensure

that resources are used more efficiently.

DR STEFAN NORDHOFF
Vice President Active Packagang,
Strategy & New Growth Business, Resource Efficiency Segment

Food products such as meats, sausages, milk and dairy
products, and beverages react very sensitively to oxygen,
traces of which remain even in shrink-wrapped packages
This oxygen triggers an oxidation process that accelerates
the growth of microorgamsms that cause fresh foods to
start tasting and smelling bad—and also lose their vitarnin
content In other words, the food spoils

A new trend has therefore developed that involves the
use of “active packaging” in which 2 chemical absorber

1s integrated into the packaging matenial, where 1t bonds
with the remaining oxygen Scientists from Evonik de-
velop such additive-based concentrates, which not only
absorb oxygen but also ensure that transparent packaging
foils remain transparent This 1s important, because most
oxygen absorbers on the market change their color to an
unpleasant-looking yellow as they protect food products




QUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:

Beer will also stay fresh longer
once those new oxygen-ahsorbing
bottle caps make it to the market.




30

THE YOUNG MAN’S THINKING
A cool party—I wish I could
be there right now

THE MARRIED COUPLE’'S THINKING
Remember when we were
young? Those were the days




For decades, butadiene has been
an important raw matertal in the
tire, paper, and plastic industries
The demand for synthetic rubber
will boost growth

DR GERHARD HIMMEL

Vice President Marketing & Sales,
Rubber £ Plastics Marketing Area,
Performance Intermediates Business Line

9

Evonik praducts can be found not only in
mattresses but also in upholstery cushions
and insulation foams. A variety of foams for

industry are made especially robust, fine-

pored, and evenly textured through the use
of additives from Evonik.

to make room for rubber tree plantations Evonik offers

a more economical raw material for latex production
butadiene This chemical 1s used to produce synthetic
latex, which 1s cheaper and, by contrast to natural [atex,
does not become brittle when it 1s exposed to ultraviolet
radiation And because butadiene 1s a byproduct of the
processing of crude oil, tts use 1s practical and sustainable

Most mattress producers use a combination of natural
and synthetec latex, in a ratio of up to 40 percent natural
with the remainder synthetic latex Butadiene makes
about 40 percent of synthetic latex, but there are also
production processes that use an even higher proportion
of butadiene

For many peaple, latex mattresses are a good choice
They are especially appreciated by people who are aller-
gic to house dust mites Latex mattresses have an antibac-
terial coating and are therefore more hygienic and easier
to keep clean There’s practically no opportunity for dust
mites to settle in When st comes to comfortable sleep,
latex mattresses generally also get excellent marks They
feel pleasantly warm and efficiently filter off moisture
People who are tall and heavy or suffer from backaches
appreciate the high degree of point elasticity, which
results in greater comfort Who wouldn’t be tempted to
stay in bed just a little longes?




PERFORMANCE MATERIALS

BETTER
BEDDING

More affordable, more ergonemic, and even more
sustainable—latex mattresses based on Evonik
products promise more comfortable sleep even for
demanding sleepers They also apply a chemical by-
product useful and efficiently.

We spend about a third of our lives in bed That's already
reason enough to select matenials carefully when you're
buying a mattress After all, the wrong choice can cause
countless problems If you're allergic to house dust, you'll

suffer from irntation of the eyes and the respiratory tract,
if you're sensitive to cold, you’ll shiver throughout the
winter, and if you have back problems, you'll be kept
awake by pamn or wake up with stiff muscles And if you're
overweight, you'll tend to sink into your mattress instead
of relaxing on top of it A latex mattress can help you
avod all of these problems

However, natural latex 15 expensive, and some of the
regions where latex-producing rubber trees are grown
are under criticism because rain forests are being logged




OUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:

Someone’s had a good night’s sleep! Latex
maltresses are not only rohust but also
ideally suited for many different kinds of
sleepers—even people with allergies.
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THE STUDENT'S THINKING.
How can a person be so
awakeat 730 am ?!

THE GRANDMOTHER’'S THINKING
Now you can see what [ used
to go through!




L We supply a package solution

consisting of product and service.
That’s the only way our customers,
and ultimately therr amumals, can

optimally utilize the feed

STEFAN MACK
Head of the Methionine & Derivatives Product Line

Evonik employees provide on-site consultation in

120 countnes—wherever raw materials for animal feed
grow and meat s produced Together with their custom-
ers, they look at the actuval nutrient content of ammal
feed, the animals’ requirements, current feed prices on
the world market, and recently also the environmental
footprint, 1n order to determine how to mx the optimal
amimal feed in terms of nutnitional biology, cost-effective-
ness, and environmental friendliness

The addrtion of between a few hundred grams and a few
kilograms of methiomine, lysine, threonine or tryptaphan
per ton of feed makes a cruaial difference That's why
the dosage should be extremely precise so that valuable
nutrients are not wasted once again Here too, Evontkis
aleader when it comes to customer service For example,
it provides dosing systems for its customers’ mixing
operations to make sure the feed always contains exactly
the nutrients the animals need
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NUTRITION & CARE

IT'S ALL IN
THE MIX

Adding correctly dosed ammno acids from Evonik to
animal feed makes meat production more efficient
and more environmentally friendly But the Group's
animal feed experts are delivering far more than
these valuable nutrients in themselves.

In agncuttural meat production, everything revolves
around livestack and animal feed Animal feed accounts
for between 60 and 70 percent of the tota! cost of meat
production, and it also accounts for most of its environ-
mental footprint For example, the cultivation of pro-
ten-rich fodder plants such as soybeans requires vast
amounts of arable land, while other protetn sources such
as fish meal are accelerating overfishing in the oceans

If aimals are not optimally metabolizing their feed, much
of 1t 1s excreted without being used The additional animal
waste pollutes water sources, among other things, and 1t
also wastes environmental as well as economic resources
Today farmers and feed producers are responding to this
challenge by adjusting the nutrients in their ammal feed to
precisely meet the needs of particular animal species

Essential ammo acids are an important aspect of thrs
effort Amino acids are among the basic building blocks of
all ving things Human beings and arumals need to take
in amino acids through the food they consume However,

amino acids are optrmally metabohzed only if they are
consumed in the nght mixing ratio In order to constantly
guarantee the correct mixing ratio for every ammal spe-
cies and every fodder plant in spite of natural fluctuations,
expert knowledge is required

Evonik Industries therefore supplies not only the four
most important amine acids for ammal feed but also com-
plete systems for their targeted dosing To accomplish
this, the Group also employs its own ammal feed spe-
cialists and carries out cooperative research with around
three dozen universities and research institutes all over
the world The objective of this research is to find out
what pigs, chickens, dasry cows, fish, and shrimps each
require in order to thrive After all, every animal species,
every farming method, and every new breed has
different requirements

In arder to apply this knowledge in practice, Evonik
supports all wholesale producers of mixed amimal feed,
for example through special analyses, consultation, and
dostng systems For example, on behalf of its customers
Evonik 1s using near-infrared spectroscopy (NIR) to
regularly check the actval nutrient content of well over
100 different raw matenals for ammal feed that are sold
all over the world Hundreds of thousands of such
analyses are integrated into Evonik's advisory service

Whether it's Pekin ducks, brood carp or shrimps, Evonik

knows the optimal amino acid profile for almost every animai

species and has a number of specialized products in its port-

folic. Dairy cows, for example benefit from Mepron®, a methi-

onine product that was developed especially for the digestive

tract of these ruminants. It moves through the cow’s rumen

without decompaosing and thus can be utilized especially well.




QUR CUSTOMER’'S THINKING:
Worldwide meat consumption is
still increasing. We urgently

need to do something to make meat
production more friendly to
climete and the environment.
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THE MANAGER'S THINKING-
Wihen I was a lutle

boy, I dreamed of being

a cowboy too

THE STUDENT'S THINKING
That's weud Why s
this making me think of
a cigarette ad?
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choice for the production of biodiesel from used cooking
ails That's because such oils contain a high share of
free fatty acids that form a soap residue, which makes the
manufacturing process more difficult However, the use of
potassium methylate leads to the formation of potassium
soaps, which are easier to manage The production pro-
cess with potassium methylate 1s therefore more robust,
yields are higher, and the quality of the resulting
brodiesel 1s better

Evonik supplies its high-perfor-
mance alkoxides to numerous
growth markets. The products
are utilized in the pharma-
ceutical industry, for example,
in order to synthesize active
ingredients. They can also be
found in health care products
such as Omega-3 and
Omega-6 fish ail capsules.

Potassium methylate might actually be on the verge of

a spectacular career, as a study has shown that many

other types of waste materials could be used to produce
biofuels If all such waste in the European Union were to
be converted into biofuels, the resulting volume would
cover around 16 percent of the entire fuel requirement in
the EU by 2030 This would also make it possible to lower
fossil fuel consumption by up to 37 million tons per year—
which would be a real treat for the environment as well

Fil
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PERFORMANCE MATERIALS

i As a world market leader, we contribute

to the conservation of resources with

our alkoxides.

HENRIK HELLMANNS

Head of the Alkoxides Product Line

FROM DEEP-FRYING FAT

TO BIODIESEL

Alkoxides act as catalysts that help to convert natural
oils and fats into biodiesel. Evonik’s specialty products
make i1t possible to use highly sustainable raw materi-
als more extensively

They're greasy and not very healthy, really—but hardly
anyone can resist a portion of cnspy French fries What
many peeple don’t know is that the deep-frying fat
they're made in can be reused in a productive way How-
ever, this fact might soon become common knowledge,
because such grease is a perfect raw matenal for the
large-scale production of environmentally and climate-
friendly brofuels for automobiles Biodiesel made from
old cooking oils and other waste products produces

80 percent lower emissions of the greenhouse gas carbon
dioxide than does diesel from fossil sources Moreover,
the supply of old cooking oils seemns virtually inexhaust-
ible For example, Germany’s restaurants alone produce
around 200,000 tons of used grease per year and private
househalds offer stmilar potential

Although most biofuels today are based on renewable
raw matenials such as rapeseed or soybean, the use of
waste-based biodiesel has expanded rapidly over the last

few years For example, the share of biodiesel raw mate-
rials accounted for by used cooking oils and other waste
has nearly doubled since 2011

The European Union is also supporting the use of biofuels
made from waste products because, unlike raw materials
that are espeaially cultivated for fuel apphcations, such
products do not take up fields that could otherwise be
used to grow food crops Moreover, the recyclability

of such waste products means their use can significantly
reduce greenhouse gas emissions The unportance of
waste-based biofuels continues to grow even in Brazil
and the USA, both of which produce large amounts

of soybean

Companies around the world that produce biodiesel
use alkoxides from Evomk Industries Here, sodium
methylate and potassium methylate serve as catalysts
for the transesterification of vegetable oils and arimal
fats that 1s needed to produce biodiesel

Sodium methylate 15 the most extensively used catalyst
worldwide and has been successfully supporting the
preduction of biodieset from renewable raw materials for
many years now Potassium methylate is the catalyst of




OUR CUSTOMER’S THINKING:
..we'lltake the used greuse for

the French fries to inake biodiesel—
that’s good for the environmnent
and there’s no need to grow extra
canola.
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THE GIRLFRIEND'S THINKING
Always eating fries and still
so shm—how does she do 1t?!

k-
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THE CAR LOVER’'S THINKING:
No eating i my car!




Hair care is a business that also involves
emotions. We enable our customers
to fulfill very individual needs in terms

of hair care and beauty.

DR WOLFGANG GOERTZ

Global Business Director

Specialues & Business Director EMEA
Personal Care Business Line

Brazl, Singapore, and China in order to develop new
and more precise solutions, such as special formulations,
that meet local customers’ specific needs

In addition to the famihar hair needs, new consumer de-
mands must also be taken into account For example, the
latest products also protect the hair from ultraviolet ra-
diatton and other external influences, thanks to additives
from Evonik This feature is increasingly demanded by
customers in China’s megacities and elsewhere There's
also a global trend toward natural raw matenals, as
well as concerns about specific ingredients that are under
scrutiny even if the reasons are not always scientifically
justified Brazihian people love natural extracts, while
many people of the Asian population are buying more
and more silicone-free preducts and peaple from France
tend to choose products without parabens Evontk
follows a clear strategy in achieving sustainable targets
and creating solutions for our customers

Natural raw materials in hair and

body care products are very popular.
Consumers are increasingly making
sure the products they buy are sustain-
ably produced. Accordingly, Evonik
has some of the production plants for

cosmetics ingredients certified—

for example, according to the standard
of the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm
Oil (RSPO).

7
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NUTRITION & CARE

BEAUTIFUL

HAIR TRESSES

Hair should be not only squeaky-clean but also well
groomed and, if necessary, conditioned. Modern in-
gredients in shampoos and conditioners make dreams
come true. And in the growing markets all over the
world, these dreams vary widely

Smooth, frizzy, thick, thin, red, blond, gray—there’s a
wide range of hair types and harr care requirements Daily
care s only a small part of the picture—after all, everyone
wants to have attractive hair Far men as well as women,
hair and hairstyles reflect an important aspect of their
individual style, or even their whole personality This s
not a quirk of contemporary fashion Since time imme-
monal, hair has been an expression of individual status
and style, health and attractiveness, cultural ¢ustoms and
religious dictates

Depending on an individual’s culture, region, ethnic
group, hair type, and preferred fashion, he or she wll
require different effects, products, and markenng strat-
egies That's why in some countries the reqiona! brands
of hair care products have a 50 percent share of the mar-
ket—a strong showing compared to the global brands
Local companies’ product developers respond more flexi-
bly and precisely 1o the wishes of their reqional custom-
ers Asaresult, every year about 10,000 new hair care
products are launched in markets all over the world

Evonmk provides the biggest and also the smallest hair care
product manufacturers with a range of various ingredi-
ents for creating this variety Itincludes mild surfactants
for shampoos, highly effectve ingredients for conditio-
ners, and a whole palette of auxihary materials and addi-
tives that make products suitable for daily use

The formulatrons made from these ingredients are adap-
ted to the end consumers’ expectations For example
very long hair 1s an important element of i1deal beauty

for Braziian women Especially in Brazil's humid chimate,
long tresses require lots of time-consuming care The
average Brazihan woman washes her hair twice a day and
prefers espeaally rich conditioners that make the hair
easy to comb

The domunant local haur structure has an wmpact on the
consumer demands In Braal, which s a melting pot of
indigenous, European, and Afnican hair types, dark wavy
har dominates, whereas northern Europeans tend

to have thinner, light-colored hair The two types of hair
require different kinds of care In addition, Afnican hair
in particular 1s often severely damaged, whether the cus-
tomer s African or African-Amencan Frequent combing
causes frizzy hair to break Many consumers also use
straighterung irons, chermical hair straighteners ar harr
dyes that further damage their hair Evonik has therefore
set up local applications laboratortes in South Africa,




OUR CUSTOMER’'S THINKING:
What lovely hair! Must have been lots

of work—especially without modern
hair care products. Sitky smoothness
doeesn’t come by accident.

15




14

THE ART LOVER'S THINKING
Fantastic! Why can’t
I paint hike that?

4
f

THE SCHOOLGIRL'S THINKING
Incredible’ That painting 1s
older than my parents!




Modern low rolling-resistance tires offer an important

efficiency benefit today. These tires contain the silica-silane

system from Evonik, which reduces rolling resistance

even as it ensures optimal traction on wet roads. The result:

longer range and lower fuel consumption and emissions.

Evonik is also conducting practical tests with many other
solutions—far example, in an ultra-hghtweight sports car
Evonik designed with Roding Automobile, a small-batch
manufacturer from Bavana The vehicle 1s being used

1o test matertals for composites, structural foams, plastc
glazing, and oil additives under tough racing conditions

At the same time, new sernes production processes are
needed if racing tnnovations are to be transferred to

the mass market Evonik has already accomphshed a great
deal in this regard with composites For example, re-
searchers in Evonuk’s Composites Project House have
developed systems and processes that enable composites
to be manufactured more quickly and simply, and less
expensively In the course of their work, they also com-
bined properties that were long considered impossible
for plastic matenials This feat was achieved with new
combinations of polymers, crosshnkers, and catalysts, for
example, and it ensures that the patential of composites
can be exploited more effectively

However, hghtweight design alone 1s not enough to make
cars significantly more chimate-friendly In particular, the

in numerous ways

ECKART RUBAN ,,
Head of the Automotive Industries Team (ALT)
at Evonik Industries

powertrain—where up to 20 percent of a vehicle's ener-
gy Is lost—needs to be optimized Evonik is currently
establishing a center of competence for such optimization
The facility will channel key areas of expertise at

the Group to develop new powertrain technologies

For example, plastics and new coatings tn transmussions,
combined with specially optimized lubricant additives,
could help reduce the loss of engine performance during
vehicle operation

Even with 130 years of development expenence, there's
still plenty of potential for improving automobiles The
road to chmate-friendly mobility will be marked not so
much by leaps in technology as by the combination of a
large number of indmmdual improvements Evonik, with
its innovations for everything from vehicle roofs to tires,
fuels, lubricants, and paints, is present just about every-
where in automobiles, which means the company is well
equipped to parucipate in every step of the probtem’s
solution

More varied materials are being used in cars
—and not just because of ightweight design.

We offer solutions that enhance efficiency

13




RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

FAR-REACHING
CHANGES

New matenals and manufacturing methods are
making vehicles not only lighter but also better
Solutions from Evonik will make just about every
car more efficient in the future

The automotive industry currently faces major challeng-
es, as leqislators and associations around the world are
mandating that vehicles should be made more effictent
as part of the effort to combat chmate change In other
words, mobihty must become cleaner and more econom-
wcal At the same time, drivers continue to demand a level
of comfort and safety that requires the inclusion of mare
and more equipment and systems For decades, this led
to an tncrease in vehicle weight with every new model
generation, and this development basically negated the
numerous advances that had been made with efficient
drive systems, improved aerodynamics, and cleaner fuels
A broad range of innovations 1s needed to ensure that
ever more sophisticated equipment can be effictently
put on the road Such innovations \nvolve everything
from lightweight designs and materials to more efficient
powertrains As a specialist for exceptionally high-per-

formance matenals, Evomk offers solutions in just sbont
every area here For example, the company has devel-
oped joining technology systems that use very powerful
adhesives instead of weld seams, bolts, and rivets This
not only improves bonds between varnious materals such
25 metals and plastics, 1t also makes possible completely
new component concepts and enables thinner materials
to be used to achieve the same degree of component
strength, which also reduces weight Evonik supplies
addtives for the special adhesives needed here and

also offers a hot melt adhesive system that withstands
high stress loads and can thus meet the strictest safety
requirements in ¢rash tests

Plastics are playing an increasingly important role in
efforts to make mobility more efficient They can be
used in place of heawvier metal parts and also enable the
creation of new functions Even components such as
air intake pipes, which are mounted close to the engine
and exposed to high levels of stress, can now be manu-

factured using temperature-resistant huigh-performance
plastics from Evomk In this case, the weight benefit s
accompanied by an optimized arr flow




OUR CUSTOMER’'S THINKING:

It shows that there are sitnations
where even the most modern, fuel-
cfficicnt, and envirenmentally
fricndly lightweight engincering

is useless.

n
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THE POLICEMAN'S THINKING.
That's a novel way to slow
down traffic

THE SHEEPDOG'S THINKING-
Woof, woof!




Even though 1t’s not always obvious,
diapers are a high-tech product.

We provide the core ingredient and
the key know-how.

STEFAN NOWICK]
Strategic Marketing Director
Baby Care Business Line




NUTRITION & CARE

THE INNOVATIVE

CORE

Today baby diapers are a high-tech product that's
attracting new customer groups all over the world
Companes are therefore competing more fiercely to
make the best diapers Evoruk supplies the key ingre-
dient and special know-how to stay in the running.

Away from cotton and cellulose, toward superabsorbing
polymers That would be a good way to descnbe the
development of modern diapers—but it wouldn’t even be
close to the whole story Since the 1980s, when diaper
manufacturers started using superabsorbers, there have
been transformations on babies’ changing tables and
this fiercely competitive market Today superabsorbers
of the latest generation can absorb 500 times their own
weight in liquid Almost every diaper manufactured today
contains a few grams of these granulates And the granu-
late in every fifth diaper comes from Evonik Industries

A great deal of know-how has led to modern diapers

and thetr superabsorbers Backin the early 1980s, the
first-generation superabsorbers merely absorbed hquid
especially well and then retained 1t under pressure
Second-generation superabsorbers could expand agamst
pressure—that 15, even when the baby was sitting on the
diaper In the third generation the transport of hiquid was
optimized, so that the entire diaper could be used even if
1t didn’t contain much cellulose Today the primary goal 1s
to make diapers that absorb liquid even faster and require
even less matenial to guarantee long-lasting dryness

That’s why Evontk 15 continuing to do research aimed at
finding new and improved superabsorbers, and why it's
analyzing diaper designs from all over the world in 1ts
apphcation laboratories Why 1s 1t expending so much
effort? Because of a demanding and steadily growing
group of customers—not the children themselves, but
the:r parents

From Shangha to 5ao Paulo, a growing middle class

with increasing disposable income 1s buying more and
more modern diapers that promise dry baby bottoms,
quieter mghts and happier children As a result, diaper
manufacturers in new markets are competing to win over
a growing number of customers Increasing prosperity
and nising local birthrates are dnving this business
Whereas the diaper market in Western Europe and North
Amenicais growing by less than two percent, and in Japan
incontinence products and baby diapers are being soldin
equal numbers, the rest of the Asian market i1s growing by
about eight percent annually—and the Chinese market s
increasing by an impressive ten percent a year

In these growth markets the manufacturers are trying to
beat the competition by means of clever marketing and
espeoially high-quality diapers In many cases, the keys to
success are materials that are very similar to textiles and
powerful superabsorbers that make diapers even thinner
and more absorbent Children enjoy the wearing comfort,
and parents enjoy having to change diapers less often
Manufacturers and dealers benefit too, because thinner
diapers take up less of the fiercely contested space on
supermarket shelves And the environment also benefits,
because more diapers fit inta each delvery truck

in general, the environmental balance sheet s playing

an increasingly important role for the customers and
manufacturers of consumer goads Evonik is therefore
continuing to work on environmental issues and giving its
customers extensive information about its products’ CO,
footprint, which has shrunk by 15 percentn the past four
years Thanksin part to yet another hidden piece of high
tech in every fifth diaper thats sold

Baby diapers are the biggest market for superabsorbers,

followed by incontinence and hygiene products. But superab-

sorbers can do much more: They protect undersea cables from

invasive seawater. And they absorb and bind the moisture

that forms inside the packaging of poultry, meat, fish, fruit

and vegetables, These foods stay fresh longer. As water

storage media in the soil, superabsorbers also make reliable

harvests possible even in regions with 2 dry climate.




OUR CUSTOMER'S THINKING:

‘That's really impressive! Even though
that diaper is so thin, it can absorb and
contain liquid that’s many times its
own weight. ! bet it could absorb all the
waler in the wading pool!




HER MOM'S THINKING-
Doest’t she look sweet?
When she grows up,
she’ll be @ movie star!

HER BROTHER'S THINKING:
Hey, that's my shovel!
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THERE ARE AS MANY
WORLDS AS THERE ARE
HUMAN BEINGS

There’s not just one world, because every
individual perceives the world differently.
In order to better understand the worlds
of our customers and their customers, we
are constantly changing our perspective.
That’s how we gain new points of view
that help us find superior, and often un-
conventional, solutions. Our new corpo-
rate structure helps us do this even faster

and more flexibly.

In this Annual Report, we cordially invite

you to look at things through our cus-

tomers’ eyes. We hope you enjoy these

changes of perspective.




THOMAS WESSEL
Chief Human Resources Officer

CHRISTIAN KULLMANN
Chief Strategic Officer

KLAUS ENGEL
Chairman of the Executive Board

UTE WOLF
Chief Financial Officer

RALPH $VEN KAUFMANN
Chief Operaung Officer




to food production requirements outside of the
poultry sector A production plant for the Mepron®
feed additive for dairy cows has been butlt in
Maobile (Alabama, USA), We have developed the
new AQUAVI® Met-Met additive for aquaculture
feed The first manufactuning facility for this s now
being built in Antwerp (Belgium)

Demand for quality personal care products and
cosmetics 1s also increasing, so we are expanding
our global production network for specialty oleo-
chemical surfactants

In order to improve resource efficiency, we have
also expanded our manufacturing capaaty for
precipitated silicas Especially when used in com-
bination wath silanes, these silicas enable the pro-
duction of automobile tires that noticeably reduce
fuel consumption A new plant for precipitated
stheas 1s now being built in S50 Paulo (Brazil) and 1s
scheduled to open later this year [t will be the first
faaility to produce highly dispersible silicas for the
South American tire Industry Just last fall, we also
started up new capacity at the extended produc-
tion facility for specialty silicas in Ako (Japan)

We expect additional growth momentum to be
generated by the doubling of our ol additive
production capacity in Singapare, as well as by

the acquisition of the Indian catalyst manufacturer
Monarch and the Dutch hydrogen peroxide manu-
facturer PeroxyChem

In our Performance Matenals Segment, we have
invested in new facilities in Antwerp (Belgium)
and Marl (Germany) that have expanded our
production capacities for the isononanol plasticizer
alcohol, butadiene, and MTBE This investinent has
also improved our flexibility in terms of resource

TS TS W)

utilization In addition, we will be launching a
production joint venture with AkzoNobel in
Ibbenburen (Germany) at the end of 2017 to build
and operate a chlorine-potassium hydroxide
membrane electrolysis plant

WE ARE CUSTOMER-FOCUSED AND
COSMOPOLITAN

In our diverse and globalized world, it 1s becoming
more and more important to gain a better under-
standing of the requirements of our customers

and end-consumers Changing our perspective to
view the world through the eyes of our customers
allows us to see things differently and thus develop
exceptional solutions Our willingness to remain
open to new things and to think in a flexible man-
ner s the key to our culture of learnmng and innava-
tion This culture helps us identify good 1deas at an
early stage of their development and then quickly
bring them to market in order to create added
value for our customers and Evonik

The ability ta change the way we look at things
also requires us to remain objective, ympartial, and
open, and to accept different ways of thinking and
working Narrow-mindedness and intolerance
therefore have no place in our cosmopolitan cor-
porate culture This culture also forms the foun-
dation of our employees’ commitment to social
respensibility around the world—for example, the
commitment to help people who have been forced
to flee thewr homes due to war and hunger

| Invite you to use this Annual Report to get to
know our markets and customers from a new and
different point of view, and I hope this perspective
change will bring you many new and interesting
msights
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The year 2015 was both challenging and successful
for Evonik

Although the global economic situation deteno-
rated noticeably as the year progressed, all in all
we were nevertheless able to defend and improve
our market positions The consistent focus of our
business portfolio on customer-oriented specialty
chemicals, the further selective expansion of ca-
pacities, and our continued investment in research
and development all paid off for our company and
its shareholders

Our total sales increased by 5 percent to €13,507
million, and adjusted EBITDA rose even faster, by
31 percent to €2,465 million Our EBITDA margin
thus increased significantly to 18 2 percent, which
1s an outstanding result both in general and within
our own industry Our return on capital employed
(ROCE) of 16 6 percent was also very high

Adjusted net income rose by 44 percent to€1,7128
million In order to ensure our shareholders benefit
from our positive business development, the Ex-
ecutive Board and Supervisory Board will propose
to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in May that
the dividend be increased from €1 00 per share to
€115 per share

OUR STRATEGY I5 PAYING OFF

Our strategy 1s based on profitable growth, effi-
ciency, and values We aim to further expand

our leading market positions and our leadership
n technology We will focus here on attractive
growth businesses and emerging markets, use our
innovations to gain access to new growth areas,
and continually improve our cost positions

The successful reorganization of our management
and portfolio structure